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1989 CONVENTION SCHEDULE

Monda)', Jul)' 31, 1989

2:00 - 5:00p.m.

Regency Foyer and
Registration Desk
Ballroom Level West Tower

3:00 - 5:00p.m.

New Orleans
Ballroom Level West Tower

Earl)' Arrival Registration

NCNET User's Group

1IIII1/lJ/!II/IIII11/II1/fIII/IIIIIII/II/III/IIUI//II/1/1/11/11////11/11/1/11111/1I11/III11/1II1II1/1111II1II1/11//1/11/11/11//11/111II1II/1!II/IIIII/!11/1111/I/I/II/IIUUUI!

Tuesda)', August 1, 1989

8:00a.m. - 1:30p.m.

Regency Foyer and
Registration Desk
Ballroom Level West Tower

9:00 - 1O:00a.m.

AcapUlco
Ballroom Level West Tower

10:00 - 1O:30a.m.

1O:30a.m. - 12:00N

Toronto (ED)
Acapulco (BM)
Ballroom Level West Tower

Water Tower (BS)
Councourse Level West Tower

Registration

Orientation to NCSBN and the Delegate
Assembl)'

Ardith Inman and National Council staff will
review the National Council's history and
purpose and the parliamentary procedures used
during Delegate Assembly

Break

Group Rap Session

Executive Directors, Board Members, and Board
Staff each have their own moderated session to
attend

National Council of Srarc Boards of Nursing. lnc./198()
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Tuesday, August 1, 1989 (Continued)

12:00N - 1:30p.m.

1:30 - 2:30p.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

2:30 - 3:00p.m.

3:00 - 5:00p.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

5:00 • 7:00p.m.

7:00 - 8:00p.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

8:00p.m.

Regency C
Ballroom Level West Tower

Lunch Break

First Meeting, Delegate Assembly

Business Agenda set by the Board of Directors

Break

CAT/CST Joint Forum

The Computerized Adaptive Testing and
Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing
Projects will be reviewed

Dinner Break

Candidates Forum

An opportunity to see and hear the candidates
for election

CTB/McGraw-Hili Reception

An opportunity to meet the test service staff

/I//IIfII////l/I//l/I//IIf/IIIff/llfI/fllU/l/II//llfllII//llfllII//IIfII/UII/lj/{/////////IIIU/II/fIIU/I/I//IIfII/I//IIfII/IIfII/IllUIWII!I/II/I/llfIUl!/Il1f111/111ljff/

Wednesday, August 2, 1989

8:00 - 9:00a.m.

RegenC)' Foyer and
Registration Desk
Ballroom Level West Tower

Registration

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, [nc./1989



Wednesday, August 2, 1989 (Continued)

9:00 - 10:00a.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

10:00 - 10:30a.m.

1O:30a.m. - 12:00N

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

12:00N - 1:30p.m.

Regency B
Ballroom Level West Tower

1:30 - 2:30p.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

2:30 - 3:00p.m.

3:00 - 5:00p.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

5:00 - 6:00p.m.

6:00p.m.

Buses board on Upper
Wacker Drive near the
West Tower Entrance

Ad Hoc Committee Chairs Forum

The chairpersons of the ad hoc committees
report on their activities

Break

Standing Committee Chairs Forum

The chairpersons of the standing committees
report on their activities

Awards Luncheon

The R. Louise McManus Award will be
presented. Melody Chenovert will speak

Examination Committee Forum

The activities of the examination committee are
addressed in detail

Break

Nursing Practice and Education Committee
Forum

Activities of the committee and subcommittees
are presented

Break

Dinner Theater Social Event

Travel to the Candlelight Dinner Theater for a
delightful meal and an excellent performance of
"42nd Street"

Nariol1al COUl1cil of Stale Boards of Nursil1f;. JI1c.!J989
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/1/111//11//11/11/11//11/11/11/11///11///11///111111/11///11//1/11/11/1111/11//111/111/111/11/1/11/11/1f1l/1I//1I/1I//U/IIII/IU/I!IU!lI!III//U/1I//11!11!IfI1!I1I/I!1I1I!1!I1

Thursday, August 3, 1989

7:00 - 8:00a.m.

Regency Foyer and
Registration Desk
Ballroom Level West Tower

7:30 - 9:00a.m.

Toronto
Ballroom Level West Tower

8:00 - 9:00a.m.

AcapUlco
Ballroom Level West Tower

9:00a.m. - 12:30p.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

12:30 - 2:30p.m.

Area 1: Wrigley
Concourse Level West Tower

Area II: Toronto

Area III: Acapulco
Ballroom Level West Tower

Area IV: Ogden
3rd floor West Tower

Registration

The Psychological Corporation Breakfast

The Psychological Corporation is sponsoring
this event to allow attendees the opportunity to
become familiar with the NACEP test service

Election of Officers

Second Meeting, Delegate Assembly

Business agenda set by the Board of Directors

Area Meetings Luncheon

Delegates and attendees from each National
Council Area will meet during lunch

National Council of State Boards of NurSing, Inc./I989



Thursday, August 3, 1989 (ContUwed)

2:30 - 5:00 p.m.

Addams
Wright
3rd floor West Tower

2:30p.m.

Special Interest Group Meetings

Educational Consultants
Licensed Practical Nurses

Attendee Organized Activities

IIUl/IIII///IUI/I///I//IIUI/111//1//11/1///11///11111////I//II/JI/IIII//I//I//IUI///IIII/I//I//I//IJI/JjUl///II/U1/////I1111//111///1111//II/fUIIIIUl/I/UI///I//1//1111/

Friday, August 4, 1989

7:00 - 8:00a.m.

Regency Foyer and
Registration Desk
Ballroom Level West Tower

8:00 - 9:30a.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

9:30 - 10:00a.m.

Regency Foyer
Ballroom Level West Tower

Acapulco
Ballroom Level West Tower

10:00 - 11:00a.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

l1:ooa.m. - I2:30p.m.

Registration

Research Forum

Presentation of research sponsored by Member
Boards

Research Poster Session

Informal presentations by authors

CTB/McGraw·HilI Question and Answer Session

Staff from CfB/McGraw·Hill will be available
for an informational dialogue

Resolutions Forum

Review and discussion of new resolutions in
Book of Reports

Lunch Break

National Council of State Boards of Nursinr;. IIlc.!198')
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Friday, August 4, 1989 (Continued)

12:30 - 3:30p.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

3:30 - 4:00p.m.

4:00 - 6:00p.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

7:00 . 9:00p.m.

Site to be announced

Third Meeting, Delegate Assembly

Business Agenda set by the Board of Directors
(New Business will start the session)

Break

Educational Session

A presentation and panel discussion on the
Secretary's Commission on Nursing Report

Reception

Hosted by lIIinois State Board of Nursing

1/111/11111II/!/IIIJIIJIII1I/11I/1I/1I/111I1I//!/I(IIII/(((II//(II/(((/IIII/I/(II/III/II/II/(I!II/I/II//IIU!U!/I(II/U!II/U/U/I!IIf(U//!/I/IIIII/IIIIIu/I/II/IU//!/IU!II/

Saturday, August 5, 1989

7:30 . 8:30a.m.

Regency Foyer and
Registration Desk
Ballroom Level West Tower

8:30 - 1l:30a.m.

Regency D
Ballroom Level West Tower

11:30a.m.

Registration

Fourth Session, Delegate Assembly

Business Agenda set by the Board of Directors

Convention adjourns

Natiollal Council of State Boards of Nursing, 1I1c./]989
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Business Agenda of the
1989 Delegate Assembly

I. Call to Order

II. Report of Registration Committee

III. Report of Rules Committee

IV. Adoption of Agenda

V. Announcement of Appointments
Election Committee
Registration Committee
Timekeepers
Pages

VI. Appointment of Committee to Approve Minutes - 1989 Annual Delegate Assembly Convention

VII. Report of Committee to Approve Minutes 1988 Annual Delegate Assembly Convention

VIII. Nominations

Committee on Nominations
Nominations from Floor for Officers and Committee on Nominations

IX. Report of Officers

President
Vice President
Secretary
Treasurer - with audit
Area Directors
Director at Large

National Council of State Boards of Nursing. Jnc./1989
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X. Report of Board of Directors

Operational Plan and Budget FY 1990
Test Service - NCLEX
NCLEX Data Ccnter
Test Service - NACEP
Nurse Information System Committee
Committee for Special Projects
Job Analysis Monitoring Committee
Steering Committee, Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing Project

8

XL Report of Executive Director

XII. Reports of Standing Committees

Finance Committee
Bylaws Committee
Examination Committee
Administration of Examination Committee
Nursing Practice and Education Committee

A Subcommittee to Study Regulatory Models for Chemically Dependent Nurses
B. Nursing Shortage Subcommittee
C. PNNN Competencies Subcommittee

XIII.

XIV,

xv.

XVI.

XVII.

Report of Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program Committee

Election of Officers and Commillee on Nominations (Thursday, August 3, 8:00 - 9:00a.m.)

Report of Election Committee

Report of Resolutions Committee
New Business (Friday, August 4, 12:3Op.m.)

Adjournment

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Rules for Conduct of Delegate Assembly

General Procedures

1. All meetings wiII be called to order on time. Delegates are requested to be in their seats
five minutes before the opening of each meeting.

2. Badges will be provided for delegates and alternates upon registering and must be worn
at all meetings.

3. The order of business may be changed by a majority vote.

4. Smoking shall not be permitted in meeting rooms.

Resolutions

1. All new business shall be introduced through resolutions that have been reviewed by the
Resolutions Committee prior to presentation to the Delegate Assembly.

2. The deadline for presenting resolutions is 2:00 p.m. on the day before the business session
where new business is scheduled.

3. Resolutions must be accompanied by a fiscal impact statement.

4. New business, of an emergency nature, may be introduced if permission is granted by a
majority vote of the Delegate Assembly.

Motions

1. All main motions and amendments shall be written, signed by the maker, and presented
to the Chair immediately after proposal.

2. Motions use the terms "receive" and "adopt". Any motion using the word "accept" will be
interpreted to mean "receive" when used by the National Council in the Delegate Assembly.

3. Motions originating from the Board of Directors or committee reports shall be considered
appropriately presented to the Assembly.

4. On a counted vote, the white voting card receives one vote, the pink voting card receives
two votes.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Debate

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

To be entitled to the floor, a delegate, alternate, or other person in attendance must go
to the microphone, address the Chair, and give name and jurisdiction.

A delegate shall speak no more than three minutes to a motion without consent of the
Delegate Assembly, granted by a majority vote.

A nondelegate may speak once to an issue for three minutes after all interested delegates
have spoken. Such nondelegate may speak again, only at the Chair's invitation.

A delegate may speak more than once to the same question only after all who wish to
speak have done so.

Members of the Board of Directors retain the same righ ts to speak on issues as the
delegates.

A red card raised at the microphone interrupts business for the purpose of a pOint of
order, a question of privilege, orders of the day, a parliamentary inquiry or an appeal.

A timekeeper will signal when allotted time has expired.

Nominations and Elections

1. The person, making a nomination from the floor, shall be permitted two minutes to give
the qualifications of the nominee and to indicate that written consent of the nominee and
a written statement of qualifications have been forwarded to the Committee on
Nominations. Seconding speeches shall not be allowed.

2. The adopted electioneering rules shall remain in effect until amended or rescinded.

3. Election for officers and members of the Committee on Nominations shall be held
Thursday, August 3, at 8:00 a.m.

4. Electioneering for candidates is prohibited in the vicinity of the polling place.

5. If no candidate receives the required vote for an office and revoting is required, the
president shall announce the time for revoting immediately after the original vote is
announced.

N(l{iona/ Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Report of the Committee on Nominations

Activities
The Committee on Nominations met two times: during the October OrientationlPlanning Session;
and on February 24, 1989, in Chicago.

The Call for Nominations was disseminated to Member Boards in the December 9, 1988,
Newsletter. The Committee subsequently received 13 candidates from 12 jurisdictions. Nominations
for two additional candidates were obtained by Committee members on February 24.

Owing to an insufficient number of nominations for Area III Director and Committee on
Nominations, Representative from Area II, it was necessary to issue a second Call for Nominations
for those positions.

Slate of Candidates
The following ballot was developed and adopted by the Committee on Nominations. The
information about each candidate is as follows:

1. Name, Jurisdiction, Area

2. Present Board Position

3. Present Employment

4. Previous National Council Offices or Committees

5. Educational Preparation

6. Personal Statement of Interest

Please note that information pertaining to certain candidates was not available at press time and
is included as an addendum.

Treasurer

1. Donna M. Dorsey, Maryland, Area IV

2. Executive Director

3. Maryland Board of Examiners in Nursing

4. Treasurer, 1986-1989
Bylaws Committee, 1984-1986

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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5. University of Maryland, MSN, 1975
East carolina University, BSN, 1967

6. The challenges facing the Council will require innovative and creative leadership supported by
strong long range planning.
These challenges require:

- A strong financial base
- Balancing programs and activities with the resources of the Council
- Revenue sources that will meet Council goals without placing an undue burden on

the Member Boards
- Leadership in fiscal planning
- Monitoring to assure fiscal stability
- Clear, concise communication of complete fiscal

information

I believe my three years as Treasurer of the Council provide the experience and continuity
needed as the Council moves into the 1990s. I am eager to serve in a second term as your
Treasurer.

1. Catherine M. Puri, California·RN, Area I

2. Executive Officer

3. california Board of Registered Nursing

4. Finance Committee, 1986 to present
Committee on Pretest, 1985

5. University of Oregon, PhD, 1983
University of california, MSN, 1969
california State University, BSN, 1964

6. I have had progressive fiscal responsibility in my career since 1971 and now have oversight for
a budget of 6.5 million. My experience includes working with zero base, line item and program
budgets. I thoroughly understand how to manage a budget beginning with revenue projections
to the establishment of a prudent reserve.

The budget of an organization is an integral part of its long range and short term planning
since there are few goals that can come to fruition without sound fiscal planning. I would
particularly enjoy the challenge of crafting a budget that would further the goals of the
organization, plan for solvency, and be acceptable to the Board of Directors and Council
Members.

The Council had a very prudent reserve two years ago that has now been greatly reduced even
though there has been a significant fee increase within the last 3 years. It would appear that
existing goals need to be reprioritized and at least, a five year fiscal plan developed. The

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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National Council, as a federation of state boards of nursing, must take into account the fiscal
constraints of the Member Boards in this fiscal plan.

It would be an honor and a pleasure to serve as Treasurer for an organization with as much
potential as the NCSBN.

Secretary

1. Helen L. Kelley, Massachusetts, Area IV

2. Board Member, Massachusetts Board of Registration in Nursing

3. LPN Staff Nurse, New England Sinai Hospital and Rehabilitation Genter, 1985 to present

4. Secretary, 1988-1989

5. Massachusetts Department of Mental Health School of Practical Nursing, Diploma, 1974

6. I am honored to be nominated for the term of 1989-1991, for the Office of Secretary of the
National Council of State Boards of Nursing. My opportunities to work collaboratively with
committees on current issues have been extremely constructive. I look forward to continuing
with maintaining an open on-going communication of these and other concerns of all the
Member Boards.

This past year has presented many challenges to the National Council. I feel that I have made
an active contribution to the decision making process of this organization in maintaining its
mission and goals. I would welcome the opportunity to continue serving the National Council
and its Member Boards as a member of your Board of Directors.

1. Laura A. Terrill, Delaware, Area IV

2. President, Delaware Board of Nursing

3. Director of Nursing Education, Medical Genter of Delaware, 1977 to present

4. None

5. Temple University, doctoral candidate University of Pennsylvania, MSN, 1974
Elizabethtown College, BS, 1968
Chestnut Hill School of Nursing, Diploma, 1965

6. Three years ago, when I was appointed to the Board of Nursing, a new world opened up for
me, the world of regulatory nursing. I am now in my second term as President. I have learned
a great deal and I have been, and continue to be, fascinated by the regulatory issues confronting
us and by the National Council.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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I believe I would bring to the Council an enthusiasm for its work as well as years of leadership
experience in both professional and voluntary organizations. I would also bring a volunteer's
perspective to the issues and thus facilitate the Council's goals and objectives.

Of the many issues facing the Council, I believe the most imponant are these that threaten
nursing's very existence (ie: the pressures to decrease standards in the face of the nursing
shortage; the challenge to the validity of exam; and the rapidly evolving new nursing roles).

Area I Director

1. Gail McGuill, Alaska, Area I

2. Executive Secretary

3. Alaska Board of Nursing

4. Administration of Examination Committee, 1983 to present;
Chairperson, 1987 to present.
Committee on Nominations, 1984-1986
Consultation visit to American Samoa Regulatory Board

5. University of Alaska, BSN, 1974
Seattle University, graduate student

6. It is an honor to be considered for the Area I Director for the National Council of State
Boards of Nursing.

My work with the Nominating Committee and with the Administration of the Examination
Committee, including the NCLEX-RN 288 security break, have given me valuable experience
with and exposure to the management of the Council. I am now ready to assume the
responSibilities of being a member of the Board of Directors and to help lead our organization
during the next two years.

As an Area Director, I would be available to the Area Boards, keep them informed on issues
of interest and be responsive to the Member Board needs. I believe the Council should
continue to focus on the matters related to providing psychometrically valid, legally defensible
and secure licensing examinations and on issues pertaining to regulation of nursing practice.
I see the Council as an organization which has gained respect in the professional nursing and
testing communities as it has matured. I will continue to work toward the continuation of that
respect and to those goals and operational plans set by our organization.

1. Elizabeth Pade, Colorado, Area I

2. Board Member, Colorado Board of Nursing, Vice-Chairperson 1988-1989

3. Coordinator, Emily Griffith Opportunity School, 1980 to present

National Council of State Boards of Nursing. Inc.l1989
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4. Delegate to 1988 Delegate Assembly

5. University of Northern Colorado, EdD, 1987
University of Northern Colorado, MA, 1978
Vocational Education, Colorado State University, 1977
Creighton University, BSN, 1%2
S1. Joseph's Mercy School of Nursing, Diploma, 1960

6. I have 25 years experience in diverse educational and political arenas, a breadth of clinical
practice experience and advanced educational study to represent my district in current critical
nursing issues.

My expertise would assist the National Council to hold a course with a focus on the objectives
of licensure examination, nursing practice and continuing competency with receptiveness and
support to Member Boards.

Major priorities are:
Licensure based on a continuum of practice beginning with nursing assistant certification to
protect the legitimate practice of nursing and the public.

Regulation of nursing licenses reflecting practice existing in all health care settings.

Area III Director

1. Carolyn Hutcherson, Georgia-RN, Area III

2. Executive Director

3. Georgia Board of Nursing

4. Area 1II Director, 1987-1989
Communications Committee (Board of Directors), 1987-1989
Committee for Special Projects, 1986-1987

5. University of Southern Mississippi, MS, 1978
Mississippi College, BSN, 1977
Gilfoy School of Nursing, Diploma, 1965

6. During the past two years as Area III Director, I have gained tremendous insight into the
practical relationship between Member Boards and the operation of the Council. This
experience, coupled with the daily responsibility for management of a Member Board, will
continue to provide a balanced perspective in decision-making. Preparation of valid, reliable
and legally defensible examinations which measure entry level performance must remain a
priority of the Council. I believe that the Council must also be responSive to issues, legislation
and economic concerns which affect the entire regulatory community. My highest commitment
remains to represent the individual Member Boards in Area III as policies and direction are
formulated. I would be honored to continue to serve in this capacity.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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1. Second Candidate not slated at time of publication.

Committee on Nominations:

Area I

1. Toma Nisbet, Wyoming, Area I
2. Executive Director
3. Wyoming State Board of Nursing (see addendum).

1. Constance Roth, Washington, Area I
2. Executive Secretary
3. Washington State Board of Nursing (see addendum).

Area II Candidates not slated at time of publication (see addendum).

Area III

1. Susan Grubbs, South Carolina, Area III

2. Vice President, South Carolina State Board of Nursing

3. Instructor, Florence Darlington Technical College, 1974 to present

4. None

5. Francis Marion College, MEd, 1977
University of South Carolina, BSN, 1966
Orangeburg Regional Hospital, Diploma, 1958

6. I am interested in serving as a member of the Committee on Nominations for the National
Council of State Boards of Nursing. Four years experience as a member of the South Carolina
Board of Nursing has provided me the opportunity to review the goals and objectives of the
Council. My experience as a nursing instructor and staff nurse has taught me the importance
of collaboration among health care professionals.

Throughout my professional experience, I have been involved in creative problem solving and
will assist the committee to select the most qualified individuals to serve the National Council
as it continues to meet the regulatory needs in nursing and health care.

National Council of State Boards of NurSing, Jnc./1989
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1. Linda Parrish, Alabama, Area III

2. Vice President, Alabama Board of Nursing

3. Chairperson, Wallace State Community College School of Practical Nursing, 1981 to present

4. None

5. Troy State University, MSN, 1986
Troy State University, BSN, 19&3
Medical center School of Nursing, Diploma, 1966

6. During my professional experience, I have served on several nominating committees of both
college and professional organizations. This experience, and experience as a department
chairman. has prepared me to evaluate the qualifications of applicants in an objective and fair
manner.

In order to achieve the Council's goals and objectives, the Nominating Committee needs to
nominate persons who would be well qualified and dedicated to perform to the best of their
ability.

The top issues that I believe to be a priority of the Council are: computer testing for licensure
and maintaining quality examinations that measure current minimal competencies.

Area IV

1. Caroline Ace, Pennsylvania, Area IV

2. Board Member, Pennsylvania State Board of Nurse Examiners

3. Staff Nurse, Carpenter Care center, 1980 to present

4. Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program, 1988 to present
Examination Committee Alternate, 1988

5. Scranton School District Practical Nurse Program, Diploma, 1968

6. As a member of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing Delegate Assemblies in 1987
and 198&; attendance at Area IV meetings; and nine years as a member of the Pennsylvania
State Board of Nursing. I Obtained the necessary background to function as a member of the
National Council nominating committee. The qualities of fairness, creativity and dedication to
a job well done are vital in helping to choose candidates who possess the necessary credentials
and abilities to serve the organization.

The organizational skills which I have developed through active participation in both
professional and civic groups should be an asset in any goal-oriented organization.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



1. Mary Snodgrass, Massachusetts, Area N

2. Executive Secretary

3. Massachusetts Board of Registration in Nursing

4. Committee on Nominations, 1987-1989
Examination Committee Alternate, 1986-1987

5. Boston University, MSN, 1968
Indiana University, BSN, 1966
Methodist Hospital School of Nursing, Diploma, 1957

6. Selection of candidates to serve the National Council in leadership positions is an eXCItmg
experience. The organization has many talented nursing professionals who are committed to
the Council's goals, eager to serve Member Boards and guide the organization to continuing
achievement.

I believe the leaders of the National Council must maintain lines of communication; have
attitudes which are creative and futuristic; have the ability and the willingness to communicate
effectively with members; be supportive of Member Boards in usual activities and in times of
crisis; demonstrate patience in exploring new ideas; and encourage sharing of priority issues of
one Board with other members.

I would be honored to serve as a member of the Committee on Nominations in 1989-90.

The top priority of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing should be the development
of computer testing services along with creative ways to finance the activities necessary to
maintain and improve services.

Committee Members and Staff
Patricia Calico, Chairperson
Pat Broten
Phyllis Sheridan
Mary Snodgrass

Area
III
II
I
IV

Kathy Kostbade Hughes, Director of Administration
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Report of the President

It is my privilege to welcome all members and guests to the upcoming Eleventh Annual Convention
of the NCSBN. Last year, we reached a milestone in organizational development as we celebrated
our tenth anniversary. The convention not only offered us a time to reflect on our rich heritage,
but also to anticipate our future with enthusiasm and challenge. The written history of the
organization showcased the pioneer efforts of our members as they embarked on uncharted waters
to develop a strong and viable national organization. The history was appropriately titled, "The
Promise Continues."

As you read through the following pages of the Book of Reports, you will be impressed, as was I,
with the tremendous productivity of the organization this year. A well developed strategic plan
guides the work of the organization and keeps the Board, staff, and committees goal-directed, even
in the face of obstacles. Probably the most significant stressor for the organization this year came
when Dr. Eileen Dvorak announced her resignation as Executive Director effective January 9, 1989.
The Board quickly appointed Dr. Jennifer Bosma Acting Executive Director and assisted staff with
mobilizing resources to carry on the work of the organization. The fact that staff were able to
competently carry on with the activities of the Council with little disruption is a credit to Dr.
Dvorak and her strong leadership ability as well as to the commitment and expertise of the staff.
The Board appointed a search committee, reviewed and updated the Executive Director job
description, developed ideal candidate qualifications, and projected a timeline for filling the vacancy.
The goal is to make a selection by fall 1989.

In summarizing the major activities and accomplishments of the Council this past year, the area
consuming major resources of the organization continues to be testing. Following the NCLEX­
RN 788 standard-setting and examination administration, there was national concern expressed over
the increased failure rate in light of the nursing shortage. The Board directed that a study be done
on the standard-setting process and a report be presented with recommendations. The Board
further considered a request from a Member Board to increase the frequency of NCLEX
administrations and directed appropriate committees and the test service to explore the feasibility
of increasing NCLEX administrations and report to the Board. During area meetings, the Board
received additional input from members. Since additional NCLEX administrations would necessitate
a major contract change with Member Boards as well as have a significant fiscal impact, the matter
must be voted on by the Delegates.

The Board began drafting a request for proposalS (RFPs) for Test Service and Data Center
contracts as directed by the 1988 Delegate Assembly. This proposal will be finalized and available
for distribution by fall 1989. During the April meeting of the Board of Directors, CTB/McGraw­
Hill presented the Board with an unsolicited proposal for a two-year contract extension. In
reviewing the terms of the proposal, the Board determined that, due to the significant fiscal impact
and also Member Board contract issues, the proposal be referred to the Delegate Assembly for vote.
Immediate plans are underway to conduct a Test Service and Data Center evaluation to provide
members with information on which to base a decision during the meeting of the Delegate
Assembly.

N{I1iol1al Council of Stale Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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The Council has continued to make progress on the Computerized Adaptive Testing Project as the
committee prepares to conduct field tests in 1990 and 1991. The Computerized Clinical Simulation
Testing Project is also progressing. The Board has been negotiating a license agreement with the
National Board of Medical Examiners to ensure future access to object code and source code
information, if the technology is used for testing by the Council.

Research related to the licensure examinations continues to provide the most legally defensible and
psychometrically sound measure of entry level competency. The Board directed a dimensionality
study be conducted this year to assist in decision-making related to the Computerized Adaptive
Testing Project. In addition, the ongoing research on ethnicity/gender bias and person-fit analysis
have been monitored by the Board. A qualitative component for inclusion in a job analysis
instrument has been developed and is being pilot tested as the Council embarks on an in-house job
analysis monitoring process. Security of the examination continues to be a major focus as security
measures are updated for the written examinations and developed for the computerized
examinations.

The Council has capitalized on its expertise and experience in test development in a unique
opportunity through its development of the Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program (NACEP).
The 1988 Delegate Assembly approved the development of a Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation
Program and charged the Board of Directors to implement the project along with the Nurse Aide
Competency Evaluation Program Committee. The Psychological Corporation was selected as the
test service and the committee worked diligently with the test service to produce a "superior
solution" to the federally mandated Nursing Home Reform Act (OBRA 1987). The Psychological
Corporation reports that the marketing department has been pleased with the national response to
the NACEP project.

The Nursing Practice and Education Committee issues have grown to the point that this year the
subcommittee structure was developed to complete the work of the committee. The Board provided
feedback to the subcommittees studying the nurse Shortage, regulatory models for managing the
chemically dependent nurse, and synthesizing PNNN competencies. Model guidelines for
endorsement and foreign nurse licensure have been produced by the Nursing Practice and Education
Committee for review and approval by the Delegate Assembly. The committee was also charged
with the review of the job analysis findings for implications for nursing practice.

The work of the Finance Committee must be recognized as the "fine tuning" of program-based
budget continues. Careful analysis of resources provides the Board with critical information in
decision-making. Each recommendation with a fiscal impact has been reviewed by the committee
prior to Board action. The organization has maintained its sound financial status this fiscal year.

Communication, both intraorganizational and interorganizational, has received major attention by
the Board of Directors. The Orientation and Long-Range Planning Retreat offers the Board and
committees of the Council an opportunity to review our Objectives, plan for implementation, and
determine optimum communication plans. The Board assigned a member to serve as a liaison to
each standing and ad hoc committee. Committee chairs were invited to meet with the Board, at
each of its meetings, by telephone conference during the presentation of their report so that
firsthand information could be exchanged. Written reports of Board action were provided to each
committee chairperson following each Board meeting. Member Board communication was evaluated
and efforts to share information in the most timely manner continued. Summaries of major action

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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were reported in the next available Newsletter following each Board meeting. The Book of Reports
format was evaluated and a new notebook format adopted to allow easy insertion of reports and
to extend deadlines for committee reports. Field visits to Member Boards were continued by staff
and committee representatives. Information about nurses is a critical element not only for the
Council, but also for the nation. Major nursing organizations support the concept of the Nurse
Information System Committee to develop a model for gathering unduplicated data on the supply
of nurses.

Interorganizational relationships have been nurtured through the participation of the Council on
the National Commission on Nursing Implementation Project (NCNIP). The Board of Directors
was invited to participate in the Wingspread Conference that brought together the boards of the
major nursing organizations to review the goals of NCNIP and determine future implementation
of those goals. The Council has continued liaison relationships with American Nurses' Association
(ANA), National League for Nursing (NLN), National Association for Practical Nurse Education
and Service (NAPNES), National Federation of Licensed Practical Nurses (NFLPN), and
Commission on Graduates of Foreign Nursing Schools (CGFNS) and has met with representatives
of the American Organization of Nurse Executives (AONE). The participation of the Council on
the International Council of Nursing Project has continued this year and will result in a joint paper
with ANA on the Regulation of Specialty Nursing Practice. In addition, members of the Board
have participated in national meetings of the National Student Nurses Association, American
Association of Colleges of Nursing, American Association of Critical Care Nurses, NAPNES,
NFLPN, AONE, NLN, ANA, American Medical Association Advisory Committee, and the Nursing
Shortage Summit meeting.

The danger of beginning to formulate a list of activities and accomplishments becomes evident as
one realizes that every contribution cannot be adequately recognized in a brief report. Numerous
individuals have contributed to the goal achievement of the organization this year: Member Boards,
committees, staff, legal counsel, contractors, as well as Board Members. I express my deepest
appreciation for their unfailing support and their numerous accomplishments. I look forward to
the Eleventh Annual Delegate Assembly as we have an opportunity to renew friendships and be
challenged with setting new direction as "the promise continues".

Renatta S. Loquist, President
Area III, South Carolina
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Report of the Vice President

As Vice President of the National Council State Boards of Nursing during the past year, I have participated
in the following activities:

Attended four Board of Directors Meetings and participated in all Board of Directors
Telephone Conference Calls.

Attended and participated in, the National Council of State Boards of Nursing Orientation
Session in October 1988 and the First Invitational Regulatory Conference in January 1989.

Attended the Tri Council Invitational Meeting on the Nursing Shortage and the NCNIP
Wingspread Conference in October 1988.

Represented the Council at several meetings at the request of the President.

It has been a busy year, not only for the Board of Directors, but for the staff and members of the Council
as well. As I have reviewed the reports of all the Committees and Subcommittees which have been
submitted to the Board of Directors throughout the year, I have been impressed with the time and
commitment of individual members to the Council and the accomplishments and activities of all the various
committees. The Council is a complex organization, but it is only the sum of its parts. These parts are,
first and foremost, its people whose hard work, dedication and professionalism are what make this
organization so successful.

I would like to thank each of you for all you've done, and express my appreciation for the opportunity to
serve as Vice President of this Council during this past year.

Joan Bouchard, Oregon
Vice President

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc. 11 989
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Report of the Secretary

This past year, as Secreta!)' of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing, I have panicipated in all
Board of Director's meetings, as well as the Board and Committee Orientation and Planning Retreat. I also
participated in eight Board of Director's conference calls. As pan of my responsibilities, I reviewed all
minutes of Board of Director's meetings and the Summa!)' of Major Board Actions before their public
distribution and publication in the National Council of State Boards of Nursing Newsletter.

I have served as a member of the Convention Planning Committee and attended all of its meetings and
conference calls. I have been the liaison of the Board to the PN/VN Future Competency Committee and
was asked to participate in PN Exam Review Retreat.

I would like to express my appreciation to the Delegates for having allowed me this opportunity to
represent you on the Board of Directors. The suppon I have received from Board Members and Council
staff has made this a rewarding experience. It has been an honor and privilege to have served the National
Council of State Boards of Nursing.

Helen L. Kelley, Massachusetts
Secreta!)'

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./I989



6

Report of the Treasurer

Recommendation
The auditor's report for fiscal year 1988 be approved as presented.

Activities
Program budgeting continues to be an effective means for evaluating the Council's fiscal needs and
activities. It allows for close monitoring of the expenditures within each program and provides a
means to evaluate the fiscal impact of each program. Currently in progress is a cost analysis of
each program. For example, the revenues for the Stare Nursing Legislation Quarterly have been
less than expected. The issue has been referred to the Board of Directors for further evaluation.
The completed analysis will be presented to the Board of Directors for further action.

The financial position of the Council remains strong. Again this past year, revenue has been higher
than projected. As in the past, NCLEX revenue and investment income was higher than budgeted.
Income from publications was less than projected due to incorrect estimates of revenue by the
publishers. Prior to finalizing the FY90 budget, the Finance Committee reduced the publisher's
estimates of income hoping that next year's revenue projections would be more realistic. Additional
expenditures for the Executive Director Search Committee and legal expenses were handled within
the budget. The designated funds for CAT, CST, and the Nurse Aide Competency programs did
not exceed the budgeted allowances.

Quarterly financial reports and the investment statements were presented to the Finance Committee
and Board of Directors. Following approval by the Board of Directors, the reports, along with
graphs, were sent to all Member Boards. Graphic descriptions of the financial reports were
developed to enhance understanding of the Council's financial position. Further refinement of the
graphS and expanded use of illustrations in communicating financial information is planned. No
comments or questions were received from Member Boards regarding the financial report.

The FY90 budget was ptepared by the Finance Committee. Justifications for each request were
reviewed prior to making any decisions about bUdget allowances. A capital acquisitions budget was
also prepared. This was the second year for the implementation of a separate capital acquisitions
budget. This budget includes both new and teplacement equipment. Since capital acquisitions are
amortized in the operating budget, the capital acquisitions budget allows for specific cost evaluation
of new and replacement equipment requests.

The five year financial forecasts are regularly teviewed and have proved to be extremely useful. The
method for forecasting has been refined. The forecasts have been used by the Finance Committee
and the Board of Directors when making financial decisions. In addition, I have presented the
fiscal impact of all proposed projects, programs and issues brought before the Board.

A new banking relationship was established this past year. A search was conducted to find the
banking establishment that could best meet Council needs. The new banking relationship has
provided the Council with the needed services.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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One activity that consumed a great deal of time was the decision to find new office space. The
Finance Committee and Treasurer were involved in all aspects of the decision and evaluated the
fiscal impact of all options. This activity helped to assure that decisions regarding the move were
fiscalIy sound.

As Treasurer, I have assured compliance with all financial policies. In addition, alI policies have
been revieWed and updated as required.

During the past year, I have attended all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Coordinating
Committee. I have also chaired all meetings of the Finance Committee. In addition, I attended
the Wingspread Conference in Racine, Wisconsin, and represented the Council at the fall meeting
of the American Association of Colleges of Nursing. I was a member of the team negotiating the
contract with The Psychological Corporation as the test service for the Nurse Aide Competency
Evaluation. I also served as a member of the team to negotiate a draft contract with CTBlMcGraw­
Hill in response to their proposal for a contract extension. This document will be presented to
the Delegate Assembly for decision. As a member of the Coordinating Committee, I reviewed and
provided input on the lease proposal and the contract with the National Board of Medical
Examiners in relation to their work with the CST Project.

My work with the Council has been challenging and exciting. The accomplishments over the past
year would not have been possible without the cooperation of the staff and Council committees.
I especially want to express my appreciation to Kathy Hayden, Financial Manager, who provided
staff support to the Finance Committee and provided me with whatever information I needed. I
also want to thank the Finance Committee for all their support as well as their hard work and long
hours given to the Committee throughout the year.

Donna Dorsey
Treasurer
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Financial Statements and Independent Auditors'
Report

National Council DC State Boards DC Nnrsing, Inc.

June 30, 1988 and 1987

Auditors' Report

Board of Directors National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the National Council of State Boards of
Nursing, Inc. as of June 30, 1988 and 1987 and the related statements of revenue and expenses,
changes in fund balance and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the management of the National Council. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing,
Inc. as of June 30, 1988 and 1987, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Grant Thornton Accountants and Management Consultants
Chicago, Illinois
September 14, 1988

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Bolance Sheets
June 30,

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank checking accounts .
First Chicago Money Market .
Continental Money Market .
Wells Fargo Money Market , .

Accounts Receivable
Royalties ." . . . . . . . . .. , . . . . . . . . .
Interest and other .

Publication inventories (note A) .

Prepaid disaster plan costs (note A) .

Other assets and prepaid expenses .

1988 1987

$ 35,826 $ (56,717)
859,016 113,595
108,226 102,313

2,796 2,666

1,005,864 161,857

50,566 39,826
52,483 34,697

103,049 74,523

31,875 39,236

76,835 153,670

54,889 39,685

Investments - at cost (market value $3,928,661
in 1988 and $3,829,000 in 1987)

U.S. government instruments . 3,889,158 3,805,055

Property and equipment - at cost (note A)
Furniture, fixtures and

leasehold improvements .
EqUipment and computer software .

Less accumulated depreciation .

149,069 129,947
320,903 274,343

469,972 404,290
230,872 137,729

239,100 266,561

$5,400,770 $4.540,587

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Balance Sheets - Continued
June 30,

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Accounts payable .

Accrued expenses and withheld taxes

Deferred revenue
Examination fees collected in advance

(net of prepaid processing fees of $176,927
in 1988 and $176,237 in 1987) .....

Contract and convention fees . . . . . . . . . . . .

Commitments (note C)

1988

$ 789,017

92,470

1,606,865
82,468

1,689,333

1987

$ 378,548

57,239

1,472,514
100,010

1,572,524

Fund balance
Restricted (note D) .
Unrestricted

Undesignated .
Designated (note C) .

Total fund balance .

585,934

2,227,768 2,418,558
16,248 113,7]8

2,244,016 2,532,276

2,829,950 2,532,276

$5,400,770 $4,540,587

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Statements of Revenue and Expenses
Year Ended June 30,

Unrestricted
1988

Restricted Total
1987

Total

11

Revenue
Examination fees .
Less: cost of development,

application and processing .

$3,803,489 $

2.665,564

$3,803,489 $3,978,384

2,665,564 2,725,593

Net examination fees .

Member board contracts .
Publications .
Delegate assembly .
Honoraria and other .
Investment income .
Computer simulation testing grant

Program and organizational Expenses
Publications .
Delegate assembly and

convention planning .
Computer research

Acr nursing study .
Computerized adaptive

testing (CAT) .
Computerized simulation

testing (CST) .
Board meetings and travel . . . . . . . .
Public relations and

communications .
Other committee expenses .

Administrative expenses
Staff salaries and benefits ..
Professional fees ..
Office supplies and expenses .
Insurance .
Rent and utilities .
Equipment maintenance and

rental .
Depreciation and amortization .
Miscellaneous .

1,137,925

183,000
101,709
48,503

6,148
237,044

1,714,329

67,991

50,839

151,212

380,703

55,135

39,803
92.739

838,422

757,387
27,331
69,801
35,831

151,241

20,479
92,899

9,198

1,164,167

628,680

628,680

42,746

42,746

1,137,925

183,000
101,709
48,503
6,148

237,044
628,680

2,343,009

67,991

50,839

151,212

380,703

42,746
55,135

39,803
92,739

881,168

757,387
27,331
69,801
35,831

151,241

20,479
92,899
9,198

1,164,167

1,252,791

181,000
75,176
51,093
2,782

195,423

1,758,265

48,948

77,444

94,228

63,183

4,126
49,914

23,909
83.367

445,119

602,543
48,177
58,202
35,783

121,334

22,878
82,608
5,825

977,350

Excess of revenue (expense) .. $ (288.260) $585,934 $ 297,674 $ 335,796

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Statement of Changes in Fund Balance
Years ended June 30,

Unrestricted
Designated

for
computerized

adaptive
testing

Undesignated (note C)

Restricted

Computerized
simulation

testing
(note D) Total

Fund balance at July I, 1986 .

Transfer to Board designated fund for
computerized adaptive testing .....

Excess of revenue over (expenses) ....

Fund balance at June 30, 1987 .

Transfer to Board designated fund for
computer adaptive testing .

Excess of revenue over (expense) .

$2,196,480

(176,900)

398,978

2,418,558

(283,233)
92,443

$

176,900

(63,182)

113,718

283,233
(380,703)

$

585,934

$2,196,480

335,796

2,532,276

297,674

Fund balance at June 30, 1988 . $2,227,768 $ 16,248 $585,934 $2,829,950

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ending June 30,

Increase in cash and cash equivalents: 1988 1987

13

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from testing

fees and other sources .
Cash paid to suppliers and employees .
Cash received for restricted fund grant .
Interest received .

Net cash provided by
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures .
Proceeds from sale of ftxed assets .
Proceeds from maturity of investments .
Purchase of investments .

Net cash used in
investing activities .

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year .

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ....

$ 4,308,698 $ 3,680,970
(4,180,630) (3,560,250)

628,680
235,197 202,801

991,945 323,521

(65,682) (180,694)
1,350

8,498,806 6,267,268
(8,581,062) (8,613.441)

( 147,938) (2,525,517)

844,007 (2,201,996)

161,857 2,363,853

$ 1,005,864 $ 161,857

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
Year Ended June 30,

Reconciliation of net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Excess of revenue over expense . . . . . . . .
Adjustment to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization .
Gain on sale of fIXed assets .
Provision for inventory obsolescence
Amortization of premium on treasury

notes .
(Increase) decrease in accounts

receivable .
(Increase) decrease in prepaid

expenses .
(Increase) in inventory . . . . . . . . . . .
Increase in accounts payable .
Increase in accrued expenses . . . . . . .
Increase (Decrease) in deferred

revenue .

Total adjustments .

1988

$ 297,674

$ 169,978

10,000

(1,847)

(28,527)

(15,204)
(2,638)

410,469
35,231

116,809

694,271

1987

$ 335,796

$ 119,765
(1,350)

7,378

38,960

7,490
(17,657)
153,014

16,074

(335.949)

(12,275)

14

Net cash provided by operating
activities . $ 991,945 $ 323,521

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 1988 and 1987

Note A • Summary of Accounting Policies

A summary of the Council's significant a=unting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the
a=mpanying financial statements follows.

Accounting Method. The Council prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting.
Examination fees collected and processing costs incurred in advance are deferred and recognized at the date
of the examination.

Depreciation. Depreciation is provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable equipment
and leasehold improvements to operations over their estimated service lives on the straight-line method.

Inventories. Inventories, primarily publications, are stated at the lower of actual cost or market. Cost is
determined principally by specific identification. During 1988, it was determined that certain pUblications may
become outdated. A reserve for inventory obsolescence in the amount of $10,000 was recorded.

Prepaid Disaster Plan Costs. The Council incurred supplemental reprinting costs for examinations in 1985
and 1986. The costs were being amortized over a six-year period on a straight-line basis. However, during
the August 1988 convention, a new Crisis Management Plan was adopted to become effective with the July
1989 RN examination and the October 1989 PN examination. Thus, the remaining useful life of the reprinted
and stored examinations is approximately one year. An additional $39,711 in amortization expense was recorded
to reflect this change in a=unting estimate.

Services of Volunteers. Officers, committee members, the Board of Directors and various other non-staff
associates assist the Council in various program and administrative functions, without renumeration. No value
has been ascribed for such volunteer services because of the impracticality of their measurement.

Statement of Cash Flows. In a=rdance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 95, a statement
of cash flows is presented in place of a statement of changes in financial position. A=rdingly, the financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 1987 have been restated to present a Statement of Cash Flows.

Note B • Purpose and Tax Status

The Council is a non-profit corporation organized under the Statutes of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
Its purpose is to serve as a charitable and educational organization through which State Boards of Nursing act
on matters of common interest and concern affecting the pUblic health, safety and welfare, including the
development of licensing examinations and standards in nursing. It is exempt from Federal income tax under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as indicated in a letter dated June 8, 1987. Therefore, the
accompanying financial statements reflect no provision for income taxes.

Note C - Commitments

Operating Lease. The Council's lease agreement for office facilities extends through August 31, 1989 and calls
for monthly payments of $11,577 which are adjusted annually based on the changes in the Consumer Price Index.
In addition to the basic rental, the Council is required to pay for electricity.
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Note C • Commitments. Continued

The Council's future minimum rental payments required under this long-term lease are as follows:

Period ending
June 30, 1989
July and August, 1989
Total minimum lease payment

$138,924
23,154

162,078

Data Center Contract. The Council has entered into an agreement for the design of a computerized system
for processing test applications. In connection with this system, the agreement provides for the test service
company to process the test applications with a minimum annual fee of $343,000 through JUly 1988, and
$413,000 from August 1988 through July 1991.

Computerized Adaptive Testing. The Council designated $176,000 in 1987, and $283,23 in 1988 to fund a
computerized adaptive testing project. During fiscal 1988 and 1987, $380,703 and $63,183 were expended,
respectively. Within these designated funds, the Council entered into contracts with an outside research
organization in the amount of $125,000 to develop computerized adaptive testing software.

Note D • Computer Simulated Testing

In 1988, the Council received a restricted grant from the KeJlogg Foundation to develop a software system 10

insure clinical competence of nurses and to insure inter-professional collaboration between nursing and medicine,
through computer based clinical simulation. The grant, amounting to $1,906,179, will be received in Ihree
installments through June of 1991. In return for computer programming and consulting services, the National
Council must pay National Board of Medical Examiners a minimum of $625,000 between March 1, 1988 and
February 28, 1991.

National Council of State Boards of Nursinr;, Inc./1989
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Report of the Area I Director

Although I was unable to attend the April 1989 Board of Director's meeting and was unavailable for several
conference calls, I did participate in the majority of Board meetings and conference calls. In addition, I
attended the Board/Committee Orientation and the Wingspread Conference.

The Area I meeting was held March 2-3, 1989, in Anchorage, Alaska. Forty (40) representatives from Area
I Member Boards, the National Council, CTBlMcGraw-Hill and The Psychological Corporation attended
the meeting. Thirteen (13) of the eighteen (18) jurisdictions in Area I were present. Major areas of
discussion at the Area I meeting included the increased failure rate with the NCLEX-788, the nursing
shortage, and the preparation and evaluation of nurse aides.

Future sites for Area I Spring meetings are:

1990 - Arizona (Phoenix or Scottsdale)
1991 - Yellowstone National Park, Wyoming

I would like to take this opportunity to thank Area I Member Boards for the opportunity to represent our
Area on the Board of Directors the past two years.

Nancy Twigg, New Mexico
Area I Director
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Report of the Area II Director

As Area II Director, I have participated in Board meetings and conference calls as well as the Orientation
Session for Boards and Committees. Additionally, I have served as a member of the Convention Planning
Committee and as Board liaison to the Nursing Practice Committee and its subcommittees.

The Area II meeting was well hosted on April 10-11, 1989, by the Nebraska Board of Nursing in Lincoln,
Nebraska. Twelve of the thirteen jurisdictions in Area II were represented. Also in attendance were
Renatta Loquist, President; Jennifer Bosma, Acting Executive Director; Anthony zara, Director of Special
Projects; Andrea Kingman, crBlMcGraw-HiII; and Sandra Pakes, The Psychological Corporation.

Major topics of discussion included:

1. Computer Adaptive Testing
2. Computer Simulation Testing
3. Frequency and dates of examination administration
4. NCLEX-PN Test Plan revision
5. PNNN Competencies
6. Nursing Shortage
7. Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program
8. Scholarship/Loan legislation in various jurisdictions
9. Handling of practice issues

10. Commission on Graduates of Foreign Nursing Schools
11. NCLEX draft item concerns

Following the presentations by staff and committee members, the participants formed smaller discussion
groups to identify priorities and concerns for the Council to consider. Major themes identified included:

1. Attention to fiscal restraints.
2. Direction of resources toward implementation of CAT as opposed to increasing the number of

administrations of current examinations.
3. ImproVed coordination of surveys sent to Member Boards.
4. Role of research in the Council.
5. Timeliness of public policy statements and documents.
6. Development of model language for nursing assistants.
7. Increased feedback to jurisdictions regarding the performance of item writers and content experts

from respective jurisdictions.
8. Disciplinary responses in cases related to practice issues.
9. Exercising of caution with regard to entry into practice statements from the Council.

10. Examination workshops being provided by crBlMcGraw-HiU similar to that provided at the
Invitational.

The participants did endorse the proposing of a resolution regarding formulation of a formalized
relationship with the American Organization of Nurse Executives.

I have enjoyed being able to represent Area II and look forward to increased communication with the
Member Boards in the future.

Judy A. Jondahl, Illinois
Area II Director
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Report of the Area III Director

During the past year, several major National Council issues afforded me the opportunity to gain knowledge
and insight about the operations, structure and philosophy of Area III Member Boards. This experience
has proven invaluable in representing Area IlIon the Board. During the past year, I have attended all
Board meetings, Communication Committee meetings, and all but one of the many conference calls.

The Area III Meeting was held April 6-7, 1989, in New Orleans, Louisiana, with seventy-two (72) attendees
representing all sixteen (16) jurisdictions. Lively discussion occurred about state legislative issues,
Council/committee reports, and specified Area interests. The spring 1990 meeting will be held in
Charleston, South Carolina.

Area III Member Boards continue to demonstrate commitment to the Council by active participation in
activities 10 accomplish the mission and goals of the Council.

Carolyn Hutcherson, Georgia
Area III Director
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Report of the Area IV Director

As Area IV Director, I have attended all regular meetings of the Board of Directors, participated in all but
one conference call, and served as Chairperson of the Board of Directors' Communications Committee.

The Area IV Member Boards met on April 20-21, 1989, in Atlantic City, New Jersey. Twelve of the
thirteen jurisdictions were represented at the meeting by a total of fifty-five attendees. Representing the
Council were Renatta Loquist, President; Dr. Jennifer Bosma, Acting Executive Director; and Anthony zara,
Director of Special Projects. Also in attendance were Andrea Kingman, CfBIMcGraw Hill, and Mary Ellen
Raab, The Psychological Corporation.

A moment of silence was observed in memory of Marianna Bacigalupo, former Executive Director of the
New Jersey Board of Nursing, who died on April 11, 1989.

Agenda items and presentations included the following:

1. PN/VN test plan
2. Reporting of pass/fail scores
3. Examination policies
4. Administration of NCLEX-PN in Germany
5. Implementation of OBRA
6. Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program
7. National Practitioner Data Bank
8. CAT and CST projects
9. Survey regarding increase in number of NCLEX administrations

10. Use of NCLEX for continued competency

We were privileged to have as our luncheon speaker Dr. Lucille Joel, President, American Nurses'
Association.

Appreciation is extended to the New Jersey Board of Nursing and its Executive Director, Sister Teresa
Harris, for planning and organizing this meeting and for the hospitality extended to the attendees.

The 1990 Area IV meeting will be held in Baltimore, Maryland.

I am appreciative of the opportunity to serve you as Director and solicit your suggestions for continued
representation of the need of Area IV.

Jean C. Caron, Maine
Area IV Director
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Report of the Director at Large

Through this past year, it has been a pleasure to serve the National Council as its Director at
Large. Regrettably, unforeseen obligations, coupled with health related problems, necessitated my
resignation from the Board of Directors. However, in the few months which I was able to fulfill
my responsibilities, I participated in two Board meetings and three Board of Directors' conference
caIls. Additionally, I served as the Board liaison to the Nurse Information System Committee and,
as such, participated in its 30 October - 1 November meeting as well as its December conference
caIl. I also served as a member of the Communications Committee and attended the NCNIP
Wingspread Conference in October 1988.

Although I needed to resign office in mid-term, I will always be most interested and supportive of
Council activities. I thank the Delegates for allowing me the opportunity to take an active role in
this dynamic organization.

Lonna Burress, Nevada
Director at Large
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Report of The Board of Directors

Recommendations
That the National Council conduct standard setting procedures on a regular cycle, occurring every
three years for each licensure examination; the timing shall be coordinated with the cycle of job
analysis studies whenever possible. (Goal I. Objective A)

Meetings
The Board of Directors of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc., met on the
following dates since the time of the last annual report to the Delegate Assembly.

'June 23, 1988
'July 18, 1988
'August 1, 1988
August 14-16, 1988
August 20, 1988

'August 29, 1988
November 2-3, 1988

'December 14, 1988
'January 3, 1989
'January 6, 1989
January 29 - February 1, 1989

*February 16, 1989
*March 3, 1989
*April 3, 1989
April 26-28, 1989

*May 8,1989
*June 7, 1989

'telephone conference calls

Board of Directors meetings are scheduled for JUly 6-7 and July 30-31, 1989.

Operational Plan
At the annual Fall Planning Retreat, the Board of Directors and committees plan specific activities
to carry out the adopted goals, objectives, and strategies of the National Council of State Boards
of Nursing. After review for coordination and coverage, and updating to include activities directed
by the 1988 Delegate Assembly, the Board of Directors approved the Operational Plan for FY89
in August 1988. Planning for committee and Board of Directors activities and the annual budget
is guided by the Operational Plan.
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Committees
Members of the Board of Directors served on the following committees to expedite the work of the
Board:

Coordinating Committee
Communications Committee
Convention Planning Committee

The fonowing are Ad Hoc Committees created by and reporting to the Board of Directors, with
charges to perform particular tasks related to the mission and goals of the National Council:

Nurse Information System Committee (formerly National Nursing Licensure Data Base
Committee) (Goal IV. Objectives A and B)

Job Analysis Monitoring Committee (Goal I. Objective A Strategy 4)
Committee for Special Projects (Computerized Adaptive Testing Feasibility Study) (Goal I.

Objective A Strategies 6 and 7)
Steering Committee, Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing Project (Goal 1. Objective A

Strategy 8)

The following is an Ad Hoc Committee created by the Delegate Assembly with a charge to perform
a specific task related to the mission and goals of the National Council:

Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program (NACEP) Committee (Goal I. Objective C.
Strategy 7)

The following are Standing Committees of the Delegate Assembly whose work progress is monitored
throughout the year by the Board of Directors:

Administration of Examination Committee
Bylaws Committee
Examination Committee
Finance Committee
Nursing Practice and Education Committee

Board Of Directors Actions
Reviewed reports and recommendations from officers, committees, staff, and test
services at each meeting and took appropriate action.

Appointed committee chairpersons and ratified Coordinating Committee appointments
of members to standing and ad hoc committees.

Assigned members of the Board of Directors as liaisons to standing and ad hoc
committees for FY89; adopted a document describing the purpose and function of the
Board/Committee Liaison role, and directed staff to disseminate it to committee
chairpersons.
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Determined that there was a need to establish a monitoring mechanism for in-house
job analysis studies and appointed a three-member Ad Hoc Job Analysis Monitoring
Committee.

Created a designated fund for the implementation of the Crisis Management Plan
adopted by the 1988 Delegate Assembly.

Directed staff to monitor truth-in-testing developments and report back to the Board;
and directed staff to hold further investigation of the potential response to truth-in­
testing of full item disclosure, pending progress of a grant proposal by Doctors George
Madaus and Benjamin Shimberg for an independent testing audit group.

Directed staff to prepare an informational document describing the standard setting
process for NCLEX-RN 788 for distribution to Member Boards.

Approved a process for evaluation of proposals for a NACEP test service.

Directed staff and legal counsel to prepare a letter to Member Boards explaining the
change in number of days for notification under the Crisis Management Plan adopted
by the 1988 Delegate Assembly.

Directed that a summary page of Board/Committee recommendations be included In

future editions of the Book of Reports; and that committees include the applicable goal,
Objective, and strategy from the Operational Plan with their recommendations.

Established a liaison relationship with thc Amcrican Organization of Nurse Executives.

Reviewed the standard setting process, and directed the tcst service and staff to prepare
recommendations for procedural modifications for presentation at the July 1989 Board
of Directors meeting.

Determined that the Examination Committee shall establish criteria for, and select
members of, the panels of jUdges for setting NCLEX passing standards, subject to
ratification by the Board of Directors.

Selected The Psychological Corporation of San Antonio, Texas, as the test service for
NACEP, and appointed a four-member team to negotiate the contract.

Created a designated fund, in the amount directed by the 1988 Delegate Assembly, for
NACEP.

Approved plans and set the registration fee at $150 for the February 1989 RegUlatory
Conference.

Approved revised criteria for the R. Louise McManus Award; selected a new award
design; selected an award recipient (confidential until the 1989 Awards LunCheon).
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Approved security procedures for Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing (CST) Case
Development; approved criteria for appointments to the Scoring Key Development
Committee.

Set priority guidelines for the acceptance of speaking engagements by National Council
representatives.

Directed ~taff to prepare the 1989 Book of Reports in ring binder format.

Approved a special administration of the NCLEX-PN, using a reserve examination, to
nine Missouri candidates for whom the test service had erroneously generated passing
report~ on NCLEX-PN 088; directed crBlMcGraw-Hill to compensate candidates for
expenses incurred as a result of the error; and directed staff to provide statistical
information requested by the Missouri Board of Nursing.

Authorized the conduct of a dimensionality study on NCLEX-RN during fiscal year
1989 and a dimensionality study of NCLEX-PN after a revised test plan is adopted
by the Delegate Assembly.

Reviewed, modified, and adopted a blueprint for NACEP and authorized dissemination
of the blueprint; authorized dissemination of an expanded blueprint, to be developed
and approved by the NACEP Committee.

Directed staff to publish and disseminate a summary of the National Council's nurse
aide job analysis and related materials.

Determined that the blueprint for NACEP may be modified in response to state
requirements, with the stipulation that the contract between the state and The
Psychological Corporation must reflect appropriate accountability for the modified
NACEP.

Appointed Dr. Jennifer Bosma, Director of Testing Services, to serve as Acting
Executive Director following the resignation of Dr. Eileen Dvorak as Executive
Director.

Appointed five members to serve on the Executive Director Search Committee; after
input from the Search Committee, adopted a pOSition description for the Executive
Director, ideal candidate criteria and qualifications, and a timeline for the search
process.

DeSignated a committee of the four Area Directors to make appointments to standing
and ad hoc committees for FY90.

Adopted Operational Plan activities for FY90, and directed staff to disseminate the
plan.
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Reimbursed the American Organization of Nurse Executives $2000 for the National
Council's share of expenses incurred for a fall 1988 invitational conference on the
Registered Care Technologist proposal and the nurse shortage.

Deferred action on the future of the National Council's Disciplinary Data Bank until
such time as the federal National Practitioner Data Bank has been functional for at
least six months.

Directed the Nursing Practice and Education Committee to continue to monitor all job
analysis studies for practice implications.

Directed staff and legal counsel regarding continued negotiations with the National
Board of Medical Examiners for a software license and maintenance agreement for
Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing (CST) software.

Directed staff to continue the current level of monitoring of federal legislation, and
provide updates in the Newslener.

Selected 676 N. St. Clair, Chicago, as office space for National Council headquarters,
beginning September I, 1989.

Developed and disseminated a response to a resolution concerning NCLEX from the
Southern Council on Collegiate Education for Nursing.

Declined a Member Board request for use of the reserve examination prior to the
regularly scheduled February 1989 examination for candidates failing NCLEX-RN 788.

Authorized a feasibility study by committees, test service, and staff on increasing the
number of annual NCLEX administrations; reviewed the report and determined that
consideration of this issue would have to be made by the 1989 Delegate Assembly since
a substantive change to Member Board contracts would be required; based on surveys
conducted during Area Meetings, determined that the Board of Directors would not
make a recommendation to the Delegate Assembly regarding increasing the number of
NCLEX administrations.

Issued two letters of concern and one letter of reprimand to Member Boards for
violations of security measures or procedures, which threatened the integrity of the
licensure examinations.

Adopted a "Relationship Model for Committees and SUbcommittees."

Requested the Examination Committee to review the Canadian Nurses' Association Test
Service Examination for comparability to NCLEX during FY90.

Determined that the Nursing Practice and Education Committee should not develop
model language for legislation related to implementation of the Nursing Home Reform
Act, but rather that the National Council should serve as a clearinghouse for exchange
of regulatory language and information between states.
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Directed the Bylaws Committee to review remaining National Council standing rules
(not incorporated in 1988 Bylaws revisions) for routing to appropriate committees,
which will consider incorporating the rules into committee policies and procedures.

Adopted Communications Committee recommendations to continue to use on-site
meetings as the primary mode for National Council meetings; not to allow credit card
payment for pUblications; to publish examination statistics after each examination; to
terminate the NCLEX-RN and -PN videotapes; and to approve the Area Meetings
Manual.

Adopted Convention Planning Committee recommendations to develop an orientation
manual, list of staff and responsibilities, and a glossary for the 1989 Book of Repons;
to provide for special interest group meetings; to include luncheon meeting functions
within a $325 registration fee; to send sufficient sets of registration materials to
Member Boards for distribution to members and staff.

Appointed Carol Stuart (SD) to serve the remainder of the Director-at-Large term,
when a vacancy was created due to the resignation of Lonna Burress (NV).

Approved the operating and capital acquisitions budgets for FY90.

Referred to the Delegate Assembly for decision an unsolicited proposal for a two-year
extension of the test service and data center contracts with CI'BlMcGraw-Hill,
conditional upon completion of a test service evaluation prior to the July 6-7, 1989,
meeting of the Board of Directors.

Directed that an incumbent nurse aide job analysis be performed for NACEP, with
consideration given to surveying nurse aides in all major work settings and inclUding
supervisory personnel in the survey.

Approved selection criteria for NACEP item writers, item reviewers, task developers,
and standard setting panel members.

Adopted a procedure for the review and disposition of potentially biased examination
items.

Recommended (to the 1989-90 Communications Committee) that the National Council
sponsor a Regulatory Conference at least every two years.

Directed that NCNET, the National Council's electronic mail network, be continued,
with enhanced promotional efforts and exploration of expanded services.

Approved selection criteria for Field Test states and sites for the Computerized
Adaptive Testing (CAT) Feasibility Study.

Selected Colorado as the site for 1992 National Council Convention.
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Summary of Recommendations to the 1989
Delegate Assembly

Recommendations from the Board of Directors and committees are summarized in the following
list. The Operational Plan goal and objective have been identified for each recommendation. The
fiscal impact is also noted.

1989 Slate (Committee on Nominations, Goal II, Objective B. No direct fiscal impact).

That the National Council conduct standard setting procedures on a regular cycle, occurring every
three years for each licensure examination; the timing shall be coordinated with the cycle of job
analysis studies whenever possible (Board of Directors, Goal I, Objective A. Fiscal impact: cost
of one panel per exam is covered under test service contract).

The auditor's report for fiscal year 1988 be approved as presented (Treasurer, Goal II, Objective
A. No fiscal impact).

Adopt the proposed revision of the NCLEX-PN test plan (Examination Committee, Goal I,
Objective A. Fiscal impact: costs of publishing document and developing knowledge, skill and
ability statements are included in Exam Committee FY90 budget).

The National Council continue to conduct regularly scheduled RN and PN job analyses. Each job
analysis shall be done no less frequently than every three years and rotated so that analyses do not
occur simultaneously, e.g., RN 1989-1990, PN 1990-91, skip 1991-1992 (Examination Committee.
Goal I, Objective A. Fiscal impact: cost for RN is included in FY90 budget for research).

Recognize that jurisdictions have the responsibility and authority to establish standards for licensure
within their borders. Jurisdictions which have reviewed and accepted the passing standard
established by the National Council will be entitled to utilize the validation studies in support of
the Council's standard to defend their own licensure decisions. Jurisdictions which choose to adopt
a different standard will bear the burden of validating and defending that standard, and establishing
procedures to deal with endorsement of licensees. The National Council will notify all Member
Boards of any jurisdictions choosing a different passing standard (Examination Committee, Goal I,
Objective E. No direct fiscal impact).

The Committee recommends the following dates for the 1999 regular administration of NCLEX
examinations: RN-February 2 and 3 (T-W) and July 13-14 (T-W); PN-April 14 (W) and October
13 (W) (Administration of Examination Committee, Goal I, Objective B. No direct fiscal impact).

The Committee recommends the following as alternate dates for 1999 administration of NCLEX
examinations should the Crisis Management Plan be implemented: RN-March 3 and 4 (T-W) and
September 13 and 14 (M-T); PN-May 11 (T) and November 17 (W) (Administration of Examination
Committee, Goal I, Objective B. No direct fiscal impact).
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The Committee recommends adoption of the proposed changes to the Security Measures
(Administration of Examination Committee, Goal I, Objective B. No direct fiscal impact).

The Nursing Practice and Education Committee recommends that the Delegate Assembly adopt the
Uniform Standards for Endorsement and the Uniform Requirements for Foreign Graduates (Goal
I, Objective E. No direct fiscal Impact).

That the Delegate Assembly authorize continuation of the Subcommittee to Study Regulatory
Models for Chemically Dependent Nurses (Subcommittee to Study Regulatory Models for
Chemically Dependent Nurses, Goal V, Objective B. Fiscal impact: cost is included in FY90 budget
for research).

The Delegate Assembly authorize the conduct of a limited job analysis in sites with differentiated
job descriptions reflecting evolving practice, using the qualitative and quantitative instruments to
determine whether the three sets of hypothesized competencies are validated (Subcommittee on
PNNN Competencies, Goal I, Objective A. Fiscal Impact: cost Is included in FY90 budget for
research).

The Delegate Assembly authorize the Task Force on Examinations for the Future be convened
during FY91 for the purpose of reviewing all data from job analysis studies and recommending a
specific testing model to the Delegate Assembly in FY92 (Subcommittee on PNNN Competencies.
Goal I, Objective A. Fiscal impact: estimated to be $10,050 in FY91).

That the National Council explore the feasibility of developing generally applicable audio-visual
materials on the role of regulation for use by Member Boards (Subcommittee on the Nurse
Shortage. Goai I, Objective D. No direct fiscal impact at this time).

The Committee recommends the consideration of the five proposed changes (to the Bylaws) as
presented in this report (Bylaws Committee, Goal II, Objective B. No direct fiscal impact).
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National Council Operational Plan (FY 90) *
Goal L Develop, promote, and provide relevant and innovative services.

Objective A: Develop licensure e:rmninations that are based upon current Ql;cepted psycJwmetric
principles and legal considerations.

FY 90 Activity

1. Collect data from states relative to
competencies for nursing practice.

2. Establish the directions for the
development of licensure
examinations based on ongoing
job analysis and role delineation
studies.

3. Evaluate the ACT report for
implications in the initial licensing
examinations and for competency
examinations.

• As of 29 January 1989

•• Requires Delegate Assembly Action

Nursing Practice and Education Committee
monitors the entry into practice issue and
presents an updated report to 1989 Delegate
Assembly. Staff collect data related to entry
into practice as part of yearly collection of
statistical data. Funded under Nursing Practice
and Education Committee.

Examination Committee monitors development
of licensure examinations and recommends
modifications as necessary. Funded under
Examination Committee.

Board of Directors annually evaluates the need
for additional item writers and panel of content
experts sessions. Funded under Board of
Directors.

Staff monitor compliance of contractors with
contract provisions especially production of
items. Funded under NCLEX Support costs.

------------>

------------> No activity planned
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4. Continue to conduct research on
the job-relatedness of the
licensure examinations.

5. Continue to develop test plans for
licensure examinations that are
based on current nursing practice.

6. Perform a feasibility study of the
computerized adaptive testing
program.

7. Investigate the feasibility of
computerized clinical simulation
testing (CST) for initial and
continued licensure.

31

Examination Committee identifies need for
future job analysis studies. Board reviews
Examination Committee recommendations.
Funded under Examination Committee."
Staff conduct RN job analysis using revised
instrument. Funded under Research.

Examination Committee presents
recommendation regarding PN test plan to
Delegate Assembly 1989," implements decision
of 1989 Delegate Assembly on test plan
revisions. Funded under Examination
Committee.

Committee for Special Projects presents update
repon to Delegate Assembly in 1989. Funded
under Computerized Adaptive Testing (CAT)
Designated Fund.

Examination Committee collaborates with
Committee for Special Projects on aspects of
project that relate to item development.
Funded under Examination Committee and
Committee for Special Projects.

The Committee for Special Projects continues
the conduct of the Computerized Adaptive
Testing (CAT) Study along revised timelines,
develops items for and field tests RN candidates
only pending results of NCLEX-RN
dimensionality stUdy. Funded under CAT
Designated Fund.

The CST Steering Committee conducts
computerized clinical simulation testing project
as proposed and develops and tests
software/database program. Funded under CST
restricted funds.

Board of Directors evaluates preliminary data
regarding CST and initiates, if appropriate,
beginning development of a proposal for
continuation of funding. Funded under Board
of Directors.
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8. Explore producing licensure
examinations through computer
based technology.

------------>
32

Goal L Develop, promote, and provide relevant and innovative services.

ObjiXtive B: Establish polides and procedures for the lkensing euuninatWns in nuning.

FY 90 Activity

1. Develop policies and procedures
for computer based testing.

2. Evaluate policies and procedures
for the licensing examinations.

Administration of Examination Committee,
Examination Committee, Committee for Special
Projects, and CST Steering Committee continue
the development of policies and procedures for
computer.based testing. Funded under CAT
designated and CST restricted funds.

Administration of Examination Committee
recommends policies related to security
measures for computer-based field testing to
Delegate Assembly. Funded under CAT
designated and CST restricted funds.

CST Steering Committee oversees development
of scoring keys for CST cases. Funded under
Computerized Simulation Testing restricted
funds.

Committee chairpersons whose functions impact
on examinations meet annually and as necessary
to coordinate examination and practice related
activities. Funded under Administration of
Examination Committee, Examination
Committee and other appropriate Committees.

Administration of Examination Committee
implements the plan for Crisis Management.
Funded under Administration of Examination
Committee.
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Strategy 2 (Cont.)
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Examination Committee and Administration of
Examination Committee review existing policies
and procedures for test development and
administration. Funded under Examination
Committee and Administration of Examination
Committee.

Board of Directors reviews policies and
procedures for testing committees. Funded
under Board of Directors.

Administration of Examination Committee
reports review of Delaware Board regarding
administration of examination in Germany for
1989-90 and makes recommendation.·· Funded
under Administration of Examination
Committee.

Administration of Examination Committee sets
NCLEX future dates/alternate dates and reports
findings. Funded under Administration of
Examination Committee.

Staff publish NCLEX administration
dates/alternate dates for next ten years. Funded
under NCLEX Support Costs.

Board of Directors develops and dissemina tes
request for proposal for test service; evaluates
proposals, appoints negotiating team, and
prepares recommendation for 1990 Delegate
Assembly. Funded under NCLEX.
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Goal L Develop, promote, and provide relevant and innovative services.

Objective C: Provide consultative services for Council members, groups, agencies, and individuals
regarding the safe and effective practice of nursing.

FY 90 Activity

1. Expand and promote orientation
and educational programs for
members.

2. Develop an orientation section in
the NCSBN manual for new
Board staff and Board members.

3. Explore the consultation needs of
Member Boards.

4. Publish a list of consultants within
the Council according to area of
expertise with input from Member
Boards.

Communications Committee plans orientation
program for 1990 Convention with presentations
for targeted needs. Funded under
Communications Committee.

Coordinating Committee and staff prepare and
present orientation/planning session for Board
of Directors and committees. Funded under
Board of Directors.

Staff review and update orientation manual.
Funded under Board of Directors.

Staff continue to respond to written or
telephone inquiries for service or assistance.
Funded under appropriate program.

Communications Committee and staff review
and update orientation sections as needed.
Funded under Communications Committee.

Staff continue to provide consultation visits to
Member Boards. Funded under Public
Relations.

Board of Directors evaluates continuation of
field consultation visits. Funded under Board
of Directors.

Communications Committee and staff review
and update pUblication of National Council
consultants. Funded under Communications
Committee.
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5. Monitor the health care delivery
system to evaluate implications for
safe and effective practice.

6. Continue to disseminate NCSBN
statements on trends and issues
affecting nursing education and
nursing practice.

7. Develop Nurse Aide Competency
Evaluation Program (NACEP).
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Staff publishes health care references for
regulatory impact. Funded under Nursing
Practice and Education Committee.

Nursing Practice and Education Committee
monitors implementation of PL100-203 and
reports to 1989 Delegate Assembly regarding
regulatory implications. Funded under Nursing
Practice and Education Committee.

Nursing Practice and Education Committee
reports to 1989 Delegate Assembly
recommendation of subcommittee on Nursing
Shortage for long and short-term strategies that
Member Boards can take to minimize the
negative effects of the nurse shortage. Funded
under Nursing Practice and Education
Committee.

Staff continue to publish and disseminate Issues
on a bi-monthly basis and other documents as
appropriate. Funded under Publications.

Test Service and Competency Evaluation
Committee market Competency Evaluation
Program to state agencies responsible for
evaluation of Nurse Aides. Funded under
NACEP and Nurse Aide test service contract.

Staff provide updated information on State
Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation activities to
Member Boards. Funded under NACEP.

NACEP Committee and test service submit
reports to Delegate Assembly. Funded under
NACEP.

NACEP Committee oversees development of
nurse aide competency evaluation program.
Funded under Nurse Aide Test Service
Contract.
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Strategy 7 (Cont.) NACEP Committee develops blueprint and
approves each form of the NACEP;
recommends to Board of Directors guidelines
for selection of item/task developers, state
contracts, pricing, security measures and
administration. Funded under Nurse Aide test
service contract.

Board of Directors establishes recommended
passing standard for NACEP. Funded under
Board of Directors.

NACEP Committee makes recommendation
regarding need for incumbent nurse aide job
analysis survey.·· Funded under NACEP.

Staff conduct Nurse Aide Job Analysis
incumbent survey if approved. Funded under
NACEP.

NACEP Committee cooperates with test service
to prepare for the one year post approval
program provider review by states. Funded
under Test Service Contract.

Board of Directors and NACEP Committee
evaluate nurse aide competency evaluation
program. Funded under Board of Directors and
NACEP.
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Goal L Develop, promote, and provide relevant and innovative services.

Objective D:Maintain and enhance communication about NCSBN, its members, and issues
concerning safe and effective nuning practice.

FY 90 Activity

1. Continue investigation of
electronic mail and electronic
communications, including
teleconferencing.

Board of Directors evaluates electronic mail
system and makes recommendations as needed.
Funded under Public Relations.
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2. Investigate mechanism for
increased communications among
Member Boards and Council.

3. Provide forums for Member Board
exchange.

4. Stimulate greater use of NCSBN
resources by updating members on
available service.

5. Provide audio visual materials on
the license examinations for
nursing practice.

6. Provide a publication about trends
in regulation and activities of
Member Boards.
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Staff markets and provides training to Member
Boards on NCNET; increases use for routine
forms. Funded under Public Relations.

Communications Committee recommends to
Board of Directors a plan for effective
communication among Member Boards, Council
and other groups. Funded under
Communications Committee.

Board of Directors continues to implement
open forums at Board meetings. Funded under
Board of Directors.

Communications Committee and staff plan
forums on topics of Member Board interest
during 1990 Delegate Assembly meetings.
Funded under Delegate Assembly.

Area Directors supported by staff plan agendas
for Member Board Area meetings. Funded
under Area Meetings.

Staff updates and disseminates resource list of
paper and presentation topics. Funded under
Publications.

Communications Committee and staff publicize
through biweekly newsletter, existing National
Council resources and services. Funded under
PUblications.

Staff make available audio visual materials on
NCLEX development. Funded under
Examination Committee.

Staff continue comprehensive report of issues
and trends to Member Boards. Funded under
Nursing Practice and Education Committee and
Publications.

Staff publish State Nursing Legislation
Quarterly. Funded under PUblications.
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7. Maintain and update NCSBN
Manual.

8. Evaluate current and future
publications related to the
licensing process, legal
responsibilities, and National
Council services.

9. Continue to publish the national
disciplinary data bank reports and
summaries.

10. Publish NCSBN research on
licensure examinations and nursing
practice.

11. Publish test plans for licensure
examinations.

12. Publish study guides on the
licensure examinations.
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Staff review changes made by 1989 Delegate
Assembly, the Board of Directors and
committees and, on that basis, updates policies
and procedures and circulate revised or new
fornts and materials to Member Boards.
Funded under Communications Committee.

Communications Committee reports to Board of
Directors evaluation of current publications and
need for new publications. Funded under
Communications Committee.

Communications Committee and staff plan
publications for the year. Funded under
Communications Committee.

Staff disseminate annual report including
examination data to Member Boards and other
organizations within six months of the end of
the fiscal year. Funded under Publications.

Staff prepare Book of Reports which includes
summary of prior Delegate Assembly actions.
Funded under Delegate Assembly.

Staff collect, summarize, and disseminate data
on disciplinary reports. Funded under
Disciplinary System.

Communications Committee and staff monitor
status of National Practitioner Data Base.
Funded under Disciplinary System.

Staff publish research findings on licensure
examinations and nursing practice. Funded
under Publications.

Staff make available test plan for both the RN
and PNNN licensure examinations. Funded
under Publications.

Staff reviews and updates study guides on the
licensure examinations as required. Funded
under Publications.
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13. Publish the NCSBN long range
plan.

14. Provide Model Nursing Practice
Act and Model Administrative
Rules.

15. Publish ACT reports.

Long Range Planning Committee reviews and
evaluates prior long range plan documents and
prepares report for 1990 Delegate Assembly.
Funded under Long Range Planning Committee.

Staff continue to make available the Model
Nursing Practice Act and Model Administrative
Rules. Funded under Publications.

Staff make available reports of job analysis
studies conducted by ACT. Funded under
Publications.
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Goal L Develop, promote, and provide relevant and innovative services.

Objective E: Promote consistency in the licensing process among the respective jurisdictions.

FY 90 Activity

1. Evaluate the regulatory
implications of entry into practice
and its implications for Council
services.

2. Continue to investigate
mechanisms for evaluating
continued competence.

Nursing Practice and Education Committee
reports to 1989 Delegate Assembly the
completed work of the Subcommittee on
PNNN Competencies. Hypothesized sets of
competencies will be validated through ongoing
job analysis studies. Funded under Nursing
Practice and Education Committee and
Research.

Examination Committee and Nursing Practice
and Education Committee collaborate to
compare the PNNN competency statements
with PNNN Knowledge, Skill and Ability
statements. Funded under Examination
Committee and Nursing Practice and Education
Committee.

Nursing Practice and Education Committee and
staff continue to maintain a clearinghouse on
regulatory and nursing trends for impact on
continued competency of nursing practice.
Funded under Nursing Practice and Education
Committee.
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Strategy 2 (Olnt.)

3. Provide data to Member Boards
on licensure requirements.

Strategy 3 (Olnt.)

Nursing Practice and Education Olmmittee and
Examination Olmmittee identify minimum levels
of continued competence and review methods of
determining maintenance of minimal
competence. Funded under Nursing Practice
and Education and Examination Olmmittees.

Nursing Practice and Education Olmmittee
recommends to 1989 Delegate Assembly
uniform requirements for licensure of foreign
educated nurses. Funded under Nursing
Practice and Education Olmmittee.

Nursing Practice and Education Olmmittee
recommends standards for licensure by
endorsement and a standard form for NCNET
to the 1989 Delegate Assembly. Olntinues to
monitor issues related to licensure by
endorsement. Funded under Nursing Practice
and Education Olmmittee.

Examination Olmmittee presents
recommendations to 1989 Delegate Assembly
regarding implications of use of different
passing scores. Funded under Examination
Olmmittee.
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Goal II. Utilize human and fiscal resources eJJlCiently to allow for growth and creativity.

Objective A: Implement a planning model to be used as a guide for the development of NCSBN

FY 90 Activity

1. Provide for an organizational
planning process and structure.

2. Develop an evaluation mechanism
for the organization.

Olmmittees, Board of Directors and Staff plan
for the next fiscal year during the
OrientationlPlanning session. Funded under
Board of Directors and Olmmittees.

Olordinating Olmmittee develops a plan for
evaluation of the organization. Funded under
Coordinating Olmmittee.
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3. Implement a program budgeting
system for the National Council.

4. Investigate the feasibility of new
revenue sources for the
organization.

5. Maintain financial policies which
provide guidelines for
organizational development.

6. Review and revise forecast
assumptions to maintain a current
forecas ting model.
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Finance Committee evaluates the program
budget. Funded under Finance Committee.

Finance Committee reviews methods to
coordinate budget and Operational Plan.
Funded under Finance Committee.

Finance Committee reviews costs by program
for evaluation by the Board of Directors.
Funded under Finance Committee and Board of
Directors.

Finance Committee continues to explore new
revenue sources for the National Council.
Funded under Finance Committee.

Finance Committee continues to recommend
financial policies to the Board of Directors and
evaluates the financial policies of the National
Council. Funded under Finance Committee.

Finance Committee continues to evaluate and
revise currently existing designated funds and
recommends to the Board of Directors need for
additional designated funds. Funded under
Finance Committee.

Finance Committee and staff monitor and
evaluate the management of the investment
portfolio. Funded under Finance Committee.

Finance Committee and staff evaluate and revise
the forecasting model using the FY 89 data.
Funded under Finance Committee.
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Goal II. Utilize human and fiscal resoruces efficiently to allow for growth and creativity.

Objective B: Strengthen the organizational structure in the compleJ: environment of high technology,
transforming health core delivery systems, global communication and intematioNJl
interaction.

J<Y 90 Activity

1. Evaluate the current
organizational structure relative
to:

1. organizational planning;
2. committee structure;
3. membership options;
4. decision-making process;
5. interrelation- ships; and
6. lines of communication and

authority.

Bylaws Committee considers proposed
amendments to Bylaws. Funded under Bylaws
Committee.

Bylaws Committee reports to 1989 Delegate
Assembly on any revisions or amendments.
Funded under Bylaws Committee.

Committee on Nominations evaluates candidates
and prepares slate. Funded under Committee
on Nominations.

Committee on Nominations reviews and
evaluates pre-screening framework. Funded
under Committee on Nominations.

Committee on Nominations evaluates campaign
process and guidelines and revises if necessary.
Funded under Committee on Nominations.

Goal ill Expand collaborative relationships wiJh relevanl organi:ultions to facilitate the development
and promotion of health rell.lted public policy.

Objective A: Provide specific opportunity for direct dialogue, interaction and mutual decision
making among national heallh groups.

FY 90 Activity

1. Develop a public relations
program for NCSBN.

Communications Committee implements the
Public Relations Program for National Council.
Funded under Communications Commil1ee.
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Strategy 1 (Cont.)

2 Initiate a sponsorship of
educational programs of regulatory
significance.

3. Expand dissemination of
information about NCSBN and
regulatory trends.

4. Promote the inclusion of a
regulatory perspective in national
and regional programs on health
and related issues.
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Communications Committee, President and staff
maintain ongoing liaison activities with major
nursing, health care, and regulatory
organizations. Funded under Public Relations.

Board of Directors presents the R. Louise
McManus Award. Funded under
Communications Committee.

Communications Committee recommends
nominees for Member Board and Meritorious
Service Awards. Funded under Communications
Committee.

Communications Committee reviews survey
findings on educational programs at convention
and proposes programs if appropriate. Funded
under Convention Planning.

Communications Committee reviews evaluations
of RegUlatory Conference, and recommends
plan for Third Annual Regulatory Conference.
Funded under Communications Committee.

Communications Committee and staff continue
to implement identified methods of distributing
information about the National Council and
regulatory trends. Funded under
Communications Committee.

Committees review and disseminate information
about state and federal initiatives that have
regulatory implications. Funded under
Committees.

Staff publishes monograph of Second Annual
Regulatory Conference. Funded under
PUblications.

Board of Directors and staff, through
interorganizational liaison activities, promote
the inclusion of the regulatory perspective in
national and regional programs on health and
related issues. Funded under Public Relations.
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5. Involve consumers in the
development of clear position
statements on health related
public policies.

6. Maintain effective working
relationships with appropriate
community agencies, business and
industry.

Board of Directors continues to appoint
consumer members of Member Boards to
National Council committees especially those
committees that develop position statements on
health related public policies. Funded under
Board of Directors.

Communications Committee to plan to sponsor
a forum for interchange between the National
Council and external agencies as appropriate.
Funded under Board of Directors.
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Goal m. Erpmul collaborative relationships wilh relevant organizlJJions to facilitale the development
and promotion of haI1lh related public policy.

Objective B: Promote and faciJitote effective communiaJtions with related organizlJJions, groups, and
individlllJls.

IT 90 Activity

1. Sponsor an annual invitational
forum in collaboration with
related organizations,

2. Work with health related
organizations in formalizing
statements on trends and issues
affecting nursing education and
nursing practice.

3. Identify and promote desirable
and reasonable standards in
nursing education and nursing
practice.

Communications Committee plans a forum for
interchange between National Council and
health related organizations. Funded under
Communications Committee.

Nursing Practice and Education Committee
meets with selected committees of other
interested organizations to identify continued
competency mechanism. Funded under Nursing
Practice and Education Committee.

President participates as member of governing
body of the National Commission on Nursing
Implementation Project. Funded under Public
Relations.

National Council to work cooperatively with
AMA advisory nurse panel; support efforts of
Member Boards and nursing community to
prevent implementation of Rcr proposal.
Funded under Board of Directors.
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Goal m. Erpand collaborative relationships with relevant orglIlliziltions to facilitate the development
and promotion of h.ea/th re/ated public policy.

Objective C: IncretlSe consumer involvement with NCSBN.

FY 90 Activity

1. Seek interorganizational sharing of
information with consumer groups.

2. Continue appointment of
consumers to NCSBN committees.

Communications Committee identifies ways of
sharing information with interested consumer
groups. Funded under Communications
Committee.

Board of Directors and staff solicit consumer
members of Member Boards for appointment to
NCSBN committees. Appoint outside consumer
consultants to committees as needed. Funded
under Board of Directors.

Committee on Nominations solicits consumer
members of Member Boards for nomination to
the Board of Directors. Funded under
Committee on Nominations.

Goal W Develop a comprehensive infonno.tion system for use by members, organizations and the
public.

Objective A: Implement a five yem plan for an infonno.tion system.

FY 90 Activity

1. Consolidate present information
system.

Nurse Information System Committee (NIS)
initiates data collection on key licensure data
from those jurisdictions that can readily access
that information. Funded under NIS
Committee.
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2. Assign a Board level committee to
develop guidelines for data
collection, data use, distribution,
and other functions related to
information systems.

NlS Committee continues to pursue outside
funding and, if funded, assists Member Boards
with the implementation of a system to collect
licensee information. Funded under NlS
Committee.

NIS Committee continues to work with Member
Boards to identify currently available data and
mechanislns for obtaining data not currently
accessible. Funded under NIS Committee.

NIS Committee sponsors presentations during
1989 Convention Research Forum regarding
information systems utilized for data collection
and analysis, and demonstrates what would be
necessary to provide critical nurse identification
elements. Funded under Delegate Assembly.

46

Goal Iv. Develop a comprehensive information system for use by memben, organizations and the
publU:..

Objective B: CoUect, analyze and disseminate data and statistics in such areas as /U;ensure,

educational programs, and regulatory functions.

FY 90 Activity

1. Assess the market for data
distribution.

2. Develop and market a nurse
licensee data base if market
assessment indicates such action.

3. Establish a data clearinghouse.

----------->

----------->

------------>
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Goal V. Advance research tJwt contributes to the public heallh, safely, and welfare.

Objective A: Conduct and dUsemintue research pertinent to the mission of NCSBN.

FY 90 Activity

1. Evaluate the use of the Model
Nursing Practice Act and make
appropriate revisions.

2. Gather data regarding the
regulatory issues of chemical1y
dependent nurses.

3. Gather data concerning issues and
trends regarding disciplinary
actions.

4. Monitor the major nursing
research projects relative to
implications on legal standards of
nursing practice.

5. Investigate research needs
regarding approval of nursing
education programs.

6. Gather data concerning advanced
practice.

Nursing Practice and Education Committee
updates report of findings on incorporation of
quality assurance mechanisms by states to 1989
Delegate Assembly. Funded under Nursing
Practice and Education Committee.

Nursing Practice and Education Committee
reports work of subcommittee on Regulatory
Models for Chemically Impaired Nurses and
seeks funds to implement as proposed. Funded
under Nursing Practice and Education
Committee.

National Council publishes yearly update on the
data from the disciplinary data bank. Funded
under Disciplinary System.
Staff continue to conduct literature search to
identify resources related to legal standards of
nursing practice. Funded under Nursing
Practice and Education Committee.

------------>

Board of Directors appoints individuals to
participate in conference on advanced practice
as requested by external organizations. Funded
under Public Relations.
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Goal V. Advance research tho1 contributes to the public heallh, safety, and welfare..

Objective B: Promote research proposals Q1IIUUJlJy which merit funding.

FY 90 Activity

1. Disseminate research at annual
convention.

2. Maintain a data base of potential
sources of government and private
grant funding in areas of interest.

Communications Committee plans a forum for
research sharing at the annual convention.
Funded under Communications Committee.

Staff maintain a list of potential sources of
government and private grant funds. Funded
under Research.

Goal V. Advance research tho1 contributes to the public heallh, safety, and welfare..

Objeaive C: Involve Member Boards in research at the jurisdictional level for use and distribution by
NCSBN.

FY 90 Activity

1. Request and pUblicize abstracts of
completed, ongoing and projected
studies by Member Boards.

2. Publish research findings in
NCSBN publications.

------------>

Staff publish research findings as obtained from
Member Boards. Funded under Publications.
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FY90 BUDGET
By Program
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NCLEX

NCLEX Exam Revenue ($4,798,082)
NCLEX Processing Costs 3,143,062
Handscoring Fees (56,000)
Handscoring Costs 49,100
Other NCLEX Related Expense 12,738
Exam Committee 18,653
Admin. of Exam Committee 21,904
Ethnic-Gender Bias Review 57,400
NCLEX Support Costs 66,250

NCLEX Income Subtotal (1,484,975)

INVESTMENTS

Investment Income (255,000) (255,000)

MEMBER BOARDS

Member Board Contract Income (186,000)
Associated Exp. (Legal and Other) 15,500

Member Board Income Subtotal (170,500)

PUBLICATIONS

Publications Revenue (88,200)
Publication Expense 75,702

Publications Income Subtotal (12,498)

DELEGATE ASSEMBLY

Delegate Assembly Income (66,600)
Delegate Assembly Expense 69,070
Convention Planning Meetings 6,900

Delegate Assembly Subtotal 9,370
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AREA MEETINGS

Area Meetings Board Travel 9,200
Area Meetings Staff Travel 4,600

Area Meetings Expense Subtotal 13,800

PUBLIC RELATIONS

Honoraria (9,000)
Public Relations Expense 41,900
Communications Committee 23,100

Public Relations Expense Subtotal 56,000

RESEARCH

Research Fees 42,749
Job Analysis Committee 35,793
Other 2,500

Research Expense Subtotal 81,042

PRACTICE AND EDUCATION

Practice and Education Committee 23,922
Nurse Shortage Subcommittee 1,200
PNNN Subcommittee 1,200
Chem. Dep. Nurse Subcommittee 17,260

Disciplinary System 7,600

Practice and Education Subtotal 51,182

ORGANIZATIONAL

Board of Directors 72,650
Search Committee, Exec. Dir. 17,200

Coordinating Committee 12,460
Nurse Info. System Committee 17,261
Nominating Committee 8,839
Finance Committee 21,450
By-laws Committee 12,450
Long Range Planning Committee 19,844
FalllPlanning Retreat 18,460

Organizational Expense Subtotal 200,614
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ADMINISTRATION

Personnel Costs
Salary and Benefits
Staff Travel

Professional Fees
Legal
Accounting
Other

LibrarylMembership
Printing/Supplies
Insurance
Miscellaneous Expense

Administrative Expense Subtotal

OCCUPANCY

Rent/Utilities
Electronic Mail
Telephone
Postage
Equipment MaintenanceiRental
Computer MaintenanceiRental
Depreciation

Occupancy Expense Subtotal

SUMMARY

TOTAL REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENSE

(REVENUE) OVER EXPENSE

DESIGNATED FUND ADJUSTMENTS

NACEP
CAT

Note: Revenue is indicated by ( )
Program Totals are in bold

1,007,628
2,200

5,000
14,200
11,300

4,500
40,200
43,500

500

182,555
9,520

22,000
28,000
16,000
13,200
93,380

1,129,028

364,655

($5,458,882)

$5,441,599

($17,283)

$14,620
$3,072
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Annual Report of the NCSBN Data Center

This report provides an overview of CIBlMcGraw-Hill's activities in the NCSBN Data Center during the
past year and covers the NCLEX-RN 788, the NCLEX-PN 088, the NCLEX-RN 289, and the NCLEX­
PN 489 examinations. The NCSBN Data Center efforts have been concentrated this year on providing
additional support and information to all Member Boards.

Applications Processing
The Data center shipped a total of 255,000 application packets to boards during the fall 1988 and spring
1989 send-out periods. The four NCLEX examinations covered in this report encompassed 156,410
applications processed to date and represents and increase of 2.8% over last year's 151,989. An additional
4,544 applications were returned to candidates for errors or receipt after the deadline, or too early.

A summary of applications processed is included on the following page.

Program Code Corrections
A maximum of thirty-nine boards, for anyone examination, sent in program code corrections and/or changes
in education or repeat status for a total of 2,661 candidates. This is 854 candidate changes less than 1988's
3,515 changes.

Telephone Communication
The Data Center responded to over 1,260 telephone calls during the year; most of these were regarding
candidate application receipt status.
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Summary of Applications Processed

NCLEX-RN 788; NCLEX-PN 088; NCLEX-RN 298; NCLEX-RN 489 (TO DATE)

APPLICATIONS PROCESSED: 788 088 289 489

Excluding Tape and
Late Applications 19,078*

Including Tape and
Late Applications 70,045 29,186 38,101

APPLICATION RETURNS:

CANDIDATE CODE
CORRECTIONS

No. of Candidates

% of Direct Apps

No. of Boards

* = to date

1,365

782

1.7%

35

1,719

733

3.3%

36

1,034

532

2.6%

39

426*

614

4.3%

,,4
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Annual Report of the Test Service 1989

Introduction
This report provides a summary of CfB/McGraw-HiII's activities with the National Council Licensure
Examinations from July 1988 through June 1989. During this time, the CfB/McGraw-Hill NCLEX project
staff members have provided support for the following major phases of the NCLEX program:

Examination Development

• developing a valid and reliable test-item pool that accurately measures entry-level proficiency in the
registered and practical (vocational) nursing professions

refining item development techniques to ensure that all test items measure the performance of job
related nursing skills identified in the test plan rather than the simple recall of information

• exploring item construction techniques with a focus toward developing items at a targeted level of
difficulty

developing and field testing of 860 additional RN items to strengthen the RN item bank in
preparation for the possibility of Computer Adaptive Testing

working with the National Council Examination Committee and staff toward the revision of the
current PN Test Plan and the development of the PN item bank to address changes in PN practice

Examination Administration, Scoring, and Reporting

• continuing to focus on the timely reporting of results

continuing to work with the Administration of Examination Committee and National Council staff
to monitor all shipping and security procedures and to mOdifY procedures as necessary to ensure
the security of the examination materials

mOdifYing and refining all score reports and the the NCLEX Summary Profiles in response to the
Delegate Assembly's direction to implement a PASS/FAIL reporting system and in response to the
revised RN Test Plan

assisting the National Council in providing information to the Member Boards about changes in
the score reports as a result of the implementation of PASS/FAIL scoring

working with the National Council staff to refine the design of the Candidate Diagnostic Profile

Nmional Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.(1989
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Research and Technical Support

providing technical support in all areas of research, including the monitoring of examination
statistics, the monitoring of passing standards, and the performance of special research studies

• exploring new techniques to detect possible ethnic or gender bias in test items by refining existing
statistical procedures for implementation with small ethnic groups

providing measurement support for the Committee for Special Projects' work in designing the
Computer Adaptive Testing field test

In addition to supporting these major phases of the NCLEX program, ern project staff members have also
responded in a timely and effective way to all requests from the National
Council and its Member Boards for additional services and information.

Examination Development

Item Writing
A major focus of the ernIMcGraw-HilI test development staff is the coordination, training, and suppon
of item writers in the development of NCLEX test items. ernIMcGraw-HilI has continued to work with
the National Council in an effort to achieve a fair ethnic and geographic representation within the
item-writing groups. Extensive item writer training and interactive support has been provided by ern's
Content Director, Dr. Anne Spanier, ern's nursing consultant staff, and ern's editorial staff as item writers
worked with the newly defined areas of the RN test plan during item writer conferences. Item development
has been increased to address the needs identified with the transition to a new test plan. Also, new item
development methods were implemented to address the need for items targeted to a particular difficulty
level and content area in supplementing the pool for computer adaptive testing.

The existing item development and review procedures for both the NCLEX-PN and the NCLEX-RN item
pools continue to ensure the quality of all test items. The interactive process between nursing professionals
and CTB's test development staff ensures that each test item measures a knowledge, skill, or ability
associated with current entry-level nursing practice. The knowledge, skills, and abilities statements written
by the Examination Committee and ern nursing consultant staff have been extremely helpful in guiding
the writers in the appropriate content direction.

Item.Writing Conferences
Three RN Item-Writing Conferences and one RN/CAT Item-Writing Conference were held from July 1,
1988, through June 3D, 1989. All participants were sent pre-conference exercises, provided as an
introduction to ern's item development process. ern nursing consultants and editorial staff carefully
reviewed the sample items written by each item writer and made suggestions regarding the content and
structure of the case situations and test items. This feedback given before the conference is intended to
provide specific information about item construction, to introduce the writer to the interactive process with
CTB's test development staff, and to help the writers feel comfortable with the writing process.

An RN/CAT Item-Writing Conference was held July 18-22, 1988, in Monterey, California. Sixteen writers
were identified by the National Council to participate in RN/CAT item development. These writcrs
represented Kentucky, South Carolina, Delaware, North Carolina, Kansas, Louisiana, Georgia, Missouri,
Texas, Indiana, Massachusetts, Maryland, and West Virginia. Writers focused on the production of test
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items for the 1989 CAT item field testing. Three hundred ninety-eight (398) items were created by item
writers and then reviewed by ern nursing consultants. (The first RN/CAT Item.Writing Conference was
held in May 1988. Three hundred eighty·nine (389) items were created.)

The RN Item-Writing Conference held July 25·29, 1988, in Monterey, California, included 16 writers
identified by the National Council to participate in RN item development. The writers represented
Alabama, Massachusetts, Arizona, Georgia, Texas, Indiana, New Jersey, Idaho, North Dakota, Maryland,
Florida, LoUisiana, Oklahoma, and Kentucky. The 16 writers created 429 items.

An RN Item-Writing Conference was also held on January 16·20, 1989, in Monterey, California. The 14
participants selected by the National Council represented California, Alaska, Georgia, Nebraska, I1linois, and
West Virginia. A total of 294 items were written.

Writers are currently being selected for the June 26·30, 1989, RN Item-Writing Conference, to be held in
Monterey, California. Information about this conference will be provided in the 1989 Annual Report.

The next PN Item Writing conference will be held on August 14·18, 1989. It will be described in next year's
Annual Report.

Additional Item-Writing Activities
Solicitation for mail·in test items was implemented in 1988 to address the specific needs of the Computer
Adaptive Testing program. Fourteen former writers created over 300 RN/CAT items on a mail-in basis.
A CTB staff member was available for each writer during the writing process for questions about the test
plan, the writing process, and item validation. Security procedures approved by the Administration of
Examination Committee were followed. These items received the usual rigorous content and editorial reviews
and were presented to the Panel of Content Experts in October 1988.

Panels of Content Experts
The Panel of Content Experts review is coordinated by ern to ensure that all items are developed
according to test plan specifications, that they are as free as possible of potential bias and clueing, that they
have one and only one correct response (documented in two standard nursing textbooks), and that they are
an accurate reflection of current, entry-level practice. During the JUly 1988 • June 1989 period, there were
four Panel of Content Experts conferences: two RN, one CAT/RN and one PN.

RN Panel of Content Experts
A Panel of Content Experts Conference was held on September 12-16, 1988, in Monterey, California, for
the review of NCLEX·RN and CAT/RN test items. The participants selected by the National Council
represented Nebraska, Georgia, New Jersey, California, Florida, North Dakota, Alaska, Illinois, Maine,
Arizona, Hawaii, and Wyoming. A total of 632 CAT/RN items were reviewed. Twelve items were deleted
during the review process; 620 items were approved for use as future experimental items.

A Panel of Content Experts Conference was held on March 5·10, 1989, in Monterey, California, for the
review of NCLEX-RN test items. The participants selected by the National Council represented Indiana,
Minnesota, Idaho, Kentucky, Louisiana, Oregon, Massachusetts, and California. A total of 441 items were
reviewed. Twenty-eight items were deleted during the review process; 413 items were approved for use as
future experimental items.
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RN/CAT Panel of Content Experts
A special panel of nurse educators was convened by CfBlMcGraw-Hill to review the CAT items prior to
the PCE. All items were reviewed for accuracy and application to current practice. The RN/CAT Panel
of Content Experts Conference was convened on October 19-26, 1988, in Monterey, California. Seventeen
participants representing Hawaii, New Jersey, Florida, Mississippi, Texas, Michigan, South Carolina, Georgia,
Maine, Kentucky, Nebraska, Connecticut, and Illinois were selected by the National Council. A total of 873
items were reviewed. Twenty·nine items were deleted during review; 844 items were approved for use as
future experimental items.

PN Panel of Content Experts
A Panel of Content Experts Conference was held on December 5.9, 1988, in Monterey, California, for the
review of NCLEX-PN test items. The 15 participants selected by the National Council represented
Missouri, Washington, Colorado, Ohio, California, Alabama, Wisconsin, Virginia, and Pennsylvania. A total
of 530 items were reviewed. Twenty items were deleted during the review process; 510 items were approved
for use as future experimental items.

Continuing Education Credit
ltem writers are each awarded 37 contact hours of continuing Education credit and Panel of Content
Experts' members are each awarded 41.5 contact hours of Continuing Education credit for their participation
in the conferences.

Member Board Review of Experimental Items
CfBlMeGraw·Hill staff completed a review of information provided by Member Boards in their 1988 review
of experimental items. Items designated by Member Boards as not consistent with entry-level practice were
submitted to the Panel of Content Experts for review. Items designated as not consistent with a state nurse
practice act were submitted with documentation to the National Council for final review.

During the last Member Board review of experimental items, PN and RN items were reviewed at the same
time. Three hundred sixty (360) PN experimental items and eight hundred sixty-four (864) RN experimental
items were available for review during the January - February 1989 time frame. A total of fourteen Member
Boards participated in this review. One Member Board reviewed RN experimental items only; three
Member Boards reviewed PN experimental items only; and ten Member Boards reviewed both RN and PN
items. RN items identified as not consistent with entry-level practice were submitted to the RN Panel of
Content Experts which met in March 1989. PN items identified as not consistent with entry-level practice
will be submitted to the PN Panel of Content Experts scheduled to meet in December 1989. The items
designated as not consistent with a state nurse practice act were submitted with documentation to the
National Council for final review on March I, 1989, and were reviewed by the Examination Committee on
March 19-23, 1989.

CTBlMcGraw-Hill continues to closely monitor the security procedures for review drafts and has refined
the review draft packaging methods to facilitate Member Boards' inventorying procedures.

Item Bonk Assessment
CTBlMcGraw-Hill completed its annual assessment and update of the RN and PN item pools in December,
1988. A tally of all items in the pool according to difficulty and discrimination indices was provided to the
National Council. A computer tape of the statistil:S of all usable items and a tape of the corresponding
items' text were provided to the National Council.
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Examination Construction
The two Registered Nursing examinations (NCLEX-RN 788 and NCLEX-RN 289) and the two Practical
Nursing examinations (NCLEX-PN 088 and NCLEX-PN 489) constructed for use this past year were
developed according to the Registered Nursing and Practical Nursing test plans approved by the Delegate
Assembly and the test construction guidelines established by the Examination Committee. The content
blueprints (confidential directions) for each examination were presented to the Examination Committee for
review and, upon the Committee's approval, the examinations were developed by CfB development and
research staff for final review by the Examination Committee. The examinations were constructed to be
equivalent to previous forms of Registered Nursing and Practical Nursing examinations from both a content
and a statistical perspective and were reviewed by CfB's nursing consultant staff, editorial staff, and the
Examination Committee to ensure that all items met the established criteria.

Examination Committee Meetings
CfB/McGraw-Hill staff participated in the four regularly scheduled Examination Committee meetings and
worked in cooperation with committee members to ensure the efficient review of all examination materials,
including the newly developed CAT/RN items.

CfB/McGraw·Hill nursing consultants and test development staff provided information as requested and
provided summary reports on all committee-related activities. CfB/McGraw·Hill technical coordinators
presented research reports analyzing results of the two Registered Nursing examinations and the two
Practical Nursing examinations. In addition, Person-Fit reports, Ethnicity/Gender reports, results of the
Context Effects Study and a special report on Recommended Procedures for Minimizing Potential Bias were
presented.

EXAMINATION ADMINISTRATION, SCORING, AND REPORTING

Examination Administration
Two Registered Nursing and two Practical (Vocational) Nursing examinations were administered during the
past year. The NCLEX-RN 788 was administered to 68,458 candidates and the NCLEX-RN 289
examination was administered to 36,786 candidates.

The NCLEX-PN 088 examination was administered to 27,524 candidates. The exact number of candidates
taking NCLEX-PN 489 was not available when this report was prepared. (NCLEX.PN 488 was administered
to 16,980 candidates. That figure was not available at the writing of the 1988 Annual Report.)

Examination Materials Retrieval/Scoring
All examination materials were collected under secure conditions and accounted for. Candidate information,
test materials, and late applications were checked by the CfB scoring staff for completeness and accuracy,
and test materials were scanned.

The passing scores were set in cooperation with the National Council according to the established standard
of entry-level proficiency, and all score reports were shipped on or before the scheduled date.

CfB/McGraw-Hill staff continue to provide additional services by automatically handscoring all examinations
within a particular range of the passing score. Approximately 9,913 examination booklets were handscored
during the verification process for NCLEX·RN 788; 2,010 examination booklets were handscored for
NCLEX-PN 088; and 6,096 examination booklets were handscored for NCLEX-RN 289. At the time this
report was written, information regarding the number of examination booklets verified for NCLEX- PN 489
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was not available. This information will be included in the 1990 Annual Report. crBIMcGraw-Hill also
reviewed all abnormal candidate markings, updated candidate information that was in error, and provided
a scoring tracking record to each Member Board to summarize key dates in the scoring cycle and details
of incomplete, duplicate, or inaccurate candidate data.

NCLEX·PN 088 Scoring Error
An error in scoring occurred during the processing of the NCLEX-PN 088 examination. Two items were
deleted from the scoring of this examination because of negative point bi-serials. When item deletions
occur, examinations must be rescored and the master tape updated. For two jurisdictions, the updating of
the master tape did not occur. The result was that nine candidates from one Member Board were
incorrectly reported as passing when they had actually failed. The National Council's Board of Directors
approved the administration of an emergency NCLEX-PN examination to these nine candidates on January
12, 1989.

CTBIMcGraw-Hill reimbursed candidates for all expenses associated with retesting, and examination results
were provided to the Missouri Board within two days.

Following the error, crBIMcGraw-Hill staff worked to modify procedures regarding the deletion of items
during scoring to ensure that the implementation of additional procedures necessary due to item deletions
are not jeopardized by the short scoring time frame.

Handscoring
CTB responded to 83 handscoring requests for NCLEX-RN 288, 63 handscoring requests for NCLEX-RN
DP288, and 40 requests for NCLEX-PN 488 (these figures were not available in the 1988 Annual Report).
Three hundred twenty-four (324) handscoring requests were received for the NCLEX-RN 788 examination
and 51 handscoring requests were received for the NCLEX-PN 088 examination. At the time this report
was written, no handscoring requests had yet been received for NCLEX-RN 289 or NCLEX-PN 489. All
scores remain as originally reported, and no scoring errors were revealed during the process.

Cnndidate Brochures
The 1988-89 expanded and revised brochures were printed by CTBIMcGraw-Hill and distributed for the
NCLEX-PN 088 and 489 examination administrations and the NCLEX-RN 289 and 789 examination
administrations. CTBIMcGraw-Hill staff worked in cooperation with the Administration of Examination
Committee to ensure that the new brochures addressed the needs of the candidates and the Member Boards.

Administration of Examination Committee
Two crBIMcGraw-Hill staff members attended the October-November 1988 Administration of Examination
Committee Meeting held in Chicago, Illinois, to present information and answer questions about the
administration of NCLEX-RN 788.

crBIMcGraw-Hill staff also attended the March 13-15, 1989, Administration of Examination Committee
Meeting held in Chicago, I1linois, to present information and answer questions about the administration of
NCLEX-PN 088 and to present preliminary information about NCLEX-RN 289.
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RESEARCH AND TECHNICAL SUPPORT
The research staff has continued to provide the National Council with the information needed to monitor
the technical quality of each examination. Technical reports have been submitted to the Council for
NCLEX·PN 488, NCLEX-RN 788, NCLEX·PN 088, and NCLEX· RN 289. In each technical report,
CTBIMcGraw-HiIl test development and research staff provided detailed descriptions of the development
and analyses carried out for each examination. Tables of historical examination statistics were also included.

The CTBIMcGraw-HilI research staff has also conducted the following research studies during the past year:

Person-Fit Analysis
A person-fit analysis was conducted on the NCLEX RN 288, PN 488, RN 788, and PN 088 examinations.
Reports summarizing these analyses and the results that were obtained were submitted to the National
Council throughout 1988.

Ethnicity/Gender Analysis
Analyses were performed during the past year to detect differentially difficult test items among specific
ethnic or gender groups. Summary reports describing these analyses for the NCLEX·RN 288,
NCLEX·PN 488, NCLEX-RN 788, and NCLEX-PN 088 examinations were submitted to the National
Council after each examination administration.

The NCLEX.PN 488, NCLEX-RN 788, and NCLEX-PN 088 reports summarized the extensive research
CTBIMcGraw-HilI has conducted on determining minimum required ethnic sample sizes and minimum
required competence stratification levels for the Mantel-Haenszel techniques used to evaluate NCLEX
items for bias. This work is new in the field and should serve as a useful basis for other ethnicity/gender
bias work to be done with small sample sizes.

Additional Ethnicity/Gender research recently completed or in progress at the writing of this report
include:

A study of the distribution of curriculum effects and potential ethnicity/curriculum bias across the
Test Plan categories in NCLEX-RN 788.

A complementary study assessing these effects in the NCLEX PN 088 exam.

Work to validate a Mantel·Haenszel alpha criterion level that best discriminates potentially biased
items from unbiased items.

• Compilation of ethnic group versus reference group response rates for correct answers and
distractors of the NCLEX-PN 088 and NCLEX-RN 289 items. This information was presented to
the Examination Committee during their March 1989 and June 1989 meetings.

Context Effects Study
A study was conducted to determine whether the placement of an item in a case structure or as an
individual item had any effect on the performance of the item. Results of the first part of this two-part
study were submitted to the National Council in May 1988; results of the second part were submitted
in March 1989.
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RN Dimensionality Study
An assessment of whether there is "significant" dimensionality in the RN exam was initiated using two
distinct methodologies. Results were presented to the National Council in May 1989.

Recommendation for a Bias Review Procedure
A recommendation for a comprehensive Bias Review Procedure was prepared and submitted to the
National Council Examination Committee and staff for review in March 1989.

Recommendation for a Standard-Setting Procedure
A recommendation for a comprehensive Standard-Setting Procedure was prepared and submitted to the
National Council Examination Committee and staff for review in October 1988.

Stability of b·Values and Fit Statistics
A study of the effect of tryout item placement on the item difficulty parameter as well as the item fit
statistics was undertaken at the end of 1988. The results were presented in a report at the June 1989
Examination Committee meeting.

Annual CTBIMcGraw-HiII - National Council Research Meeting
CTBIMcGraw-Hill has also continued to work with the National Council to discuss the results of current
research studies and to identify future research directions for the NCLEX. Members of crB's research staff
met with representatives of the National Council at the annual meeting of the American Educational
Research Association, held in March 1989, in San Francisco, California, to discuss these issues.

Committee for Special Projects
CTBIMcGraw-Hill staff participated in the November 1988 meeting of the Committee for Special Projects
by providing information on dimensionality and other factors related to computer testing. crB hosted the
meeting of the Committee for Special Projects in Monterey, California, on February 6-8, 1989. CTB offered
the expertise of two psychometricians with computer testing background. crB also demonstrated the
software to be used for the computer administered Psychiatric Technician examination to be installed by
CTB in 1990 for the California Board of Vocational Nurses and Psychiatric Technicians.

CfB also hosted the June 1989 meeting of the Committee on Special Projects in Monterey, California.

Delegate Assembly
Nine staff members from crBIMcGraw-HilI attended the Delegate Assembly in Des Moines, Iowa. from
August 16-20, 1988. Staff members attended all Delegate Assembly meetings and responded to questions
as requested. Patrick Kelly, McGraw-Hili's Security Manager and Karen Selikson, NCLEX Associate Project
Director, held a special security forum open to all delegates and committee members who had questions
regarding NCLEX security issues.

National Council Board of Directors Meetings
crBIMcGraw-Hill staff National Accounts Manager and Technical Coordinator anended the November 1988
National Council Board of Directors Meeting in Chicago, Illinois. A research report was presented
comparing the standard setting procedure used on NCLEX examinations with other standard setting methods
currently available.
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CfB National Accounts Manager attended the April 1989 Board of Directors meeting in Chicago, Illinois,
to present the intent and scope of CfB's proposal for a contract extension and to provide information and
respond to questions about test service activities during the quarter.

Quarterly Contract Update Meeting
National Council and CfBlMcGraw-HilI staff met on August 19, 1988, during the Delegate Assembly for
the 1988 third quarter contract evaluation meeting. Issues related to the NCLEX contract were discussed.
National Council and CfB staff participated in the 1988 fourth quarter contract evaluation meeting via
conference call on November 15, 1988. Issues relating to the NCLEX contract were discussed.

Annual Contract Evaluation Meeting
CfBlMcGraw-HiII's NCLEX managers met with the National Council staff and Examination Committee
chairperson in Monterey, California, on March 22, 1989, for the annual evaluation of CfBlMcGraw-HilI's
services. Issues and procedures relating to every aspect of the contract were discussed. Several ideas for
procedure modifications were presented.

National Council and CfBlMcGraw-HiII staff participated in the 1989 second quarter contract evaluation
meeting via conference call in June 1989. Issues relating to the NCLEX contract were discussed.

Area Meetings
The CfBlMcGraw-HilI National Accounts Manager and/or NCLEX Project Director attended all
March/April 1989 Area Meetings. In addition to presenting an overview of CfB actiVities, CfB participated
in the Administration of Examination Committee Special Sessions, where an overview of administrative
procedures was presented and issues related to the administration of the NCLEX examination were
discussed.

Education Conferences for Faculty
CTBlMcGraw-Hi1l participated in a September 1988 educational conference sponsored by a Member Board.
NCLEX Content Director and NCLEX Project Director for CfBlMcGraw-HiII presented information about
NCLEX item development and the Summary Profiles.

NCLEX Invitational Conference
CfBlMcGraw-Hill's Third NCLEX Invitational Conference on February 2-3, 1989, was attended by
approximately 90 representatives from 29 Member Boards. CfBlMcGraw-HilI was also pleased to welcome
several educators to this year's Invitational Conference. Post-conference evaluations indicate the conference
was successful in conveying critical information about the development, production, and scoring and
reporting of the NCLEX. CfB appreciated the valuable participation of two National Council staff
members in this event.

SPECIAL SERVICES
CfBlMcGraw-Hill responded to requests from five Member Boards for special analyses of suspected
cheating; from five Member Boards for examination reviews; from one Member Board for a candidate review
of an examination; from eight Member Boards for special data requests; and from three Member Boards
regarding examination passing statistics.

CTBlMcGraw-Hill also provided a summary of procedures used during item development, editing and
reviewing to eliminate potential bias in NCLEX to be provided to a regulatory board who requested this
information.
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CTB/McGraw-HilI staff responded to requests from the National Council for special data sorts; for
preliminary examination statistics; and for cost estimates for a variety of services, inclUding a third RN
administration, an RN and PN Dimensionality Study; and supplemental Ethnicity/Gender Bias analyses.

At the request of the National Council's Examination Committee, CTB's Content Director participated m
a Member Board's review of RN experimental items in February 1989 to discuss new item developmen1.

The NCLEX Summary Profiles
The NCLEX Summary Profiles service continues to provide important information to subscribing nursing
programs. The summary reports have been sent to approximately 610 subscribing Registered Nursing
programs after each of the Registered Nursing examination administrations during the past year and to over
107 subscribing Practical Nursing programs after each of the Practical Nursing examination administrations.

CTB/McGraw-Hill test development and research staff and National Council staff have completed Summary
Profiles modifications that were made as a result of the Delegate Assembly's resolution to provide candidate
scores in a PASS/FAlL framework. Member Board received special informational packets describing the
modifications in January 1989.

In February 1989, a letter was mailed to all RN SUbscribers, explaining that due to the new PASS/FAlL
method of reporting results, school rankings are now calculated based on percentage of candidates passing
the NCLEX in each subscriber's program rather than on mean scale scores and this increases the chance,
of shared rankings.

In May 1989, a Summary Profiles brochure reflecting the current RN Test Plan and changes resulting from
the transition to PASS/FAIL was be mailed to nursing programs.

CTB/McGraw-Hili staff members will be available at the National League for Nursing Convention in Seattle,
Washington, June 1989. Brochures, sample Summary Profiles and other information will be provided to
those attending the conference.
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Report from The Psychological Corporation for
the Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program
(NACEP)

Introduction
This report provides a summary of The Psychological Corporation's activities with the National
Council's Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program (NACEP) since November 1988.

Launch Meeting and License Agreement
Representatives of the National Council met November 16-17, 1988, at The Psychological
Corporation to discuss marketing strategies, implementation plans, and contract issues.

In January 1989, a License Agreement between the National Council of State Boards of Nursing
and The Psychological Corporation was signed.

Evaluation Blueprint
An initial step in developing NACEP was the preparation of a blueprint to guide the selection of
content and skills to be evaluated. The evaluation blueprint was approved by the NCSBN Board
on December 14, 1988, and has been copyrighted and published.

Item Writing
The Psychological Corporation coordinates the training and support of item writers in the
development of NACEP evaluation items. The NACEP Evaluation Blueprint provides a basis for
the content and scope of the items.

Resumes were received from the National Council offices, individual state Boards of Nursing, and
interested persons. Only licensed nurses with experience in long-term care and/or the instruction
or supervision of nurse aides were selected.

Three item-writing workshops were conducted. All participants were sent pre-workshop packets,
including a practice assignment. Presenters at each workshop gave an overview of the NACEP
program and an explanation of how a valid certification test is constructed. Principles of item
writing were introdUced, practice exercises completed, and individual aSSignments made. Items were
written by participants after they returned home from the workshops.

The item-writing workshops were held in Baltimore, Maryland (January 31, 1989), Denver, Colorado
(February 1, 1989), and Atlanta, Georgia (February 20, 1989). As a result, over 1400 NACEP items
were submitted by 51 item writers representing 27 states including Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas,
Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, Rorida, Georgia, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland,
Massachusetts, Minnesota, Missouri, Montana, Nevada, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina,
North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Texas, and Virginia.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Item Review
NACEP evaluation items submitted to The Psychological Corporation were reviewed by test
development editors for proper format, grammar, punctuation, reading level, and bias.

Item Review Meetings were convened in Baltimore, Maryland (February 28-March 1, 1989), Chicago,
Illinois (February 28-March 1, 1989), San Francisco, california (March 2-3, 1989), and San Antonio,
Texas (March 7-8, 1989); items were reviewed by 21 content experts representing 19 states including
Alaska, california, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, Idaho, Iowa, Maine, Minnesota, Missouri,
Nebraska, New Mexico, North carolina, Ohio, Oregon, Rhode Island, Texas, Washington, and West
Virginia.

Nurses from diverse areas of long-term care service reviewed NACEP evaluation items to determine
if an item assessed relevant knowledge, had only one correct answer, and was clear and concise.
Based on these meetings, items were revised, accepted as written, or excluded from further
consideration.

Field Testing-Written
Field testing allows for the collection of data pertaining to the psychometric properties of the items
before they are assembled into the final test forms. A research field study prospectus and invitation
for partiCipation was mailed to over 1000 nursing homes and training facilities throughout the
country.

During the month of April, nurse aides from 268 nursing homes and tralDlDg facilities were
evaluated in 96 test centers located in 32 states. All four National Council Areas were represented
in the field test.

Twelve forms, each containing 75 items, were assembled to match the NACEP Evaluation Blueprint.
Each evaluation form was a scannable booklet designed to be similar to the final evaluation.

Acceptable items from the field test will be placed into an item pool from which the final
evaluation forms will be assembled.

Practice Test
In addition to the final written evaluation forms, a generic nurse aide written practice test will be
published in June, 1989. This Practice Test will contain items of similar content to those on the
actual NACEP evaluation.

The request for a practice test was a result of our conversations and proposal to the state of
Alabama. The reaction from other states has been enthusiastic. The Practice Test will allow
nursing homes and training programs the opportunity to evaluate their aides prior to the real thing,
relieve test anxiety, and help make the evaluation a positive experience.

Each paCkage of Nurse Aide Practice Tests contains ten individual tests and one directions manual.
The manual describes how to administer the Practice Test and includes scoring keys. The cost per
package is $30.00.
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Manual Skills
A Manual Skills Committee was formed to assist in the creation of the manual skills evaluation.
This committee is made up of five (5) individuals who represent five (5) states including Alabama,
Arizona, Indiana, Nevada, and New York.

The committee met in San Antonio, Texas (March 7-8, 1989) at The Psychological Corporation.
Thirty tasks were included in the evaluation and rater criteria were developed. To train raters in
the scoring criteria, The Psychological Corporation has produced a videotape which includes
demonstrations of all thirty tasks.

A field test of the scoring criteria and tasks was completed in April, 1989. Eleven test centers,
located in nine (9) states, were established for the national tryout. The Manual Skills Committee
met again May 11-12, 1989, to review the results.

Systems Development Bnd Support
The implementation of the NACEP Program with its requirement for application processing,
mailing, scanning, scoring and reporting of results has been the responsibility of the Systems
Development and Scoring Services Groups. New programs to support the processing of all NACEP
application and evaluation materials have been developed.

The scoring system has been designed to be as flexible as possible to meet the specialized needs of
the various states. Score reports have been developed for individual nurse aides, state agency
training programs, and long-term care facilities. A large number of optional reports are available
to states that want to examine candidate performance by selected demographic variables.

Operations Development and Support
The Psychological Corporation has established a special NACEP operational support group to deal
exclusively with applicants and the establishment of test centers. The operational support group
is comprised of experienced individuals who are responsible for responding to inquiries from
applicants, nursing homes, and training programs. In addition, this group establishes written, oral,
and manual skills test centers.

Sales and Marketing
An extensive sales and marketing report has been submitted on a regular basis. Accompanying this
report is a specific state-by-state summary. This list provides information on the number of
in-person calls made to each state, presentations made, proposals submitted, and the status of that
state regarding the NACEP program. As of June 2, 1989, eight states and one territory have
selected NACEP as the sole provider; and five states have decided to allow the use of more than
one evaluation within their jurisdiction. The remainder of the sales report includes information on
regional meetings, conference exhibits, and promotional mailings.

State Implementation
Each state is meeting the challenge of the Nursing Home Reform Act in a different way. For
example, in some states the candidates pay the test service; in others the state agency is billed. In
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some states the Board of Nursing is responsible for the program; in others it is a consortia of state
agencies. Because of this situation, The Psychological Corporation is emphasizing its flexibility in
working with and developing state programs.

To meet this challenge of state implementation, the Large Scale Assessment Group of The
Psychological Corporation works with each state individually. After the commitment is made to use
NACEP, this group develops a specialized management plan to meet the unique needs of the state.
One individual is assigned as the primary liaison for the states.

Looking Ahead
The Psychological Corporation will continue to analyze field test statistics and to assemble the final
written evaluation forms to be reviewed by the NACEP committee in San Antonio (May 22-24,
1989). A standard-setting panel will convene (June 6-7, 1989) to determine a recommended
cut-score for the written evaluation. The first date of testing is scheduled for July 22, 1989. The
Psychological Corporation will host a breakfast at the 1989 Delegate Assembly on Thursday, August
3, 1989.

NURSE AIDE COMPETENCY EVALUATION PROGRAM
SUMMARY OF STATE SALES AND MARKETING ACTIVITIES

(As of June 2, 1989)

NUMBER PROPOSAL STATUS OF
STATE OF CALLS' PRESENTATIONS SUBMITTED'" PROPOSALS'"

ALABAMA 4 Yes Yes NACEP
ALASKA 1 Yes No Undecided
ARIZONA 5 Yes Yes Undecided
ARKANSAS 4 No Yes Undecided
CALIFORNIA 2 No No Other
COLORADO 2 Yes No Undecided
CONNECTICUT 2 Yes Yes Other
DELAWARE 1 No Yes Undecided
FLORIDA 1 No No Undecided
GEORGIA 1 Yes No Undecided
HAWAII 1 Yes Yes Undecided
IDAHO 2 Yes No NACEP
ILLINOIS 1 No Yes Undecided
INDIANA 3 Yes No M.P.
IOWA 1 No No Other
KANSAS 0 No No Other
KENTUCKY 2 Yes Yes Other
LOUISIANA 2 Yes Yes Undecided
MAINE 2 Yes No Undecided
MARYLAND 1 No No Undecided
MASSACHUSETTS 2 No Yes Undecided
MICHIGAN 2 Yes No Undecided
MINNESOTA 1 Yes Yes NACEP
MISSISSIPPI 3 Yes Yes M. P.
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MISSOURI 1 No Yes Other
MONTANA 2 Yes No NACEP
NEBRASKA 1 No Yes Other
NEVADA 2 Yes Yes NACEP
NEW HAMPSHIRE 2 Yes No Undecided
NEW JERSEY 0 No No Other
NEW MEXICO 3 No Yes Undecided
NEW YORK 1 No Yes Other
NORTH CAROLINA 6 Yes No M.P.
NORTH DAKOTA 3 Yes No Undecided
OHIO 2 Yes Yes Undecided
OKLAHOMA 1 No Yes Other
OREGON 3 No No Undecided
PENNSYLVANIA 0 No No Other
RHODE ISLAND 1 No No Undecided
SOUTH CAROLINA 2 Yes Yes NACEP
SOUTH DAKOTA 2 Yes No NACEP
TENNESSEE 2 No Yes Undecided
TEXAS 0 No No Other
UTAH 1 No No Other
VERMONT 1 Yes No Undecided
VIRGINIA 1 No Yes Undecided
WASHINGTON 3 No No Undecided
WEST VIRGINIA 2 No No Undecided
WISCONSIN 1 No No M.P.
WYOMING 3 Yes Yes NACEP

Other

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA I No No Undecided
VIRGIN ISLANDS I Yes No NACEP

'Sales calls made in person. Does not reflect telephone calls or other kinds of contact. A sales call typically
requires 3 to 4 telephone calls to schedule. All states have been contacted at least once.

··M. P. means that the state is a multi-provider state and The Psychological Corporation is one of the providers.

•••All RFPs are answered by unique, customized proposals of approximately 150 pages in length.
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OTHER STATE SALES AND MARKETING ACTIVIIT

Invitational Drive.In Conferences
February 10, 1989, and February 17, 1989. Boston and Washington, D. C.

Participants were from surrounding states. Presented NACEP in a half-day meeting with lunch.

April 24 - 28, 1989. North Carolina Conferences. Goldsboro, Raleigh-Durham, Greensboro,
Asheville, Charlotte. Jane Tail and Jinger Lyon presented.

May 9 - 11, 1989. Mississippi conferences. Greenwood, Jackson, Biloxi. Jane Tait and John
Walton presented.

National Council Area Meetings
March 3, 4, 1989 - Anchorage. Jane Tait was in attendance and presented.
April 6, 7, 1989 - New Orleans. Robert Hudson was in attendance and presented.
April 10, 11, 1989 - Lincoln. Sandra Pakes was in attendance and presented.
April 20, 21, 1989 - Atlantic City. Mary Ellen Raab and Bob Norris were in attendance and

presented.

National Clearinghouse on Licensure and Regulation (CLEAR), Regional Conferences
March 2, 3, 1989 - Charleston. Robert Hudson was in attendance and presented.
March 31, April 1, 1989 - Boise. Robert Hudson was in attendance and presented.

National Exhibits
March 15 - 17, 1989. National Association of Director of Nursing Administrators and Long Term

Care (NADONA), Arlington, Virginia. Jane Tait represented The Psychological Corporation,
and Barbara Halsey represented the National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.

April 1 - 5, 1989. American College of Health Care Administrators, Honolulu, Hawaii. Jane Tait
and Paul Kema represented The Psychological Corporation and Barbara Halsey represented the
National Council of State Boards of NurSing, Inc.

June 12 - 14, 1989. National League for Nursing, Inc. Seattle, Washington. Jane Tait will
represent The Psychological Corporation and Barbara Halsey will represent the National Council
of S13te Boards of Nursing, Inc.

June 24 - 28, 1989. American Nurses Association. Kansas City, Missouri. Jane Tait will represent
The Psychological Corporation and Barbara Halsey will represent the National Council of State
Boards of Nursing, Inc.

September 6-9, 1989. National Clearinghouse on Licensure and Regulation (CLEAR). Annual
Convention, Indianapolis, Indiana. Jane Tait, Chuck Friedman, and Robert Hudson will attend.

Other Important Calls/Contacts
December 12, 1988. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Care Financing

Administration (HCFA). Jane Tait of The Psychological Corporation and Barbara Halsey of
the National Council called on this agency in Baltimore, Maryland.
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December 12, 1988. American Red Cross, Washington, D.C. Jane Tait and Barbara Halsey made
the call. There have been subsequent calls by Jane Tail.

December 12, 1988. American College of Health Care Administrators, Alexandria, Virginia. Jane
Tait, Barbara Halsey, and Jenni Bosma made this call.

December 13, 1988. American Association of Retired Persons (AARP), Washington, D.C. Jane Tait
and Barbara Halsey made this call.

December 13, 1988. National Citizens Coalition for Nursing Home Reform. Inc., Washington, D.C.
Jane Tait and Barbara Halsey made this call.

December 13, 1988. American Health Care Association, Washington, D.C. Jane Tait and Barbara
Halsey were present.

December 14, 1988. American Association of Public Welfare Association, Washington, D.C. Jane
Tait and Barbara Halsey made this call.

December 14, 1988. American Association of Homes for the Aging, Washington, D.C. Jane Tail
and Barbara Halsey participated in the call.

December 14, 1988. National Association of Gerontological Nurses, WaShington, D.C. Jane Tail
and Barbara Halsey made the call.
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NACEP Promotion and Advertising Activities

o Production of a 12-page, two-color NACEP brochure.
o Production of 30 transparencies for formal sales presentations. Distributed to the primary

and secondary NACEP sales force.
o Production of a 4-page flyer with a business reply card. Mailed 25,000 pieces in mid-February,

1989. The target population Willi hospital administrators, directors of nursing, nursing home
and long term care administrators and owners, nursing home directors of nursing, and medical
directors. In late February, 1989, an additional 12,000 pieces were produced and mailed to
members of the National Association of Directors of Nursing, the American Association of
Homes for the Aging, the American Association of Community and Junior ColIeges,
proprietary schools, and vocational/technical schools. Specific telemarketing activities follOWed.

o Production of a generic proposal for use in unsolicited (non-RFP) situations.
o Production of a prototype RFP which was made available to states needing assistance in

writing their RFPs.
o Development of a List of NACEP Services and Price Ranges (Suggested Candidate Fees) for

use as a hand-out.
o Production of the NACEP Evaluation Blueprint. Distributed widely and used as a hand-out

at conferences and exhibits.
o A full-page NACEP advertisement was placed in the Long Term Care Administrator

Newsletter, Today's Nursing Home and Contemporary Long Term Care.
o A ful1-page advertisement on the NACEP Practice Test was placed in the June issue of The

Long Term care Administrator Newsletter, Today's Nursing Home, Contemporary Long Term
Care.

o Production of a 4-page flyer on the Nurse Aide Practice Test mailed May 15, 1989, to the
same 37,000 that received the February mailing described above.
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Report of the Nurse Information System
Committee

Background
The National Nurse Licensee Data Base Committee was established in 1986 by the National Council
to study the need for and use of a comprehensive, national nursing information system and, if
needed, to determine the steps to take to create the data base for nursing statistics.

The Board of Directors approved a change in the name of the committee to the Nurse Information
System (NIS) Committee in January 1989 to more accurately describe the purpose of the project.

The Committee wishes to reiterate that the primary objective of the project is to provide an
unduplicated count of nurse licensees nationwide. The data are to be used for aggregate statistical
research purposes only. No information specific to individuals will be revealed, and sensitive data
elements will be strictly protected under contractual language between the National Council and
individual Member Boards. Also, Member Boards will not risk loss of any revenue-producing
opportunities due to participation in the national information system as they will retain full control
of their data. The National Council will not distribute any state's data unless that state requests
the National Council to do so.

A previous pilot study by the Committee verified substantial variation in data collection among state
boards of nursing. Therefore, it was not feasible simply to combine all existing Member Board data
to arrive at a national nurse information system.

By virtue of their public protection role and their access to nurse licensees, Member Boards are in
a unique position to collect data on the nurse population.

The Committee has learned that most Member Boards need financial and technical assistance in
order to contribute to a national Nurse Information System. The Committee's recommendation to
seek outside funding was approved at the 1988 Delegate Assembly.

The Committee recognizes that, in its early stages, the national Nurse Information System will not
be the ideal comprehensive data base. However, it is the hope of the Committee that a well­
designed system could serve as a prototype which could eventually result in more states being able
to collect data and in greater comparability of data collected for nurses in the United States.

Activities
The Committee met October 31 - November 1, 1988, conducted a telephone conference call on
December 13, 1988, and met again on May 1-2, 1989.

Current Focus
As conceptualized by the Committee, the primary purpose for establishing a national NIS is to be
able to determine as accurately as possible, on an ongoing basis, the number of individuals with
active registered nurse (RN) and licensed practical/vocational nurse (LPNNN) licenses. Currently,
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due to individuals holding licenses in multiple states, there is no way to obtain an accurate count
of licensed personnel.

The ability to compile an unduplicated count of licensees in both the RN and LPNNN licensure
categories would provide Member Boards assistance in carrying out their mandate to protect the
public health, safety, and welfare. An up-to-date NIS would result in the provision of accurate
information about the supply of nurses to the Congress, state legislatures, and other groups as they
deliberate about policy and funding decisions. The funding of existing nursing education programs,
the provision of scholarship and loan funds to nursing students, and decisions relative to the need
for additional programs would be based on analyses of accurate information about the supply of
nurses in relation to the demand for nurses.

Data Elements
The Committee:

1. Identified data elements that need to be collected in order to unduplicate licensee lists provided
by individual Member Boards. The data elements are:

name
date of birth
zip code of mailing address
social security number
type of license
license number in reporting jurisdiction
original license information (type, date, jurisdiction, and number)
basic nursing education program

2. Determined that once data are provided, several levels of sorting (via computer) would be
necessary to provide an unduplicated list. Sort levels are:

Levell
Level 2

Level 3

Name
(two of the following three items): date of birth, social security number,
original license information (type, date of licensure, jurisdiction, license number)
basic nursing education program identifier

3. Determined that mailing address zip code would assist in providing supply information by
geographic location.

Data Confidentiality
In addition to identifying a basic set of information that would need to be obtained about each
nurse in order to identify and delete duplicate entries, the Committee also addressed an issue that
is of major concern to Member Boards: confidentiality of the data. In response to this, the
Committee is proposing that data only be released in its aggregate form, unless specifically directed
to do otherwise by a Member Board. In addition, it is proposing that, when necessary, a contract
be negotiated with a Member Board which includes a statement about the confidentiality of the data
and the guidelines that need to be followed regarding data release.
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Survey of Member Boards
In December 1988, the Committee surveyed Member Boards to learn about data now collected,
method of data storage (e.g., paper, computer, microfilm), and resources needed by states to
contribute to a national data collection effort.

The major results of this survey are summarized in Tables 1 through 4 found at the end of this
report.

Plans for Data Collection
Initially, the system will focus on providing an unduplicated count of current nurse licensees
nationwide, with periodic updates. Eventually, the system will have the capability to collect and
analyze demographic data.

Because Member Boards are unique, the Committee is proposing three different approaches to meet
all states' needs depending on the type of data collected by a specific Member Board and whether
or not the data are stored on a computer. All three approaches will be available to Member
Boards.

The three approaches are summarized as follows:

Approach #1. Designed for use with those Member Boards who currently collect all of the
essential data elements and store these in a computer file.

1. Member Board downloads information to a data tape or diskette and sends this to the
National Council.

2. National Council adds data to the NIS data base.

Approach #2. Designed for use with those Member Boards who currently collect all or some of
the essential data elements, but do not store this information in a computer file.

1. National Council provides Member Board with scannable survey form to be distributed
to all licensees at time of license renewal.

2. Member Board returns completed forms to National Council where they are scanned
and data added to the NIS data base.

Approach #3. Designed for use with Member Boards who currently collect and maintain a
computer file containing some but not all of the essential data elements.

1. Member Board downloads available information to a data tape or diskette and sends
this to the National Council.

2. National Council provides Member Board with scannable survey form and customized
completion directions for distribution to all licensees at the time of license renewal.

3. Member Board returns completed forms to National Council where they are scanned.
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4. Data from data tape/diskette and scanned forms are merged and added to NIS data
base.

Subsequently, periodic updates can take place.

Securing Outside Funding
Council staff has contacted 19 foundations to determine their interest in reviewing a funding
proposal. To date, 15 foundations have responded; one of these indicated a willingness to review
a full proposal. The fourteen foundations responding negatively, while citing the project had merit,
indicated the unavailability of funds or a lack of congruence between funding goals/priorities and
the project.

The Committee has identified potential cost elements and staff will develop a detailed budget for
inclusion in a proposal to be submitted to an external funding source. In addition, letters of
support for the project will be solicited from a number of sources.

Summary
Based on the results of a Member Board survey and previous Committee activities, the NIS
Committee has identified a series of procedures that will provide data for the establishment of a
national Nurse Information System; has identified cost elements that will be the basis for budget
preparation; and is continuing to explore outside revenue sources and support for the project. In
addition, the Committee has identified mechanisms through which Member Board concerns
(including those of data use and confidentiality) can be addressed. The Committee is continuing
to explore mechanisms for periodic update of the Nurse Information System data base.

Committee Members and StolT

Judie Ritter, Chairperson
Susan Brank
Vicky Burbach
Marie Hilliard
Bertha Mugurdichian

State
FL
CARN
NE
CT
RI

Area
III
I
II
IV
IV

Carolyn Yocom, Director of Research Services
William Lauf, Deputy Director for Administrative

Support Services
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Table 1. Number of Member Boards Reporting Collection of
Specific Data Elements (n = 56) .

Data All Some No ?
Licensees Licensees

Name 56
Date of birth 54 1 I
Zip Code 56
social Sec. # 46 4 5 1
JD License # 55 I
Type License 55 I
Date of Original 53 1 1 I

Licensure
original State 48 2 4 2

of Licensure
original License # 38 6 9 3
Basic Nsg. Education 55 I

Table 2. Number of Member Boards Reporting Storage of
specific Data Elements in Computer Files (n= 56).

Data

Name
Date of birth
zip Code
Social Sec. #
JD License #
Type License
Date of original

Licensure
Original State

of Licensure
original License #
Basic Nsg. Education

All Some
Licensees Licensees

45 4
36 8
45 4
29 13
45 1
47 3
27 14

18 7

17 8
26 12

No

6
11

6
13

9
5

14

30

30
17

?

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1

1
1

National Council of Scare Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Table 3. Number of Member Boards Reporting Access to
Computers and/or Software (n = 56).

Hardware/
Software

Microcomputers
Minicomputers
Main Frame Computer
Computer of any

type
Data-base entry

software

Have

34
16
30
49

39

Will Have Shortly/
Installing

2

1

Table 4. Member Board Need for Resource Assistance In Order
To Provide Data Elements (n = 56).

Funds/Resources Needed
For:

Printing costs
Mailing costs
Personnel (mail/log in)
Personnel (retrieval)
Hardware
Software
Personnel (data entry)

Yes

26
24
26
36
20
25
34

No

30
32
30
20
36
31
22
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Report of the Committee for Special Projects

Project Overview

What is CAT?
Computerized adaptive testing (CAT) is a method of administering examinations based on the
established measurement principle that, for any given examinee, certain questions will be more
effective than others in revealing his/her competence level. Following this principle, only questions
that are appropriate for the examinee's competence level are administered during an adaptive test.
Little to no information is gained by administering items that the candidate has an extremely high
or low probability of answering correctly.

The items each examinee receives depend on an estimate of his/her competence as determined by
his/her responses to all the items answered earlier during the test. Each response elicits more infor­
mation about the examinee's true ability level, providing an increasingly precise estimate of the
examinee's competence, on which subsequent item selection is based.

At some point in a CAT test, the score estimate becomes sufficiently precise to determine with a
known degree of confidence, whether or not the candidate possesses the minimum competence
necessary to be granted credentials. The CAT examination terminates at this point. CAT should
provide a more accurate pass/fail decision than is currently made using the paper-and-pencil
NCLEX because it continues to test each candidate until a reliable decision can be made. Paper­
and-pencil testing does not permit additional questions to be administered to borderline candidates,
thus allowing some ambiguity to exist with respect to the pass/fail decision. The enhanced pre­
cision of CAT measurement will allow Member Boards to better protect the public by not passing
marginal candidates. The capability of CAT to be administered more often than paper-and-pencil
exams should also reduce the need for Member Boards to issue temporary practice permits.

Overview of Phase I
The major tasks of Phase I were to develop CAT software, investigate the capabilities of the
software through pilot testing, investigate nurses' interactions with the software, pursue external
funding for the project, and communicate outcomes.

Results of Phase I
The software successfully delivered CAT·NCLEX examinations to 87 nurses during the pilot testing
sessions. The nurses had little to no difficulty in manipulating the computer to take the
CAT-NCLEX examinations and reacted very favorably to the testing process.

In fulfilling the main purposes of the pilot study, the results showed that: (1) the National Council
could develop software that makes it feasible to deliver appropriate CAT examinations for
determining licensure/certification; (2) the number of items needed to make a pass/fail decision
using CAT is much less than the number presently administered in the NCLEX and testing time
can be significantly reduced (over 50% of the examinees finished in less than three hours); and (3)
every nurse participating in the pilot was able to successfully use the software to take the CAT test.
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Moreover, the reactions of nurses to the experience of taking a CAT test were almost uniformly
positive. Given these results, the 1988 Delegate Assembly voted to continue the project into Phase
II.

Overview of Phase II
The objectives of Phase II are to determine the feasibility of CAT for NCLEX by researching:

1. Operational issues
a. Logistics
b. Costs
c. Staffing
d. Computer needs

2. Security procedures
3. Legal issues
4. Psychometric issues,

and by communicating outcomes to Member Boards.

Phase II is planned to investigate the feasibility of the entire CAT measuring system, with the field
tests designed to provide pivotal information about psychometric equivalence and administrative
logistics.

In Phase II, different types of facilities and administration configurations (e.g. leased testing centers,
school computer centers, or Test Administration Agency-assembled sites) will be investigated to
obtain comparative data for: convenience, cost, equipment problems, security, and staffing needs.

The field tests will provide the primary source of data for the psychometric studies, and supply some
of the data used to research the operational issues surrounding CAT. Pertinent data that cannot
be collected via field testing will be obtained through test service proposals, our research partner's
(American Society of Clinical Pathologists) investigations, and other methods. These comparative
data will be analyzed by the Committee for Special Projects, communicated to the Member Boards,
and considered in the Committee's recommendations to the Delegate Assembly.

Another purpose of Phase II is to determine the costs of CAT to candidates. Currently, candidate
fees for the NCLEX pay for developing and printing the booklets, shipping, scoring, etc. CAT will
eliminate these costs, but introduce others related to computer administration. The Phase II field
tests will provide initial cost estimate data used to appraise the costs of administering NCLEX via
CAT. This data will be combined with information provided by the Finance Committee, test
services, and data center, to determine the candidate fee level needed to support CAT-NCLEX.

Phase II Progress - Committee Activities
The 1988 Delegate Assembly authorized the Committee for Special Projects to proceed with Phase
II of the CAT Feasibility Study. This fiscal year, the Committee met during the
OrientationlPlanning Session in October, 1988, February 6-8, April 3-5, and June 7-9, 1989. The
majority of the Committee's work this year has focused on planning for the field tests and com­
municating about the project. The Committee feels that communication pertaining to the field
tests is vital to assure the success of the project. The Committee and staff have developed a Re-
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search Proposal for CAT Field Testing to provide an overview of the field testing purpose and
process (see Attachment A).

Field Test Planning

Operational Issues. The criteria for selecting field test states and test centers have been developed
and approved by the Board of Directors. To ensure that the criteria were reasonable and sufficient,
the process of developing the criteria was open to Member Board input at several stages. The
Committee sent drafts to all 61 member boards. Thirty-five Member Boards sent responses with
several expressing interest in participating in the field test. Follow-up letters were sent to both
those jurisdictions who responded, and those who did not, to offer a second chance at providing
input. During their February 1989 meeting, the Committee discussed the criteria and Member
Board input and determined that the main purpose for the criteria is to assist the Committee and
Board of Directors in selecting field test states.

The majority of the input and comments received indicated that the Member Boards needed more
specific information about the CAT field tests. Some of the important details of the CAT field
tests have been delineated in question-and-answer format, including candidate sampling and
motivation issues. field testing services provided by the National Council, materials and services ex­
pected of Member Boards, and field testing dates (see Attachment B).

Security Measures. An initial set of CAT field test security procedures. developed jointly with the
Administration of Examination Committee (ABC). has been drafted. These draft measures were
submitted to the Board of Directors in April for their input. A joint meeting between CSP and
ABC has been planned for the 1989 Fall Planning Retreat, at which time a computer security expert
will meet with the two Committees. Both the Committee for Special Projects and the Adminis­
tration of Examination Committee are compelled to ensure that the highest level of security is
maintained for field testing CAT.

Psychometric Issues. One of the primary purposes of Phase II of the CAT Feasibility Study is to
determine the psychometric equivalence of CAT and paper-and-pencil NCLEX examinations for
nursing licensure. Specifically. the key issue is the determination of whether or not the pass/fail
decisions yielded by the two types of tests are equivalent.

To provide the data needed to conduct these studies, the proper sampling of field test candidates
is vital. The candidate selection criteria have been developed to provide a distribution of candidates
with the characteristics necessary to permit demographic analysis of all pertinent psychometric ques­
tions. The final selection of jurisdictions to participate in the field tests will be primarily based on
the candidate characteristics in the selected jurisdictions taken as a group, so that candidates with
the characteristics needed to make valid conclusions about the measurement properties of the CAT
examination may be obtained. As of the writing of this report, twenty-three jurisdictions from all
four Areas have volunteered to participate in the field testing of CAT.

CAT Legal Analysis Overview

University of IIIinois Office of Social Science Research. The preliminary CAT legal analysis was
completed by the University of Illinois Office of Social Science Research in September 1988. The
major outcomes of the analysis were that the researchers found no direct case law for CAT and
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few cases on important psychometric issues surrounding CAT. The researchers concluded that there
are no obvious legal impediments to implementing CAT for licensure, given the proper
psychometric evidence for the validity of the CAT exam.

Vedder-Price. The data gathered by the University of Illinois researchers was forwarded to legal
counsel at Vedder, Price, Kaufman & Kammholz to be used as 'raw data' for a more detailed legal
analysis. The first steps in the detailed analysis are: (1) developing a list of issues surrounding
CAT with substantive legal conclusions, (2) developing a list of key issues that need psychometric
evidence, and (3) finding issues that may help in the design of the CAT examination process. The
initial product of the detailed analysis was an annotated bibliography of relevant cases.

The Vedder-Price detailed analysis of CAT legal issues is progressing and is scheduled for com­
pletion by the end of May 1989. The final, comprehensive CAT legal analysis will be reported
during the July 1989 Board of Directors meeting.

Summary
The Board of Directors of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing appointed the
Committee for Special Projects to investigate the feasibility of computerized adaptive testing (CAT)
for the licensure examinations starting December 1986. The Board of Directors accepted the posi­
tive Phase I results and approved the continuation of the study into Phase II pending the Delegate
Assembly vote on continuation. In August 1988, the Delegate Assembly voted to continue the study
through Phase II, but, due to possible PN test plan changes, to field test using only RN candidates
at this time.

The Committee for Special Projects has met three times since August 1988 (and will meet again
in June) to oversee the progress of the CAT FeaSibility Study. The Committee continues to plan
for Phase II tasks including the CAT field testing. Selection criteria for field test states and sites
have been developed and applications have been distributed to every RN jurisdiction. The selection
of states to participate in the field tests will occur in June. Initial security measures have been
drafted and their direction was approved by the Administration of Examination Committee. The
first stage of the legal analysis of CAT has been completed and the final legal analysis has begun.
A research proposal that was developed to provide a complete overview of the CAT field testing
is included as Attachment A.

Committee Members and Staff
Billie Haynes, California-VN, Area I, Chairperson
Paula Buffone, Massachusetts, Area IV
Patricia Gremmler, New York, Area IV
Barbara Kellogg, South Carolina, Area III
Jackie Loversidge, Ohio, Area II
Marcella McKay, Mississippi, Area III

Anthony R. zara, Direcror of Special Projects
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Attachment A

A Research proposal for Field Testing
CAT for Nursing Licensure Examinations

I. Purpose of Field Testing

One of the major goals of the National Council is to develop
and improve licensure testing and conduct research pertinent
to its mission. The computerized Adaptive Testing (CAT)
Feasibility Study will provide answers to Member Boards'
questions about the possibility of using CAT for nursing
licensure exams. since CAT is a proven technology for
administering efficient, accurate, and valid examinations,
the potential benefits of CAT to the Member Boards are many.

CAT will provide a more accurate pass/fail decision than is
currently made using the paper-and-pencil NCLEX because it
tests each candidate until a reliable decision can be made.
Paper-and-pencil testing does not permit additional ques­
tions to be administered to borderline candidates, thus
allowing some ambiguity to exist with respect to the
pass/fail decision. The enhanced precision of CAT measure­
ment will allow Member Boards to better fulfill their mis­
sion of protecting the public by not passing marginal can­
didates. The capability of CAT to be administered more
often than paper-and-pencil exams may reduce the need for
Member Boards to issue temporary practice permits, again im­
proving public protection.

The purpose of Phase II is to perform studies that address
Member Boards' concerns regarding the psychometric equiva­
lence of CAT and NCLEX, operational issues (costs, logis­
tics, staffing, and computer needs), and security measures
for CAT. Also, the legal implications of using CAT to
determine licensure will be investigated. By way of con­
trast, the purpose of Phase I was to develop the software
with the pilot study being a test of the CAT software;
Phase II is planned to investigate the feasibility of the
entire CAT measuring system, with the field tests designed
to provide pivotal information about psychometric equiva­
lence and administrative logistics.

In Phase II, we will investigate different types of facil­
ities and administration configurations (e.g. leased testing
centers, school computer centers, or Test Administration
Agency-assembled sites) to obtain comparative data for:
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convenience, cost, equipment problems, security, staffing,
etc. The field tests will be the primary source of data for
the psychometric studies, and some of the data used to
research the operational issues surrounding CAT. Pertinent
data that cannot be collected via field testing will be
obtained through test service proposals, American Society of
Clinical Pathologists investigations, and other methods.
These comparative data will be analyzed by the Committee for
Special Projects (CSP), communicated to the Member Boards,
and considered in the CSP's recommendations to the Delegate
Assembly.

Another purpose of Phase II is to determine the costs of CAT
to candidates. Currently, candidate fees for the NCLEX pay
for developing and printing the booklets, shipping, scoring,
etc. CAT will eliminate these costs, but introduce dif­
ferent ones. The Phase II field tests will provide initial
cost estimate data used to appraise the cost of adminis­
tration of NCLEX via CAT. This data will be combined with
information provided by the Finance committee, test ser­
vices, and data center, to determine if the candidate fee
level needs to be changed for CAT-NCLEX.

II. Literature Review

The existence of computerized adaptive testing (CAT) as a
viable and appealing testing format has occurred through the
psychometric developments of item response theory and the
computer science development of inexpensive microcomputing.
The absence of either element would not allow CAT to exist,
much less be a practical form of testing.

Item response theory

The problem of creating consistent mental measurements is as
old as psychology itself. In the 1920's Thorndike com­
plained that even the best tests of his day (measuring
intelligence) did not determine a ratio scale (Thorndike,
1926, p. 1). As measurement science progressed, authors
realized that the development of true ratio scales for
mental variables was an admirable goal, but probably unat­
tainable. Loevinger (1947, p. 46) stated "an acceptable
method of scaling must result in a derived scale which is
independent of the original scale and of the original group
tested." She meant that any test or scale developed in one
popUlation must be able to generalize beyond the calibration
group and have equivalent meaning in any other group to
which it is administered.
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This model of constant measurement quality, taken for gran­
ted in the physical sciences, eluded psychologists and
educators until the 1950's when item response theory was
developed. Item response theory (IRT) or latent trait
theory is a model which assumes there is a mathematical
function relating the probability of some type of response
and certain characteristics of the examinee (see e.g.,
Birnbaum, 1968; Lord, 1952; Lord & Novick, 1968, Wright &
stone, 1979; etc.).

Under IRT, the probability of a person responding correctly
to an item is assumed to relate to his or her standing on
some latent variable. IRT links the observed behaviors
(test item responses) to the latent variable (what is being
measured), with the goal of determining quantitatively
people's standings on that latent variable. In this con­
text, the latent variable can be any unidimensional human
trait, ability, skill, or characteristic that can be quan­
titatively estimated.

Practitioners using IRT, therefore, have the means to make
both "item-free" person measurement and "person-free" item
calibration (wright, 1968). This capability enabled psycho­
metricians and researchers to create "objective" measurement
instruments for the first time. Such freedom allows the
development of scales of latent variables that can remain
stable or invariant over time. A stable measurement scale
makes possible the advantages of actual longitudinal com­
parisons, the stability of cutoff scores to determine mas­
tery or competence, and the capability of creating large
calibrated item pools.

Under IRT, both item parameters and ability estimates are
described by the same measurement scale. According to the
theory, ability estimates are item-free, so scores for
individuals having the same ability will be equivalent
(after equating) no matter which items have been adminis­
tered to attain those scores. By creating pools of items
all calibrated on the same scale, the need for equating
disappears since all ability estimates are automatically on
a common scale and the benefits of computerized adaptive
testing can be realized.
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Computerized Adaptive Testing

The concept of tailoring tests, i.e. selecting items adap­
tively to fit the examinee's ability level, dates back to
the early 1900's work of Alfred Binet on the initial devel­
opment of intelligence tests and Wald (1945) with sequential
tests of statistical hypotheses. However, these early
paper-and-pencil adaptive tests were unreliable and incon­
venient to administer because of the complicated directions
examinees had to follow. with the general availability of
inexpensive microcomputing, these impediments to adaptive
testing were removed. A computer program can quickly and
unobtrusively route an examinee through the tailored set of
items comprising his or her test. Research has shown that
adaptive tests have reliabilities and validities greater
than or equal to comparable conventional tests with reduc­
tions in test length of up to 50% (Weiss, 1982).

The development of IRT has allowed for great improvement in
the process of adaptive item selection. Since the item
difficulties and examinee abilities are calibrated on the
same scale, precise formulae for the identification of the
optimal item for selection as the "next item" have been
developed (McBride, 1985). The scoring of adaptive tests
using IRT models is also fairly straightforward. As long as
the item pool meets the requirement of unidimensionality and
sufficient care has been used in the calibration of the
items, ability estimates obtained via adaptive testing are
directly comparable across examinees (Reckase, 1981).

Computer Testing Properties. The unique properties that
arise using a computer have been shown to be inconsequential
in the testing process. Research cited by Hofer and Green
(1985) generally supports the equivalence of paper-and­
pencil and computer testing modes when using multiple-choice
items not dealing with sensitive or personally-threatening
issues. Research by Kiely, Zara, and Weiss (1986) has
supported equivalence of computer-administered and paper­
and-pencil administration for mUltiple-choice items not
containing extremely long text passages. McBride (1985)
states that computerized testing offers benefits in the
areas of standardization and immediacy which conventional
tests cannot match. The increased standardization of ad­
ministrative conditions under computer testing is possible
due to the testing format. Immediacy advantages are accrued
because the test results are already in the computer and
there is no need for data transfer.

National Council of State Boards of NurSing, Inc./1989
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CAT Mastery Testing. Recent psychometric literature sup­
ports the improved accuracy and efficiency of the CAT measu­
rement process for criterion-referenced (mastery) testing
(see e.g., Fortune, 1985; Kingsbury & Weiss, 1979, 1982,
1983; Weiss, 2982). Accuracy improvements are obtained by
using a test termination rule: a pass/fail decision is made
only when the established confidence interval around each
individual's ability estimate excludes the passing criter­
ion. Increased efficiency is obtained because every item is
selected to provide the maximum information about the exam­
inee's ability. In addition, test length may be further
reduced for those candidates whose abilities are farther
from the passing criterion, since their ability estimate
range will exclude the pass score fairly early in the course
of test administration.

A series of studies comparing paper-and-pencil and CAT
mastery testing were performed by Kingsbury and Weiss using
real-data simulation (1979), applications in a college­
student population (1981), and monte carlo simulated data
(1983). With college students taking a biology exam, Kings­
bury and weiss (2982) showed that the CAT mastery testing
methodology yielded mastery decisions that were more consis­
tent with the criterion decisions than were those from a
conventional test. These results were especially convincing
since the conventional test was specifically designed to
provide the best measurement at the cutoff score.

The results from the 1983 study using simulated data cor­
roborated the live data study. Kingsbury and Weiss found
that in four item pools with different item parameter char­
acteristics (uniform, Rasch, two-parameter logistic, and
three-parameter logistic), the CAT procedure yielded more
efficient decisions and had a higher classification vali­
dity. These results are somewhat surprising given
Birnbaum's (2968) demonstration that the best test to give
for making mastery decisions is a conventional test with all
the items at the cutoff point. However, Birnbaum's con­
clusion is valid only in the context of conventional tests
since he did not consider adaptive tests.

The CAT procedure gives each examinee a different test based
on his/her responses with the characteristic that the test
is created to provide the maximum information about the
examinee. The conventional mastery test with all items at
the cutoff (peaked) only provided maximum measurement pre­
cision (information) for examinees whose ability level is
right at the cutoff. since error bands are associated with
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the examinees' scores, the conventional test (which has a
fixed length and provides low information items for some
examinees) produces imprecise examinee scores with a rela­
tively wide confidence band. These may be large enough to
produce error bands which overlap the cutoff, even for
examinees with abilities far from the cutpoint, which causes
mastery decisions to be made with less confidence. The CAT
mastery test, in contrast, keeps administering items until
the ability estimate and the confidence band excludes the
cutoff, providing mastery decisions with known level of
confidence.

stocking (1984) conducted a study using college placement
tests and found that the CAT mastery procedure produced less
measurement error than peaked conventional tests in 38 out
of 42 comparisons.

CAT provides many advantages over paper-and-pencil testing
such as: more efficient measurement (testing time and items
administered can be reduced by almost 50%), more accurate
measurement (CAT keeps testing until the pass/fail decision
is certain to a high, known degree of precision), immediate
scoring and year-round testing are possible, and security is
enhanced through the elimination of printed test forms.

Licensure and Certification ApPlications. The application
of CAT mastery testing to the realm of licensure and cer­
tification has been slow to develop. The National Council
is one of the first organizations beginning to apply the
established technology to licensure. Dvorak and Wright
(1987) conducted a live-data simulation study using actual
NCLEX data to investigate the feasibility of making licen­
sure decisions using CAT. The results of that study sup­
ported that licensure examinations administered in a com­
puterized adaptive mode will be more efficient, and will
have accuracy at least as great as current paper-and-pencil
examinations. This study demonstrated that the same
pass/fail decision reached through a 300-item paper-and­
pencil test could be made after fewer than 100 items were
administered adaptively for about half the candidates. This
result is important considering that the item pool for the
adaptive test only consisted of one form of the NCLEX and
was not designed for adaptive
testing.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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III. Data Collection

Examinations

The CAT Field Tests will be conducted in conjunction with
the NCLEX-RN in July 1990 (790) and February 1991 (291).
Approximately half of the field test examinees will be
administered CAT before the paper-and-pencil NCLEX-RN exam,
and the other half will take CAT after the NCLEX-RN. The
counterbalancing of CAT administration allows more accurate
comparisons to be made between CAT and NCLEX since practice
effects and learning can be accounted for. The CAT examin­
ations will be scheduled within a two-week period either
before or after the normal NCLEX-RN examination (the final
time period will be determined after input from Member
Boards, and the test services providing computerized testing
facilities). The purpose of this timing for the CAT ad­
ministration is to minimize candidate learning and/or for­
getting and to assure the same level of candidate prepara­
tion for CAT as for the paper-and-pencil NCLEX.

The CAT examination for each candidate will be composed of
items drawn from the complete NCLEX-RN item pool Which
consists of approximately 3500 items. The items adminis­
tered in each candidate's CAT exam will strictly conform to
the NCLEX-RN test plan. The maximum and minimum number of
items administered in each CAT exam will be determined by
CSP. The exact number of items administered to each can­
didate will depend on the candidate's test performance.
Candidates close to the pass/fail score will be administered
more items; those far from the cutpoint (either above or
below) will need to take fewer items before the program is
able to make an accurate pass/fail decision. There will be
a very liberal time limit to complete the CAT exam (to be
determined by the CSP), so that testing time does not inter­
fere with the research results.

The paper-and-pencil examination information for each can­
didate will be the actual NCLEX-RN examination taken during
the 790 or 291 administrations. Using the candidates'
performance on the actual NCLEX is important for the pur­
poses of the field tests because NCLEX performance provides
crucial information that is unattainable from any other
source. The psychometric comparisons that must be made
before any informed decision can be made concerning CAT, are
comparisons of CAT-NCLEX to the paper-and-pencil NCLEX. No
other paper-and-pencil test, no matter how carefUlly con­
structed, will provide the information needed to make that
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comparison. Also, candidate test-taking behavior on the
paper-and-pencil NCLEX is an important mitigating factor in
this study. Psychometric comparisons of CAT to NCLEX are
most valid if the candidates are equally prepared and seri­
ously trying to pass both tests.

Field Testing Design

The data collection requirements were developed to try to
assure the collection of the data needed to make both the
psychometric comparisons of the measurement properties of
CAT and NCLEX, and to obtain the data necessary to determine
the feasibility of actual CAT administration of the nursing
licensure examination. The proposed design maximizes the
opportunity to obtain quality psychometric data while still
providing the circumstances for obtaining logistic data.

However, in developing a design which provided the highest
quality psychometric data, not every conceivable adminis­
tration option was specifically included in these field
tests. The psychometric comparisons are dependent on ob­
taining a "true" performance from each candidate. Thus,
trying to maximize the acquisition of both logistic and
psychometric information from the same set of field tests is
difficult: for the best logistic information, we want each
field trial to be as different as possible (to provide
information about all the administrative options); for the
best psychometric information, we want each field trial to
be as similar as possible (to prevent introduction of any
confounding factors into the data).

Since the psychometric information necessary for ascer­
taining whether CAT is equivalent to NCLEX, and thus legally
defensible, cannot be obtained in any other way but field
testing, measurement considerations should recieve priority
in making the field test design decisions. Also, much of
the logistic data needed to answer Member Boards' questions
about the feasibility of CAT can be obtained through means
other than field testing. For example, cost data will be
obtained through the proposals that testing services are
providing regarding conducting the field tests at their
sites, and through the proposals they develop for an ongoing
testing relationship.

States. The state selection design includes the provision
that as many different types of states as possible are
selected to fill the eight possible field test sites.
However, the CSP may decide that limiting the number of

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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field test sites to four will provide the best information,
since the sites will be able to modify their procedures to
utilize the experience gained from the first administration.
The following state characteristics are prioritized in the
sampling plan:

A. size
1. Average number of candidates taking JUly and

February NCLEX-RN examination
2. state geographic characteristics
3. Volume/area density

B. Geographic Location - National Council Area (I, II,
III, and IV)

C. General state performance level on NCLEX-RN, based on
passing rates.

D. Candidate characteristics
1. Demographics (Ethnicity)
2. Basic nursing preparation
3. Foreign- vs. U.S.-educated
4. First-time vs. repeat candidates

E. Governmental structure of agency, how it is funded,
and what kind of testing administration it uses.

These variables will provide a wide range of types of
states, providing information that can generalize from the
field testing experience to any proposed implementation
strategy. states that want to participate in the field
tests must conform to the prioritized selection criteria
developed by the cSP:

1. Participating states must apply to be field test
states.

2. Participating states must have computer testing centers
accessible (not necessarily owned by the state), or be
willing to explore having one created for field testing.

3. Participating states must have candidates whose demo­
graphic characteristics are needed to fill the
candidate sampling design. Participating states
must also have the capability to make candidate
demographic information available.

4. Participating states must fit the state selection
sampling design. state selection criteria should
include a variety of types of states. The criteria
are those outlined above.

5. Participating states must be willing to secure can­
didates (consistent with the candidate sampling
selection plan) to take the CAT exam. In each

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



14

jurisdiction, half the candidates will take CAT
before NCLEX, half will take CAT after NCLEX.

6. participating states must be willing to effectively
communicate to candidates in such a way as to moti­
vate candidates to answer each question to the best
of their ability on both the NCLEX and CAT exams.

7. participating Boards must be willing to provide staff
time to assist in the planning and coordination of
the field test process, (contacting and
disseminating information to candidates, etc.).

8. Participating states must be willing to provide secur­
ity personnel (i.e., staff, volunteers, proctors)
for the CAT exams.

9. Participating states must be willing to communicate
about the value of the project to the nursing
schools in their states.

10. Participating states must agree that all data collected
during the pilot is the property of the National
Council. Data will not be used for purposes other
than described in the Authorization to Use NCLEX
Data signed by the Member Boards.

Computerized Test Sites. The main computerized testing site
selection criterion is that all sites must have the accep­
table minimum computer facilities available. The test
station equipment configuration requirements are based on
both ergonomic and fiscal realities. The performance of the
CAT testing software cannot be affected by the test station
setup, if comparable data are to be obtained. The required
computer equipment includes:

1. Higher-than-normal resolution screens for text
(Enhanced Graphics Adapter, VGA, or monochrome grap­
hics, not Color Graphics Adapter)

2. IBM-compatible 80286-based machine with 640 K RAM
3. 20-30 Mb hard disk and one diskette drive
4. 80287 math coprocessor
5. Comfortable chairs (adjustable preferred)
6. Space for writing on scratch paper

Additional recommended equipment includes: either tape
cards, a bernoulli box setup, or Local Area Network (to
transfer data from the test stations to the main test center
computer); and individual carrels for the test stations.

As with the other field test administration choices, the CAT
test site arrangements will be selected to obtain the best
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information possible about different approaches to adminis­
tering CAT licensure examinations without compromising the
psychometric data. The following three types of com­
puterized testing sites are being explored for use in the
field tests:

A. State-setup computer sites
B. University or other school computer labs
C. Test administration agency sites

1. ETS sites
2. Control Data sites
3. Other sites

Candidates

The examinees will be BOO fully-qualified first-time RN can­
didates: approximately 400 will be drawn from those who are
scheduled to take the NCLEX in 790, and 400 will be selected
from those who will be scheduled to take the NCLEX in 291.
The field testing of CAT consists of eight independent field
trials which will be conducted at four sites in 790
(approximately 100 candidates at each) and four sites in 291
(approximately 100 candidates at each).

The candidate selection criteria are based on the candidate
sampling plan which is designed to provide a distribution of
candidates with the demographic characteristics necessary to
permit demographic analysis of all pertinent psychometric
questions. Legal counsel advised that the sampling plan
need not represent the major demographic categories in
accordance with their percent occurrence in the population.
However, enough sub-group candidates must be field tested so
that valid statistics may be obtained. The major sub-group
analyses will include: (1) ethnicity - Blacks, Hispanics
and Asians; (2) type of education - Baccalaureate, Associate
Degree, and Diploma programs: (3) where educated - Foreign
and U.S.-educated: and (4) gender.

The demographic factors have been included to also assure
that the field tests yield data on all protected classes of
individuals, again contributing to the generalizability of
the field test results. Towards that end, legal counsel
suggested that Blacks, Asians, Hispanics, and Foreign­
educated candidates be oversampled in the field tests.

Selected candidates will be contacted by the Member Board
and provided information about their responsibility to
participate in the field test, the monetary incentive, test
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site location, and specifics about scheduling, and assurance
of their anonymity. The National Council will provide
models of these candidate information packets for use by
field test states. After the field testing is completed,
participating candidates will be debriefed by the National
Council.

IV. Data Analysis

The purposes of the field testing are to investigate both
the psychometric properties of a CAT examination for nursing
licensure and the practical/logistic issues encompassing CAT
administration. To address both concerns, the field test
data analysis will proceed along two lines: Psychometric
Issues and CAT Logistic Issues.

The data needed to completely analyze several logistic
issues (board and candidate costs, alternative adminis­
trative models, and ongoing staff needs) will not be en­
tirely obtainable through the field testing process. sup­
plementary data will be acquired through proposals developed
by test services for conducting the field tests, estimates,
and additional investigation.

A questionnaire will also be administered to the candidates
upon completion of both the paper-and-pencil and CAT por­
tions of the study. This questionnaire asks the candidate

.about their reactions to, and impressions of the two testing
experiences. It will pose questions similar to those in the
post-exam questionnaire administered to examinees after the
CAT pilot testing in December, 1987 and January, 1988.

Psychometric Issues

The determination of the equivalence of the pass/fail decis­
ions produced by the paper-and-pencil NCLEX-RN and the CAT
examination is the primary task of the psychometric analysis
of the field tests. The major questions that will be ans­
wered are (1) Does CAT administration affect the passing
rates for NCLEX? (2) Does CAT administration affect the
ability estimates of candidates? (3) Do individual candi­
dates perform in a comparable way on CAT and paper-and­
pencil nursing licensure examinations? and (4) Are the CAT
examination passing rates for individuals from protected
demographic classes different than for the paper-and-pencil
NCLEX? Additional crucial questions may be investigated or
these modified on the basis of further legal advice.
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Decision consistency. The determination of whether or not
the pass/fail decisions yielded by the two types of tests
are equivalent will be made through several statistical
techniques. The primary analysis will be the determination
of the degree of decision consistency for the two testing
methods. The percentage of candidate pass/fail decisions
that is consistent for both tests (paper-and-pencil and CAT)
will be calculated and evaluated using contingency tables,
revealing any differential effects due to the mode of test
administration answering Question #1. This analysis will
also be performed within candidate demographic group to
provide the answers to Question #4.

Counterbalancing the administration of CAT and NCLEX will
control for any effect due to the ordering of test adminis­
tration, such as that due to experience or learning. That
is, each type of test (CAT or NCLEX) will be administered
first for some candidates and second for others, allowing
the order of test administration to be specifically analyzed
using t-tests to ascertain whether the order of adminis­
tration affected candidates' performance. Also, the CAT
examination will not administer any items present on the
NCLEX, preventing the testing results from being contam­
inated due to candidate memory effects.

Ability estimate comparisons. Total test ability estimate
equivalence will be investigated using t-tests to compare
the mean ability estimates of candidates across modes of
administration (CAT vs. paper-and-pencil) addressing Ques­
tion #2. The demographic studies will also use t-tests to
compare individual subgroup performance across testing
modes. Analysis of variance (ANOVA) will be used to compare
subtest ability estimates across administration modes provi­
ding information about mode equivalence at the subtest
level.

Correlatonal analysis. Information about the equivalence of
CAT and paper-and-pencil NCLEX-RN within candidates will be
obtained through a Pearson product-moment correlational
analysis. This analysis will determine the similarity of
the candidates' ability estimates across the two testing
methods. The candidate's total ability estimate and the
ability estimates derived from each test plan category will
be correlated across test administration mode, providing a
measure of ability estimate consistency and a response to
Question #3. Again, these analyses will be performed separ­
ately within demographic group providing information about
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the equivalence of paper-and-pencil and CAT for different
ethnic, gender, type of educational program, etc. subpopula­
tions.

CAT Logistic ISSUes

The secondary purpose of Phase II field tests is to gather
information for addressing Member Boards' concerns regarding
operational issues (costs, logistics, staffing, and computer
needs) and security measures for CAT. The legal implica­
tions of using CAT to determine licensure are unrelated to
field testing (except as psychometric analysis provides
evidence of equivalence) and are being researched by legal
counsel outside of the context of field testing. Different
administration models are being considered to provide a
range of information to Member Boards. The specific tasks
that Member Boards must perform as a field test state depend
on the administration model. Appendix A contains a very
preliminary set of administration tasks for CAT as compared
to the current Member Board tasks. Technical assistance and
training will be provided throughout the field testing
process by the Committee for Special Projects and National
Council staff.

Specific operational questions that will begin to be ans­
wered through the data collected both within and outside of
the field tests include: (1) What are the costs to Member
Boards in administering CAT; (2) Do the CAT administration
tasks define a workable mOdel for CAT? (3) What type of
staff is needed in order to administer CAT? (4) Do boards
need to buy many computers in order to administer CAT? (5)
What types of security measures are needed for CAT? (6) What
are the costs to candidates taking CAT? (7) Which type of
administration model worked best for CAT? and (8) How will
the ways boards prepare for examinations change under CAT?

Questions 1, 4, 6, and 7 will not be fully answered with the
data collected during Phase II. The final answer to Ques­
tion 1 cannot be obtained until a decision on implementation
is reached and actual bids are received from test services.
A preliminary answer to Question 4 will be obtained, but
only the actual implementation decision (and its ramifica­
tions) can provide the final answer. The answers to Ques­
tions 6 and 7 provided through field testing can only gener­
alize to the administration models included in the field
tests. Other administration scenarios not specifically
tested could have much different costs and logistic arrange­
ments. However, the other avenues of investigation planned
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during Phase II will provide reasonable estimates of these
factors.

V. Schedule

The initial schedule for performing the tasks necessary to
conduct the Phase II field testing is included in Appendix
B. It was compiled from the Research Flowchart and Timeline
that the committee for Special Projects developed for their
addended 1988 Book of Reports Report.
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APPENDIX A

State Administration Tasks for Paper-and-Pencil
and CAT Examinations

Paper-and-Pencil Administration

Exam created

CAT Administration

Item pool edited for currency

2.
3 •

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Estimate number of candidates
Order booklets from CTB

Rent hall for next year

Send applications (state)

Applications processed

Admission cards arrive and
eligibility checked and mailed
with name and address correc­
tions

Test booklets arrive

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Estimate number of graduate
candidates for the year, pro­
ject computer needs, check
number of testing days

Contract with facility/service

Send applications (state)

Applications processed, sched­
uling done and sent to data
center

Admission cards arrive and
eligibility checked and mailed
with name and address correc­
tions
Admission record (applicant
record) sent to test site

Item pool sent to test site

9. Proctors and staff trained;
booklets inventoried and

secured

9. Proctors trained; computer
security maintained

10. Administer exam and correct
addresses again

11. Security Compliance Report

12. Return booklets

13. Results arrive

14. Mail results, issue licenses

15. Perform statistical analysis
for schools

10. Candidates take exam

11. Periodic security reporting

12. Check uploading of data

13. Results arrive periodically

14. Mail results, issue licenses

15. Perform statistical analysis
for schools
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APPENDIX B

Phase II CAT Timeline

Date Tasks

3-88 Phase II began. The objectives of Phase II are to
determine the feasibility of CAT for NCLEX by re­
searching: (1) operational issues - Logistics,
Costs, staffing, Computer needs; (2) Security;
(3) Legal issues; (4) Psychometric issues; and by
communicating outcomes to Member Boards

4-88 CAT presentation at Area meetings

5-88 CSP Chairperson met with Exam Committee

5-88 Began CAT legal analysis

5-88 Began CAT item writing sessions for RN items (840
items with expected 25% attrition rate)

5-88 Book of Reports Report written

8-88 Draft of initial CAT legal analysis completion

8-88 Present CAT forum at Delegate Assembly

8-88 Delegate Assembly decision on continuation of CAT
feasibility study through Phase II

9-88 Initial legal analysis of CAT completed

11-88 Plan draft criteria for testing sites, test sta­
tions, and candidate selection plan, send to Member
Boards for their input, meet with AEC to work on
field test security measures, meet with EC to share
information

2-89 Input on criteria returned from Member Boards,
melded with draft criteria and finalized; security
measures finalized; develop and mail application for
Member Boards to serve as field test sites; Area
Meeting preparation
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2-89 New RN item tryout using paper-and-pencil forms

3-89 CAT presentation at Area meetings

4-89 Prepare Book of Reports report

4-89 Develop CSP communication plan for MBs, EC, AEC,
begin implementation plan for field tests, review
and approve Book of Reports report

6-89 Begin editing of RN item pool

6-89 Review field test applications based on final cri­
teria and select field test states; develop field
test procedure manual, materials, followup mater­
ials, and checklists

6-89 Complete CAT field test implementation plan, develop
initial cost and computer estimates

7-89 CAT software completed

7-89 Explore facilities and equipment arrangements

7-89 Begin implementation of communcation plan to help
recruit candidates, plan site visits to train Member
Boards.

7-89 States receive notification of selection and are
instructed to set up meeting with Deans and Direc­
tors for September 1 - November 1 (include agenda)

7-89

7-89

7-89

8-89

8-89

CSP member from the selected states' Area makes
initial telephone call to Board Executive Officer to
follow up, offer support, etc.

Letter from CSP Chairperson to Board Executive
Officer

New RN item tryout using paper-and-pencil forms

Selected states' Executive Officers attend Delegate
Assembly CAT forum.

Delegate Assembly CAT Forum, providing specific
field test information to selected states.
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9-89

9-89

9-89

10-89

10-89

11-89
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Project Director to send follow-up thank you letters
to Executive Officers and CAT person on staff

states send letters to Deans & Directors, Employers
and Associations.

Schedule specific field test dates

Finalize field test procedures manual

Develop field test procedures video

Field test procedures materials completed

Develop informational video on CAT for nursing educ­
ational programs

CAT informational presentations for state groups

Nursing schools and the board of nursing identify
candidate characteristics for 789 (and 290) and
return to NCSBN.

11-89 Begin specific planning for FT1, send to field test
states for input, visit FT1 sites

12-89 Identify schools with candidates that fit sample and
select schools (and candidates).

1-90 Motivation of candidates initiated by nursing board
staff and Deans. This begins the regular contact
with potential candidates.

2-90 New RN item tryout using paper-and-pencil forms

2-90 continue FT1 planning incorporating Member Board
input, Area Meeting preparation

3-90 CAT presentation at Area Meetings

4-90 Prepare Book of Reports report

4-90 Finalize FT1 plans, begin FT2 planning, Book of
Reports report reviewed and approved

5-90 CTB returns data on new items to National Council on
tape, need to enter into item database

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



27

7-90 Field Test 1 - RN

8-90 CAT forum at 1990 Delegate Assembly

9-90 Review FT1 procedures, continue FT2 planning

11-90 Review FT1 data, finalize FT2 plans

2-91 Field Test 2 - RN

2-91 Review FT2, review field test results, begin
Phase II final report

3-91 Complete analysis of field test data and complete
preparation of Phase II final report

3-91 CAT presentation of Phase II results at Area
Meetings

4-91 Review and approve final Phase II report, CSP recom­
mendation, fiscal impact of recommendation, and plan
for implementing recommendation developed

8-91 CAT forum at 1991 Delegate Assembly

8-91 Delegate Assembly decision on whether to implement
CAT for RN licensure examinations and decision on
whether to conduct PN/VN field testing
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Questions and Answers about the CAT Field Testing

General Issues

1. Why is CAT being field tested?
The purpose of Phase II is to perform studies that address
Member Boards' concerns regarding the psychometric equiv­
alence of CAT and NCLEX, operational issues (costs, logis­
tics, staffing, and computer needs), and security measures
for CAT. By way of contrast, the purpose of Phase I was to
develop the software with the pilot study being a test of
the CAT software; Phase II is planned to investigate the
feasibility of the entire CAT measuring system, with the
field tests designed to provide pivotal information about
psychometric equivalence and administrative logistics.

In Phase II, we will investigate different types of facil­
ities and administration configurations (e.g. leased testing
centers, school computer centers, or Test Administration
Agency-assembled sites) to obtain comparative data for:
convenience, cost, equipment problems, security, staffing,
etc. The field tests will be the primary source of data for
the psychometric studies, and some of the data used to
research the operational issues surrounding CAT. These
comparative data will be analyzed by the Committee for
Special Projects (CSP), communicated to the Member Boards,
and considered in the CSP's recommendations to the Delegate
Assembly.

Another purpose of Phase II is to determine the costs of CAT
to candidates. Currently, candidate fees for the NCLEX pay
for developing and printing the booklets, shipping, scoring,
etc. CAT will eliminate these costs, but introduce dif­
ferent ones. The Phase II field tests will provide initial
cost estimate data used to appraise the cost of adminis­
tration of NCLEX via CAT. This data will be combined with
information provided by the Finance Committee, test ser­
vices, and data center, to determine if the candidate fee
level needs to be changed for CAT-NCLEX.

2. When will the CAT field tests take place?
The CAT field tests are scheduled to be conducted in con­
junction with the regular paper-and-pencil 790 (July 1990)
and 291 (February 1991) NCLEX-RN exam administrations. In
each field test state, one-half of the sampled candidates
will take CAT within two weeks before the NCLEX and one-half
will take CAT within two weeks after the NCLEX (approx­
imately) .
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3. How many field test states will there be?
Four states will be selected to field test CAT in 790 and
four will field test CAT in 291 for a total of eight pos­
sible states. The Committee for Special Projects and Board
of Directors will determine whether any states will be
repeat participants in field testing CAT during both NCLEX
administrations (790 and 291).

4. How many candidates will participate in the field tests in
each state?
In each field test state, at least 100 candidates will field
test CAT. Since the candidates will be divided into "be­
fore" and "after" groups, 50 candidates will be administered
CAT sometime before the regular NCLEX administration and 50
will take CAT after the NCLEX exam in each state.

5. Will NCLEX be administered differently in field test states
than in those not participating?
The NCLEX administration in the field test states will be
conducted exactly the same as it is in the non-field test
states. That is, standard, normal NCLEX procedures will be
followed. The addition of the CAT administration in the
field test states will not affect the NCLEX procedures in
any way.

6. What are the legal implications for each participating field
test state in administering both the CAT and NCLEX exams?
The legal implications for field test states are currently
being studied by National Council legal counsel. His
preliminary advise is that participation in the field tests
will not have any adverse legal implications for the states
involved. Any state participating in the CAT field tests
can be assured that all legal questions surrounding the
field tests will be answered to their satisfaction prior to
participation in the study.

7. How will states be selected to participate in CAT field
testing?
After receiving the applications from all interested states,
the Committee for special projects and Board of Directors
will select the states that have the combination of charac­
teristics that best fit the State Selection criteria. The
states that are ultimately selected to participate must have
candidates available to match the characteristics needed to
make valid conclusions about the measurement properties of
the CAT examination.
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8. What types of candidates are important to have participate
in the field tests?
In order to make valid conclusions about the measurement
properties of CAT, the sample of candidates who participate
in the field tests must be as similar as possible to the
entire population of RN candidates. This is because any
gross differences in the characteristics of the field test
sample and the population as a whole might affect the
performance levels on CAT and NCLEX in a manner related only
to differences in group characteristics. Also, dissimilar­
ity of the two groups might possibly mask actual performance
differences. These issues of experimental validity make the
acquisition of a representative candidate sample of para­
mount importance. Legal counsel has advised that it is
equally important that enough minority candidates (Black,
Hispanic, and Asian) be included in the sample to obtain
valid results regarding sUbgroup performance on CAT.

9. will repeat or foreign-educated candidates be included in
the field test sample?
Given the importance of a representative sample (discussed
in Question 8), it is necessary to include some repeat and
foreign-educated candidates in order to field test CAT on a
sample of candidates that reflect the characteristics of the
whole population.

10. How will the CAT field test scores affect licensure?
The results of the CAT field test do not affect candidates'
licensure in any way whatsoever. participating candidates
will be licensed through their state board based on the
results of the regular NCLEX (as usual). One purpose of
field testing CAT is to determine whether or not it is a
valid measurement system for nursing licensure. Thus, it
would be inappropriate to have the CAT results affect the
licensure decision in any way.

11. What are the legal implications if a candidate passes
CAT and fails NCLEX?
Because CAT is not related to the licensure decision (see
above), there are no legal implications for a candidate
pass~ng CAT and failing NCLEX: as always, her/his NCLEX
score is the basis for the licensing decision.

12. Will the CAT field test scores be released to candidates?
The results of the CAT field tests will be treated as
confidential material and not released to candidates or
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states. The aggregate results of the field tests will be
presented to Member Boards in the 1991 Book of Reports and
at the 1991 Delegate Assembly.

Responsibilities

Costs
13. How much will Field Test states have to pay for the com­

puterized testing facilities?
Field Test states do not have to contribute gny funding for
their candidates' use of the computerized testing sites.
The National Council has allocated funds to pay for the
costs of computerized testing in the budget of the CAT
Feasibility Study.

14. Do the Field Test states have to pay candidates?
The National Council has also bUdgeted to provide a monetary
incentive (averaging $100/candidate) to candidates to
participate in the field testing. The Committee for Special
Projects may recommend a difference in the monetary incen­
tive for candidates who take CAT before NCLEX and those who
take CAT after NCLEX in order to maximize candidate motiva­
tion. Field Test States may be encouraged (not required),
however, to also contribute some incentive to candidates who
participate in the field tests.

Workload
15. How much time will be required of field test state staff to

participate in the field testing?
Field test states will be expected to provide staff time to
copy and mail letters to potential participating candidates,
help the National Council to identify and contact schools of
nursing to motivate candidates to participate and perform to
the best of their ability on both exams, find and provide
proctors for the CAT administration, assist the National
council to coordinate other field test-related activities in
their state.

16. What kind of support will be provided by the National
Council to Field Test states?
The National Council will provide as much support to each
field test state as needed in order to assure a successful
field test. Planned support includes: uniform training and
training materials for board staff, CAT procedure manuals,
proctor training, standard correspondence for boards to send
to candidates, model letters to send to nursing programs,
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instructional videotapes, and the presence of a Committee or
National Council staff member at each CAT field test ad­
ministration. The National Council will also provide some
ideas about how to recruit candidates to participate:
however, each state will need to tailor the motivational
procedures to their own needs.

17. How many proctors will we need, and how much must they
know about CAT?
The Administration of Exam Committee has determined that one
proctor is needed for every eight testing stations during
the CAT field testing. This means that a 25-computer site
(considered very large) would need to have 3 proctors
present and one coordinator. The proctors and coordinator
do not need to have any prior knowledge of CAT testing
procedures. All the training needed will be supplied by the
National Council.

Logistics

18. When will field test states be selected?
The Committee for special Projects will formulate its
recommendation to the Board of Directors during its June 7-9
meeting. The Board of Directors will act on the recommen­
dation during its July 6-7 meeting. The selected states
will be notified following the Board meeting.

19. How do we go about finding computerized test sites in our
state?
The National Council will assist each chosen field test
state to locate appropriate computerized test sites. Some
examples of computerized sites include: Control Data or
Educational Testing Service computerized testing centers,
school computer laboratories, computer training facilities
at business organizations, and computer sites developed by
the National Council exclusively for CAT field testing.

20. What equipment is needed at the test centers?
Test station equipment requirements are based on both
ergonomic (how functional the environment is for the can­
didate) and fiscal realities. The CAT test performance
cannot be allowed to be affected by the test station setup:
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The Required equipment for each station will include
1. IBM-compatible (AT-level) 80286-based machine with

640 K RAM
2. Higher-than-normal resolution screens for text (EGA or

monochrome graphics, not CGA)
3. A 20-30 Mb hard disk and one diskette drive
4. An 80287 math coprocessor
5. Comfortable chairs (adjustable preferred)
6. Space for writing on scratch paper

Recommended equipment includes
7. A tape drive, bernoulli box setup, or Local Area

Network for transferring information
8. Individual carrels for the test stations

21. How will security be maintained during field testing?
The Committee for special Projects is developing a set of
CAT field test security measures based on the regular NCLEX
security measures and the security procedures that were
approved and successfully implemented for the CAT pilot
testing. The Administration of Exam Committee will review
these draft procedures in March and will approve any ad­
ministration procedures prior to their use in the CAT field
testing.

22. What specific procedures will be implemented to
protect the NCLEX-RN item pool?
Although the CAT security measures have not yet been final­
ized, the following measures were implemented during the
pilot test to keep the RN item pool secure and will probably
be used at the field test sites:

Access to item files will be limited to National Council
staff or their authorized representatives only. The files
will be protected through: (1) encryption - the item files
are stored in "coded" form, they cannot be read without
knowledge of that code; (2) both the item files and the
sUbdirectory they are stored in are "hidden" -- that is,
they cannot be located by using a directory listing pro­
cedure, the only way to find them is by knowing in advance
where they are; and (3) there will also be a password system
set up on all the computers being used so that the machines
will not start up unless the correct password is typed in.

Note paper will be provided for each examinee which must be
returned to the proctors at the completion of the test.
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Each sheet of paper will be numbered and logged to the
examinee so that its return after the testing session is
assured. These procedures were discussed and approved for
the Phase I pilot testing during the joint Committee for
special Projects-Administration of Exam Committee meeting
during the orientation sessions on 24-25 October 1987.
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23. How long do CAT tests take to complete?
During the pilot testing, the CAT exam took between 39
minutes and just over 5 hours to complete. Each candidate's
test is a different length depending on their knowledge,
skills, and abilities. The average test length was just
over 2 hours and 40 minutes meaning that two candidates per
day can easily be tested on each computer.

24. How many computer stations are needed at each site?
As of this time, there is no minimum for the number of com­
puter stations required in each state. However, the fewer
test stations available, the more days will be needed both
before and after NCLEX to test the candidates. For example,
if 6 computers were available, one would be used at the
administrator's station and 5 would be used for CAT. A
maximum of 2 candidates per 8 hour day can be tested on each
computer, so it would take about 5 days to test 50 can­
didates using CAT.

25. will any information obtained from the study be provided
to the states?
No information on individual performance will be released to
the states. Field test states will receive the results of
the field test study in aggregate form included in the final
report of Phase II.

26. will mUltiple sites per state be acceptable?
The Committee for Special Projects has no objection, at this
time, with multiple sites per state. The major ramifica­
tions of mUltiple sites are that more staff time would be
required for coordinating the field testing and more than
one site administrator would be needed in that state.
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Report of the Job Analysis Monitoring Committee

Analysis of data obtained in a pilot study conducted to evaluate a revised job analysis data
collection tool is being completed. The outcome of a review of these results by the Job Analysis
Monitoring Committee will be included in the Committee's informational repon which will be
mailed in July 1989.
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Report of the Steering Committee
Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing Project

Background
The first year's activities focused primarily on adopting the Nursing Clinical Simulation testing model, and
determining the programming and data base modifications of the National Board of Medical Examiner's
(NBME) CBX system. The cases are in the process of being written by the Case Development Committee
and will be ready for programming this summer.

Activities
During Fiscal Year 1989, and the first year of the project, the Steering Committee met at Oak Brook Hills
Conference Center, 28 October - 1 November 1988, and at NCSBN, Chicago 8-9 February and 4-5 May
1989.

Project Goals and Strategies
GOAL I: Model Modifications

Objective
A Adapt technology developed by NBME for the development and delivery of

computer based clinical simulations for initial nurse licensure.

Strategies
1. Adopted a Nursing Computer Model for CST (Attachment A). The model

is based on a problem-solving approach and focuses on altering client
responses to health problems and treatment.

2. Adopted the computer programming model and the screen designs presented
by staff of NBME.

3. Adopted plans to develop the default data bases for the nursing computer
model. Particular focus was given to nursing history, physical examination
and interventions.

4. Reviewed criteria for appointment and a job description for Database
Consultants. Initially, one Database Consultant was hired in the
Philadelphia area. Additional consultants wil1 be added as the need to
develop the data bases in specific clinical areas becomes necessary.
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GOAL III:

GOAL IV:
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Case Development Process (Attachment B)

Objective
A Initiate development of 20 computerized clinical simulation cases.

Strategies
1. Recommended to the Board of Directors, the appointment of twelve

persons to the Case Development Committee.

2. Developed Confidential Directions for 36 cases to be given to the Case
Development Committee.

3. Recommended Security Measures for writing at home which were presented
to the Administration of Examination Committee and the Board of
Directors for approval.

4. Monitored the case development process. Twenty-four cases were assigned
to the twelve Case Developers in December 1988. In March 1989, the Case
Development Committee approved twelve cases to be developed further and
six cases to be revised. Six cases are still in the initial stage of
development.

5. Developed criteria for the selection of Scoring Key Development Committee
members (SKDC).

Pilot Testing

Objective
A Examine the validity and reliability of computerized clinical simulation tests as a

basis for making nursing licensure decisions.

Strategies
1. Reviewed the research questions and plans for pilot testing the clinical

tests.

2. Discussed implications of computerized testing on handicapped candidates
and reviewed literature on research that has been reported to date.

Disseminating Information

Objective
A Develop and implement a plan for promoting the use of clinical simulation testing

in nursing licensure examinations with Member Boards and the nursing community.

Strategy
1. Members of the Steering Committee presented the Computer Model and

the Case Development process at each Area Meeting in 1989.
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During the second and third year of the project, the cases will be programmed and scored. The Scoring
Key Development Committee will be oriented to the scoring process and, as clinical experts, they wilI score
each simulation. Field testing and pilot testing will be conducted to establish reliability and validity of the
simulations. The CST Steering Committee wilI continue to disseminate information regarding the use of
CST.

Committee Members And Staff

Shirley Dykes, Chairperson
January 1989 to present

Sherry Smith, Chairperson
JUly 1988 to January 1989
(served until her term on State
Board of Nursing expired)

Patricia Beck
Debra Brady
Eva Matherly
Barbara McCant
Carol Tharp

STATE
AL

IN

NY
NM
ID
GA-RN
MO

AREA
III

II

IV
I
I
III
II

V. Barbara Hynes, Ed.D., R.N., Project Director, Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing
Carolyn J. Yocom, Ph.D., R.N., Director of Research Services
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National Board of Medical Examiners (NBME)
Annual Report

Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing Project
(CST)

I. PLANNING AND SPECIFICATIONS:
Specification of CST case pool content:
To this date, thirty-six (36) cases have been specified by the CST Steering Committee as the CST
case pool.

Selected model customizations:
NBME assisted the Steering Committee in identifying the following list of model customizations:

1. Within the Nursing History function provide the ability to obtain the following:
a. Interview Family/Significant Other
b. Update Patient Interview

2. The complete nursing history should not be broken down into component parts. It should be
a part of the chart review section. Review of material from the chart will be recorded only as
the major chart section reviewed. An automatic clock advance may occur when the chart is
reviewed.

3. Within the Physical Assessment, separate the specific assessment components. Allow the
candidate to choose from a list of physical assessment components.

4. Collaboration with other health professionals will be handled through the data base by allowing
the examinee to call the consultant. When the examinee types in "call charge nurse" or
"collaborate with charge nurse", the system will match with the term "charge nurse". A list of
the possible reasons for calling the charge nurse will be produced for the examinee to choose
from.

5. It will not be the responsibility of the candidate to administer routinely scheduled (around the
clock) medications and therapies. The candidate will be instructed either at the beginning of
the case, or during the case, that the administration of routinely scheduled medications and
therapies will be carried out by the system.

6. The model will not include methods for eliciting nursing diagnosis or writing nursing care plans.

7. The nursing intervention screen will instruct the examinee to type in their desired nursing
measures. If the examinee requests a nursing procedure (an action that is to be carried out by
the nurse him/herself), the time it takes to carry out the procedure will be reported on the
screen. The examinee will then have the opportunity to cancel the request or confirm it and
have it carried out.
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8. When a test or therapy is requested by the examinee without a doctor's order, the computer
screen will instruct them to request a doctor's order for non-nursing measures. When the
examinee types in a request for a doctor's order such as: "Request doctor's order for Penicillin",
the default response to the request will read "the doctor does not wish to order that therapy
at this time". Requests for doctor's orders may be accepted on a case specific basis. In that
case, the test or therapy will be ordered by the doctor, and the examinee will be informed of
the order.

9. The Steering Committee suggested that the H&P screen be called ASSESS; the review screen
be called REVIEW; and the ORDER screen be called INTERVENE.

II. SIMULATION DEVELOPMENT:
NBME assisted in the orientation of the CST Case Development Committee which took place on
December 7-9, 1988. NBME developed some of the forms used in the case development process.

III. DEFAULT DATA BASE MODIFICATIONS:
Data base consultant:
NBME placed an advertisement, developed by the Steering Committee, and interviewed the
candidates after National Council of State Boards of Nursing (NCSBN) staff had reviewed the
resumes. NBME consulted with NCSBN staff regarding hiring.

A CST data base consultant was hired on March 3D, 1989, to assist in determining appropriate
nursing terms for use in the CST default data base.

NBME assisted the Steering Committee in identifying the following position description for the CST
data base consultant:

1. Find sources of nursing measures (nursing observations, nursing interventions, health teaching).

2. Review sources for nursing measures appropriate for use in the CST data bases.

3. Differentiate nursing measures by availability in different locations.

4. Determine nursing measures needing auto clock advance.

5. Determine the average amount of time each nursing measure takes to perform in real life. This
time will become the automatic clock advance for that nursing measure in the data base.

6. Define textual default responses for each nursing measure in the CST data base.

7. Determine textual interactions between nursing measures in the CST data base.

8. Define synonyms for the nursing measures in the CST data base.

IV. VIDEODISC Dl'-'VELOPMENT:
Specification of visuals to be obtained:
NBME provided consultation regarding the feasibility of video development.
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Report of Executive Director

Introduction
This report summarizes the major activities of the National Council staff from May 1988 through
April 1989. Activities are grouped within program areas and are cross-referenced to the National
Council's Operational Plan. An organiutional chart of staff and a description of their
responsibilities is found in a separate section of the Book of Repons.

National Council Licensure Examinations
Staff in testing services provided support to the Examination Committee, Administration of
Examination Committee, Committee on Special Projects, and the Task Force on Examinations for
the Future during the time period covered by this report.

In connection with the revision of the NCLEX-RN test plan in 1988, testing services staff
coordinated planning, implementation, and reporting of standard setting sessions. Following the
increased failure rate experienced in July 1988, staff worked to analyze possible causes, respond to
inquiries from Member Boards and others, and provide appropriate written resources.

The statements of knowledge, skills, and abilities (KSAs) required for safe and effective practice as
an entry-level registered nurse were generated by the Assistant Director of Testing Services under
the supervision of the Examination Committee. In draft form, these were available for use by
item writers during two sessions in July 1988 and one in January 1989. The final form of the KSAs
was publiShed as the Detailed RN Test Plan in January 1989.

Testing services staff coordinated with the test service (CTBlMcGraw-HiII) the implementation of
pass/fail reporting of NCLEX results beginning with the October 1988 administration of NCLEX­
PN. Written materials were provided for Member Boards' use in explaining the changes to
candidates and others. Following the February 1989 NCLEX-RN, staff worked with CTBlMcGraw·
Hill (CTB) to implement changes in the Diagnostic Profiles suggested by Member Boards to make
the Profiles more useful and understandable.

Support for the revision of the NCLEX-PN test plan has been provided by staff. A test plan
retreat for the Examination Committee and consultants was organized for October 1988. Job
analysis data were analyzed to arrive at appropriate weights (percentage allocations) for revised test
plan categories. A consultant has been identified and oriented to the taSk of writing the knowledge,
skills, and abilities (KSA) statements which will accompany the revised test plan, as adopted by the
Delegate Assembly.

Subcommittees of the Examination Committee dealing with setting different passing scores,
ethnicity/gender bias and person-fit analyses, and continued competence were provided staff support
for meetings and various research and planning activities.

Staff completed work on an audiovisual presentation on test development under the direction of
the Examination Committee. The presentation has been used by 22 Member Boards to date.
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Testing services staff created procedures for the implementation of the Crisis Management Plan
approved by the 1988 Delegate Assembly. Activities have included preparation of printing materials
for the designated reserve examination, answer sheet design, destruction of the outdated stored
reserve examinations, and coordination of crisis management plans with ern and the designated
printer of the reserve examination.

Staff assisted the Administration of Examination Committee in preparing drafts of the revised
Security Measures in preparation for the 1989 Delegate Assembly. Security of the examinations was
also monitored on an ongoing basis, with all unusual situations reported promptly to the Committee
and appropriate follow-up initiated with ern. Staff organized a security session at the 1988
Delegate Assembly and security procedures workshops at each Area Meeting on behalf of the
Administration of Examination Committee.

In preparation for the 1988 Delegate Assembly, the Director of Special Projects prepared materials
describing the options for the Computerized Adaptive Testing (CA1) feasibility study to be
presented to the delegates. These included a Research Design Flowchart, budgets for the options,
field test dates, and the plan for legal analysis. Following adoption by the Delegate Assembly of
the joint recommendation of the Examination Committee and Committee for Special Projects to
proceed with Phase II of the CAT feasibility study inclUding RN field testing, staff have managed
activities related to the following: additional "targeted" RN item production, completion of the
CAT software, research partnership with the American Society of Clinical Pathologists, follow-up
funding and corporate sponsorship proposalS, legal analysis of CAT by two organizations, field test
research plans, field test security measures, and applications by Member Boards to be field test
states.

Testing staff work with the ern staff to coordinate the reports and recommendations of the test
service with the various activities of National Council committees and the Board of Directors.
During the past year, regular reports have been received and analyzed by staff on technical
construction and analysis of each examination, ethnicity/gender bias analysis, and person-fit analysis.
Requests for special reports have been conveyed and interpreted by staff to ern, addressing the
topics of dimensionality, standard setting, increasing frequency of NCLEX administrations, and
investigations of specific item characteristics such as difficulty and effects of presentation in the case
format.

Regular monitoring of ern's performance with respect to services stipulated in the contracts with
the test service and data center is an important activity of National Council testing services staff.
During the past year, contract evaluation discussions were held in August, November and March.
Special attention was focused on resolution of specific errors that occurred and procedures that
would prevent recurrence.

A new procedure to increase accuracy of the program codes system was developed and implemented
by testing staff in cooperation with data center staff. The system requires timely entry of code
change information and computerized cross-checking of all codes.

Staff in the public policy area have continued to monitor the progress of legislation related to truth­
in-testing. As a proactive measure for dealing with potential legislation, staff in testing and public
policy have remained abreast of developments related to the establishment of an independent
agency for auditing "high-stakes" testing practices as an industry self-regulatory mechanism.
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Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program
Staff provided support to the Task Force on the Evaluation of Nurse Aides and the Nurse Aide
Competency Evaluation Program (NACEP) Committee during the period covered by this report.
The Task Force performed a study of the feasibility of the National Council developing a nurse aide
competency evaluation, which was reported to the 1988 Delegate Assembly. The proposal described
a program that would meet all requirements of the Nursing Home Reform Act contained in the
federal Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (OBRA) of 1987. Staff work included development and
dissemination of a request for proposalS for testing services under the direction of the Task Force
and Board of Directors. This enabled the fiscal impact of the program to be calculated for
presentation to the 1988 Delegate Assembly.

An important staff activity throughout the development of the Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation
Program has been contact with staff at the Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA), which
is the federal agency responsible for issuing administrative regulations for the implementation of
OBRA Staff have prepared several letters to HCFA with commentary on proposed guidelines or
requests for clarification; responses have been shared with Member Boards for information. Staff
attended two meetings at HCFA headquarters in Baltimore.

Similarly, the exchange of information on state activities related to implementation of OBRA has
been a function of National Council staff. In order to facilitate this, staff attended a meeting of
boards of nursing, primarily from Area I, in Denver during September. A product of that meeting
was a state activities questionnaire which staff disseminated to Member Boards. Responses were
entered into a database to facilitate compilation and reporting to respondents. An update of the
survey was disseminated and reported several months later; and a third update is currently in
process. Several staff members have supported Member Boards working on language for legislation
or rules by providing samples of similar work done by other boards. This clearinghouse function
was endorsed by the Board of Directors in early 1989 as an important service to be provided by
staff.

After approval of program development by the Delegate Assembly, staff coordinated the send-out
of the second round Request for Proposals for test services. The three full proposals received were
circulated to selected persons for review according to a process approved by the Board of Directors.
Staff compiled the evaluations for presentation to the Board in November. After selection of The
Psychological Corporation as the NACEP test service, staff served on the team to negotiate the
contract and launch the marketing effort.

A Program Manager was added to the testing staff in October to manage National Council activities
related to NACEP. The Program Manager assisted with the conduct of a nurse aide job analysis
by an expert panel in October. Staff solicited nominations for appointment to the NACEP
committee, and coordinated the first meeting of the committee in November between the members
and The Psychological Corporation.

Following the NACEP Committee's first meeting, staff prepared the NACEP blueprint for
submission to the Board of Directors for approval. The final version, approved by the Board, was
transmitted to The Psychological Corporation for printing. Staff coordinated dissemination to
Member Boards.

From December through April, staff has worked to obtain sufficient item writers, item reviewers.
and task developers to attend the workshops sponsored by The Psychological Corporation to
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produce the items and tasks needed for initial NACEP forms. Staff have visited several workshops
for purposes of monitoring procedures used. Development of an expanded blueprint is currently
underway as a project of a subcommittee of the NACEP Committee, supported by staff.

Marketing efforts for NACEP have been chiefly the responsibility of The Psychological Corporation
(TPC). However, in order to interpret to states and other potential NACEP consumers the role
and reputation of the National Council, and rationale for its involvement in NACEP, National
Council staff have accompanied TPC staff to a majority of the conventions at which NACEP
materials have been exhibited. Staff has also participated in several regional meetings of states
convened for purposes of discussing nurse aide competency evaluation, and have accompanied TPC
sales staff on a number of individual state visits. (The complete report of The Psychological
Corporation is included under another business agenda item.)

Public Policy Analysis
In the pUblic policy area, staff provided support to the Nursing Practice and Education Committee,
the Subcommittee on PNNN Competencies, the Subcommittee on the Nurse Shortage, and the
Subcommittee to StUdy Regulatory Models for Chemically Dependent Nurses. In addition,
coordination of activities of the subcommittees of the Nursing Practice and Education Committee
was facilited by pUblic policy staff.

Among the pUblic policy topics receiving significant attention by National Council committees and
staff were the nurse shortage and the Registered Care Technologist (RCT) proposal. National
Council staff supported and participated, along with elected representatives, in several joint meetings
and activities with other nursing organizations at which these topics were addressed. These included
a meeting of the nursing Tri-Council (American Association of Colleges of Nursing, American
Nurses' Association, American Organization of Nurse Executives, National League for Nursing) in
July 1988; an invitational conference coordinated by the American Organization of Nurse Executives
(AONE) in August; a meeting of the National Federation of Specialty Nursing Organizations in
October; another meeting of the Tri-Council in October; and a meeting with the ANA in October.

Partly as a result of the nurse shortage, and partly as a result of our growing sense of "global
village," the international regulation of nursing is a policy issue receiving increased attention. The
International Council of Nurses, through funding provided by the W.K Kellogg Foundation, is
sponsoring a Regulation of Nursing Implementation Project to which the Executive Director of the
National Council was named as one of two representatives of the United States. (The other
representative is the Deputy Director of the American Nurses' Association.) Two of three meetings
of a project group consisting of English-speaking nations from North America, the Caribbean, and
southern Africa, have been held. The cooperative project selected by the U.S. representatives is
a statement to be issued jointly by the National Council and ANA on the nurse shortage. An
outline of the joint statement was presented to the Board of Directors and routed to the
Subcommittee on the Nurse Shortage of the Nursing Practice and Education Committee for further
refinement and expansion.

Staff supported the work of the Subcommittee on the Nurse Shortage, including performance of and
compilation of responses to a survey of Member Boards on the nurse shortage. Surveys to gather
input on the Uniform Requirements for Endorsement and Uniform Requirements for Foreign
Graduates were prepared, disseminated to Member Boards, and responses compiled by staff on
behalf of the Nursing Practice and Education Committee. Research staff continued to collect data
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to support the Committee's annual update to the Delegate Assembly on entry-into-practice and
continued competence activities of Member Boards.

Under the direction of the Subcommittee to Study Models for the Regulatory Management of
Chemically Dependent Nurses, staff queried foundations regarding their interest in supporting a
research study designed by the subcommittee. Staff have also identified a consultant with the
appropriate expertise to advise the subcommittee on development of the research proposal.

Staff continued to produce monthly reports and summaries of statistical data for circulation to
Member Boards based upon the National Council's Disciplinary Data Bank. Several options for
expanding or streamlining Disciplinary Data Bank services were considered by the Board of
Directors, but action was deferred pending developments related to the federal National Practitioner
Data Bank (NPDB). In recognition of the National Council's leadership in banking of disciplinary
data, the Director of Public Policy Analysis was appointed to the Health Resource Service
Administration (HRSA) Executive Committee and to the Technical Advisory Group for the
implementation of the NPDB.

Trends and issues related to public policy are monitored on an ongoing basis by staff. Federal
initiatives are analyzed and reported periodically in the Newsletter, and analysis of state initiatives
is included in the State Nursing Legislation Quarterly.

Communications
The area of communications has several identifiable sub-areas related to the goals of the National
Council. One of these is the publications program. Two other areas, intraorganizational and
interorganizational communications, include meetings, presentations, liaisons, and public relations
within the National Council structure and with external organizations related in some way to the
mission of the National Council. Within the area of communications, staff provide support for the
Communications Committee and the Convention Planning Committee. A change in staff, filling
the position Director of Communications, took place in April 1989.

Staff supported the development of an awards program, designed to recognize and honor National
Council volunteers and initiated during the Tenth Delegate Assembly.

Publications
Four issues of the State Nursing Legislation Quarterly have been edited and published by staff in
the communications area. The subscription base currently stands at 735, including 61 Member
Boards (non-paid). For the winter issue, a change was made to utilize a computerized service for
obtaining copies of legislation which has streamlined the review and compilation process.

Issues has been edited and pUblished by staff four times during the past year (Volume 9, nos 2·3;
Volume 10, nos 1-2). The topics for Issues were computerized adaptive testing; Tenth Delegate
Assembly; infiuence in the political arena; and international regulation of nursing. A two-part
article on NCLEX development was included in response to the many questions received by
Member Boards and staff following the July 1988 NCLEX-RN.

Communications staff published and distributed the Newsletter to Member Boards on a biweekly
basis. Items included by staff in the Newsletter on a regular basis are committee reports; Board
of Directors agendas, major actions and minutes; Disciplinary Data Bank reports; analyses of federal
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legislation; solicitations for persons to serve in various capacities; examination statistics; notice of
upcoming events; and updates to the National Council Manual.

Annual reports for 1987-88 and 1988-89 have been prepared and published by staff, according to
the direction given by the Delegate Assembly.

The preparation of the 1989 Book of Reports has been implemented by staff in ring binder format.
The Board of Directors determined that this would alIow longer time for committees and others
to complete the reports of their year's work, and also provide greater flexibility to convention
allendees for insertion of materials received after the initial mailing. Staff have attempted to design
the organization and materials for the Book of Reports with these objectives in mind.

Following adoption by the 1988 Delegate Assembly, communications staff facilitated publication and
dissemination of the Model Nurse Practice Act, Model Administrative Rules. and reports of the RN
and PN/VN Job Analysis Studies produced by American College Testing.

Communications staff monitor the production and marketing of publications for which the National
Council receives royalties, by virtue of its contribution to the concept or content of the product.
These include the Summary Profiles (crB), the Diagnostic Readiness Test (NLN), and the NCLEX­
RN and NCLEX-PN study guides (Chicago Review Press). The latter received special staff
allention over the past year due to the low level of marketing activity and occasional problems with
availability of the study guides for purchase. Several meetings with the president of Chicago Review
Press have been held to communicate the National Council's expectations for improvement in these
areas.

Research and communications staff members have cooperated to produce and publish compilations
of 1985 licensure and examination statistics. The compilations for 1986 and 1987 are scheduled for
production prior to the end of the fiscal year.

Individual staff members have had articles published in various journals. The Directors of Public
Policy Analysis and Testing Services prepared an invited article for Imprint, the journal of the
National Student Nurses' Association containing general information about the development,
administration and scoring of NCLEX and a brief overview of future examination-related activities.

The Director of Testing Services wrote an article, "Reporting Results: How Much Is Enough?" for
the NCEI Newsletter. The newsletter is a publication of the examinations section of the
Clearinghouse on Licensure, Regulation and Enforcement (CLEAR).

Intraorganizational Communications
Staff have visited a number of Member Boards during the course of the year, some as a part of the
field visit program and others while in attendance at another function in the same city.

The field visit program was initiated by the Board of Directors in 1987 to provide a means by which
new Member Boards or Boards wishing assistance of some sort could request a visit; or, in the
absence of these needs, a number of boards could be selected for visits each year for the purpose
of increasing communications and awareness of needs and resources both on the part of the
Member Board and the National Council. During 1988-89, field visits were made to Florida,
Louisiana, Arizona, and Indiana by staff; and to American Samoa by the chairperson of the
Administration of Examination Committee. Staff have recently completed work on a monograph
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on regulation, including the roles of a regulatory board, individual board members, and board staff,
for use by and with Member Boards during field visits and at other times.

A visit was also made to the Puerto Rico Board of Nursing by the Executive Director in June 1988
to discuss proposed contract provisions and security measures for administration of NCLEX. Staff
have followed up with answers to various questions submitted by the Puerto Rico Board over the
past year, but a contract has not been signed to date.

A number of Member Boards have sponsored informational meetings on NCLEX during the past
year and invited National Council staff to be presenters at these meetings. Presentations were made
by staff for the following boards: California-RN, Hawaii, Virginia, Ohio, New Jersey, Florida,
Iowa, Missouri, North Carolina, South Carolina, and New York.

The Acting Executive Director and Director of Special Projects accompanied the President to all
Spring 1989 Area Meetings; the Director of Public Policy Analysis also attended the Area III
Meeting. A report on staff activities was given at each meeting.

Staff continue to coordinate provision of the National Council electronic mail network (NCNEl).
The number of subscriptions has increased from eleven to eighteen over the past year. Staff have
assisted Member Boards in training and troubleshooting, as well as providing some expanded
services on NCNET.

A fall orientation/planning session was held for Board of Directors, committee members and staff
at Oak Brook Hills Conference Center near Chicago in late October 1988. Under the guidance of
the Coordinating Committee, staff planned for the meeting site and functions, and produced
appropriate orientation and planning materials for use by participants.

Staff from several areas· cooperated in planning the National Council's first Regulatory Conference,
held in February 1989 in Monterey, California. The conference, which was planned in conjunction
with the CTB NCLEX Invitational Conference, had over 100 registrants.

The Director of Computer and Convention Services supported the Convention Planning Committee
in preparations for the 1989 convention at the Hyatt Regency Chicago. Advance planning for the
1990 convention program is underway. Staff provided requested information to the Committee and
Board of Directors to assist in deciding upon the 1992 convention site.

lnterorganizational Communications
External organizations have requested that National Council staff serve as speakers for various
purposes throughout the year. Since the number of such requests was increasing to a level that was
beginning to hinder staff from carrying out their regular responsibilities, the Board of Directors, at
its November meeting, approved a policy setting priorities for acceptance of speaking engagements.
Basically, the policy states that Member Board requests have priority, and that grouped/regional
meetings have priority over single-institution meetings. Staff speakers request for the National
Council the honorarium specified by Board policy. Staff have accepted the following speaking
engagements during 1988-89:

Presentations on the revised NCLEX-RN test plan and examination construction for the
Medical College of Pennsylvania (Director of Research Services)

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



8

Presentations on Computerized Adaptive Testing and Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing
for Chicago Area Testing Organizations (CATO) (Directors of Special Projects and Research
Services)

Presentation on major decisions of the 1988 Delegate Assembly, CAT and CST projects, and
NCLEX-RN 788 results for the Assembly of Hospital Schools of Nursing (of the AHA)
(Director of Research Services)

- Presentation on NCLEX·RN 788 results, standard selling. test plan revision for the American
Association of Colleges of Nursing (Director of Testing Services)

Guest lecturer on "The Kaleidoscope of Nursing Practice' for the dedication of the Allegheny
General Hospital conference center in Pittsburgh (Executive Director)

Sectional entitled "Problem Identification in Conflict Resolution" for the American Society of
Association Executives annual meeting (Executive Director and Director of Administration)

Sectional entitled "Information Flow in Crisis Management" for the American Society of
Association Executives annual meeting (Director of Testing Services)

Symposium entitled "Job Analysis: How Does the Purpose Affect the Procedure?" for the
American Educational Research Association (Acting Executive Director)

Paper presentation entitled "The Use of Normative Decision Models to Identify and Train
Effective Clinical Decision Makers' for the American Educational Research Association
(Director of Administration)

Paper presentation entitled 'The Effects of Multidimensionality on the Observed Information
Characteristics of a Conventional Test" for the National Council on Measurement in Education
(Director of Special Projects)

Paper presentation entitled "Differences in Frequency of Performance of Selected Nursing
Activities by Newly Licensed Registered Nurses: 1985 to 1988' for the Midwest Nursing
Research Society (Director of Research Services)

Paper presentations entitled "Decision Making in Clinical Nursing Practice: Consistency with
Decision Analytic Outcomes' and "Identification of Effective Decision Makers Using the
Decision Analytic Questionnaire: Implications for Nurse Administrators" for the Midwest
Nursing Research Society (Director of Administration)

Program on NCLEX for the Tennessee Deans and Directors group (Director of Research
Services)

Program on NCLEX for the Northeast Coalition of Hospital and Diploma Schools of Nursing
(Director of Research Services)
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- Keynote address entitled "Test for Success: Past, Present and Future" and panel discussant on
"Should nursing educators have information about and input into the State Board Examination?"
for teleconference presentation organized by the Nursing Department of Northern Virginia
Community College (Director of Research Services)

Keynote speaker for the MassachusettsIRhode Island League for Nursing annual meeting
(Acting Executive Director)

Staff attended several meetings of other organizations as representatives of the National Council.
Among these were the annual convention of the National Federation of Licensed Practical Nurses
(NFLPN); National Federation of Specialty Nursing Organizations; National Commission on
Nursing Implementation Project (NCNIP) Wingspread Conference; the annual convention of the
American Organization of Nurse Executives (AONE); the biennial convention of the National
League for Nursing (NLN); the annual meeting of the American Nurses' Association (ANA); the
national meeting of the Clearinghouse on Licensure, Regulation and Enforcement (CLEAR); the
fall education conference of the Chicago Society of Association Executives; the national meeting
of the American Society of Association Executives; and the National Organization for Competency
Assurance.

The Director of Public Policy Analysis serves on the board of the Federation of Associations of
Regulatory Boards (FARB), and participated extensively in program planning for the 1989 FARB
Forum.

The Acting Executive Director arranged for and participated with the President in liaison meetings
with the chief elected and executive officers of the American Nurses' Association and American
Organization of Nurse Executives. Liaison via telephone and written correspondence with other
nursing organizations was maintained by staff, including the American Association of Colleges of
Nursing, the Commission on Graduates of Foreign Nursing Schools, the Interagency Conference on
Nursing Statistics, the National Association for Practical Nurse Education and Service, the National
Center for Nursing Research, the National Commission on Nursing Implementation Project, the
National Federation of Licensed Practical Nurses, and the National League for Nursing.

Research
Staff in the research area provide support to the Job Analysis Monitoring Committee and the Nurse
Information System Committee. In addition, research staff represent the National Council at
meetings of the Interagency Conference on Nursing Statistics, the National Center for Nursing
Research, and the Division of Nursing.

Under the guidance of the Job Analysis Monitoring (JAM) Committee, research staff have
developed and pilot tested an additional instrument (to be used with the Survey of Nursing
Activities developed by American College Testing) for use in future RN and PN job analysis studies.
In response to the directive of the 1987 Delegate Assembly, the instrument has been designed to
be sensitive to the effects of contextual variations in practice, i.e., to detect "qualitative" differences.
After consUlting with job analysis experts, the JAM Committee and staff determined that a critical
incident methodology was the most appropriate for the additional instrument. A sample of 325
newly licensed nurses was selected for participation in the pilot stUdy. Staff have also contacted
health care institutions and located approximately 55 newly licensed nurses working under
differentiated job descriptions, who have been asked to participate in the pilot. (The report of the
outcomes of the pilot testing is included under another business agenda item.)
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The Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing (CST) Project, funded in February 1988, became
operational during 1988-89. Staff arranged with the W.K. Kellogg Foundation for an adjustment
of the project funding start date to July 1, 1988, to make allowance for start-up time. A Project
Director was hired and began work in September. Since that time, staff have supported work of
the Steering Committee for the CST Project, including selection of case developers and scoring
key developers, and the employment of a database consultant. Sixteen cases have been developed
and are currently in various stages of refinement and testing. Substantial staff work has gone into
the design of a Nursing Model for CST. Much staff time has also been devoted to the coordination
of activities with the National Board of Medical Examiners (NBME), which is under contract to the
National Council to modify its CBX system for use in nursing examinations.

Staff have worked not only with NBME project staff, but also with management to negotiate a
software license and maintenance agreement which will allow the National Council to use and
sublicense the developed software for all types of testing related to nursing (e.g., licensure,
continued competence, education). Negotiations are still underway at the time of this report.

In connection with work overseen by the Nurse Information System Committee, staff have
communicated with external organizations interested in supporting the development of a licensee
data base. The American Nurses' Association and the National Commission on Nursing
Implementation Project (NCNIP) have both expressed such interest. Staff participated in a meeting
sponsored by NCNIP which focused on "Developing the Data Base for Nursing Personnel and
Nursing Education." Funding queries have been sent by staff to 19 foundations to determine their
interest in supporting the National Council's development of the Nurse Information System.

As representative to National Center for Nursing Research meetings, staff is assisting with
development of a classification matrix that will permit identification of research resources and
research topic "gaps." In Division of Nursing meetings, staff has assisted with the review and
update of criteria for estimating requirements for nursing personnel in the years 2000, 2010, and
2020.

Research staff assisted in support of the Convention Planning Committee by drafting criteria for
submission and selection procedures for the 1989 Research Forum. Procedures and deadlines were
publicized by staff in the Newsletter.

Organizational and Operational Matters
In the area of organizational activities, staff provided support for the Finance Committee, Bylaws
Committee, Committee on Nominations, Coordinating Committee, Board of Directors, and the
Executive Director Search Committee.

In support of Finance Committee activities, staff have invested National Council funds; performed
financial forecasting, produced quarterly financial statements and schedule of investments; analyzed
and compared costs and revenues of National Council program areas; and provided requested
documents for the annual audit. Staff in all program areas contributed projections of revenues and
expenses for the drafting of the Fiscal Year 1990 operational and capital acquisitions budgets.

The Coordinating Committee used a database created by staff in its task of making appointments
to committees. Staff compiled and edited drafts of the FY89 and FY90 activities for the
Operational Plan, and disseminated the final copy to Member Boards after Board of Directors
approval. Due to changes in federal laws regulating employee benefits, staff and legal counsel
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prepared alternative benefit packages for consideration by the Coordinating Committee and Board
of Directors.

Staff assisted the Executive Director Search Committee in placement of advertisements, provision
of organizational information, and typing of correspondence, as requested.

Member Board needs for renewal or amendment of their contracts with the National Council were
coordinated through staff with legal counsel. Staff monitor performance of all contractors and other
major providers of services (legal, parliamentary, accounting) on a regular basis and facilitate formal
evaluations annually.

At the direction of the Board of Directors, staff investigated and negotiated terms for space for the
National Council headquarters offices. Work with real estate and architectural fimtS continues.

Staff installed WordPerfect wordprocessing software on all office computers and provided extensive,
tailored training for administrative and support staff. Programming, enabling the National Council
to load, read, and query General Research Tapes received from CfBIMcGraw-Hill, was completed.
Desktop publishing software has been used to produce the State Nursing Legislation Quarterly and
some other publications in-house.

Conclusion
The eleventh year of the National Council has been marked by both change and continuity. In
terms of staff changes, two persons came to assume new administrative-level positions: the CST
Project Director in September and the NACEP Program Manager in October. Two administrative­
level staff left their positions: the Executive Director and the Director of Information Services. The
latter position was filled in April, at which time the title was changed to Director of
Communications. Three support staff positions turned over in the past year. Two people came
to fill new support staff positions: a secretary in the communications area and a secretary for the
CST project. While new staff members have brought fresh ideas and new strengths to the
organization, current staff, through staff development opportunities and the challenge of new
committees and activities, have grown and developed throughout the year.

Through all changes, continuity was maintained. Sixteen staff continued in the same positions,
gaining experience and depth in their areas of responsibility. The framework of the organization
itself provides for the greatest continuity. The adopted goals, objectives and strategies of the
National Council, along with the bylaws and mission statement give focus to all activities of staff
and volunteers alike.
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Report of the Finance Committee

Activities
The Finance Committee met October 30 - November 1, 1988; January 8 - 9, 1989; March 29 - 31,
1989; and June 4 - 5, 1989. In addition, telephone conference calls were held January 25, 1989, and
April 24, 1989.

In accordance with the Bylaws, the Finance Committee has provided general supervision of the
finances of the National Council. The Committee has reviewed the quarterly financial reports,
evaluated the fiscal impact of all proposals presented to the Board of Directors, and developed the
FY90 budget proposal for approval of the Board.

The Operational Plan has guided the work of the Committee for the past year. The following
summarizes the activities completed by the Committee.

Goal II: Utilize human and fiscal resources efficiently to allow for growth and creativity.

Objective A: Implement a planning model to be used as a guide for development of NCSBN.

Strategy 3: Evaluate the program budgeting system of the National Council.

The Finance Committee reviewed the financial information on a quarterly basis and
compared it to the program budget. Any variances were evaluated and carefully monitored.
A cost analysis using the program budget was completed for presentation to the Board.

The FY89 budget was revised in the fall to reflect Delegate Assembly actions. The budget
calendar and budget assumptions for the FY90 budget preparation were developed. The
Committee prepared the FY90 budget for approval of the Board of Directors.

The fiscal impact statement forms were revised to better account for indirect costs.

Strategy 4: Investigate the feasibility of new revenue sources for the organization.

The Committee continued to explore new revenue sources. It is anticipated that the Nurse
Aide Competency Evaluation Program will be a new source of revenue for the Council.
The Committee is also investigating the kinds of services offered by the Council and
evaluating current charges for those services. The Committee did decide not to recommend
a change in the Member Board fee at this time.

The Committee recommended to the Board a change in the National Council's banking
relationship in order to obtain better services. Following approval of the new bank, the
Committee has evaluated the new relationship to assure that the services provided are
meeting Council needs.
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The idea of creating a service corporation was also evaluated. The Committee decided to
take no action at this time.

Strategy 6: Maintain financial policies which provide guidelines for organizational
development.

The Committee evaluated all financial policies of the Council and revised the policies as
required. In addition, all policies dealing with finances were pulled together under financial
policies.

The investments of the National Council have been monitored by the Committee. The
Committee was very satisfied with the rate of return attained on the investments since the
change in the banking relationship.

After interviewing several investment firms and banks, the Committee concluded that it
could not justify hiring an investment manager at this time. The Committee felt by
employing a bank which was geared to nonprofit organizations of the Council's size,
investments could be prudently managed.

Strategy 7: Review and revise the forecast assumptions to maintain a current forecasting
model.

The five year financial forecast was reviewed quarterly and updated with any new data
available.

The Finance Committee also reviewed all information related to the acquisition of new office space.
The fiscal impact was evaluated for review of the Board of Directors.

Committee Members
Donna Dorsey, MD, Chairperson
Catherine Puri, CA
Nadine Coudret, IN
Carol Osman, NC
W. Stephen Pindell, MD

Area IV
Areal
Area II
Area III
Area IV

Kathleen Hayden, Financial Manager

National Council of Stale Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



1

Report of the Bylaws Committee

Recommendation
The Committee recommends the consideration of the five proposed changes as presented in this
report.

Meeting Dotes
The Committee met three times: October 31, 1988, April 13, 1989, and May 3, 1989, by conference
call.

Activities
The specific activities of the Bylaws Committee were as follows:

1. Participation in the National Council's FY89 Orientation Session.

2. Review of the National Council Standing Rules not included in the Bylaws during their
revision in FY87-88. The rules were reviewed for where the standing rules should be
referred for review prior to their inclusion in a Policy and Procedures Manual, to be
prepared by the Board of Directors.

3. Review of all proposed changes in Bylaws submitted by Member Boards.

4. Preparation of the proposed changes to the Bylaws for presentation to the 1989 Delegate
Assembly.

Bylaws Committee Members:
Ann Bissonette, NY, Area IV, Chairperson
Delia Goggins, CA-RN, Area I
Libby Lund, 1N, Area III
Tim McBrady, ME, Area IV
Christine Zambricki, MI, Area II

Marsha Kelly, Director of Public Policy Analysis
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CURRENT DYLAW

Article III-Membership and
Fees

Membership privileges
include but are not
limited to the right to
vote as prescribed in
these bylaws and the right
to assist in the
development of licensing
examinations 1n nursing,
except that a member board
using a licensing
examination in addition to
~ council examination
shall not participate in
the development of the
Council's licensing
examinations.

Article IV-Areas

The purpose of this
division is to facilitate
communication, encourage
regional dialogue on
Council issues, and
provide diversity of
representation on the
board of directors and on
committees.

Article V-F 4 Treasurer

PROPOSED BYLAW CHANGE

delete "membership
privileges include but are
not limited to the right
to vote as prescribed in
these bylaws and the right
to assist in the
development of licensing
examinations in nursing
ex.cept that .•.. " Leave
sentence, "A member board
using a licensing
examination ..... "

Delete

Add d - authorize funds
and sign check~.

RATIONALE

Membership presumes
privileges and this
sentence is unnecessary.
Deletion of this sentence
promotes clarity as to the
intention of the statement
concerninq use of
additional licensure
examinations by member
boards with subsequent
limitations.

A statement concerning the
"division into areas" is a
philosophical statement
and not to be in the
bylaws.

The Treasurer should be
enabled to authorize funds
in order to expedite this
process.

A'M'ACIIJ1ENT A
REPORT OF 1'IIE BYLAWS COMMI'M'EE

BYLAWS COMMI'M'EE
RECOMMENDATIONS

The Bylaws Committee does
not recommend this
proposed change. Bylaws
should describe the
privileges of membership
to assure each member's
awareness of those
privileges.

The Bylaws Committee does
not recommend this
proposed change. stating
the purpose of any
structure described in
Bylaws is important to
understanding why the
structure exists and how
it should function.

The Bylaws Committee does
not recommend this
proposed change. current
operations based on the
understanding of the role
of the Treasurer as
"Custodian of funds I! allow
for the Treasurer to
authorize funds and sign
checks.



CURRENT BYLAW

I\rticle VII C

The official call to the
convention, giving the
time and place of the
session, shall be sent to
each member board ~east
90 days prior to the
convention.

Article VII-Meetings

Open Meetings. All
meetings called under the
auspices of the Council
shall be open to the
pUblic with the following
exceptions:

1. Meeti ng of the
examination committee
whenever ~ctivities

pertaining to test items
are undertaken~ and

2. Executive meetings of
the Delegate Assembly,
Board of Directors and
Committees whenever that
body has voted to hold
such a meeting, provided
that the minutes of such
meeting reflect the
purposes of the executive
session and the action
taken.

PROPOSED BYLAW CHANGE

"shall be sUbmitted to
each member board"

2. Executive meetings of
the Deleg~te I\ssembly,
Board of Directors and
committees whenever that
body has voted to hold
such a meeting, provided
that the minutes of such
meeting reflect the
purposes of the executive
session and the action
taken.

ADD:

RATIONALE

The term "sentI! is a
limiting term and not
appropriate in this
context.

BYLAWS COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATIONS

The Bylaws Committee does
not recommend this
proposed change. The word
"sent" by definition is
the appropriate word to
use in the context of this
Bylaws provision.



CURRENT BYLAW PROPOSED BYLAN CHANGE

J. Executive meetings of
the board of directors and
committees whenever the
following conditions are
satisfied:

a. The body has voted to
hold such a meeting;

b. Notice is given in a
reguli'tr op(>n m{'(>ting of
the qcner", l n,J.ture of the
business to be discussed
in executive spssion and
the reason for tile
executive session;

c. Topics for executive
session discussion are
limited to ex~mination

security, proposC"d or
pending litigation,
personnel matters or
consideration of
disciplinary action
against an individuoJ.I
employee or mpmher, if
that person h'lS not
requested an open mpeting,

review of propo~~ls and
contract negotiations, or
meeting which are
specifically reqlli rl"d by
law to be conducted in
privacy; and

d. The minutes of the
meeting reflect the
purp~se of the executive
seSSion and that any
action re~\lirinq A vote of
the body WdS till-:l'll in open
session.

4. Any ,'Ction o[ the
Board of Directors or any
committee t~ker\ jn

violation of Subser.tion ]
above shall be void and of
no effect.

RJt.TIONALE

Members Boards are public
agencies which must
operate under public
scrutiny as mandated by
the laws of their
respective jurisdictions.
The proposed revisions are
similar to open meetings
laws under Which many
public agencies operate.
Experience has been that
these rules do not inhibit
agency operations and tend
to promote decision making
which is truly in the
pUblic interest.

Although a private
corporation, the National
Council is a body composed
of state agencies which by
necessity conducts
business of considerable
importance to the citizens
of the United States and
its territories. While
publ'ic scrutiny as
provided by the Open
Meetinqs Law may not be a

legal necessity, it would
be better policy for the
affected public and Member
Boards themselves to have
the maximum access to
Council discussions
consistent with the
mission of the NCSBN.

BYLAWS COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATIONS

The Bylaws Committee does
not recommend this
proposed change. The
conditions described are
currently being done in
compliance with the
general principles of open
meetings acts and
parliamentary authority.
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Report of Examination Committee

Recommendations
1. Adopt the proposed revision of the NCLEX-PN test plan (Attachment A).

2. The National Council continue to conduct regularly scheduled RN and PN job analyses. Each
job analysis shall be done no less frequently than every three years and rotated so that analyses
do not occur simultaneously (e.g., RN 1989-90, PN 1990-91, skip 1991-92).

3. Adopt the recommendation in the report on implications of accepting different passing
standards for initial licensure (Attachment B).

The Examination Committee supports the report presented by the Nursing Practice and Education
Committee regarding continued competence.

Activities
1. The Committee met at CfBIMcGraw·HiII October 2-7, 1988; at the National Council office

October 26-28, 1988; at OakBrook Hills October 30 - November 1, 1988; at CfBIMcGraw-HiII
November 28 - December 2, 1988, March 19-23, 1989 and June 12-16, 1989. Conference calls
were held on December 21, 1989; January 18, 1989; May 11, 1989; and July 5, 1989. The
Committee met with the Nursing Practice and Education Committee on October 31, 1988, and
on April 5, 1989. The Committee met with the Committee for Special Projects on October 31,
1988.

2. Adopted real and tryout items for NCLEX-PN 489 and 089.

3. Adopted real and tryout items for NCLEX-RN 789 and 290.

4. Adopted confidential directions for NCLEX-PN 089 and 490.

5. Adopted confidential directions for NCLEX-RN 789 and 290.

6. Adopted confidential directions for item writing sessions.

7. Evaluated item writing and panel of content expert sessions for process and productivity.

a. May 1988 RN-CAT item writing - 15 writers produced 389 items
b. May - July 1988 RN-CAT mail-in item writing - 14 writers produced 305 items
c. June 1988 PN item writing - 13 writers produced 327 items
d. July 1988 RN-CAT item writing - 16 writers produced 398 items
e. July 1988 RN item writing. 16 writers produced 429 items
f. September 1988 RN panel of content experts - 15 experts reviewed 632 items; 12 were

deleted; 620 were approved
g. October 1988 RN-CAT panel of content experts - 16 experts reviewed 873 items; 29 were

deleted; 844 were approved
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h. December 1988 PN panel of content experts - 15 experts reviewed 530 items; 20 were
deleted; 510 were approved

i. January 1989 RN item writers - 14 writers produced 294 items
j. March 1989 RN panel of content experts - 13 experts reviewed 441 items; 28 were deleted;

413 were approved

8. Reviewed RN and PN items that were designated by Member Boards as inconsistent with state
statutes.

9. Evaluated NCLEX-PN 488, 088, 489 (preliminary report) and NCLEX-RN 788 and 289,
following administration. This included a review of item performance, passing results, reliability,
mean difficulty level, mean discrimination index, deleted items, mean ability estimate and
standard deviation.

10. Revised the PN test plan. Reviewed comments from Member Boards and incorporated them
into the final draft.

11. The Committee has been reviewing reports from the tcst service on ethnicity/gender bias for
two years. Procedures that will be used for the review of potentially biased items have been
approved by the Board of Directors. These will be implemented in FY90.

12. The Committee has been reviewing reports from the test service on person-fit for two years.
Procedures for use of person-fit analysis were approved by the Board of Directors.

13. The Committee developed a paper on its role in the evaluation of continued competence that
was shared with the Nursing Practice and Education Committee and the Board of Directors.

14. Reviewed a sample of test items flagged in the ethnicity/gender analysis in order to gain an
understanding of possible factors leading to nagging.

15. Reviewed reports from the test service on standard setting, part II of the context effects study
and the stability of b-values.

16. Approved the new review draft schedule and decided to offer Member Boards a choice between
review drafts and previously administered examinations.

17. Developed a memo to Member Boards concerning pass/fail reporting.

18. Reviewed drafts of the revised Security Measures and Crisis Management Plan to proVide input
to the Administration of Examination Committee.

19. Selected January and July RN item writers, August PN item writers, and March RN and
September RN panels of content experts.

20. Discussed the feasibility of increasing the number of NCLEX-RN administrations.

21. Approved the final revision of the NCLEX-RN detailed test plan.
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22. Proposed new criteria and revised the biography form for selection of the panel of judges which
was approved by the Board.

23. Proposed mechanisms to better utilize Examination Committee alternates in assisting the
Committee with its tasks.

24. Identified RN and PN examinations to be used for the Crisis Management Plan.

25. Discussed implications of the dimensionality study.

26. Began a study to compare CNATS and NCLEX.

27. Approved the examination used to retest the nine Missouri candidates who were reported as
passing NCLEX-PN 088 when they had in fact failed.

28. Hired a consultant to develop the PN detailed test plan.

29. Reviewed an article and psychometric and legal analysis, concerning the number of times
candidates should be allowed to retake licensure examinations.

30. Reviewed and updated Committee policies and procedures.

31. The Chairperson made a site visit to Guam and Saipan to discuss examination-related issues
and nursing education.

32. Reviewed a draft of the test service RFP.

Committee Members
Dorothy Chesley, TX-RN, Area III Representative, Chairperson
Philip Authier, SD, Area II Representative
Karen Brumley, CO, Area I Representative
Terry DeMarcay, LA-PN, PN Board Representative
Mauhee Edmondson, KY, Representative-at-Large
Milene Megel, NY, Area IV Representative

Alternates
Barbara Carberry, AK
Gwen Hinchey, CA-VN
Margaret Howard, NJ
Chris Ivy, WA-PN
Lura Kohrman, WY
Larry Loden, MS
Elaine Mcintosh, TN
Rosa Weinert, OH

Staff
Nancy J. Miller, Assistant Director of Testing Services
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Examination Committee Goals and Objectives for
1989-90

Goal I: Monitor the licensing examinations according to established policies and procedures.

Objectives:
A. Develop confidential directions for item writing sessions to meet the needs of the

pool.

B. Develop confidential directions for forms of the examination.

C. Approve forms of the examination which meet the test plan specifications and
established criteria.

D. Approve items for tryout according to established criteria.

E. Evaluate licensing examinations after administration according to established criteria.

F. Select Item Writers and Panel of Content Experts using established criteria.

G. Recommend Panel of Judges members to the Board of Directors using established
criteria.

H. Evaluate the processes for Item Writer, Panel of Content Experts, Panel of Judges
nomination and selection.

I. Evaluate the productivity of Item Writers and Panel of Content Experts using
established criteria.

J. Represent Examination Committee at the Panel of Content Experts sessions.

K. Monitor the effectiveness of the diagnostic profiles.

L. Evaluate the reliability of the NCLEX-RN and NCLEX-PN.

M. Monitor current trends in the health care delivery system relative to content validity
of examination items.

N. Review and revise committee policies and procedures.
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Goal II. Communicate with committees, task forces, liaison Board Member and the membership
dealing with matters related to examinations.

Objectives:
A Review periodic progress reports and consult on mallers related to computerized

adaptive testing and computerized clinical simulation testing.

B. Meet with other committees as needed.

Goal III. Provide direction for investigation, study and research on licensing examinations.

Objectives:
A. Review results of RN job analysis study and make recommendations to the Delegate

Assembly.

B. Approve and publish revised PN test plan and detailed test plan.

C. Compare Canadian Nurses Association Testing Services examination (CNATS) to
NCLEX and make recommendations regarding comparability of the two examinations.

D. Monitor truth-in-testing legislation and make recommendations as necessary.

E. Review the dimensionality study and make recommendations as necessary.

F. Subcommittee to meet with Nursing Practice and Education regarding continued
competence (depending on direction of Delegate Assembly).

Narional Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Attachment A

TEST PLAN FOR THE NATIONAL COUNCIL LICENSURE EXAMINATION FOR PRACTICAL NURSES·

Entry into the practice of nursing in the United States and its territories is regulated by the licensing
authorities in the jurisdictions. Each jurisdiction requires a candidate for licensure to pass an examination
that measures the competencies needed to perform safely and effectively as a newly licensed entry-level
practical nurse. An entry-level practical nurse is defined as a newly licensed practical nurse who has been
employed for six months or less.

Developed by the National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc., The National Council Licensure
Examination for Practical Nurses (NCLEX-PN) is the examination used by those jurisdictions whose boards
of nursing are National Council members.

The initial step in developing the examination for practical nurse licensure is preparation of the test plan
to guide selection of content and behaviors to be tested. In the plan, provision is made for an examination
reflecting entry-level nursing practice as identified by Kane and Colton in the Job Analysis of Newly
Licensed PracticalNocational Nurses - 1986-1987.

The activities identified in the job analysis were analyzed in relation to the frequency of their performance,
their impact on maintaining client safety, the various settings in which they were performed, and the age
ranges of clients.

This analysis resulted in the identification of a framework for entry-level performance that incorporates the
nursing process and specific client needs and also reflects age and practice setting. The basic framework
is similar to that used in the Registered Nurse Test Plan, which reflects the continuum of nursing practice.
The Practical Nurse Test Plan is distinguished from the Registered Nurse Test Plan by the scope of practice
as defined by member juriSdictions, by the practical nurse job analyses, and by the tested levels of cognitive
abilities.

The test plan provides a concise summary of the content and scope of the examination and serves as a guide
for candidates preparing to write the examination and for those individuals involved in developing it.

Based on the test plan, each assembled NCLEX-PN examination reflects the knowledge, skills, and abilities
essential for application of the phases of the nursing process to meet the needs of clients with commonly
occurring health problems having predictable outcomes. The following sections describe beliefs about
nursing and clients, the levels of cognitive ability that will be tested in the examination, and the specific
components of the NCLEX-PN test plan.

·The term practical nurse denotes both practical and
vocational nurses.
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BELIEFS

Beliefs about the nature of people and nursing underlie the test plan. Nursing has a unique concern toward
helping clients to achieve an optimal state of health. Recipients of nursing care are viewed as finite beings
with varying capacities to function in society. These recipients are unique persons defining their own
systems of daily living that reflect values, motives, and lifestyles. Additionally, they are viewed as having
the right to determine what kind of health care should be available to meet present and future needs. The
consumer of nursing is an individual or group of individuals in need of assistance with maintaining life,
promoting health, coping with health problems, adapting to or recovering from the effects of disease or
injury, and dying with dignity.

The nature of nursing is dynamic and evolving. It is perceived as deliberate action of a personal and
assisting nature. The goal of nursing is to promote health and to assist individuals in attaining an optimal
level of functioning through responding to the needs, conditions, or events that result from actual or
potential health problems and that provide the focus for the nurse's plan of care. The domain of nursing
and the relevant knowledge, skills, and abilities exist along a continuum and are organized and defined by
professional and legal parameters.

Upon entry into nursing practice, the practical nurse, under appropriate supervision, is expected to care for
the client and/or assist the client's significant others in the provision of care. The practical nurse
contributes to data collection for the identification of the health needs/problems of clients throughout their
life cycle and in a variety of settings. Based upon established nursing diagnoses, the practical nurse
contributes to planning nursing measures to meet identified needs and participates in evaluating the extent
to which identified outcomes are achieved.

The practice of practical nursing requires basic knowledge of 1) nursing process; 2) coordination of safe,
effective care; 3) client's physiological needs; 4) client's psychosocial needs; and 5) maintenance and
promotion of health. The following elements are integrated throughout NCLEX-PN: accountability,
nutrition, pharmacology, body structure and function, pathophysiology, principles of asepsis, growth and
development, documentation, communication, teaching appropriate to the scope of practice, and mental
health concepts.

LEVELS OF COGNITIVE ABILIlY

The examination includes test items at the cognitive levels of knowledge, comprehension, and application.
Weighing (i.e., the number of items assigned to each level) is not specified for the levels of cognitive ability;
however, most items in the examination are at the comprehension and application levels.

COMPONENTS OF THE TEST PLAN

Two components are addressed within the framework of the test plan: 1) phase of the nursing process; and
2) client needs. These are described in the following sections.

PHASES OF THE NURSING PROCESS

The phases of the nursing process are grouped under the broad categories of collecting data, planning,
implementing, and evaluating nursing care. The practical nurse assists with the collection of data about the
client, contributes to the client's plan of care, performs basic therapeutic and preventive nursing measures,
and assists in evaluating the outcomes of nursing interventions.
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The entry-level practical nurse acts in a more dependent role when partlctpating in the planning anu
evaluation phases of the nursing process and acts in a more independent role when participating in the data
collecting and implementing phases of the nursing process. Therefore, the percentages of questions
representing the various phases of the nursing process are as follows: 1) collecting data - 30%, 2) planning
- 20%. 3) implementing - 30%, 4) evaluating - 20%.

I. In collecting data about clients with commonly occurring health problems having predictable
outcomes, the practical nurse:

A. Contributes to the development of a data base about clients by:

1. Observing the physiological, psychosocial, health and safety needs of clients.

2. Collecting information from the client, significant others. health team members and
records.

3. Determining the need for more information.

4. Communicating findings of data collected.

B. Participa tes in the formulation of nursing diagnoses.

II. In planning care for clients with commonly occurring health problems having predictable outcomes.
the practical nurse:

A. Contributes to the development of nursing care plans for clients with health neeus.

B. Assists in the formulation of goals.

C. Participates in the identification of clients' needs and nursing measures required to achieve
goals.

D. Communicates needs that may require alteration of the care plan.

E. Communicates with the client, significant others and/or health team members in planning
nursing care.

III. In implementing care for clients with commonly occurring health problems having predictable
outcomes, the practical nurse:

A. Performs basic therapeutic and preventive nursing measures by following a prescribed plan
of care to achieve established client goals.

B. Provides a safe and effective environment.

C. Assists client, significant others and health care members to understand the client's plan
of care.

D. Records client information and reports it to other health team members.
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IV. In evaluating care of clients with commonly occurring health problems having predictable outcomes,
the practical nurse:

A Participates in evaluating the effectiveness of the client's nursing care.

B. Assists in evaluating the client's response to nursing care and in making appropriate
alterations.

C. Evaluates the extent to which identified outcomes of the care plan are achieved.

D. Records and describes the client's responses to therapy and/or care.

CliENT NEEDS

The health needs of clients are grouped under four broad categories: A) safe, effective care environment,
B) physiological integrity, C) psychosocial integrity, and D) health promotion/maintenance. The weighing
of these categories was based on an analysis of the results of a job analysis study completed in 1987. Thus,
the percentage of items assigned to each category of client need is as follows:

A

B.

C.

Do

Safe, effective care environment

Physiological integrity

Psychosocial integrity

Health promotion and maintenance

24-30 percent

42-48 percent

7-13 percent

15-21 percent

A. Safe, Effective Care Environment
The practical nurse participates as a member of the health care team to assist in meeting
client needs for a safe and effective environment by providing nursing care to clients with
common health problems that occur throughout the life cycle and have predictable outcomes·
in the following categories:

1. Coordinated care

20 Standards of care

3. Goal-oriented care

40 Environmental safety

50 Preparation for treatments and procedures

6. Safe and effective treatments and procedures
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Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities
In order to meet client needs for a safe and effective environment, the practical nurse
should possess basic knowledge, skills, and abilities that include but are not limited to the
following examples:

knowledge of data-gathering techniques; interpersonal communication skills;
alternative methods of communication for clients with special needs; client
preparation for prescribed treatments and procedures; environmental and client
safety; infection control; client rights; confidentiality; individualization of care,
including religious, cultural, and developmental influences; team participation in care
planning and evaluation; and general knowledge of community agencies.

B. Physiological Integrity
The practical nurse participates as a member of the health care team to assist in meeting
the physiological needs of clients with common health problems that occur throughout the
life cycle and have predictable outcomes. This includes clients with acute and chronic
conditions and clients at risk for the development of complications. Nursing care is
provided to promote achievement of the following client needs:

7. Physiological adaptation

8. Reduction of risk potential

9. Mobility

10. Comfort

11. Provisions of basic care

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities
In order to meet client needs for physiological integrity, the practical nurse should possess
basic knOWledge, skills, and abilities in areas that include but are not limited to the
following examples:

knowledge of therapeutic and life-saving procedures, specialiZed equipment,
principles of administering medications, maintenance of optimal body functioning
and prevention of complications, principles of body mechanics and assistive devices,
comfort measures, routine nursing measures, and reporting changes in a client's
condition.

C. Psychosocial Integrity
The practical nurse participates as a member of the health care team to assist in meeting
the psychosocial needs of clients with common health problems that occur throughout the
life cycle and have predictable outcomes. Nursing care is provided to promote achievement
of the following client needs:

12. Psychosocial adaptation

13. Coping/Adaptation
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Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities
In order to meet client needs for psychosocial integrity, the practical nurse should possess
basic knowledge, skills, and abilities in areas that include but are not limited to the
following examples:

obvious signs of emotional and mental health problems, self-concept, life crises,
chemical dependency, adaptive and maladaptive behavior, sensory deprivation and
overload, abusive and self-destructive behavior, therapeutic communication, common
therapies, and general knowledge of community resources.

D. Health PromotionIMlIintenance
The practical nurse participates as a member of the health care team to assist in meeting
health promotion and maintenance needs of clients with common health problems that
occur throughout the life cycle and have predictable outcomes. Nursing care is provided
to promote fulfillment of the following client needs:

14. Continued growth and development

15. Self-care

16. Integrity of support system

17. Prevention and early treatment of disease

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities
In order to meet client needs for health promotion/maintenance, the practical nurse should
possess basic knowledge, skills, and abilities in areas that include but are not limited to the
following:

family interactions; concepts of wellness; adaptation to altered health states;
reproduction and human sexuality; birthing and parenting; growth and development,
including dying and death; immunization; health teaching that is appropriate to the
scope of practice; and general knowledge of community resources.
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Attachment B

IMPLICATIONS OF ACCEPTING DIFFERENT PASSING STANDARDS FOR INITIAL LICENSURE

Recommendation
Regarding the issue of establishing different passing standards, the Examination Committee makes the
following recommendation to the Delegate Assembly:

Recognize that jurisdictions have the responsibility and authority to establish standards for
licensure within their borders. Jurisdictions which have reviewed and accepted the passing
standard established by the National Council will be entitled to utilize the validation studies
in support of the Council's standard to defend their own licensure decisions. Jurisdictions
which choose to adopt a different standard will bear the burden of validating and defending
that standard, and establishing procedures to deal with endorsement of licensees. The
National Council will notify all Member Boards of any jurisdictions choosing a different
passing standard.

Introduction
The purpose of this paper is to explore the implications of jurisdictions having different passing standards
for the National Council Licensure Examinations. Different passing standards can be defined as being
higher or lower than the standard currently accepted nationwide. The implications from a legal,
psychometric and regulatory perspective will be presented.

Historical Background
The licensing authorities in each jurisdiction generally have the statutory right or obligation to determine
the passing standard for examinations that are required for licensure within the jurisdiction.

Prior to 1944, nursing licensure examinations were developed by each state and norm-referenced passing
standards were set by the board of nurse examiners or an analogous body. In January 1944, the State Board
Test Pool Service began operating and by the end of that year all 48 states, the District of Columbia, and
some Canadian provinces used the service for the registered nursing examination (SBTPE). The practical
nurse examination was first used in 1950, but not all states used this examination until 1962.

In January 1962, it was recommended that a scale score of 350 be the passing standard for each of the five
parts of the registered nursing examination. This standard was not adopted by all states, but Council
archives do not indicate exactly how many or which states had different standards during this period of time.

A Member Board survey done in 1979 indicates that some states allowed candidates to retake the SBTPE
to upgrade their scores when moving to a jurisdiction that required higher passing scores to be licensed.
This indicates that different passing standards were probably in effect in 1979.

The 1980 Delegate Assembly unanimously voted to standardize the scoring system used by all states for the
registered nursing examination. Implementation would occur at the same time as a new comprehensive (one
part instead of five) examination was instituted. The mean scale score for the new examination would be
approximately 2000, a standard deviation of 400 and a recommended passing score of 1600. No similar
scale was adopted for the practical nursing examination at this time.

In 1980, in connection with the above-mentioned changes, the examination's name was changed to NCLEX
(National Council Licensure Examination). In 1982 the first forms of NCLEX-RN and NCLEX-PN were
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administered. The Delegate Assembly adopted a criterion-referenced approach to selling the passing
standards for these examinations. The passing scores recommended by the Board of Directors to the
jurisdictions were 1600 and 350 for the NCLEX-RN and NCLEX-PN, respectively. Council records indicate
that all Member Boards adopted these recommended standards.

The California Board of Vocational Nurse and Psychiatric Technician Examiners used the SBTPE through
1974, when they discontinued membership in the National Council. From that time until 1986, when the
Board resumed membership, California used a state-constructed examination for vocational nurse licensure.
From October 1986 to the present, the California-VN Board has used the recommended passing standard
for the NCLEX-PN.

The Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (Saipan) became a member of the National Council
in 1986. In 1987, during the course of responding to a survey regarding pass/fail reporting, Saipan indicated
that it used passing scores of 1400 and 300 for the NCLEX-RN and NCLEX-PN, respectively. Saipan
continues to use those passing standards, but candidates receive the normal reports of results from
CfBlMcGraw-HiII, with notice of licensure for practice in Saipan only for candidates scoring between the
local and national standards handled by the Board of Nursing through individual correspondence with the
candidates.

The rationale for the recommendation that a uniform passing standard be adopted was that the criterion­
referenced approach for standard selling results in establishment of the level of minimum competence
required for safe and effective nursing practice, and ensures a consistent standard among the jurisdictions.
(Warner, 1988). A national passing standard is congruent with a nationally-used examination that assesses
nationally uniform nursing competencies.

Review or ImpliClllions
Member Boards have the legal right to establish their own passing standards. (Schimberg, 1981). To the
extent that the jurisdiction deviates from the passing standard recommended by the National Council, the
jurisdiction bears the responsibility of establishing, presumably through research, that a different level of
minimal competence is (locally) applicable. The jurisdiction alone is accountable for supporting the level
of minimum competence (passing standard) it chooses to use under these circumstances.

Psychometrically, the pertinent question is whether minimal competence has a regional or a national
definition. The National Council's extensive job analyses have demonstrated that the content required for
nursing practice is uniform and supports the adoption of a nationally used test plan. To substantiate a
regional definition of the level required for minimal competence, it would be necessary to perform further
research. At a minimum, it would be necessary to conduct standard selling processes regionally and to
evaluate their outcomes for significant differences. The absence of any such differences would indicate that
it would be fairly difficult for a jurisdiction to produce evidence to support a different passing standard,
while the presence of differences would indicate that different standards could be supported.

Setting a Higher Standard
The implications of setting a higher standard relate primarily to the legal rights of candidates and the
challenges they might bring against the examination.

If a higher standard is chosen by a jurisdiction, and meaningful psychometric validation is not utilized, the
failing candidate may argue that individual constitutional rights were violated and that a violation of the
antitrust laws occurred. To defend a suit brought by such a candidate, the jurisdiction would probably have
to present evidence that the level of competence it requires was not arbitrarily set, or set to restrict the
supply of nurses, but is the appropriate level for assuring that licensees are safe practitioners.
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The decision about what passing standard to use must not be an arbitrary decision for a jurisdiction.
Setting a higher or lower standard might be deemed arbitrary unless the jurisdiction had gone through a
standard-setting process, which prodUced as an outcome the passing standard being used. In the absence
of strong evidence to the contrary on the jurisdiction level, it is most reasonable to accept the standard
recommended on the basis of national evidence and judgments.

Setting a Lower Standard
The implications of setting a lower passing standard are primarily regulatory in nature. If a jurisdiction sets
a passing standard that is lower than the one established by the National Council and nurses are licensed
who might not be minimally competent, the jurisdiction may not be fulfilling its charge to protect the
public.

On the other hand, it is possible that nurses who are licensed at a lower standard practice safely, Le., there
is no manifest decline in the quality of nursing care. This would constitute evidence that the standard
established by the National Council may be too high. This has a psychometric implication, namely that the
methods used for setting the standard would require re-examination to determine whether the difference
was due to local situations or to some flaw in the standard setting process that was applied.

Another regulatory implication of setting a different passing standard, lower or higher, is the complications
that would result for interstate endorsement. Endorsement would be likely to become difficult and
confusing if different passing standards were used. The processing of endorsement requests would require
involvement of staff at the National Council or test service, because it would not be obvious from the
pass/fail reports whether the candidate would meet a different standard held by a state into which he or she
wished to endorse.

Options for the National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.
There are basically two options for dealing with the issue of setting different passing standards. They are
described briefly as follows:

Option 1.

Option 2.

Recognize that jurisdictions have the right to set different
passing standards, but require that any jurisdiction wishing
to use the NCLEX must use the passing standard
established by the National Council.

Recognize that jurisdictions have the right to set different
passing standards, but ensure that the National Council
assumes no responsibility for establishing the validity of
a standard that differs from the nationally recommended
standard.

The first option would assure the use of one passing standard for all jurisdictions using the NCLEX. This
option would not, however, assure that all jurisdictions would continue to use the NCLEX. A jurisdiction
might choose to develop its own examination or contract with a testing service to develop an examination.
This would necessitate additional work by jurisdictions prior to endorsement to determine (a) comparability
of examinations, and for comparable examinations, (b) comparability of passing standards.

The second option would allow for the possibility that a jurisdiction or jurisdictions would establish a
passing standard different from that recommended by the National Council. The jurisdiction would be
solely accountable for defending a standard different from that recommended by the National Council. This
mayor may not be a deterrent for a jurisdiction to select a different standard.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



16

If any jurisdiction established different passing standards, it would necessitate additional work, and possibly
additional cost, by jurisdictions prior to endorsement to determine whether the candidate exceeded the
different standard. The jurisdiction would have to bear any additional data processing costs incurred by the
test service in order to accommodate reporting results according to its unique standard.

Recommendation
Regarding the issue of establishing different passing standards, the Examination Committee makes the
following recommendation to the Delegate Assembly:

Recognize that jurisdictions have the responsibility and authority to establish standards for
licensure within their borders. Jurisdictions which have reviewed and accepted the passing
standard established by the National Council will be entitled to utilize the validation studies
in support of the Council's standard to defend their own licensure decisions. Jurisdictions
which choose to adopt a different standard will bear the burden of validating and defending
that standard, and establishing procedures to deal with endorsement of licensees. The
National Council will notify all Member Boards of any jurisdictions choosing a different
passing standard.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Report of Administration of Examination
Committee

Recommendations
1. The Committee recommends the following dates for the 1999 regular administration of NCLEX

examinations: RN, February 2 and 3 (T-W) and July 13 and 14 (T-W); PN, April 14 (W) and
October 13 (W).

2. The Committee recommends the following as alternate dates for the 1999 administration of
NCLEX examinations, should the Crisis Management Plan be implemented: RN, March 3
and 4 (T-W) and September 13 and 14 (M-T); PN, May 11 (T) and November 17 (W).

3. The Committee recommends adoption of the proposed changes to the Security Measures
(Attachment A).

Activities
The Committee conducted its business according to directions of the Delegate Assembly and the
Board of Directors. The objectives as defined by the Committee in accordance with the Council
Bylaws and Operational Plan were accomplished.

The Administration of the Examination Committee (ABC) held two meetings and a conference
call. The meetings were held on October 30 - November I, 1988, and March 13 - 15, 1989. The
conference call meeting took place on May 9, 1989. A joint meeting was held during the October
meeting with the Committee for Special Projects (CSP) and Computerized Clinical Simulation
Testing Steering (CST) Committees.

The Committee continued to review detailed reports of the Delaware Board of Nursing
administration of NCLEX-PN in Germany. The Delaware Board has continued to carry out the
Germany administrations in compliance with Security Measures and approved procedures.

The procedures necessary to implement the new Crisis Management Plan (CMP) were developed
and implemented. Security measures developed by the printer of the CMP were approved. A
plan for secure destruction of test booklets which were stored under the previous disaster plan
was approved.

The Committee reviewed the implications of increasing the number of annual administrations of
NCLEX.

Members of the Committee and testing services staff held special sessions on common problems
with the administration of NCLEX at each Area meeting.
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The Committee advised the Committee for Special Projects on security measures for field testing
and item pool editing for Computerized Adaptive Testing (CAT). The Committee advised the
Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing Steering Committee regarding Security Measures and
procedures for the Case Development Committee.

In addition to the annual random procedure review, procedures were reviewed whenever a
jurisdiction had a significant unusual incident where the security of the examination may have been
compromised. Investigations were carried out on all unusual incidents. Recommendations were
made to the Board of Directors for action when appropriate.

The Chairperson conducted a site visit at the American Samoa Nursing Practice Committee. The
purpose of the visit was to discuss NCLEX security, administration issues and Council services.
There was also discussion of nursing education and board structure.

The Committee reviewed and approved Council staff authorizations for modifications issued for
61 handicapped candidates (dyslexiallearning disability/reading disability-46, visual-ll, physical-4).
Extension of time was granted for 61 candidates; readers were approved for 15 candidates; and a
recorder was granted for one candidate. One candidate used a magnifying glass, one used a visual
tech magnifier and one used a ruler. Advice was sought from legal counsel on the Council's role
in handling handicapped candidate requests: Member Boards have the responsibility of making the
determination as to whether a candidate is handicapped; however, the Council must be informed
of the handicapping condition in order to be able to approve modifications.

The Committee reviewed and approved six requests for examination review by failure candidates.

The members of the Committee thank the Board of Directors and Delegate Assembly for the
opportunity to serve the National Council and Member Boards in this manner. The Committee
has found it a pleasure to work with testing services staff and crB/McGraw-HiIl staff. Special
thanks are extended to Debra Tomsky for her administrative assistance to the Committee.

Committee Members and Staff
Gail McGuill, AI(, Area I, Chairperson
Betty Blake, GA-RN, Area III
Betty Clark, ME, Area IV
Florence Stillman, MO, Area II
Katheryn Tripeny, WY, Area I
Barbara W. Winn, SC, Area III

Nancy J. Miller, Assistant Director of Testing Services
Debra A Tomsky, Administrative Assistant, Testing Services

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



NCLEX SECURITY MEASURES - DRAFT COpy New material indicated by underline.
Attachment A

NATIONAL COUNCIL OF STATE BOARDS OF NURSING, INC.

SECURITY MEASURES

FOR THE

NATIONAL COUNCIL LICENSURE EXAMINATIONS

Jurisdiction

Effective Date of Security Measures

Standards

RN

PN

PN and RN

Board of Nursing
Information

1.

II.

IMPLEMENTATION OF SECURITY
MEASURES

One person shall be designated
by the Board of Nursing who is
responsible for implementing the
security measures.

RECEIPT, INVENTORY, STORAGE AND
TRANSPORTATION OF TEST BOOKLETS

A. No more than three
authorized persons per site
shall receive the test
booklets from the carrier.

1.
There is one person designated
by the Board of Nursing who is
responsible for implementing
the security measures.

Job Title
Agency

II.A.
There are no more than three
authorized persons per site who
receive the test booklets from
the carrier.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency

B.

C.

At least two authorized
persons shall jointly
conduct an inventory of the
test booklet containers
within two working days of
receipt.

A written record of the
inventory shall be made and
maintained for six months.

II. B.
There are at least two
authorized persons who jointly
conduct an inventory of the
test booklet containers within
two working days of receipt.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Others

II. C.
There is a written record of
the inventory maintained for
six months.
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Jurisdiction

standards

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 2

Board of Nursing
Information

D.

E.

F.

G.

H.

Any discrepancy in the
number of containers
shipped and received shall
be reported to the Council.
the test service. and
investigative agency
immediately by telephone.
A copy of the written
report of the discrepancies
shall be mailed to all
agencies within 24 hOUrs of
the incident.

A written report of damaged
containers shall be
submitted to the test
service and to the Council
immediately.

The written report and
evidence of damage shall be
retained for six months
unless otherwise specified
by the Council.

There shall be secure
storage for test booklets
into which containers are
placed immediately upon
receipt.

No more than three
authorized persons per site
shall supervise the
placement of the test
booklets into secure
storage.

II .D.
Any discrepancy in the number
of containers shipped and
received is reported to the
Council. the test service. and
investigative agency
immediately by telephone. A
copy of the written report of
the discrepancies is mailed to
all agencies within 24 hours of
the incident.

Name of Investigative Agency:

II-E.
A written report of damaged
containers is submitted to the
test service and to the Council
immediately.

II.F.
The written report and evidence
of damage is retain for six
months unless otherwise
specified by the Council.

II.G.
There is secure storage for
test booklets into which they
are placed immediately upon
receipt.

II.H.
There are no more than three
authorized persons per site
supervising the placement of
the test booklets into secure
storage.

Storage is within Board office
AND/OR

Storage is at the examination
center

AND/OR
other: _

(Add mUltiple site storage on
reverse side or on separate sheet).
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Jurisdiction

Standards

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 3

Board of Nursing
Information

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency

1. While booklets are in the
custody of the Board, each
storage facility shall be
secure in the following
ways:

The lock on the
storage facility shall
be unique. It may be
a key lock, a
combination lock, or a
fail secure electronic
locking device.

II. I.
While booklets are in the
custody of the Board, each
storage facility is secure in
all of the following ways:

II. 1. 1-
The lock on the storage
facility is unique. It may be
a key lock, a combination lock,
or a fail secure electronic
locking device.

2.

3.

No more than three
authorized persons
shall have access to
the unique lock.

Off-site storage areas
must be double-locked.
No one person controls
access to both locks.
A visible seal may be
used.

Off-site storage
shall be
inspected daily
for maintenance
of security.

11.1.2.
There are no more than three
authorized persons with access
to the unique lock.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency

II. 1. 3 .
Off-site storaqe areas are
double-locked. No one Derson
controls access to both locks.
A visible seal may be used. If
a visible seal is used. it will
be so noted in the compliance
report.

II.1.3.a.
Off-site storage is inspected
daily for maintenance of
security.
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Jurisdiction

standards

A written record
of the
maintenance of
security checks
shall be made and
maintained for
six months.

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 4

Board of Nursing
Information

II.L3.b.
A written record of the
maintenance of security checks
is maintained for six months.

4 •

5.

Any discrepancy
in security
checks shall be
reported
immediately by
telephone to the
Council. the test
service. and to
the
investigative
agency. A copy
of the written
report of the
discrepancies
shall be mailed
to all agencies
within 24 hours
of the incident.

Entrance into all
storage facilities
shall be supervised by
one of the authorized
individuals with
access to the unique
lock.

There shall be
controlled access to
the storage facility.
All ducts, vents and
windows are secured.

ILI.3.c.
Any discrepancy in security
checks is reported immediately
by telephone to the Council,
the test service. and to the
investigative agency. A copy
of the written report of the
discrepancies is mailed to all
agencies within 24 hours of the
incident.

ILL4.
Entrance into all storage
facilities is supervised by one
of the authorized individuals
with access to the unique lock
(see II.I.2. above).

ILL5.
There is controlled access to
the storage facility. All
ducts, vents and windows are
secured.

J. At least two authorized
persons shall jointly
conduct an inventory of the
packets at least one week
prior to the administration
of the examination.

II.J.
There are at least two
authorized persons jointly
conducting an inventory of the
packets at least one week prior
to the administration of the
examination.
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Jurisdiction

Standards

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 5

Board of Nursing
Information

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
others

K.

L.

M.

N.

O.

A written record of the
inventory shall be made and
maintained for six months.

Any discrepancy in the
inventory of packets shall
be reported immediately by
telephone to the Council.
the test service. and to
the investigative agency.
A copy of the written
report of the discrepancies
shall be mailed to all
agencies within 24 hours of
the incident.

There shall be secure
transportation of test
booklets to and from the
examination center(s) by
bonded carrier or vehicle
staffed with a member of
the examination team.

When the jurisdiction ships
test booklets to one or
more test administration
sites, the shipment shall
not identify the contents
by addressing or labeling.

A person designated at each
site shall assume
responsibility for:

II.K.
A written record of the
inventory is maintained for six
months.

II.L.
Any discrepancy in the
inventory of packets is
reported immediately by
telephone to the Council. the
test service, and to the
investigative agency. A copy of
the written report of the
discrepancies is mailed to gl1
agencies within 24 hours of the
incident.

II.M.
There is secure transportation
of test booklets to and from
the examination center{s) by
bonded carrier or vehicle
staffed with a member of the
examination team.

II.N.
When the jurisdiction ships
test booklets to one or more
test administration sites, the
shipment shall not identify the
contents by addressing or
labeling.

11.0.
There is a person designated at
each site who will assume
responsibility for:
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Jurisdiction

Standards

The receipt and secure
storage of the
shipment.

The inventory of the
containers/booklets.

The creation and
maintenance of written
records.

The reporting of any
discrepancies to the
Council, the test
service and the
investigative agency
within 24 hours of the
incident.

III. EXAMINATION CENTER

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 6

Board of Nursing
Information

I1.0.l.
The receipt and secure storage
of the shipment.

Job Title
Agency

11.0.2
The inventory of the
containers/booklets.

Job Title
Agency

11.0.3
The creation and maintenance of

-- written records.

Job Title
Agency

11.0,4
The reporting of any
discrepancies to the Council,
the test service and the
investigative agency within 24
hours of the incident.

Job Title
Agency

A. In selecting an examination
center, the following
requirements shall be met:

1. 10' X 3D" or 10' x 18"
tables - 4 candidates
on one side.

2. 10' X 3D" tables - 5
candidates on mUltiple
sides.

3. 8' X 30" tables - 3
candidates on one
side.

III .A.
In selecting an examination
center, all listed requirements
are met.
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Jurisdiction

Standards

4. 8' x 30" tables - 4
candidates on mUltiple
sides.

5. 6' x 30" or 6' x 18"
tables - 2 candidates
on one side.

6. 6' x 30" tables - 3
candidates on mUltiple
sides.

7.4'x30"or4'x18"
tables - 1 candidate
on one side.

8. 4' x 30" tables - 2
candidates on multiple
sides.

9. Tables less than 4' -1
candidate.

10. Round tables, 60" - 5
candidates.

11. Round tables, 72" - 6
candidates.

12. Round tables, 84" - 7
candidates.

13. stationary theater
seats with tablet arms
- every other seat
(limited to every
other row).

14. Movable classroom
chairs with tablet
arms - 18" apart.

15. Sufficient floor space
that allows a minimum
of 2~ feet for aisles
so that examination
team can move freely
for observation of
candidates.

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 7

Board of Nursing
Information
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Jurisdiction

standards

16. Restroom facilities
within the examination
center.

17. Access to and exit
from the examination
rooms shall be
controlled.

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 8

Board of Nursing
Information

B.

C.

D.

E.

There shall be provisions
for a hard, smooth writing
surface for each candidate.

Table(s) physically sepa­
rate from the candidates
shall be provided for the
proctors who distribute and
collect test booklets.

If test booklets are kept
at the examination center
at times other than during
the examination, there
shall be secure storage
with access limited to no
more than three authorized
persons. (See Section II.I)

Undistributed test booklets
shall be maintained in a
secure area under control
of the examiner or
designee(s) during the
examination with access
limited to members of the
examination team.

III. B.
A hard smooth writing surface
is provided.

IILC.
Table(s) physically separate
from the candidates are
provided for the proctors who
distribute and collect test
booklets.

III. D.
There is secure storage with
access limited to no more than
three authorized persons.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency

OR
Test booklets are not kept at
the examination center at times
other than during the
examination.

III.E.
Undistributed test booklets are
maintained in a secure area
during the examination under
control of the examiner or
designee(s) and with access
limited to members of the
examination team.

------------------------------_.
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Jurisdiction

Standards

IV. EXAMINATION TEAM

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 9

Board of Nursing
Information

A. In selecting members of the
examination team, the
following requirements
shall be met:

1. The person shall not
be affiliated with a
nursing program unless
the person is a
current Board member.

2. The person shall not
be a student in a
nursing program
preparing the person
for licensure.

3. The person has not
been disciplined by
the Board, and is not
under investigation.

4. The person shall
participate in an
orientation.

5. If the person has
worked at a previous
examination, the
person must have
demonstrated the
ability to perform the
assigned duties.

~ The examiner will be
notified and a record
kept of any kinship
between any examina­
tion team member and a
candidate taking the
exam at the test site
The record will be
kept for six months.

IV.A.
All criteria are utilized in
selecting the examination team.
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Jurisdiction

standards

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 10

Board of Nursing
Information

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

At least two examination
team members shall be
present in each examination
room.

At least one registered
nurse employee or nurse
member of the Board shall
be present at each
examination center, except
in those jurisdictions
which use a test
administration agency
approved by the Council.

There shall be at least one
examiner per examination
center. The examiner shall
be knowledgeable about the
requirements of these
security measures and
capable of conducting the
examination.
There shall be provisions
for an alternate to the
examiner who meets the same
requirements as the
examiner.

One proctor shall be
responsible for no more
than 35 candidates. The
duties of each proctor
shall include:

1. Participation in the
inventory of test
booklets.

2. Distribution of test
booklets to the
assigned candidates.

IV.B.
There are at least two
examination team members
present in each examination
room.

IV.C.
There is at least one regis­
tered nurse employee or nurse
member of the Board present at
each examination center.

OR
There is a Test Administration
Agency (TAA) which has been
approved by the Council. (The
enclosed addendum, pages 29-30,
is required when there is an
approved TAA.)

IV.D.
There is at least one examiner
per examination center who lS

knowledgeable about the
security measures and is
capable of conducting the
examination.

IV.E.
There are provisions for an
alternate to the examiner who
meets the same requirements as
the examiner.

IV.F.
Proctor/candidate ratio is no
more than 1: 35.

AND
All listed duties are assigned
to each proctor.
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Jurisdiction

Standards

3. Collection of test
booklets from the
assigned candidates
during rest room
breaks.

4. Collection of test
booklets from the
assigned candidates
upon completion of the
examination.

5. Issuance of exit
documents to the
assigned candidates;
e.g., pass, stamp, or
signature.

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 11

Board of Nursing
Information

G. There shall be members of
the examination team
specifically responsible
for each of the following
duties at the time of
examination administration:

1. Checking the
examination center for
compliance with
security measures.

2. Reading the directions
for the administration
of the examination to
the candidates.

3. Admitting candidates.

4. Identifying
candidates.

5. Performing inventory
of test booklets
before and after the
examination.

6. Distributing test
materials other than
booklets.

7. Observing candidates.

IV.G.
There are members of the
examination team specifically
responsible for each of the
listed duties.
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8. Supervising the unused
test booklets.

9. Escorting candidates
to and from the
restroom.

10. Monitoring the exit of
candidates.

11. Guarding the entrances
and exits of the
examination room.

12. Dealing with suspected
cheating.

13. Packing test booklets.

New material indicated by underline.
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H.

14. Escorting authorized
personnel, other than
examination team
members, such as
janitors, etc.

An orientation shall be
held for all members of the
examination team at least
once each year and shall
include the following:

1. Duties of each
examination team
member.

2. Review of all
materials related to
the examination
administration.

3. Examination schedule.

IV.H.
An annual orientation is held
for all members of the
examination team.

AND
All indicated topics are
covered in the orientation.

I. ~-
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4. Responsibilities for
security including
instructions that test
booklets are not to be
opened by anyone other
than the candidates.

5. Responsibilities for
emergency situations.

V. ADMINISTRATION OF THE
EXAMINATION

New material indicated by underline.
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A. Candidates shall be issued
an admission document by
the Board at least ten days
prior to the examination.

V.A.
An admission document is issued
at least 10 days prior to the
examination.

B. Identification and admis­
sion of candidates to each
part of the examination.

1.

2.

Entrance to the
examination room shall
be controlled by
member(s) of the
€xamination team.

Identification shall
be by the admission
document, and at least
one of the following:
picture, signature or
fingerprinting.

V. B.1.
Entrance to the examination
room is controlled by member(s)
of the examination team.

V.B.2.
Identification is by the
admission document and at least
one of the following:

picture
AND/OR

signature
AND/OR

fingerprinting



NCLEX SECURITY MEASURES - DRAFT COPY

Jurisdiction

standards

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 14

Board of Nursing
Information

3.

4.

5.

There shall be a
procedure for
identifying candidates
who arrive without
admission credentials.
The identification
shall be by verifying
the scheduling of the
individual against
Board records and at
least one of the
following: random
selection of another
candidate from the
same program,
signature, or drivers'
license.

If candidates are
admitted late, there
shall be no additional
examination time
allowed. No candidate
shall be admitted
after a candidate has
been released from an
examination room.

Identification of late
candidates shall be
the same as for all
other candidates.

V.B.3.
The identification of
candidates without admission
credentials is by verifying the
scheduling of individuals
against Board records and at
least one of the following:

random selection of another
candidate from the same
program.

AND/OR
signature

AND/OR
driver's license

V.B.4.
No late candidates are
admitted.

OR
When late candidates are
admitted, no additional time ~s

allowed and no candidates are
admitted after a candidate has
been released.

V.B.5.
Identification of late
candidates is the same as for
all other candidates.

C. The candidate shall retain
the same seat assignment
for all parts of the
examination except as
detailed below:

1. The examiner shall
approve the reassign­
ment of seats if it
becomes necessary
because of health or
for security reasons.

V.C.
Candidates retain the same seat
assignment throughout the
examination except for the
reasons specified in the
standard.
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2. The examiner shall
approve seating
adjustments for
candidates with mild
disabilities that
require special
consideration
regarding lighting,
acoustics, mobility,
and proximity to the
restroom facilities.

3. The examiner shall
inspect and may
approve any aide,
cushions, mattresses,
slings, braces,
special chairs,
crutches, or canes.

New material indicated by underline.
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D. Distribution of testing
materials at the
examination center:

1.

2.

3 •

At the time the shrink
wrap is broken on the
packet of test
booklets, two people
shall jointly conduct
an inventory of all
the test booklets in
the packet.

Prior to distribution
to candidates, the
proctor shall conduct
an inventory of the
test booklets if the
proctor was not
involved in the final
booklet inventory at
the time the shrink
wrap was broken.

There shall be a
written record of the
inventory made and
maintained for six
months.

V.D.l.
At the time the shrink wrap is
broken on the packet of test
booklets, two people jointly
conduct an inventory of all the
test booklets in the packet.

V.D.2.
Prior to distribution to
candidates, the proctor
conducts an inventory of the
test booklets if the proctor
was not involved in the
original booklet inventory at
the time the shrink wrap was
broken.

V.D.3.
A written record of the
inventory is maintained for 6
months.
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4.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Any discrepancy in the
number of booklets or
numbering of booklets
within the packet
shall be reported
immediately to the
examiner.

Anv discreDancv in the
number of booklets or
numbering of booklets
within the packet
shall be reported to
the Council. the test
service. and
investigative agency
immediately by
telephone.

Any packet in which a
discrepancy has been
found shall not be
used unless no other
packet is available.

A written report of
the discrepancy shall
be prepared by the two
individuals Who
conducted the
inventory.

A copy of the written
report of the
discrepancies shall be
mailed to the Council.
the test service, and
the investigative
agency within 24 hours
of the incident.

A copy of the report
shall be kept on file
by the jurisdiction
until the matter is
resolved.

V.D.4.
Any discrepancy in the number
of booklets or the numbering of
booklets within the packet is
reported immediately to the
examiner.

V.D.5.
Any discrepancy in the number
of booklets or numbering of
booklets within the packet is
reported to the Council, the
test service, and investigative
agency immediately by
telephone.

V.D.6.
Any packet in which a
discrepancy has been found is
not used unless no other packet
is available.

V. D. 7.
A written report of the
discrepancy is prepared by the
two individuals who conducted
the inventory.

V.D.8.
A copy of the written report of
the discrepancies is mailed to
the Council and test service
and the investigative agency
within 24 hours of the
incident.

V.D.9.
A copy of the report is kept on
file until the matter is
resolved.

J.
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10. Booklets for only one
part of the examina­
tion shall be given to
the proctor at a time.
Booklets for other
parts shall be under
the surveillance of a
member of the
examination team other
than the proctor.

11. Test booklets shall be
distributed to the
candidates at their
seats. There shall be
a written record made
of the distribution to
include the candidate
number and the
specific booklet given
to that candidate.
The written record
shall be maintained
for six months.

New material indicated by underline.
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V.D.10.
Booklets for only one part of
the examination shall be given
to the proctor at a time.
Booklets for other parts are
under the surveillance of a
member of the examination team
other than the proctor.

V.D.ll.
Test booklets are distributed
to candidates at their seats.

AND
A written record of the
distribution is maintained for
6 months.

E. Undistributed test booklets
shall be attended by a
member of examination team
at all times in one of the
following ways:

V.E.
Undistributed test booklets are
attended by a member of the
examination team at all times
in one of the following ways:

1.

2.

Carried in a
container.

Locked in a case not
accessible to
candidates.

Carried in a container.
OR

Locked in a case not accessible
to candidates.

OR
Maintained in a secure area.

3. Maintained in a secure
area.
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F.

G.

H.

1.

Candidates shall be allowed
to use the restroom
facilities during the
examination. A member of
the examination team shall
have the responsibility for
preventing candidates from
communicating with one
another. The test booklets
shall be retained by the
assigned proctor and no
additional time shall be
allowed.

Candidates shall be under
constant surveillance that
includes patrolling the
aisles by member(s) of the
examination team to assure
the candidates are:

1. Recording responses
appropriately.

2. Working independently.

3. Not using any
unauthorized aids.

4. Not lifting
information from the
test booklets.

There shall be a procedure
for dealing with candidates
who are suspected of
cheating.

If a candidate has been
given a damaged booklet, or
one with a printing error,
the candidate is to be
allowed to retain the
booklet, and a second
booklet is to be secured
and given to the candidate.

V.F.
Candidates are prevented from
communicating.

AND
The test booklet is retained by
the assigned proctor and no
additional time is allowed.

V.G.
Candidates are under constant
surveillance by the examination
team.

V.H.
There is a procedure for
dealing with candidates who are
suspected of cheating.

V.1.
The candidate is allowed to
retain the booklet, and a
second booklet is secured and
given to the candidate.

4 #!
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1.

2.

3.

The proctor shall make
a note on the
distribution record
that the candidate has
two booklets.

The proctor shall
collect both test
booklets prior to
dismissing the
candidate.

The proctor and exam­
iner shall prepare a
written report of the
incident. A copy of
the report shall be
mailed to the test
service and to the
council within 24
hours of the
completion of the
examination.

V.I.!.
The proctor makes a note on the
distribution record that the
candidate has two booklets.

V.I.2.
The proctor collects both test
booklets prior to dismissing
the candidate.

V.I.3.
The proctor and the examiner
prepare a written report of the
incident. A copy of the report
is mailed to the test service
and to the council within 24
hours of the completion of the
examination.

J.

K.

L.

Test booklets shall be
collected from the candi­
dates by the distributing
proctor. A written record
shall be made of this
transaction and maintained
for six months.

An exit release document
shall be given to the
candidate by the proctor
after the testing materials
have been returned to the
proctor.

Exit from the examination
room shall be controlled by
a member of the examination
team and a candidate shall
not be allowed to leave the
examination room without
showing the release
document.

V.J.
Test booklets are collected by
the distributing proctor.

AND
A written record of this
transaction is maintained for
six months.

V.K.
An exit release document is
given to the candidate by the
proctor after the testing
materials have been returned to
the proctor.

V.L.
Exit from the examination room
is controlled by a member of
the examination team and a
candidate is not allowed to
leave the room without showing
the release document.
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M. The test booklets shall be
returned to the designated
examination team member and
inventoried jointly by two
individuals. One of the
individuals performing the
inventory of the packet of
test booklets shall be the
assigned proctor who
received and inventoried
the packet and who
distributed the test
booklets to candidates.

V.M.
Test booklets are inventoried
jointly by the designated
examination team member and the
assigned proctor.

1.

2.

3.

4 •

5.

A written record shall
be made of this
transaction and
maintained for six
months.

Any discrepancy in the
number of booklets
distributed and
collected shall be re­
ported to the
examiner.

If the discrepancy is
not corrected immed­
iately, it shall be
reported by telephone
to the Council. the
test service. and the
investigative agency.

A written report shall
be prepared by the
proctor and the
examiner.

A copy of the written
report of the
discrepancies shall be
sent to the Council.
the test service. and
the investigative
agency within 24 hours
of the incident.

V.M.l.
A written record of this
transaction is maintained for
six months.

V.M.2.
Any discrepancy in the number
of booklets distributed and
collected is reported to the
examiner.

V.M.3.
If the discrepancy is not
corrected immediately, it is to
be immediately reported by
telephone to the Council. to
the test service and to the
investigative agency.

V.M.4.
A written report is prepared by
the proctor and the examiner.

V.M.S.
A copy of the written report of
the discrepancies is sent to
the Council. the test service
and the investigative agency
within 24 hours of the
incident.
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6. A copy of the report
shall be kept on file
by the jurisdiction
until the matter is
resolved.

V.M.6.
A copy of the report is kept on
file until the matter is
resolved.

N.

a.

P.

The returned test booklets
shall be under the surveil­
lance of an examination
team member until they are
returned to the secure
storage or are shipped.

The test booklets shall be
checked and prepared for
shipment. All test book­
lets shall be placed in the
appropriate containers.

A content and container
inventory of test booklets
shall be conducted jointly
by two individuals prior to
returning the containers to
secure storage or prior to
shipment.

V.N.
The returned test booklets are
under the surveillance of an
examination team member until
they are returned to secure
storage or are shipped.

v.a.
Test booklets are checked and
prepared for shipment and
placed in the appropriate
containers.

V.P.
A content and container
inventory is conducted jointly
by two persons prior to
returning the containers to
secure storage or prior to
shipment.

1.

2.

3 •

A written record shall
be made of this
transaction and
maintained for six
months.

Any discrepancy in the
content or number of
containers shall be
reported to the
examiner immediately.

If the discrepancy is
not corrected immedi­
ately. it shall be
reported by telephone
to the Council. the
test service. and the
investigative agency
immediately.

V.P.l.
A written record of this
transaction is maintained for
six months.

V.P.2.
Any discrepancy in the content
or number of containers is
reported to the examiner
immediately.

V.P.3.
If the discrepancy is not
corrected immediately, it is
reported by telephone to the
council. the test service and
the investigative agency
immediately.
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4.

5.

6.

A written report shall
be prepared by the two
individuals conducting
the inventory.

A copy of the written
report of the
discrepancies shall be
mailed to the Council,
the test service. and
the investigative
agency within 24 hours
of the incident.

A copy of the report
shall be kept on file
by the jurisdiction
until the matter is
resolved.

V,P.4.
A written report is prepared by
the two individuals conducting
the inventory.

V.P.5.
A copy of the written report of
the discrepancies is mailed to
the Council. the test service
and the investigative agency
within 24 hours of the
incident.

V.P.6.
A copy of the report is kept on
file until the matter is
resolved.

Q.

R.

The test booklets shall be
shipped by the method
designated by the test
service.

Only authorized individuals
shall be present during the
administration of the
examination. Authorized
individuals shall be
restricted to:

1. Members of the
examination team.

2. Identified candidates.

3. Personnel of the
examination center who
are discharging
essential duties, such
as janitors.

V.Q.
Test booklets are shipped by
the method designated by the
test service.

V.R.
Only authorized individuals are
present during the administra­
tion of the examination.
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VI. EMERGENCY SITUATIONS DURING
EXAMINATION ADMINISTRATION

There shall be a written
procedure for handling
emergencies that provides for:

A. Safety of the candidates.

B. Security of the test
booklets. Candidates shall
not be allowed to leave the
examination room with test
booklets in their
possession.

C. Safety of the examination
team.

VII. VERIFICATION OF SECURITY
COMPLIANCE

Following the administration of
each examination the person
responsible for implementing the
security measures shall provide
a written compliance report to
the council.

VIII. REVIEW OF POTENTIAL TEST ITEMS
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VI.
There is a written procedure
for handling emergencies that
provides for safety for the
candidates, security of the
booklets, and safety of the
examination team.

VII.
A written compliance report is
sent to the Council by the
person responsible for
implementing the security
measures.

A. No more than three
authorized persons shall
receive Shipment of "review
drafts" from the carrier.

VIlLA.
There are no more than three
authorized persons who receive
shipment of "review drafts"
from the carrier.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
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B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

At least two authorized
persons shall jointly
conduct an inventory of the
review drafts within two
working days of receipt.

A written record of this
inventory shall be made and
maintained for six months.

Any discrepancy in the
inventory of review drafts
shall be reported immedi­
ately by telephone to the
Council. the test service.
and the investigative
agency. A copy of the
written report of the
discrepancies shall be
mailed to all agencies
within 24 hours of the
incident.

There shall be secure
storage for the review
drafts into which the
drafts are placed as soon
as they are received.

No more than three
authorized persons shall
supervise the placement of
the review drafts into
secure storage.

VIII.B.
There are at least two
authorized persons who jointly
conduct an inventory of the
review drafts within two
working days of receipt.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Others

VIII.C.
A written record of the inven­
tory is maintained for six
months.

VIII. D.
Any discrepancy in the inven­
tory of review drafts is
reported immediately by
telephone to the Council, the
test service and the
investigative agency. A copy
of the written report of the
discrepancies is mailed to all
agencies within 24 hours of the
incident.

VIII.E.
There is secure storage for the
review drafts into which the
review drafts are placed as
soon as they are received.

VIII.F.
There are no more than three
authorized persons supervising
the placement of the drafts
into secure storage.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
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G. While review drafts are in
the custody of the Board,
the storage facility shall
be secure in the following
ways.

The lock on the stor­
age facility shall be
unique. It may be a
key lock, a combin­
ation lock, or a fail
secure electronic
locking device.

VIII .G.
While review drafts are in the
custody of the Board, the
storage facility is secure in
all of the following ways:

VIILG.l.
The lock on the storage
facility is unique. It may be
a key lock, a combination lock
or a fail secure electronic
locking device.

2.

3 •

4.

No more than three
authorized persons
shall have access to
the unique lock.

Entrance into the
storage facility shall
be supervised by one
of the authorized
individuals with
access to the unique
lock.

There shall be
controlled access to
the storage facility.
All ducts, vents and
windows are secured.

VIILG.2.
There are no more than three
authorized persons with access
to the unique lock.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency

VIILG.3.
Entrance into the storage
facility is supervised by one
of the authorized individuals
with access to the unique lock.

VIILG.4.
There is controlled access to
the storage facility. All
ducts, vents and windows are
secured.

H.

L

There shall be a secure
method of taking the review
drafts to and from the
executive session of the
Board.

Only Board members and
authorized nurse employees
shall be present for the
review.

VIII.H.
There is a secure method of
taking the review drafts to and
from the meeting.

VIII. I.
only the specified, authorized
persons attend and participate
in the review.
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1. An LPN/LVN Board
Member who is enrolled
in an RN program shall
not be allowed to
participate in the
NCLEX~RN reviews.

2. An LPN/LVN Board
member who is a
candidate for NCLEX-RN
shall not be allowed
to participate in the
NCLEX-RN reviews.
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J.

K.

L.

M.

N.

No notes shall be taken or
information removed by
participants.

Reviewers shall be
instructed on measures to
maintain security.

Following the review, the
person responsible for
implementing the security
measures shall provide the
Council with a written
compliance report.

An inventory shall be
conducted by two authorized
persons after the session.

A written record of this
inventory of review drafts
shall be made and
maintained for six months.

VIII.J.
No notes are taken or informa­
tion removed by participants.

VIII. K.
Reviewers are so instructed.

VIII. L.
The responsible person provides
the Council with a written
compliance report.

VIII.M.
An inventory is conducted by
two authorized persons.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency

VIIIoN.
A written record is maintained
for six months.
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O.

P.

Q,

Any discrepancy in the
inventory of review drafts
shall be reported immedi­
ately by telephone to the
council, the test service
and investigative agency.
A copy of the written
report of the discrepancies
shall be mailed to £ll
agencies within 24 hours of
the incident.

The review drafts shall be
returned to secure storage
until shipped.

The review drafts are ship­
ped by the method
designated by the test
service.

VIII.O.
Any discrepancy in the review
draft inventory is reported
immediately by telephone to the
council, the test service, and
the investigative agency. A
copy of the written report of
the discrepancies is mailed to
all agencies within 24 hours of
the incident.

VIII.P.
Review drafts are returned to
secure storage.

VIII.Q.
Drafts are shipped by the
method designated by the test
service.

IX. REVIEW OF TEST BOOKLETS
FOLLOWING ADMINISTRATION

A.

B.

C.

Permission shall be
obtained from the Council
for the review of test
booklets following
administration of the
examination.

No more than three
authorized persons shall
receive the shipment of
test booklets from the
carrier.

At least two authorized
persons shall jointly
conduct an inventory of the
number of test booklets
received within 2 working
days of receipt.

IX.A.
Permission is obtained for
review of test booklets.

IX.B.
There are no more than three
authorized persons who receive
the shipment of test booklets.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency

IX.C.
There are at least two
authorized persons who jointly
conduct the inventory within 2
working days of receipt.
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Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Other

D.

E.

F.

G.

A written record of this
inventory shall be made and
maintained for six months.

Any discrepancy in the
inventory of booklets shall
be reported immediately by
telephone to the Council,
the test service. and the
investigative agency. A
copy of the written report
of discrepancies shall be
mailed to all agencies
within 24 hours of the
incident.

There shall be secure
storage for test booklets
into which they are placed
as soon as received.

No more than three
authorized persons shall
supervise the placement of
test booklets into secure
storage.

IX.D.
A written record of the
inventory is maintained for six
months.

IX.E.
Any discrepancy in the
inventory of booklets is
reported immediately by
telephone to the council. the
test service and investigative
agency. A copy of the written
report of the discrepancies is
mailed to all agencies within
24 hours of the incident.

IX.F.
There is secure storage for the
test booklets into which they
are placed as soon as received.

IX.G.
There are no more than three
authorized persons supervising
placement of test booklets into
secure storage.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
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H. While test booklets are in
custody of the Board, the
storage facility shall be
secure in the following
ways:

IX.H.
While test booklets are in
custody of the Board, the
storage facility is secure in
all of the following ways:

1.

2.

3.

4 •

The lock on the
storage facility shall
be unique. It may be
a key lock, a
combination lock, or a
fail secure electronic
locking device.

No more than three
authorized persons
shall have access to
the unique lock.

Entrance into the
storage facility shall
be supervised by one
of the authorized in­
dividuals with access
to the unique lock.

There shall be
controlled access to
the storage facility.
All ducts, vents, and
windows are secured.

IX. H.!.
Lock on the storage facility is
unique.

IX.H.2.
There are no more than three
authorized persons with access
to the unique lock.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency

IX.H.3.
Entrance into the storage
facility is supervised by one
of the authorized individuals
with access to the unique lock.

IX.H.4.
All access to the storage
facility is controlled.

1.

J.

There shall be a secure
method of taking the test
booklets to and from the
executive session of the
Board.

Only Board members and
authorized nurse employees
shall be present for the
review.

IX.I.
There is a secure method of
taking test booklets to and
from the meeting.

IX.J.
Only specified, authorized
persons attend and participate
in reviews.
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1. An LPN/LVN Board
Member who is enrolled
in an RN program shall
not be allowed to
participate in the
NCLEX-RN reviews.

2. An LPN/LVN Board
member who is a
candidate for NCLEX-RN
shall not be allowed
to participate in the
NCLEX-RN reviews.

New material indicated by underline.
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Board of Nursing
Information

K.

L.

M.

N.

O.

No notes shall be taken or
information removed by
participants.

Reviewers shall be
instructed on measures to
maintain security.

Following the review, the
person responsible for
implementing the security
measures shall provide the
Council with a written
compliance report.

An inventory shall be
conducted by two authorized
persons after the session.

A written record of this
inventory shall be made and
maintained for six months.

IX.K.
No notes are taken or
information removed by
participants.

IX.L.
Reviewers are so instructed.

IX .M.
The responsible person provides
the Council with a written
compliance report.

IX.N.
An inventory is conducted by
two authorized persons.

Job Title
Agency
Job Title
Agency

IX.O.
A written record is maintained
for six months.

-------------------------------- _._--_.__._.~- ----------
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Board of Nursing
Information

P.

Q.

R.

Any discrepancy in the
inventory of booklets shall
be reported immediately by
telephone to the Council.
the test service and the
investigative agency. A
copy of the written report
of the discrepancies shall
be mailed to all agencies
within 24 hours of the
incident.

The booklets shall be
returned to secure storage
until shipped.

The booklets are shipped Qy
the method designated by
the test service.

IX.P.
Any discrepancy in the
inventory of booklets is
reported immediately by
telephone to the Council. test
service and the investigative
agency. A copy of the written
report of the discrepancies is
mailed to all agencies within
24 hours of the incident.

IX.Q.
The booklets are returned to
secure storage.

IX.R.
The booklets are shipped by the
method designated by the test
service.

X. DETAILED PROCEDURES

Written procedures shall be
maintained detailing the current
plan for implementing the
security measures ("Procedures
to Implement Security
Measures"). Failure to comply
may result in discipline by the
Board of Directors.

X.
written procedures are
maintained detailing the
current plan for implementing
the security measures.

Person responsible for implementing
the Security Measures:

Signature

Title"'- _

Datee _
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ADDENDUM

STANDARDS FOR A TEST
ADMINISTRATION AGENCY (TAA) TO
ADMINISTER THE EXAMINATION FOR A
MEMBER BOARD

New material indicated by underline.

Attachment A
Page 32

Board of Nursing
Information

A.

B.

C.

D.

The Test Administration
Agency (TAA) utilized shall
be approved by the Council.

~ registered nurse
designated by the Board
shall have administrative
responsibility on behalf of
the Board for contract
compliance.

The Board or another
appropriate state agency
shall determine the
eligibility of persons to
write the licensure
examination for registered
nurses or for practical
nurses.

The TAA shall allow the
Board the privilege of
observing the
administration of the
examination at any time.

A.
The test administration agency
has been approved by the
Council.

Nam"'e _

Address _

B.
The following registered nurse
designee has administrative
responsibility on behalf of the
Board for contract compliance.

Nam"'e _

Ti tlee'- _

C.
The Board or another
appropriate state agency
determines eligibility for
writing the licensure
examinations.

D.
The Board has the privilege of
observing the administration of
the examination at any time.
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Board of Nursing
Information

E.

F.

The TAA shall be familiar
with the contents of the
following and must adhere
explicitly to the
requirements specified in
the:

1. Contract for the
examinations
negotiated between the
Council and the Board.

2. Security measures for
the examinations
including the detailed
procedures required by
item X. (Procedures
to Implement Security
Measures) .

3. Manuals for the
administration of the
examinations.

The TAA shall immediately
after each administration
of the examination, verify
to the Board that all
security provisions have
been observed.

E.
There is a system of orienting
and familiarizing the TAA with
the contents of the following
and the determination of
adherence to requirements:
contract for the examination,
security measures and
Procedures to Implement
Security Measures, and manuals
for administration.

F.
The TAA immediately verifies to
the Board that all security
provisions have been observed.
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G. The TAA shall, in the event
of any situation which may
be regarded as a security
problem, immediately report
by telephone, and promptly
thereafter submit a
detailed written report, to
the designated registered
nurse, and cooperate in
taking appropriate action
with respect to the
situation.

G.
The TAA reports by telephone
and follows with a written
report to the registered nurse
designated by the Board, any
situation which may be regarded
as a security problem and
cooperates in taking the
appropriate action with respect
to the situation.



authorized person

combination lock

double lock

fail-secure electronic
locking device

immediate

investigative agency

kinship

off site

secure storage

unique lock

visible seal

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The person listed in the security measures as
having permission to carry out a particular
activity.

Manipulated dial or number punch (electronic
or manual) lock.

Two separate locking devices with separate
keys or ability to enter the storage site.

All locks remain locked in the case of a power
failure.

Within thirty minutes of the time a problem is
discovered.

The law enforcement agency within the state or
local government that would handle security
issues for the Board of Nursing.

Mother, father, sister, brother, spouse,
grandparents, child, (including step­
children), aunt, uncle, niece or nephew. This
includes in-laws.

Not in the Board of Nursing office. This
includes storage in the building that houses
the Board of Nursing office, as well as,
storage that may be in another location.

Any facility that meets the criteria set forth
in the security measures. Acceptable storage
includes: fire proof file cabinet, fire proof
safe, locked closet, locked room, and vault.

The lock shall not be part of the master
keying system. Only staff cited in the
security measures can open the lock. These
locks must be changed whenever an authorized
person is no longer employed by the Board of
Nursing.

Use of any type of material that will tell an
inspector that a storage facility entrance has
been opened (e.g. tape to seal the door, or
anything else inventive).
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Report of Nursing Practice and Education
Committee

Recommendation
The Nursing Practice and Education Committee (NP&E) recommends that the Delegate Assembly
adopt the following:

- Uniform Standards for Endorsement

- Uniform Requirements for Foreign Graduates

In addition the Committee supports the adoption of the recommendation(s) from the following
reports of Subcommittees which are addenda to this report and will be considered as individual
reports:

- The Subcommittee to Study Regulatory Models for Chemically Dependent Nurses

- The Subcommittee on PNNN Competencies

- The Subcommittee on the Nurse Shortage

Though the Committee supports the recommendation(s) of the three Subcommittees, it offers the
following comments about selected sections of the Subcommittee Reports:

A Subcommittee to Study Regulatory Models for Chemically Dependent Nurses: The
Committee is assuming that it will have the opportunity to review the research proposal
before it is submitted to funding agencies.

B. Subcommittee on PN/YN Competencies: The Committee is assuming that it will
continue to review data from job analysis studies for practice implications in
conjunction with the work of the Task Force on Examinations for the Future.

C. Subcommittee on the Nurse Shortage: The Committee makes the following comments:

1. Strategies for Member Boards: Rationale for Strategy #3:

a. The Committee recognizes the definition of delegation and
assignment in the rationale statement for strategy Number 3
for Member Boards as being a management definition of the
terms of "delegation" and "assignment". However, the regulatory
definition of delegation is recognized as different from this
management definition. The regulatory definition presented
in the National Council's Position Paper on Activities of
Unlicensed Persons 1987 and in the Model Administrative
Rules, 1988, p.91, is as follows:

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc. 11 989
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"Nurses entrusting the performance of selected nursing
tasks to competent suhordinate persons in selected
situations. The nurse retains the accountability for the
total nursing care of the individual."

This definition implies that the legal obligation of the nurse
remains the same regardless to whom care is delegated.

2. Strategies for Memher Boards: Strategy #5:

The Committee is recommending the adoption of Uniform
Requirements for Foreign Graduates that does not make exceptions for
any subset of the foreign nurse population. The NP&E Committee
believes foreign graduates should be treated as an entity as United
States prepared graduates are treated as an entity. Both groups should
be required to meet the same set of standards.

Meeting Dates
The committee met four times: October 3D·November 1, 1988, December 15-17, 1988, April 3-5.
1989, and May 12, 1989, conference call. The committee was directed by Delegate Assembly to:
bring update reports on entry into practice and continued competence, including the extent of the
inClusion of peer review as a continued competence mechanism into nursing practice acts; and to
recommend to the 1989 Delegate Assembly a model set of endorsement standards.

Activities
The Committee accomplished the following activities:

1. Developed a Relationship Model for Committees and Subcommittees which was approved hy
the Board of Directors at their January 1989 meeting. (See Attachment A);

2. Reviewed and commented on reports from the following three Subcommittees of the Nursing
Practice and Education Committee:

a. Subcommittee to Study Regulatory Models for Chemically Dependent Nurses.
b. The Subcommittee on PNNN Competencies.
c. The Subcommittee on Nursing Shortage.

3. Reviewed data relative to the implementation of the Nursing Horne Reform Act, Omnihus
Budget Reconciliation Act (OBRA) of 1987, for practice and general regulatory implications.
The primary findings of this review are as follows:

a. Eleven Boards of Nursing have obtained or are seeking authority to implement
some or all of the provisions of the OBRA legislation. For those states where
authority does not rest with the Board of Nursing, the question of having
responsibility for day to day supervision of nurse aides without the authority
to establish standards for or monitor the practice of nurse aides is a large one.
The issue of delegation also is a concern, because nursing is delegating nursing
tasks to a group over whom they do not have regulatory authority. Also, in

National Council of State Board, of Nursing, Inc./1989
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some states, LPNs do not have the authority to delegate to subordinates, which
could create a regulatory dilemma.

b. Some Boards of Nursing and other state entities, in their regulations, have
provided for endorsement recognition of nurse aides. Since there is not a
national evaluation mechanism being utilized by all states for either the
evaluation of training programs or for competency evaluation of nurse aides,
this endorsement provision was viewed as being potentially detrimental to the
health, safety and welfare of the public. If there were in place one training and
competency evaluation process utilized by all states, the potential danger to the
health, safety and welfare of the public would be minimized.

c. Some Boards of Nursing and state entities spoke to some exemptions in their
regulations for nurse aides. Exemptions were identified for nursing students,
graduates of LPN or RN programs who were not successful in the examination
process; and aides who had gone through a state training or certification
process prior to the OBRA law. The least risky approach for the public's
health, safety and welfare would be to minimize exemptions, requiring those
desiring to work as nurse aides to go through the training and evaluation
process required by OBRA This requirement ensures that the public will
receive the care at the minimal essential level established for the role of a
nurse aide.

4. Reviewed and analyzed data from Entry into Practice and Continued Competence surveys for
general trends. Reports on the outcome are presented in narrative and graphic form within
the context of this report (See Attachments B and C).

5. Prepared responses relative to implications for practice and education to the 1987 PNNN and
RN Job Analysis Studies. These responses were shared with the Board of Directors at their
April 1989 meeting.

6. Met with the entire Examination Committee at the National Council's October Orientation
session for the purpose of discussing joint Committee activities related to continued
competence.

7. Participated in a JOInt meeting with the Subcommittee on Continued Competence of the
Examination Committee at the NP&E's April meeting regarding the joint discussions of the two
committees related to continued competence. A process for working toward implementation
of the 1987 Delegate Assembly charge to explore mechanisms for identifying minimum levels
of ongoing (continued) competence of licensed nurses and methods for determining the
maintenance of minimum competence was defined. The process which was submitted to the
Board of Directors at its April 1989 meeting, and subsequently approved, follows:

a. Develop a conceptual framework for continued competence including definitions
of key concepts related to continued competence and licensure; continued
competence as it is related to relicensure; and concepts of "ensure" and "assure"
related to general regulatory responsibilities.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.1l989
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b. Identify mechanisms for maintenance of continued competence and operationally
define them.

c. Validate, through a research process, the operationally defined continued
competence mechanisms and report conclusions regarding the effectiveness of
the mechanisms.

The Nursing Practice & Education Committee will complete 'a' and 'b' and will share the
results of its work with the Examination Committee.

Both Committees agreed to suggest that the Examination Committee involvement in the projecl
be limited to participation at the validation stage, if the National Council Licensure
Examinations are used as part of the research process.

8. Prepared annotated additions to the bibliography on trends in the regulatory committee and
circulated those additions in June 1989.

9. Prepared, after careful review of responses from Member Boards and the Board of Directors,
Uniform Requirements for Licensure of Foreign Educated Nurses (Sec Altachmenl D).

10. Prepared, after careful review of responses from Member Boards and the Board of Directors,
Uniform Standards for Endorsement. (See Attachment E).

Committee Objectives
C-Ommittee objectives for 1989-1990 are as follows:

1. To monitor the use of continued competence mechanisms, particularly peer review, by Boards
of Nursing;

2. To monitor entry into practice activities by Boards of Nursing;

3. To monitor the work of the Subcommittee to Study Regulatory Models for Chemically
Dependent Nurses, if the Delegate Assembly authorizes their work for FY90;

4. To develop a conceptual framework for continued competence inclUding definitions of key
concepts related to continued competence and licensure; continued competence as it is related
to relicensure; and concepts of 'assure" and 'ensure" related to general regulatory
responsibilities;

5. To identify mechanisms for maintenance of continued competence and operationally define
them;

6. To study the activities of generalists as they relate to advanced nursing roles;

7. To prepare a concept paper on delegation;

8. To prepare a concept paper on declaratory statements and advisory opinions;

9. To study the issue of transport, traveling and interstate consultant nurse roles; and

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989

,.



5

10. To monitor the general regulatory literature for additions to the Regulatory Bibliography
developed in FYS7.

Committee Members
Sr. Lucie Leonard, LA-RN, III, Chairperson
Mary Ellen Connor, UT, I
Sr. Teresa Harris, NJ, IV
Betty Hunt, NC, III
Tommy Murphree, AL, III
Tom Neuman, WI, II

Marsha Kelly, Director o[ Public Policy Analysis

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



6

ATIACHMENT A

NATIONAL COUNCIL OF STATE BOARDS OF NURSING, INC.

Relationship Model for Committees
and Subcommittees

1. The Committee meets with the Subcommittee to:

a. State relationship of Committee and SUbcommittee.

b. Clarify charge to Subcommittee.

c. Brainstorm regarding charge and related issues.

d. Establish a plan of communication between Committee and Subcommittee (The
Subcommittee communicates through its Chairperson).

2. The Subcommittee communicates to the Committee, requesting feedback.

The Commiltee gives feedback to Subcommittee regarding its work.

3. The final product of the Subcommittee is sent to the Committee.

4. The Committee reviews the final product of the SUbcommiltee. If the Committee cannot endorse
the product as submitted, the Chairperson of the Committee contacts the Chairperson of the
Subcommittee, and an attempt is made to resolve the concern(s). If necessary, a telephone
conference is arranged between the total Committee and the Chairperson of the Subcommittee.
The Chairperson of the Subcommittee may contact the members of the Subcommittee.

5. If a consensus is reached regarding the final Subcommittee product, it is submitted to the Delegate
Assembly as an attachment to the Committee report with identification as the Subcommittee's work
product. If consensus is not reached, the Committee includes, in its report, comments reflecting
the differences of opinion with the Subcommittee. The work of the Subcommittee is submitted,
in its entirety, to the Delegate Assembly.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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ATTACHMENT B

ENTRY INTO PRACTICE REPORT
In 1986 the Delegate Assembly of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc., directed the
Nursing Practice and Standards Committee to prepare a yearly update report on entry into practice to the
Delegate Assembly. In the winter of 1988, the Committee circulated the extensive questionnaire developed
in 1986 by the Entry into Practice Report Committee (as revised in 1987 by the Nursing Practice and
Standards Committee) and requested Member Boards to update the information if changes had occurred
since 1987. The 1988 Delegate Assembly further directed that entry into practice data be collected as a
routine part of the National Council data collection for yearly review by the Nursing Practice and Standards
Committee.

RESULTS
Fifly-nine Member Boards responded to the Entry into Practice update questionnaire and reported the
following results:

Nineteen (19) Member Boards of the fifty-nine responding have taken a formal position on entry.
Only one state (Massachusetts) reported taking a formal position since the update report presented
to the 1988 Delegate Assembly.

No Member Boards reported new activity relative to independent or collaborative activity to study
or implement the profession's goal of two levels of nursing education with two new titles and
distinct scopes of practice.

Twenty-three (23) Member Boards reported the authority to implement changes to educational
requirements for entry into nursing.

See Table I.
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Table I
Member Boards with Entry Into Practice Positions

50

40

30

20

10

o
Yes (n=20)

Alaska
Connecticut
Idaho
Illinois
Massachusetts
Maine
Minnesota
Mississippi
Montana
North Carolina
North Dakota
Nevada
New York
South Carolina
South Dakota
Texas-RN
Texas-VN
Washington-RN
West Virginia-RN
Wyoming

No (n=39)

Alabama
Arkansas
Arizona
California-RN
California-VN
Colorado
District of Columbia
Delaware
Florida
Georgia-RN
Georgia-PN
Guam
Hawaii
Iowa
Indiana
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana-RN
Louisiana-PN
Maryland

Michigan
Missouri
Nebraska
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
Ohio
Okiahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
Tennessee
Utah
Vermont
Virgin Islands
Virginia
Washington-PN
West Virginia-PN
Wisconsin

,nil
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ATIACHMENT C

CONTINUED COMPETENCE UPDATE REPORT
In 1986, the Delegate Assembly of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc., directed the
Nursing Practice and Standards Committee to monitor the use of Continued Competence Mechanisms by
Boards of Nursing and to present a yearly update report to the Delegate Assembly. The 1987 Delegate
Assembly further directed the Nursing Practice and Standards Committee to monitor the inclusion into
nursing practice acts, of the requirement of peer review as the mechanism for measuring continued
competence. Subsequently, the 1988 Delegate Assembly directed that information about continued
competence mechanisms be collected as a routine part of National Council data collection for yearly review
by the Nursing Practice and Standards Committee.

RESULTS
Fifty-one Member Boards responded to the questionnaire. The tabulated data resulted in the following:

Texas and Oregon reported the use of peer review;

Sixteen (16) states reported the use of the following continuing education mechanisms for renewal
of licensure:

1. Two states reported the use of continuing education for advanced practice;
2. Fourteen (14) reported the use of continuing education for renewal of license;

No states reported the use of client review;

Seventeen (17) states reported the use of periodic refresher courses, with various conditions, for
reentry into active practice after a prolonged absence from practice;

Two (2) states reported the use of a competency examination; and

Sixteen (16) states reported the use of a practice requirement for renewal of license.

The three most often used mechanisms are still continuing education, refresher courses and a practice
requirement.

See Table II.

National Council of Stare Boards of Nursing, Inc. 11 989



Table II
Continued Competency Mechanisms

III

competency Examination

Periodic Refresher Course

1. louislana PH Only
2. Texas R~ & Texas lVN

Peer Review

Continuing Education

1. For Nurse Practitioners

,. Cat ifornia RN and VN

Client Review

1. Georgia RN OnLy
2. Texas LVN Only

Minimal Practice Requirements
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ATTACHMENT D

NATIONAL COUNCIL OF STATE BOARDS OF NURSING, INC.

Uniform Requirements for Licensure of
Foreign Educated Nurses

Requirement Comments

1.

2.

3.

4.

Submit a CGFNS Certificate

Meet the passing standard of NCLEX.

Present evidence of a current
unrestricted license in another
country/state, or meet the requirements
for licensure by examination.

Meet the educational requirements of
the jurisdiction.

CGFNS exam has been validated as a screening
instrument for performance on NCLEX-RN.

CGFNS screens for wrillen English proficiency
and for nursing knowledge. The screening
includes an evaluation of the components of
education and their comparability with curricula
of approved United States nursing programs.

NCLEX is a valid and reliable measure of
ability to practice nursing at a minimum safe
and effective level.

These are relative indicators of minimum
competence. There is difficulty in controlling
variables in each situation.

This would assure the United States and foreign
graduates would have equivalent standard for
education.

There is no provision in these uniform
requirements for a temporary license because of
the difficulty in establishing equivalency between
licensure requirements in the United States and
those in other countries. States which grant a
temporary license/permit may require evidence
of active practice within the last five years.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Summary of Data Regarding CNATS:

25 Member Boards, or 65% of respondents, reported that the English version of lhe CNATS examinalion
is accepted in their stales.

36 Member Boards, or 94% of respondents, suggested that lhe NCSBN perform a new study of CNATS.

Recommendation of Nursing Practice and Education Committee:

Thc Nursing Practice and Education Committee supported the Board of Director's April 1989 action to
perform a review of the English version of the CNATS examination to determine its comparability with
NCLEX-RN.

National Council of Slate Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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AITACHMENT E

NATIONAL COUNCIL OF STATE BOARDS OF NURSING, INC.

Uniform Standards for Endorsement

1.

Requirement

A completed application including the
following identifiers:

Comments

In some instances, there are legal constraints
which prohibit requiring certain information. In
those instances, the information may be
obtained on a voluntary basis.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

Name at birth and all other
previously used names and
aliases;

Passport picture;

Birthdate;

Social Security number;

Name of high school and year
of graduation, or date of
G.E.D.;

Name of basic nursing
education program;

This is the common personal social identifier of
human beings and their lineage.

This is to assist in the verification of identity.

This serves as a cross reference to assist in the
verification of identity.

This is a unique governmental identifier under
which unique social data about an individual is
organized. It is also a proposed requirement as
the basis for reporting and retrieving da ta from
the National Practitioner Data Bank, established
by the Health Care Quality Assurance Act of
1986 to which all health care licensing boards
will be required to report by the end of 1989.

This serves as an identifier from an individual's
history that is not common knowledge.

This is the legal source of documentation of
completion of the educational requirements
used as a basis for licensure.

Narional Council of Scare Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



Requirement

UNIFORM STANDARDS FOR ENDORSEMENT

Comments

14

2. Verification and date of completion of
the educational requirements for
licensure.

This is the legal documentation of completion
of an educational program used as the basis to
ensure public health, safety, and welfare.

The administrative rules should specify which
standard of nursing education is in effect:

1. The standard at the time of original
licensure; or

2. The current standard.

3. Verification and documentation of
licensure status:

a. The original jurisdiction of
licensure to include the
following information:

1. Type of exam;

2. Date and series/form;

3. Result of scoring;

4. Number and date
of original license;

5. Disciplinary action;

6. Current status of
license;

7. All jurisdictions to which the
license has been verified.

Documentation of licensure status from the
original state of licensure is the preferred
mechanism for protection of the public's health,
safety, and welfare.

This ensures that one jurisdiction has
documenlation of all jurisdictions to which the
individual's license has been verified and makes
it possible to provide that information on the
verification form.

This ensures that the examination meets the
reguirements for licensure.

This is a minimal data set to insure pUblic
health, safety, and welfare. Obtaining the same
information from the Board and the applicant
serves as a mechanism for verifying information
given by the applicant. This decreases the
likelihood of granting a license on the basis of
false information.
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Requirement

UNIFORM STANDARDS FOR ENDORSEMENT

Comments

IS

b. The jurisdiction of most recent
nursing employment to include
the following information:

1. Number and date of license;

2. Disciplinary actions;

This ensures evidence of current knowledge and
minimum essential skill and ability.

See comments under 3a, 3a.4-6.

Requiring information from the jurisdiction of
original licensure and from the jurisdiction of
most recent employment provides a basis of
comparison with the information provided by
the applicant.

4. Submission of the required fee(s).

Requirements for Temporary Licensure

1. A completed application including the
following:

a. Identifiers required for
endorsement; (Requirements 1,
a through f)

The granting of a temporary license recognizes
the mobility of nurses and provides a
mechanism for the legal practice of nursing
while processing the licensure application.

b.

c.

Evidence of current licensure in
the jurisdiction of most recent
nursing employment;

Evidence of active nursing
practice within the last five
years;

This ensures evidence of current knowledge,
skills, and abilities at a minimum essential level.

Requirements for temporary licensure can be
more stringent, because it is being granted
under the assumption that the individual will
meet the requirements for permanent licensure.

Evidence of employment during the past five
years is used to ensure evidence of current
knowledge.

Narional Council of SLate Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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UNIFORM STANDARDS FOR ENDORSEMENT

Comments

16

2. Submission of the required fee(s).

3. The applicant shall provide the
following information which is subject
to verification and a review by the
Board.

a.

b.

Disciplinary action by another
jurisdiction;

Criminal conviction or active
investiga tion;

This is the essential data set that should be
required for protection of public health, safety,
and welfare by decreasing the likelihood of
granting a temporary license to one who might
not be eligible for a permanent license.

c. Information regarding other
causes for denial of licensure.

d. Name of employer. This facilitates communication with the
employer.

4. The temporary license shall be non­
renewable and shall remain valid for 90
days or until the applicant is granted or
denied a license, whichever is shorter.

This assures that permanent disposition will
occur for an individual's application for a
license.

National Council of Stare Boards of Nursing, Inc.11989
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Report of the Subcommittee to Study Regulatory
Models for Chemically Dependent Nurses

Recommendation
The Delegate Assembly authorize continuation of the Subcommittee to Study Regulatory Models for
Chemically Dependent Nurses.

Background
The Subcommittee to Study Regulatory Models for Chemically Dependent Nurses was established in
1988 by the National Council. The subcommittee was charged with the responsibility to develop a
funding proposal to study regulatory models for chemically dependent nurses and the cost effectiveness
of these models.

The anticipated outcomes of the study would provide Member Boards and other policymaking groups
with information that would allow them to identify an approach that would be most appropriate in terms
of rehabilitating chemically dependent nurses and protecting the recipients of nursing care. The study
would examine rates of return to active license status, return to work, and recidivism in terms of
characteristics of the nurse, type of chemical dependency, work setting and environment, type of
management/rehabilitation model, and cost.

In recent years, the primary reason for disciplinary action being taken against the license of a registered
nurse (RN) or licensed practical/vocational nurse (LPN/VN) relates to actions involving the use and/or
diversion of controlled substances and/or alcohol. During the period of 1980 to 1986, boards of nursing
took disciplinary action against the licenses of9,589 RNs and 5,020 LPN/vNs. Of these, 46% ofthe RN
cases and 36% ofthe LPN/VN cases were drug related. In 1988,60% of3,378 RN cases and 43% of 1,680
LPN/VN disciplinary cases reported to the National Council were drug related.

These figures represent only those nurses reported to their board of nursing and for whom charges were
substantiated. Therefore, they only represent the "tip of the iceberg" with respect to the total number of
nurses with a chemical dependency. Depending upon the jurisdiction in which the nurse practices, a pure
disciplinary approach, a peer assistance/diversion approach, or a variety of combinations of these two
approaches may be used when a chemical dependency is identified.

While evaluative studies have been conducted with respect to the outcomes ofa specific approach, there
has never been a comparative study performed to determine which of the various approaches is more
successful in terms of rehabilitation of nurses, their return to work, recidivism rates, and cost.

The absence of comparative data impacts on decision-making with regard to public policy evaluation
and development as it relates to a board of nursing's mandate to protect the public's health, safety, and
welfare. An inadequate supply of nurses impacts negatively on the ability to provide competent nursing
services. The potential permanent loss of nurses, who previously made positive contributions to nursing,
from the work force is also costly to the employing institutions in terms of their investment in an
individual nurse and in the cost of recruiting and orienting replacement personnel.
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If there are one or more regulatory models that incorporate management approaches that are clearly
superior to others, the ultimate outcome should be higher rates of rehabilitation, return to active license
status, return to work, and lower recidivism rates. A management approach that would result in an
increase in the number of competent RNs and LPN/VNs in the workforce is an important factor to be
considered given the current manpower crisis where the demand for nurses is greater than supply.

Activities
The subcommittee met two times: January 10-11, 1989,and May 16-17, 1989. Inaddition, the chairperson
met with the Nursing Practice and Education Committee during its October 3D-November 1, 1988.
meeting and participated in its May 12, 1989, conference call.

In collaboration with a consultant, the subcommitteeaccomplished the following activities in preparation
for developing a funding proposal to carry out a comparative analysis of regulatory models for chemically
dependent nurses:

1. Directed staff to identify potential funding sources and to ascertain their interest in considering
a funding proposal for the study. Of32 foundations, four have indicated interest in reviewing a
proposal; nine have not yet responded to the letter of inquiry. Additional potential sources have
been identified and staff has been directed to approach these groups.

2. Identified a theoretical framework for the study, based on Systems Theory.

3. Reviewed National Council statistics and documents summarizing disciplinary action and
regulatory models for chemically dependent nurses.

4. Identified current literature addressing characteristics of the chemically dependent nurse and
management outcome variables.

5. Initiated collection of definitions used by various groups (e.g., National Council, World Health
Organization, etc.).

6. Identified types of regulatory models to be included in the comparative analysis.

7. Identified the critical need for a Member Board survey to determine type of regulatory approach
used, and availability ofdiversion programs and/or peer assistance programs, and outlined survey
content.

8. Identified mechanism for identification of the population to be studied and a procedure for
Obtaining potential study participants.

9. Determined that potential study participants should be identified using a stratified random
sample selection procedure (levels of stratification being geographic region and regulatory
model).

10. Identified relevant data collection instruments and initiated collection and review of these
instruments for a systematic review of their characteristics (e.g., content, format, manner of
administration, time needed for completion, etc.).
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11. Determined that data collection instruments will need to be pilot tested prior to use in the study
and that an additional funding proposal should be prepared and submitted to support this
preliminary step.

12. Determined that, in addition to an initial data collection period, study participants should be
followed for a period of two years with periodic data collection; therefore, three to four years
would be necessary to complete the study.

13. Determined that in order to obtain full cooperation of study participants, there is need to
"distance" data collectors from any association with a board of nursing. This will necessitate
subcontracting data COllection to an outside group or entering into a collaborative agreement
with another group or agency (e.g., a university, research center, etc.).

14. Initiated discussion of data analysis procedures.

Committee Members
Lois Scibetta, Kansas, Area II, Chairperson
Patsy Duphorne, New Mexico, Area I
Cennette Jackson, Georgia-RN, Area III
Rena Lawrence, Pennsylvania, Area IV

Consultant
Mary Haack, National Institute of Alcohol

Abuse and Alcoholism, Maryland

Staff
carolyn Yocom, Director ofResearch Services
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Subcommittee on the Nurse Shortage Report to
the 1989 Delegate Assembly

Recommendation
That the National Council explore the feasibility of developing generally applicable audio-visual
materials on the role of regulation for use by Member Boards.

Background
The Subcommittee was formed in response to the 1988 Delegate Assembly resolution that the
"National Council develop short- and long-term strategies that Member Boards and the National
Council can take to minimize the negative consequences of the nurse shortage."

Activities
The Subcommittee on the Nurse Shortage, a subcommittee of the Nursing Practice and Education
Committee, met three times: October 31-November 1, 1988, at the Orientation/Planning Session;
January 5-6, 1989, in Chicago; and April 14, 1989, by telephone conference call.

In its preparation of these strategies, and to avoid duplication of effort, the subcommittee reviewed
several documents addressing the nurse shortage and its effect on public health, safety, and welfare.
These documents included the Report of the Secretary of Health and Human Services' Commission
on Nursing; the American Hospital Association Report: Responding to the Nurse Shortage; the
National League for Nursing's Student Census; and several reports of governor-appointed
commissions.

The Subcommittee also developed and issued a survey to Member Boards on the regulatory
implications of the nurse shortage. Responses were received from 40 Member Boards and used to
develop the following strategies (a summary of these responses follows the strategies).

Finally, it should be noted that, while the Subcommittee differentiated strategies as to whether they
were appropriate for Member Board or National Council action, the Subcommittee did not
differentiate short- from long-term strategies. The Subcommittee's rationale was that, unless
specifically stated otherwise, all strategies could be consiuered in both the short- and long-term.
Furthermore, the Subcommittee believes that most strategies are viable and worthy of consideration
despite the presence or absence of a nurse shortage.

Committee Members
Ann Petersen, UT, Area I, Chairperson
Diane Bernhein, WA, Area I
Sheila &strom, NE, Area II
Jeri Milstead, SC, Area III
Donald Prey, ME, Area IV

Kathy Kostbade Hughes, Director of Administration
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Strategies for Member Boards:

1. Member Boards should review existing rules to determine whether they facilitate program
articulation, outreach programs, clinical preceptorships, and other innovative nursing
education models (designed to recruit and retain nurses). Member Boards should assume
a proactive role in encouraging nursing education programs to: increase the flexibility of the
nursing curriculum, develop innovative nursing programs, increase educational mobility, and
increase transferability of courses and/or credits.

Rationale:

In response to the nurse shortage, many educational programs and health care agencies have
implemented innovative models designed to recruit and retain nurses. The Subcommittee believes
certain rules may unnecessarily preclude the implementation of innovative models thereby failing
to serve the public interest. Such rules should be evaluated and, if possible, eliminated or revised
to facilitate the development of innovative mechanisms of nursing education at all levels.

2. Member Boards should continue to maintain strict standards for faculty qualifications/numbers
and student admission/continuation policies.

Rationale:

Because labor shortages may be accompanied by pressure to relax standards, the Subcommittee
believes it is critical that Member Boards continue to enforce nursing education standards within
their jurisdictions. Nursing education programs should not lower faculty standards or student
requirements in response to the shortage or as a means of increasing student enrollment. The
Subcommittee further believes the public would be ill-served by the licensure of persons Who do
not satisfy minimum education and practice prerequisites.

3. Member Boards should review their nurse practice acts or rules to ensure the term
"delegation" is clearly defined. Member Boards also should provide information to current
and future licensees on the meaning and practice implications of the terms "delegation" and
"assignment."

Rationale:

In reviewing various reports of commissions established to address the nurse shortage, it came to
the Subcommittee's attention that the shortage has contributed to nurses delegating and assigning
nursing procedures previously performed only by licensed nurses. Nurses may be uncertain about
what procedures or practices can be delegated and assigned appropriately.

Because of inherent legal implications and professional accountability issues, the Subcommittee
believes it is important for licensees to understand the difference between these terms. The
Subcommittee believes that nursing procedures and practice are delegated to other licensed
personnel; and that they are assigned to unlicensed persons. These terms should be interpreted by
Member Boards to licensees along with broad guidelines for appropriate delegation and assignment.
The Subcommittee also feels these concepts and (he decisions governing their implementation
should be introduced to nursing students by the nursing education programs.
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4. Member Boards should serve as information resources to legislators regarding nursing
education and, when appropriate, seek legislative support for alI types of nursing education
programs.

Rationale:

The Subcommittee recognizes there is considerable variability regarding individual Member Boards'
roles in the funding of nursing education. Many Member Boards are prohibited from addressing
this issue while others assume an active role in obtaining and administering scholarship monies to
prospective nurses.

In those instances in which Members Boards are involved in the funding process, the Subcommittee
believes alI forms of nursing education should be included as a means of facilitating the entry or
re-entry of licensed nurses into nursing practice.

5. Member Boards should review statutes and rules to identify licensing requirements that may
be unduly restrictive with particular attention to areas such as: (1) foreign educated nurses
whose educational systems are similar to U.S. standards and/or whose primary language is
English, and (2) endorsement requirements that do not alIow the Board discretion in
determining licensure qualifications for nurses with documented satisfactory practice
experience.

Rationale:

The Subcommittee believes that the pUblic health, safety, and welfare are not served by unduly
restrictive language in statutes and rules. The Subcommittee further believes that individual Member
Boards are the most appropriate entities to determine what constitutes unduly restrictive language
within the context of their own jurisdictions.

6. The Subcommittee discussed the issue of regulating temporary nursing personnel agencies
because several Member Boards regulate or plan to regulate these agencies and because
several commission reports on the nurse shortage have raised this issue. The Subcommittee
suggests that there be further discussion and possible action regarding the regulation of
temporary nursing personnel agencies.

Rationale:

At this time, the Subcommittee does not believe that there are current, reliable data to indicate
Member Boards should regulate this type of employer any differently than other employers of
licensed nurses. Additional data, however, may suggest the need for agency regulation.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



4

Strategies for the National Council:

1. The National Council should explore the feasibility of developing generally applicable audio­
visual materials on the role of regulation for use by Member Boards.

Rationale:

The current nurse shortage has resulted in closer scrutiny of Member Board activities by legislators,
consumers, educators, and health care agencies. In some instances, the regulatory role is
misunderstood, misinterpreted, or at least not appreciated. Member Boards are often forced to
assume a defensive posture when responding to complaints about certain regulatory functions. The
Subcommittee believes Member Boards could benefit from a comprehensive pUblic relations
program. Audio-visual materials that address Member Boards' role in protecting the pUblic health,
safety, and welfare would assist Member Boards in implementing such a program.

2. The National Council should continue to review periodically its Model Nurse Practice ACI
and Model Administrative Rules to ensure they do not include unnecessary barriers to nursing
education and practice.

Rationale:

For reasons discussed in the first strategy for Member Boards, the National Council should examine
periodically its Model Nurse Practice Act and Model Administrative Rules to ensure that future
innovative education and practice models will not be prohibited unnecessarily.

3. The National Council and Member Boards should continue to monitor and evaluate research
on differentiated practice models and evaluate trend data on implementation.

Rationale:

In response to the nurse shortage, many health care agencies have implemented various forms of
differentiated practice models. Additionally, several commissions, established to address the nurse
Shortage, have recommended implementation of models of differentiated practice roles as means of
efficiently utilizing existing nursing personnel. The Subcommittee believes such practices may
eventually alter the scope of nursing practice. Therefore, the National Council and its Member
Boards should closely monitor differentiated practice models for any regulatory implications.

4. The Board of Directors and committees of the National Council should critically evaluate the
licensure examination process and schedule as these relate to nurse supply, with the objective
of facilitating prompt licensure of graduates.

Rationale:

The Subcommittee believes that changes in the present process might facilitate prompt licensure
of graduates and minimize unnecessary delays which may not be in the public's interest. Additional
examinations, changes in the examination schedule, and/or accelerated implementation of computer­
based testing might facilitaie the licensure process.
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5. The National Council should conduct a study to compare NCLEX and the English language
examination of the Canadian Nurses Association Test Service (CNATS). The study findings
should be used to develop recommendations regarding U.S. licensure of Canadian nurses.

Rationale:

Different jurisdictions have different rules and regulations regarding the licensure of nurses educated
in Canada. The Subcommittee believes that these varying policies are not based on definitive and
current empirical data. Moreover, many jurisdictions report that the nurse shortage has resulted
in increased pressure to license Canadian nurses. For these reasons, the Subcommittee believes that
a comparability study between NCLEX and CNATS is warranted.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



6

Addendum

Notes on Implementation of Strategies for the National Council

Following its review of the Subcommittee's report, the Board of Directors directed staff to perform
an analysis of the strategies' implications for current and future National Council activities. The
Board's rationale was that some National Council strategies might already be underway; others
might impact on one or more committees' FY90 goals if they were to be implemented. Thus, even
though the Subcommittee is recommending that only the first National Council strategy be adopted
by the 1989 Delegate Assembly, the Board believed that it would be prudent to assess the
operational impact of the other National Council strategies.

Subcommittee Recommendation/Strategy # 1: FisCilI Impact

First, it should be noted that the Subcommittee's recommendation to explore the feasibility of
producing audio-visual materials presently does not have a fiscal impact. If the Delegate Assembly
adopts this recommendation, the feasibility study will be conducted by a National Council
Committee, probably the Communications Committee. The Communications Committee would
assess market demand and then determine the most cost-effective and appropriate medium, given
that demand. At that time, the fiscal impact would be determined and could then be buill into the
committee's FY91 budget.

Strategy # 2

The second National Council strategy is currently being accomplished by the Nursing Practice and
Education Committee in accordance with the Operational Plan which states that the National
Council will "evaluate the use of the Model Nursing Practice Act and make appropriate revisions'
(Goal I, Objective A). Revised Model Nurse Practice Act and Model Administrative Rules were
most recently adopted by the 1988 Delegate Assembly. The strategy implies that review will be
an ongoing process with revisions recommended to the Delegate Assembly on a regular basis.

Strategy # 3

The third National Council strategy is consistent with two Operational Plan strategies that the
National Council "monitor the major nursing research projects relative to implications on legal
standards of nursing practice" (Goal V, Objective A) and that the National Council "gather data
concerning advanced practice" (Goal V, Objective A). To date, there has been some allempt to
monitor research on differentiated practice models. As outlined by the Task Force on Examinations
for the Future in its 1988 report, the job analysis study performed in FY90 will incorporate nurses
practicing in sites where differentiated practice models are being implemented. Data from their
responses will be available for study of regulatory implications, as well as planned use in the study
of testing models for future examinations. The data collection costs are included in the approved
FY90 bUdget, In addition, the Nursing Practice and Education Committee regularly monitors the
research literature for trends having regulatory implications.
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Strategy # 4

The fourth National Council strategy and its rationale are consistent with National Council
Operational Plan strategies that the National Council "evaluate policies and procedures for the
licensing examinations" (Goal I, Objective B) and "perform a feasibility study of the computerized
adaptive testing program" (Goal I, Objective A). A study of the feasibility of adding a third
NCLEX administration was conducted by the Board of Directors, testing committees, staff, and
crB/McGraw-HiII in early 1989. A summary of results was disseminated to Member Boards, and
an informal survey on preferences regarding additional administrations was conducted at the area
meetings. The Administration of Examination Committee periodically performs surveys to

determine whether changes in administration schedules are warranted, and will continue to do so.

As for the Subcommittee's rationale that computer-based testing might facilitate the licensure
process, the following should be noted. The Computerized Adaptive Testing (CAT) project was
initiated in December 1986. In August 1988, delegates voted to pursue the feasibility study with
field tests for RNs scheduled to take place in July 1990 and February 1991. The final report will
be forwarded to the 1991 Delegate Assembly which will vote on whether CAT should be
implemented for RNs. The PN field tests will occur in October 1992 and April 1993, if so directed
by the Delegate Assembly.

Strategy # 5

With respect to the fifth National Council strategy, the Board directed, and the Examination
Committee is planning to perform, a comparability study of the CNATS examination and NCLEX
in FY90. Such a study involves "on paper" comparisons between the two examinations in a number
of respects. There is no direct fiscal impact of this strategy. However, if a more definitive study
of "equivalence" between the examinations is undertaken, a more elaborate research approach
would be necessary. Such an approach would require that supporting funds be allocated or obtained
from an external source.
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Report of Subcommittee on PNNN Competencies

Recommendations
1. The Delegate Assembly authorize the conduction of a limited-scope job analysis in sites with

differentiated job descriptions reflecting evolving practice, using the qualitative and quantitative
instruments to determine whether the three sets of hypothesized competencies are validated.

2. The Delegate Assembly authorize the Task Force on Examinations for the Future be
reconvened during FY91 for the purpose of reviewing all data from job analysis studies and
recommending a specific testing model to the Delegate Assembly in FY92.

Historical Background
During the August 1986 Delegate Assembly, a resolution was adopted which resulted in the
appointment of the Task Force on Examinations for the Future:

RESOLYED that a task force be appointed to explore and plan the
development of new licensure examinations based upon minimum
competencies of evolving levels of practice.

Another resolution, also adopted at the August 1986 Delegate Assembly, stated:

RESOLVED that the National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.,
adopt a formal position of neutrality on changes in nursing educational
requirements for entry into practice and that it be disseminated along with
its rationale to the nursing profession.

In keeping with this position of neutrality, the Task Force was not to debate the entry issue but
rather to explore how the Council could best respond to the needs of individual Member Boards
for licensure examinations, should states enact statutory or regulatory changes which redefine legal
scopes of practice and minimum competencies.

Task Force First Year Activities··IT87
An initial activity was to develop a list of assumptions to guide its work. A review of literature
was conducted and five testing models were conceptualized. The final activity was the development
of a Plan of Action. In August 1987, following the progress report to the Delegate Assembly, the
Task Force received authorization and funding to continue for an additional year to begin
implementation of Step One of the Plan of Action.

Task Force Second Year Activities--IT88
In implementing Step One of the Plan of Action, a process was initiated which will lead to a
recommendation on a testing model for future examinations. Also, competency statements were
collected and synthesized, which resulted in hypothesized statements for Level X and Level Y.

The Task Force developed a decision chart to demonstrate the relationship between the testing
models and the validated competency statements (Attachment C in Task Force Report in 1987
Book of Reports).
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The Task Force also developed and subsequently revised a Timeline and Sequence of Events in the
Development of New Licensure Examinations Based Upon Minimum Competencies of Evolving
Levels of Nursing Practice (Attachment D in Task Force Report in 1988 Book of Reports).
In August 1988, the Task Force on Examinations for the Future recommended that the Delegate
Assembly authorize the Nursing Practice and Standards Committee to review data relative to
PNNN competencies during FY89, synthesize competencies, and determine their relationship to the
competencies synthesized by the Task Force on Examinations for the Future during FY88.

Rationale
In the process of reviewing future oriented competency statements available for synthesis, the Task
Force found very few PNNN future oriented competency statements in existence. Because the
results of the PN job analysis were not yet available for Task Force consideration and because
additional PNNN competencies were scheduled to be developed by a national organization of
licensed practical nurses, the Task Force believed this information should be utilized to synthesize
PNNN competency statements and then determine their relationship to the Level X and Level Y
competency statements developed in FY88 by the Task Force on Examinations for the Future.

The Task Force believed those activities could be assimilated into an existing committee or into a
subcommittee of a standing commiltee. In consultation with the chairperson of the Nursing
Practice and Standards Committee, the Task Force recommended incorporation of those activities
into the goals of that committee for FY89 with provisions for continuity and consistency.

The Task Force on Examinations for the Future could be reconvened in FY91 as a commiltee or
as a subcommittee for the sole purpose of reviewing all of the data from job analysis studies and
recommending a specific model to the Delegate Assembly in August 1991.

Purpose of Subcommittee
In August 1988, the Delegate Assembly authorized the Nursing Practice and Standards Committee
to review data relating to PN/VN competencies during FY89, synthesize competencies, and
determine their relationship to the competencies synthesized by the Task Force on Examinations
for the Future during FY88.

As a result of this authorization, a five-member Subcommiltee on PNNN Competencies was
appointed to respond to this charge. The Subcommittee met on October 30-31, 1988, December
12-14, 1988, March 20-22, 1989, and May 2, 1989, by conference call.

Review of Data Relative to PNNN Competencies
The work of the Subcommittee was authorized with the understanding that documents reflecting
future PNNN competencies previously unavailable to the Task Force on Examinations for the
Future would become available and provide valuable information to complete the process of
synthesizing competencies for evolving levels of practice.

The Job Analysis of Newly Licensed Practical/Vocational Nurses, 1986-87 was added to the list of
relevant data reviewed by the Subcommittee, but the anticipated competency statements from the
National Association of Practical Nursing Education and SeIVice and the National League for
Nursing were not available. The Subcommittee determined to proceed with its charge despite the
unavailability of this data and on the basis of utilizing the competency statements which were
provided by the following:
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1. "Guidelines for Associate Degree Curriculum for Licensed Practical/Vocational Nurses"
(NFLPN, May 1986).

2. "Competencies of Graduates of Educational Programs in Practical Nursing" (NLN, May
1979).

3. "Administrative Rules-Article 54-031, Requirements for Nursing Education Programs"
(North Dakota Board of Nursing, January 1987).

4. "Test Plan for the National Council Licensure Examination for Practical Nurses"
(NCSBN-1984).

5. "Job Analysis of Newly Licensed Practical Nurses" (NCSBN-1987).

6. Reports of the Task Force on Future Examinations for the Future Committee to the
1987 and 1988 Delegate Assembly.

7. "Proposed Draft Test Plan for the National Council Licensure Examination for Practical
Nurses" (NCSBN.1988).

8. "Model Administrative Rules" and "Model Nursing Practice Act," appropriate sections
on standards of practice (NCSBN-1988).

9. Other administrative rules/competencies on PN/VN practice from the following states:

a. Texas VN
b. Minnesota
c. Maryland
d. Iowa
e. South Dakota
f. California VN

Synthesizing Competencies
The task of synthesizing future-oriented PN/VN competencies proved to be a more formidable task
than originally expected. The complexity of the task made designing of the tool for data collection
very difficult to obtain objective as well as subjective data. Consequently, the PN/VN competencies
are a result of a combination of synthesis and creative thought.

Through lengthy discussions, the Subcommittee developed assumptions upon which the work of the
Subcommittee and the future PN/VN competencies are based. The assumptions generated by the
Subcommittee are as follows:

1. Current societal trends predict that the future scope of PN/VN practice will be
expanded.

2. PN/VNs will continue to practice under supervision.

3. PN/VNs will use established policies, procedures, and protocols in the delivery of
nursing care.
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4. Competency statements for PNNN practice will be applicable to diverse work settings.

5. Any change in competencies will require a corresponding change in educational
programs.

6. The client of the future PNNN is the individual or the individual within the context
of a family or a group with actual or potential responses to health problems.

7. Elements of the nursing process will be included in curricula in programs preparing
individuals for PNNN practice.

Operational DeOnitions
The Subcommittee reviewed terms defined by the Task Force on Examinations for the Future and
concurred that these definitions would be utilized to establish the context in which the PNNN
competencies would be developed.

Those definitions, as developed by the Task Force on Examinations for the Future, follow:

Client of X Nurse: Individuals in the context of families and small groups.

Client of Y Nurse: Individuals, families, and groups within the context of the community.

Community: A group of individuals bound by common interests, organizations, laws,
geographical boundaries, or actual or potential health care needs.

Comprehensive Plan of Nursing Care: An organized, multi·dimensional approach to promote
health and meet the health, illness and/or disability needs of clients from initial contact to
discharge from the health care system. It is based on nursing diagnoses and client preferences
in collaboration with the client and other health care providers.

Entry-Level Competency: Performing skillfully and proficiently the functions that are within
the role of the nurse and demonstrating the interrelationship of essential knowledge, judgment
and skills. The time period for entry level is defined as the first year of practice following
initial licensure.

Family: A psychosocial unit composed of two or more people who have a commitment to each
other and who mayor may not live together. This definition encompasses both typical and
atypical families encountered in the health care system.

Individualized Plan of Nursing Care: An organized approach to promote health and meet the
health, illness and/or disability needs of clients based on nursing diagnoses and client
preferences, and consistent with the comprehensive plan of care.

Nursing Diagnosis: A clinical judgment about an individual or family or group that is derived
through a deliberate, systematic process of data collection, analysis, and synthesis.

Additional definitions were developed by the Subcommittee to clarify terms used in the PNNN
competency statements as follows:

National Council of State Boards of Nursing. Inc./JQ89

------------~====== ...------------------------_.".......



5

Standardized Plan of Care: A model plan that identifies nursing activities for human responses
to predictable actual or potential health problems.

Clients of Future PNW: The individual or individual within the context of a family or a
group with actual or potential responses to health problems.

Delegate: A transfer of an act of doing and the responsibility to implement it. The person
who delegates determines the competence of the person to whom the act is delegated.

Ancillary Personnel: Individuals of a subordinate status.

Predictable: An entity (in this case human response) that can be anticipated or expected on
the basis of observation, experience or scientific reasoning.

Relationship of PN/VN Competencies to the Competencies Synthesized by the Task Force on
Examinations for the Future during FY88
To be consistent with the timeline and sequence of events which guided the activities related to the
development of future examinations, the Subcommittee considered 1995 as the time frame which
describes the future. Within this context, the PN/VN competencies, as developed and reported, are
viewed as being oriented to the future, and this is strongly supported through input from Member
Boards which reflects an agreement (mean 89%) with their perception of future PN/VN practice.

The responses to the survey from Member Boards were utilized by the Subcommittee in the task
of comparing the hypothesized PN/VN Competency statements to the parallel hypothesized
Competencies of Level X and Level Y and determining their relationship. These following
questions were asked:

1. Does this hypothesized PN/VN Competency describe a level of practice which is
essentially the same as or very similar to the practice described by the hypothesized
Competency of Level X or Level Y?

2. Does this hypothesized PN/VN Competency describe a level of practice which is not
the same as and essentially distinct from the practice described by the hypothesized
competency of Level X or Level Y?

3. Are there so many similarities between the hypothesiZed PN/VN Competencies and the
hypothesized Competencies of either Level X or Level Y that the hypothesized PN/vN
Competencies could be merged into either level X or Y?

4. Are there so many distinct differences between the hypothesized PN/VN Competencies
and the hypothesized Competencies of either Level X or Level Y that the hypothesized
PN/VN Competencies comprise a separate level of practice?

The analysis of the relationship between each of the hypothesiZed Competencies was conducted and
the comparisons with supporting rational follow in the attached document. (See Attachment A).

The analysis or the relationship lead the Subcommittee to draw the following conclusions from the
sixteen (16) hypothesized PN/VN Competencies:
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1. Five (5) are viewed as being similar to Level X and the Hypothesized Competencies
could be merged.

2. Five (5) are viewed as being similar in intent to Level X but could not be merged as
written.

3. Of the ten (10) hypothesized PN/VN Competencies viewed as similar or similar in
intent to Level X, four (4) are also viewed as similar or similar in intent to Level Y.

4. Six (6) are viewed as being distinct from Level X because they were significanlly
different in scope.

5. The comparisons indicated that the greatest similarity exists between the hypothesized
PNNN Competencies and the hypothesized Competencies describing the practicc of
Level X.

6. A clear picture regarding the relationship of these hypothesized Competencies did not
emerge.

A premise underlying the work of both the Task Force on Examinations for the Future and the
PNNN Subcommittee was the recognition that the entire process of synlhesizing available
competencies and relating them to future exams was initiated via expert jUdgment; therefore, it is
essential to be able to validate the competencies through empirical research prior to using them
as a basis for the selection of a testing model. The hypothesis for the empirical research is that
the competency statements describe evolving nursing practice.

Recommendations
1. The Delegate Assembly authorize the conduction of a limited-scope job analysis in sites with

differentiated job descriptions reflecting evolving practice, using the qualitative and quantitative
instruments to determine whether the three sets of hypothesized competencies are validated.

2. The Delegate Assembly authorize the Task Force on Examinations for the Future be
reconvened during FY91 for the purpose of reviewing all data from job analysis studies and
recommending a specific testing model to the Delegate Assembly in FY92.

Fiscal Impact
Monies for recommendation #1 have been included in the approved FY90 budget under Research
(Job Analysis). The fiscal impact of recommendation #2 would not be realized until FY91; it was
estimated to be $10,050 in direct costs by the Task Force on Examinations for the Future in its
1988 report to the Delegate Assembly.

Committee Members
Carol Stuart, SO, Area II, Chairperson
Maxine Chisholm, WY, Area I
Linda Coffman, MD, Area IV
Corinne Dorsey, VA, Area IV
Lula Finley, AL, Area III

Marsha Kelly, Director of Public Policy Analysis
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RELATIONSfIIP OF PN/VN COKPETENCIES TO mE
COKPETENCIES SYNTHESIZED 8'i THE TASK FoRCE ON EXAKINATIONS FOR THE FUTURE

DURING FY88

WORDS IN ALL CAPS ARE OPERATIONALLY DEFINED.

Hypothesized competencies to be validated according to procedure outlined in IOTimeline and Sequence of Events in the
Development of New Licensure Examinations Based upon Minimum Competencies of Evolving Levels of Nursing Practice"

Future PN/VN Nursing
Practice

ASSESSMENT:

1. Collects and
validates health care data
from CLIENTS, health team
members, and available
records using an
established assessment
format and basic
communication skills.

2. organizes health data
to either select NURSING
DIAGNOSES from an
established list or to
contribute to the
identification of relevant
NURSING DIAGNOSES.

J. Records data obtained
through assessment and
reports significant
findings.

Level X Nursing Practice
as reported by the Task
Force on Future
Examinations FYa8

ASSESSMENT:

Collects and validates
data to identify health
care needs using an
established assessment
format.

Uses communication skills
with the CLIENT and other
members of the health care
team to collect data.

Level 'i Nursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future Examinations
FY88

ASSESSMENT:

Collects, validates, and
expands data collection to
reflect physical,
psychosocial, cultural,
familial, occupational,
and environmental factors
influencing the
interaction between the
CLIENT and the
environment.

Applies knowledge from a
variety of communication
theories in abstracting
assessment data.

Identifies. analyzes, and
interprets patterns of
behavior from health data
collected.

Integrates information
that is obtained through
interdisciplinary
communication in order to
determine the CLIENT's
health status and
potential.

Comparison/R~tionale

ASSESSMENT:

PN/VN competency is
~ to Level X and can
be merged with Level X.

PN/VN competency is
distinct from both level X
and level 'i. It does
relate to the intent of
competency Number 2 under
Nursing Diagnoses for
Level X on the next page.

PN/VN competency is
similar to Level X and £An
be merged with Level X.

>



Comparison/RationaleLeval 'i Nursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future Examinations rY88

Level X Nursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future Examinatiuns rYA8

------------ .------------------------~

Future PN/VN Nursing
Practice

ANALYSIS: NURSING .DIAGNOSIS: NURSING DIAGNOSIS: NURSIN9 DIAGNOSIS:

communicates and documents
assessments according to
established communication
~ystem.

Uses and modifies systems
for communicating and
documenting assessment.

The PN/VN competencies
under analysis were
incorporated into the
PH/VH competencies under
assessmpnt.

Identifies appropriate
NURSING DIAGNOSES based on
asses~ment data.

Identifies, mOdifies, or
formulates NURSING
DIAGNOSES derived from an
analysis of a
comprehensive data base.

Determines interactive
relationships among
multiple NURSING
DIAGNOSES.

communicates and documenls
NURSING DTAGNOSES
according to established
communicatLon systems.

Uses and modifies systems
for communicating and
documenting NURSING
DIAGNOSES.

PLANNING: PLANNING: PLANHIrLG:

1. Selects a
STANDARDIZED PLAN OF
NURSING CARE based on the
NURSING DIAGNOSES.

Devf>lops an INDIVIDUALIZED
PLAN or NURSING CARE based
on NURSING nIAGNOSES and
consistent with the
COMPPF:IIFNS rVF P[Jl.H OF
NURSING CAHI-:.

Develops a COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN OF NURSING CARE based
on NURSING DIAGNOSES and
nursing implications
derived from plans of
other health Care
providers.

PN/VN competency is
distinct from both Level X
and Level Y. "Selects" is
different from "develops".
"Standardized" is
different from
"individualized/com­
prehensive."

2. Participates in the
identification of
priorities, goals, and
nursing activities
necessary for the
development of an
lNDIV!mJALI2Ef) PLAN Of
HURSING CARE.

Establishes goals and
selects interventions with
the CLIENT and significant
others to implement the
INDIVIDU1\LIZED PIAN OF
NUHSI~G CARE.

Establishes goals and
selects interventions with
the CLIENT and significant
others to implement the
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF
NURSING CARE.

PH/VH competancy i~

distinct from both Level X
and Level Y.
"participates" implies
"taking part in" so is not
done with autonomy.

Pl~ns pf[e(:tive and
pfficient 1I~e- of human and
material re-sollr·.:::p.s to meet.
C'Ll F.NT needs.

Plans eff~ctjve an~

efficient use of human and
materidl resources to meet
CLIENT needs.

,/)



Future PN/VN Nursing
Practice

3. communicates with
CLIENT and/or health team
members in planning
nursing care.

Level X Nursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future ~xaminations FYBB

Establishes priorities for
implementation of ~n

INDIVIDUALIZED PLAN OF
NURSING CARE.

EstablisllPS criteria for
evaluation of progress
toward the goals of the
INDIVIDUALIZED PI~N OF
NURSING CARE.

Uses principles derived
from research in planning
nursing care.

Communicates and documents
INDIVIDUALIZED PLAN OF
NURSING CARE according to
established communication
systems.

Level Y Nursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future Examinations FYBB

Establishes priorities for
coordinating the
implementation of a
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF
NURSING CARE.

Honitors consistency
between the COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN OF NURSING CARE and
the plans of other health
care providers.

Establishes criteria for
evaluation of progress
toward the goals of the
COHPREHENSIVE PLAN OF
NURSING CARE.

Analyzes research studies
and incorporates valid and
relevant findings in
planning nursing care.

Uses and modifies systems
for communicating and
documenting the
COHPREHENSIVE pLAN OF
NURSING CARE.

Comparison/Rationale

PN/V" competency is
somewhat similar to Level
X but not enough to merge.
The focus of this
competencY is different
from both Level X and
Level Y.



Future PN/VN Nursing
Practice

IMPLEMENTATION:

1. Performs or assists
with therapeutic and
preventive nursing
measures based on a plan
of nursing care.

2. Prov ides an
environment conducive to
CLIENT safety and health.

J. DELEGATES aspects of
nursing care to ANCILLARY
PERSONNEL consistent with
their ability and the law
in order to meet CLIENT
need.c;.

4. Supervise.:; ANCILLARY
PF.RSQNHEL to whom aspects
of nursing care have been
DELEGATED.

Level X Nursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future F.xaminations FYBe

Formulates nursinq orders
to implement the
INDIVIDUALIZED PLAN OF
NURSING ClIRE.

performs, assists with, or
Ot:Lt:GATES nursing
interventions necessary to
8c:compl ish goals of the
INDIVIDUALIZED PLAN OF
NURSING CI\RE.

Perform~ "wi modi fies
nursing illt~rvent\ons

based on scielltific
principles to pl-omote a
safe environm"nt for the
CLI ENT.

DELEGATES aspects of
nur~ing care to
appropriate nursing and
ANCILLARY PERJONNEL,
consistent with their
ability ann leqal
authority, in ordpr to
meet CLIENT needs.

Supervi~~s, guides, and
directs nursing and
ANCI LLARY PER50mlEL to
whom CLIENT care has been
delegated.

Coordinatp~ services for
the man~qemrnr of CLIENT
care cunsistel1t with the
coMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF
NURSfNG ClIRE

Level Y NurRing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future Examinations FYBS

l11E1QjENTATION:

Formulates nursing orders
to implement the
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF
NURSING CARE.

performs, assists with, or
DELEGATES nursing
interventions necessary to
dccomplish goals of the
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF
NURSING CARE.

Anticipates the need for,
promotes, and monitors the
provisions of a safe
environment for CLIENTS
and' personnel in the
health care environment,

DELEGATES aspects of
nursing care to
appropriate nursing and
ANCILLARY PERSONNEL,
consistent with their
ability and legal
authority, in order to
meet CLIENT needs.

Supervises, guides, and
directs nursing and
ANCILLARY PERSONNEL to
whom CLIENT care has been
delegated.

Provides leadership in the
man~gement of CLIENT car~.

Comparison/Rationale

IMPLEMENTATION:

PN/VN competency is
distinct from Level
because it does not
address "formul ate" or
"delegate" and the scope
of nursing measures is
more limited.

PN/VN competency is
similar in intent to Level
)( but Level )( is broader
in depth as reflected in
the words "scientific
principles" and
"promotes," It cannot be
merged with Level )( as
written.

PN/VN competency is
similar in intent to Level
X or Level Y and could be
merged if the persons to
whom aspects of nursin9
care are delegated is
clarified.

PN/VN competency is
s.im....!l..d.r i.n intent and
~ ~~ with Level
X or Y if persong b~lng

supervised are clarified.

Did not inclUde
competencies of
coordination, referral,
anu advocacy in the PN/VN
role of the future.



Future PN/VN Nursing
Practice

5. participates in
CLIENT teaching using a
standard tqaching plan.

6. Haintains
accountability for care
delivered and care
DELEGATED to others.

Level X ~ursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future Ex<\minations Fye8

Refers CLIENTS to
appropriate health care
providers, departments,
and agencies consistent
with the cOMPREIIENSIVE
PLAN Of NURSING CARE.

Assists CLIENTS to
communicate needs to their
support systems and other
health care providers.

Implements a.teaching plan
to meet CLIENT needs
identified in the
INDIVIDUALIZED PLAN OF
NURS ING CARE.

Maintains accountability
for own care and care
DELEGATED to others to
assure adherence to
ethical and legal
standards.

Level Y Nursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future Examinations FY8e

Manages and coordinates
the referral process
through initiation of
inter-disciplinary
conference and external
consultations to promote
heaLth and continuity of
care.

Assists CLIENTS to
communicate needs to their
support systems, to other
health care providers, and
to the health care system.

Designs and implements a
teaching plan to meet
CLIENT needs identified in
the COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF
NURSING CARE.

Kaintains accountability
for own care and care
DELEGATED to others to
assure adherence to
ethical and legal
standards.

Comparison/Rationale

PH/VH competency is
similar in intent to level
X but" implements" is
different from
"participates" and
"individualized" is
different from
"standardized" plan of
care. These difference
give Level X greater depth
and cannot be merged as
written.

PN/VH competency is
similar and can be merged
with Level X or Level ~.

Suggest revising Level X
and Level Y to read
"Hai ntaining ..... care
delivered and care
delegated to (add "and by
others") to assure .....



Future PN/VN Nursing
Practice

7. Records and reports
nursing inter-vent ions Clnd
~LTENT response!; to
nurslng care.

EVALUATION:

1. Evaluates the
response of the CLIENT to
PN/VN nursing
interventions.

;J. _ Records and reports
evaluation data.

3. participates in the
modification of the
INDIVIDUALIZED PLAN OF
NURSING CARE using
criteria established in
collaboration with other
members of the health care
tedm.

Level X Nursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future Examinations FYR8

Communicates ",nct documents
nllndng intervention!';
according to established
communic",tioll ~ystC!1l1~.

EVAWATION:

Evaluates CLIENT responses
to nursing interventions
to determine if the goals
of the INDIV!DUALIZEO PLAN
OF NURSING C~RE arp met
and revises the plan as
needed.

Communicates and oocllments
evaluation of CI.lENT
responses to nursing
interventions and
intervl'>ntions initiat(>(l by
other health care
providers.

~v~lll~te~ qual ity of care
given by self and those to
whom care h,lS been
delegated by comparing
outcom~S with establish~d

st;IIH.Ll rd~•.

Commllnicatp.s and documents
~valuativc findings.

l.evel Y Nursing Practice
reported by the Task Force
on Future Examinations FyBS

llses and modifies systems
for communication and
documenting nursing
interventions.

EVALUATION:

Evaluates CLIF.NT responses
to nursing interventions
to determine if the goals
of the COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
OF NURSING CARE are met
and revises the plan as
needed.

Uses and modifies systems
for communicating and
documenting evalua.tion of
client responses to
nursing interventions and
interventions initiated by
other health care
providers.

Evaluates quality of care
given by self and those to
whom care has been
delegated by comparing
outcomes with established
sta.ndards.

Communicates and documents
evaluative findings.

Participates in developing
methods for evaluating
quality of nursing
practice.

p~rticipate5 in th~

e':a1uation ot thp nljr~.in'J

c~rp deliv'~ry system.

Comparison/Rationale

PN/VN competency is
similar and can be ~~rgerl

with Level Jo:.

EVALUATION:

PN/VN competency is
distinct from Level X.
Level X is broader in that
evaluation data 1s used to
determine if goalS are
~et, and in making
revisions in the plan of
care as needed.

PN/VN competency is
similar and can be merged
w1t_h Level X or Level 'i.

PN/VN competency is
distinct from Level X or
Level 'i. "participates" in
the PN/VN competency
implies "taking part in"
the modification of the
plan, so it is not done
with autonomy as is
implied in Level X and
Level t. Reference is
made to "revising" the
plan as needed in Level X
and Level Y in the first
competency related to
e.va 1u"t i on.

tJ
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Report of Ad Hoc Nurse Aide Competency
Evaluation Program (NACEP) Committee

Background
In 1987, PL 100-203 was enacted into law by the US Congress. Commonly known as the Omnibus
Budget Reconciliation Act (OBRA) of 1987, this law included Subtitle C, Nursing Home Reform
Act, which mandated requirements for MedicareIMedicaid reimbursement for covered services. For
the first time, the law specified that nurse aides and home health aides must meet federal training
and competency evaluation requirements and that a registry of aides so qualified be maintained.
The training consisted of a minimum of 75 hours of knowledge and clinical content; the competency
evaluation consisted of two components - oral/written evaluation of knowledge and a manual skills
performance evaluation. In addition, the states must establish and maintain a registry of nurse aides
completing training and evaluation requirements. At minimum, the registry is to provide data on
the individual, training completed, inform:;ltion on competency evaluation, and any adverse findings
of investigations conducted by the state regarding abuse, neglect, and misappropriation with a
response to any such finding from the nurse aide.

A Concept Paper on the Nursing Home Reform Act of 1987 by the Nursing Practice and Education
Committee of the National Council was distributed to Member Boards in early 1988. In response
to requests from Member Boards, the NCSBN Board of Directors directed that a feasibility study
on the development of a nurse aide competency evaluation program be done in spring 1988. The
1988 Delegate Assembly reviewed the feasibility study and authorized the National Council Board
of Directors to proceed with the development of a nurse aide competency evaluation program. The
Board of Directors appointed members to the Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program
(NACEP) Committee with a charge to oversee the development, implementation, and evaluation
of the nurse aide competency evaluation program under the direction of the Board. A logical job
analysis/literature review for nurse aides was completed in October of 1988 in partial preparation
for development of a blueprint for the evaluation. In November 1988, The Psychological
Corporation was selected as the test service for the Program.

Overview or NACEP Committee Activities For FY 89
In overseeing the development of the Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program, the NACEP
Committee was given the responSibility of developing an evaluation blueprint based on job analysis
data, overview of administration instructions and security measures, supervision of item writing/task
development and administration processes, and final approval of each evaluation form for the
competency evaluation. Together with the test service, the Committee was to review and assist with
efforts to market the Program to state agencies responsible for evaluation of nurse aides. Another
major activity of the Committee was to consider the need for an incumbent nurse aide job analysis
survey.

Evaluation Program Development
Purpose of Competency Evaluation Program - The Committee determined that the purpose of the
Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program is to assess minimum competence of individuals to
perform the job of nurse aide safely and effectively. To accomplish this purpose, a valid, reliable
and secure evaluation program needed to be developed.

National Council of Slate Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



Blueprint Development - After thorough study of the Nurse Aide Logical Job Analysis/Literaturc
Review conducted by the National Council and review of the findings of A Study of Nursing Practice
and Role Delineation and Job Analysis of Entry-Level Perfomwnce of Registered Nurses [Kane et al.
1986] (which included a description of tasks performed by nurse aides), a draft evaluation blueprint
was submitted by the Committee for consideration by the Board of Directors. Also, areas of the
Evaluation Blueprint were identified for use in the performance of manual task/skill component of
the evaluation. Subsequently, the NACEP Evaluation Blueprint was published. An expanded
blueprint of specific behaviors, knowledges, skills and abilities is targeted for completion by June
1989. In addition, the Board of Directors authorized the publication of the 1988 Nurse Aide
Logical Job Analysis and the corresponding bibliography.

Evaluation Itemrrask Development - Qualifications and criteria for selection of item writers, item
reviewers, and members of the Manual Task Development Committee were recommended by the
NACEP Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. Item writing sessions were held with
over fifty item writers in attendance representing approximately thirty states; in addition, item review
sessions were held with 21 reviewers in attendance representing approximately 20 states. Members
of the NACEP Committee attended item writing orientation sessions, item review sessions, and
participated in the Manual Task Development Committee.

Standard Setting for Cut Score - Qualifications and criteria for selection of a Standard Setting Panel
were recommended by the NACEP Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. The
Standard Setting Panel is to convene in June 1989 to recommend a cut score for the evaluation.

Policy Development
The Rasch item equating method and the Angoff method for criterion-referenced standard setting
are the methods that have been selected by the test service for use in the NACEP development.
In process at the writing of this report are the development of reliability standards, security
measures standards, administration procedures, and related policies. A statement on designation
of confidential material was adopted by the Committee. After discussion of the need for an
incumbent nurse aide job analysis due to the wide variety of opinions in the states regarding what
nurse aides do, the Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that an incumbent nurse
aide job analysis survey be conducted. The purpose of this job analysis is to gather empirical data
to further validate job relatedness in the development of NACEP.

Marketing
Significant time was spent in providing advice and generating ideas for marketing the Program. The
Committee received updated information from The Psychological Corporation and NCSBN staff at
each meeting held. In addition, the Committee reviewed brochures and informational materials on
the Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program developed by The Psychological Corporation.
Marketing efforts were directed to all fifty states by The Psychological Corporation staff, and are
continuing as states finalize plans for meeting the requirements of OBRA Services, including
provision and maintenance of a registry, a practice test, and administration of the evaluation, were
reviewed for use in implementation of the Program. In addition, discussion was held regarding the
use of the evaluation as a "capstone" test for Red Cross aide training courses.

Summary
The Committee and The Psychological Corporation plan to have the first evaluation forms ready
for administration in July 1989. Marketing activity for the Program is continuing by The
Psychological Corporation and National Council staff, and results of this work are being seen by

National Council Of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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the number of states that have adopted or are considering use of the NACEP. Though this has
been an extremely busy year, and one that has necessitated intense work, the Committee is confident
that the efforts to produce a sound competency evaluation program for nurse aides as required by
the federal mandates will be for the benefit of the public good.

The NACEP Committee met at the Headquarters of the The Psychological Corporation in San
Antonio, Texas on November 29-December 2, 1988; February 22-24, 1989; and May 22-24, 1989.
In addition, the activities of the Committee members included the following:

Area Meeting Presentations - Linda Fleming, Area I; Shirley Brekken, Area II; Sharon
Weisenbeck, Area III; and Caroline Ace and Rosalee Seymour, Area IV.

Item Writing Orientation Session - Linda Fleming

Item Review Sessions - Caroline Ace and Sarah Burger

Manual Task Development Committee - Carol Ruby

Expanded Evaluation Blueprint Subcommittee - Fran Roberts and Rosalee Seymour

Standard Setting Panel - Linda Fleming

Appreciation is expressed by the Committee to the NCSBN Board of Directors and Legal Counsel
for their support and timely action and to The Psychological Corporation staff for their dedicated
efforts and hard work. The Committee wishes to particularly note the commitment and
contributions of Barbara Halsey, NCSBN NACEP Program Manager, who provided guidance and
facilitated the work of the Committee. Likewise, the assistance given by Donna Dorsey, NCSBN
Board Liaison to the Committee, and Jennifer Bosma, NCSBN Acting Executive Director, is
appreciated.

Committee Members
Sharon Weisenbeck, Chairperson, Kentucky Board of Nursing
Caroline Ace, Pennsylvania Board of Nursing
Shirley Brekken, Minnesota Board of Nursing
Nelwyn Broussard, Louisiana Board of Nursing
Sarah Green Burger, Consumer Advocate, District of Columbia
Ted Day, Nursing Home Administrator, Washington
Linda Fleming, Colorado Board of Nursing
Janette Pucci, Kansas Board of Nursing
Fran Roberts, Arizona Board of Nursing
Carol Ruby, Director of Health Occupations for Cooperative Educational Services, New York
Wanda Ryan, Home Health Agency Director of Professional Services, Illinois
Rosalee Seymour, Delaware Board of Nursing

Barbara Halsey, Program Manager,
Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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1988 Delegate Assembly Action and SUbsequent
Implementation

ACfION

Board of Directors

Adopted a motion that a request for proposals
(RFP) be distributed in Fall 1989 to appropriate
testing agencies for a test service contract period
beginning in 1991.

Adopted a motion to develop short- and long­
term strategies that individual Member Boards
can implement to address the current nurse
shortage and minimize its nega tive effects on the
pUblic health, safety and welfare.

Adopted a motion supporting the National
Clearinghouse on Enforcement and Licensure
(CLEAR) as a bidder for the contract of the
National Practitioner Data Bank, and that
Member Boards seek support for CLEAR as the
appropriate contractor by contacting key national
political leaders from their individual states.

A motion was adopted to approve the Auditor's
Report.

IMPLEMENTAnON

The Board of Directors reviewed an outline for
the request for proposals and will approve the
final RFP at its July 6-7, 1989, meeting. The
RFP is scheduled to be disseminated in Fall 1989.

The Subcommittee on the Nurse Shortage
developed these strategies during FY89. See the
Subcommittee's report for details.

A letter of support for CLEAR was sent to the
Health Resources and Services Administration of
the Department of Health and Human Services
on August 23, 1989. The National Council was
subsequently notified that the contract had been
awarded to UNISYS.

The Auditor's Report was disseminated to
Member Boards in the November 23, 1988,
Newsletter.

Board of DirectorslNationaI Nursing Ucensee Data Base Committee

Adopted a motion that the National Nursing
Licensee Data Base Committee continue to work
with Member Boards to identify data currently
available in a computerized format for inclusion
in a national information system.

The Nurse Information System
continued its work during FY89.
Committee's report for details.

Committee
See the

Adopted a motion to pursue obtaining a grant or
other outside funding to assist Member Boards in
setting up a system to collect information from
licensees.

The Nurse Information System Committee began
development of a funding proposal during FY89.
Completion is expected in FY90. To date, letters
of inquiry have been sent to .18 foundations.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



ACTION

Board of Directors/Committee for Special Projects

IMPLEMENTATION 2

Adopted a motion to proceed with Phase II of
the Computerized Adaptive Testing (CAT) project
along the revised timeline; and that the National
Council portion of the candidate fee be increased
by $5.00 effective with the October 1990
examination.

The Committee for Special Projects continues to
adhere to the timeline. The Board of Directors
will select field test states on July 6-7,1989. The
Committee will report the Field Test results at
the 1991 Delegate Assembly.

Board of Directors/Task Force on Evaluation of Nurse Aides

Adopted a motion to proceed with the
development of a competency evaluation program
for nurse aides.

Examination Committee

Adopted a motion that all Member Boards be
invited to submit nominations for item writers
and panel of content experts for NCLEX
licensure examinations.

Adopted a motion that the Delegate Assembly
authorize the Examination Committee to prepare
a revision of the NCLEX·PN test plan.

Adopted a motion that chairpersons of all lesting
committees meet at least twice a year for the
purpose of coordinating activities, if deemed
necessary.

Adopted a mOlion requesting Member Boards to

reconsider their decision concerning review of
experimental test items.

At its November 2·3, 1988, meeting, the Board of
Directors selected The Psychological Corporation
as the test service for the Nurse Aide
Competency Evaluation Program (NACEP). See
the reports of the NACEP Committee ant! the
NACEP Test Service for description of FY89
activi ties.

The Examination Committee sent letters of
solicitation to Member Boards on September 1,
1988. Nominations were subsequently placed in
a bank which was used for the FY89 item writer
and panel sessions.

See the report of the Examination Committee for
the proposed NCLEX-PN test plan revision.

The testing committee chairpersons met during
the Fall 1988 OrientationlPlanning Session. A
mechanism for communication among
chairpersons was developed. In lieu of a second
meeting, the chairpersons decided to exchange
minutes of their respective meetings and to
communicate by telephone as needed.

Member Boards were reminded of this motion in
an October 7, 1988, Newsletter entry concerning
the experimental item review schedule. Fifteen
(15) Member Boards reviewed experimental items
in FY89 compared to 39 in FY88.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



ACTION

Administration of Examination Committee

IMPLEMENTATION 3

Adopted motions to approve the proposed 1998
examination dates as NCLEX-RN on 3-4
February and 14-15 July; and NCLEX-PN on 7
April and 20 October.

Adopted a motion to approve the 1998 alternate
administration dates for use in case of disaster as
NCLEX-RN on 3-4 March and 15-16 September;
and NCLEX-PN on 12 May and 17 November.

Adopted a motion authorizing the Administration
of Examination Committee (AEC) to continue to
develop policies and procedures for computerized
testing.

Adopted a motion for a crisis management plan
to be implemented effective with the July 1989
NCLEX-RN and October 1989 NCLEX-PN
administrations.

Task Force on Examinations for the Future

Adopted a motion authorizing the Nursing
Practice and Standards Committee to review data
relative to PN competencies during FY89,
synthesize the competencies and determine their
relationship to the competencies synthesized by
the Task Force on Examinations for the Future
in FY88.

Finance Committee

Adopted a motion to approve the Financial
Planning Policy.

Nursing Practice and Standards Committee

Adopted a motion to approve the Revised Model
Nurse Practice Act; and adopted a motion to
approve the Revised Model Administrative Rules.

These dates were incorporated into the NCSBN
Manual and disseminated to Member Boards.

The AEC has approved the direction of the CAT
Field Test Security Measures. The final measures
will be submitted to the AEC for approval during
the Fall 1989 Planning Retreat.

The Crisis Management Plan is expected to be
implemented effective July 1989. See the Report
of the Administration of Examination Committee
for details.

The Subcommittee on PNNN Competencies was
created to implement these activities. See the
Subcommittee's report for details.

The Finance Committee adhered to the Financial
Planning Policy throughout FY89. All financial
reports developed by the Finance Committee and
staff are in accordance with this policy.

Both documents were prepared for publication
and 'disseminated to Member Boards with the
March 31, 1989, Newsletter.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



ACTION

Nursing Practice and Standards Committee
(continued)

IMPLEMENTATION 4

Adopted a motion that data collection regarding
continued competence and entry-into-practice be
incorporated into the National Council survey
process.

Adopted a motion that the Nursing Practice and
Standards Committee develop a research proposal
for submission to an outside agency for funding
to study the effectiveness and cost implications of
the various regulatory models used to manage
chemically dependent nurses,

Bylaws Committee

Adopted a motion to repeal the current Standing
Rules of the National Council.

Adopted a motion to amend the Bylaws.

General Business

Adopted a resolution that the National Council
strongly oppose the American Medical
Association (AMA) Registered Care Technologist
Proposal.

Adopted a motion requiring candidates be
notified of election results immediately following
the tabulation of votes; and that the results of
the unofficial outcome be posted within two
hours following the notification of candidates.

Questiuns addressing continued competence and
entry-into-practice were incorporated into a survey
sent to Member Boards in March 1989.

The Subcommittee to Study Regulatory Models
for Chemically Dependent Nurses has begun
development of a funding proposal with
completion expected in FY90. To date, letters of
inquiry have been sent to 32 foundations.

The Bylaws Committee reviewed all Standing
Rules not included in the Revised Bylaws and
forwarded these rules to the relevant committees
for review and potential incorporation into
committee policies and procedures.

The amended Bylaws were prepared for
publication and disseminated to Member Boards
with the November 11, 1988, News/wer.

A lelter of opposition was sent to the American
Medical Association immediately following the
1988 Delegate Assembly. The National Council
also continues to monitor this issue.

These procedures were implemented at the 1988
Delegate Assembly and will continue to be
observed.

Nationa/ Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./7989
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The following motions represent Operational Plan strategies that had not been adopted prior to the 1988
Delegate Assembly. Following adoption, these strategies were retained in the Operational Plan. The
committees responsible for these activities are noted.

ACTION

Adopted a motion to evaluate current and future
publications related to the licensing process, legal
responsibilities and National Council services.

Adopted a motion to maintain financial policies
which provide guidelines for organizational
development.

Adopted a motion that the National Council
monitor the health care delivery system to
evaluate implications for safe and effective
practice.

Adopted a motion to investigate the feasibility of
computerized simula tion testing for initial and
continued licensure.

Adopted a motion to explore producing licensure
examinations through computer technology.

ACTIVIlY

FY89 activities were accomplished by the
Communications Committee of the Board of
Directors, as specified in the FY89 Operational
Plan.

FY89 activities were accomplished by the Finance
Committee, as specified in the FY89 Operational
Plan.

FY89 activities were accomplished by the Nursing
Practice and Education Committee, as specified in
the FY89 Operational Plan.

FY89 activities were accomplished by the Steering
Committee, Computerized Clinical Simulation
Testing (CST) Project, as specified in the FY89
Operational Plan.

FY89 activities were accomplished by the
Committee for Special Projects and the CST
Steering Committee, as specified in the FY89
Operational Plan.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



Resolution on Administration of
Third Regularly Scheduled NCLEX-RN and
NCLEX-PN Examinations Annually

WHEREAS social, economic and professional forces over the past three to five years created an
unprecedented demand for nursing manpower, and

VvllEREAS projections for increasing nursing manpower needs defined in the SIXTH REPORT TO THE
PRESIDENT AND CONGRESS ON THE STATUS OF HEALTH PERSONNEL graphically depict the
unrelenting nature of this increase in demand through the year 2030, and

WHEREAS the current demand for nursing manpower is outstripping the available supply, and

WHEREAS task forces to develop strategic plans for resolving the nursing shortage have been assembled
from coast to coast, and

WHEREAS the role of regUlatory bodies such as Boards of Nursing in implementing strategies to help
ameliorate the problem is a consistent theme among task force reports, and

WHEREAS both consumers of nursing services and employers of nurses are rightfully demanding a review
of existing procedures affecting the candidates' entry into nursing practice to ensure that such procedures
are not creating artificial time delays in the licensure process, and

\VIIEREAS nursing education programs today have mUltiple entry and exit dates with first-time candidates
waiting from two to six months after graduation to write the licensure examination, and

\VIIEREAS candidates for NCLEX-RN and NCLEX-PN examinations who are unsuccessful in their attempts
to pass the examination are unable to retake the examination until six months later thereby delaying their
entry into nursing practice, and

\VIIEREAS it is estimated that, on the national average, more than one-half of those candidates unsuccessful
in their first attempt are successful on their second attempt to pass the licensure examinations, therefore,
be it

RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the National Council State Boards of Nursing, Inc. take
necessary steps to implement the administration of a third NCLEX-RN and a third NCLEX-PN annually,
and be it further

RESOLVED the specifications for the administration of a third NCLEX-RN and a third NCLEX-PN
annually be included in the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the next test service contract cycle.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing. Inc./1989



Reference: U.S. Depanment of Health and Human Services. (1988). Nursing - Sixth Repon 10 lhe
President and Congress on the Status of Health Personnel in the United Stalcs.
Washington, D.C.: USDHHS.

Submitted by: Kentuck"y Board of Nursing
New Jersey Board of Nursing
Pennsylvania Board of Nursing

* • * * * * * * • * * • * * • * * * • *

Estimates of the fiscal impact are being prepared in conjunction with CTB/McGraw-Hill and will be sen I

to the recipients of the Book of Reports prior [0 the Delegate Assembly.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.i1989
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Resolution on Regulation of Nurse Aides

WHEREAS the 1987 Delegate Assembly of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing adopted a
STATEMENT ON THE NURSING ACTIVITIES OF UNLICENSED PERSONS wherein it is stated that
the board of nursing in each jurisdiction, charged to protect the health, safety and welfare of the public by
regulating nursing practice, has a legitimate concern and has a legal responsibility to monitor any and all
nursing activities, ' and

WHEREAS conclusions contained with the STATEMENT ON THE NURSING ACTIVITIES OF
UNLICENSED PERSONS include the following:

6. Boards of Nursing need to work to assure evidence of adequate nursing involvement when
nursing services are being provided.

7. Boards should promulgate clear rules on the utilization of unlicensed persons in all setlings
where nursing care is delivered.

8. Boards need to clearly define delegation in regulation.

11. Regulations regarding the delegation of nursing functions must he linked to the disciplinary
process,2 and

WHEREAS included in PL 100-203, Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1987 (OBRA), are mandates
that require minimum training and evaluation of unlicensed individuals called nurse aides in facilities caring
for Medicaid and/or Medicaid recipients and the maintenance of a registry on nurse aides so qualified, and

WHEREAS nurse aides who have met the training and evaluation requirements of OBRA may only perform
those acts which are properly delegable and are performed under the supervision of licensed nurses and/or
licensed physicians, and

WHEREAS included in PL 100-203, Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1987 (OBRA) are mandates
that require minimum training and evaluation of unlicensed individuals called nurse aides and the
maintenance of a registry on nurse aides so qualified, and

WHEREAS nurse aides who meet the training and evaluation requirements of OBRA are authorized to
perform acts considered to be within the domain of nursing practice, and under the supervision of licensed
nurses, and

WHEREAS the National Council of State Boards of Nursing has developed a MODEL NURSING
PRACTICE ACT and MODEL NURSING ADMINISTRATION RULES to promote the use of standards
on a national scope by NCSBN members, and

WHEREAS the interpretation and enforcement of nursing regulation is subject to fragmentation when
multiple entities establish and implement standards for the regulation of nurse aides outside the purview
of boards of nursing in jurisdictions, and

National Council of Stare Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



WHEREAS the nursing practice act of a given jurisdiction has higher legal authority than guidelines of
federal and state regulatory agencies, therefore be it

RESOLVED that the National Council of State Boards of Nursing and its member hoards work
cuoperatively with federal and state agencies in the implementation of the mandates of PL 100-2m rclating
to the regulation of nurse aidcs to insure coherence and coordination among their parts, and be it further

RESOLVED that the Delegate Assembly direct the Nursing Practice and Education Committce to devclop
standards on the regulation of nurse aides for inclusion in the NCSBN MODEL NURSING PRACTICE
ACT and NCSBN MODEL NURSING ADMINISTRATIVE RULES, and be it further

RESOLVED that the Nursing Practice and Education Committees present recommendations on revisions
to the model act and model rules for consideratiun by the 1990 Delegate Assembly.

1 National Council of State Boards of Nursing. (1987). Statement on the nursing activities of unlicensed
persons. p. 3.

2 . p. 9.

Submitted by: Pennsylvania Board of Nursing

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

The Fiscal Impact Statement for this resolution follows on pages 5 and 6.

Narional Council of STare Boards of Nursing, Inc./79R9
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NATIONAL COUNCIL OF STATE BOARDS OF NURSING, INC

FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT - DESCRIPTION

TITLE OF PROPOSAL: Resolution on Regulation of Nurse Aides

Proposed by: Permsylvania Brd. of NursingName
_______________ Committee

Date. _

Will this proposal generate revenue? --lN~Q.L-__

EXPENSES

Please describe below:

1. Does this proposal require a committee? Yes - Nursing Practice and Education

How many members are anticipated including the chairperson? _-=6:-__

How often would the committee meet? One extra 3-day meeting plus one extra day a
a regularly scheduled meeting and one conference call.

2. How many mailings would this proposal require? _4=--_

To whom? One to all 61 Member Boards' one to the Board of Pi rectors' two
to the Committee.

3. Printing (surveys, special reports, etc.) Please deSCT1be:
Model language document approximately 12 pages in length.

4. Other than committee meetings, is travel required? ...&..-

Please descnbe: _

5. What type of consultation is required (Le., legal, computer, etc.)?
Legal review of model language

6. Other. Please Descnbe: _

7. Projected beginning date: October 1989

Projected completion date: February 1990



TITLE OF PROPOSAL: Resolution on Regulation of Nurse Ai des

FISCAL IMPACT • SUMMARY

REVENUE
$._---

$,----

EXPENSES

A. DIRECT COST

1. Committee Meetings

$600 per member airfare x _6_ (# of members) x _1_ (# of meetings) = $3,600

$150 per day per diem x_6_ (# of members) x_4_ (# of days) = $3,600

$200 per telephone conference x _1__ (# of Telephone conferences) = $ 2°0

2. Mailings

$0.25 per letter x__ (# of mailings) x__ (# mailed) = $ ,
61 1

$2.00 per 9 x 12 manila envelope (First Class) x~ (# of mailings) x--4- (# mailed) =

$ 164

$8.75 per Overnight Mail x__ (# of mailings) x __ (# mailed) = $, _

3. Printing and CQpying

A.~ (# of reports) x....l2..-. (# of pages) = Total pages 1, 7BB
B,1,788 (total # of pages) x $0.05 = $ 89,40

4. Other Travel

$600 per person airfare x__ (# of persons) x__ (# of meetings) = $, _

$150 per day per diem x__ (# of persons) x__ (# of days) = $, _

5. Consultation

$ 150perhourx_8_(#ofhours)x__ (#ofmeetings) = $1.200

6.~

$__ per __ x__ = $, _

B. INDIRECT COST

2. Professional and support time required:

Total..111L hrs = $ 4,224

Total Revenue: $.---.;:0..;.....:.0...:.0 _

Total Expenses: $ B, B53. 40

Net: $ _

Indirect Cost $ 4,224,00
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Resolution on Preparation of Licensure Examinations

WHEREAS the National Council of State Boards of Nursing is responsible for the development and
administration of the licensure examinations for registered and practical nurses, and

WHEREAS the National Council of State Boards of Nursing has consistently maintained a leadership role
in the production of quality licensure examinations, setting an example for other professions, and

WHEREAS it is the will of the members of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing that such a
desirable situation be maintained, therefore be it

RESOLVED that the National Council of State Boards of Nursing continue to utilize industry standards,
such as the current guidelines of the American Educational Research Association, the American
Psychological Association and the National Council on Measurement in Education in the preparation of
valid, current and legally defensible licensure examinations.

Submitted by: Colorado Board of Nursing

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • * • • • • •

There is no fiscal impact associated with this resolution.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Glossary

MCN
American Association of Colleges of Nursing.

ACT Study
1986 and 1988 Job Analysis Studies as performed by the American College Testing Program, Iowa
City, Iowa.

AEC
Administration of Examination Committee.

ANA
American Nurses' Association.

AONE
American Organization of Nurse Executives.

Area
Designated regions of National Council Member Boards.
Areal
Alaska
American Samoa
Arizona
California
Colorado
Guam
Hawaii
Idaho
Montana
Nevada
New Mexico
N. Mariana Islands
Oregon
Utah
Washington
Wyoming

Area II
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kansas
Michigan
Minnesota
Missouri
Nebraska
North Dakota
Ohio
South Dakota
West Virginia
Wisconsin

Area III
Alabama
Arkansas
Florida
Georgia
Kentucky
Louisiana
Mississippi
North Carolina
Oklahoma
South Carolina
Tennessee
Texas
Virginia

Area IV
Connecticut
Delaware
District of Columbia
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New York
Vermont
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
Virgin Islands

ASCP
American Society of Clinical Pathologists.

Batch Processing
A method of submitting candidate applications for NCLEX. Applications are submitted directly
to the Board of Nursing, theri forwarded to the Data Center on a regular basis with the appropriate
funds.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./I989



2

Blueprint
The organizing framework for NACEP which includes the percentage of items allocated to various
categories.

Board Member
An individual who serves on a board of directors (national level) or a board of nursing (state level).

Board Processing
A method of submitting candidate applications for NCLEX. Applications are submitted directly
to the Board of Nursing, then forwarded to the Data Center on a regular basis without money. The
Board is billed for the total number of processed applications at a later date.

BOD
Board of Directors of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing.

Bylaws
The laws which govern the internal affairs of an organization.

Case Development Committee
A committee of twelve (12) clinical experts which has the responsibility of developing cases for
the Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing (CST) project.

CAT
Computerized Adaptive Testing.

CGFNS
The Commission on Graduates of Foreign Nursing Schools.

CLEAR
National Clearinghouse on Licensure, Enforcement and Regulation (an organization of regulatory
boards and agencies).

CMP
See Crisis Management Plan.

Competency Statements
Statements of future-oriented nursing competencies synthesized by the Task Force on Examinations
for the Future in 1988 and the Subcommittee on PNNN Competencies in 1989.

Crisis Management Plan (formerly Disaster Plan)
A plan developed for NCLEX administration to be implemented in the event of emergency or
natural disaster.

CSP
Committee for Special Projects (CAT Committee)

CST
Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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CTB/McGraw-ITIn
The National Council's test service for NCLEX.

Data Center
The unit at crB/McGraw Hill which receives and processes direct NCLEX applications.

Delegate Assembly
The policy-making body of the National Council which is comprised of 61 Member Boards. Each
Member Board is entitled to two (2) votes.

Direct Application
A method of submitting candidate applications for NCLEX. Applications are submitted by
candidates, with appropriate fee, directly to the Data Center.

Disciplinary Data Bank
A data management system that serves as a conduit and resource for disciplinary actions from
Member Boards.

EC
Examination Committee

Experimental Items
Newly written test questions placed into examinations for the purpose of gathering statistics.
Experimental items or "tryouts" are not used in determining the pass/fail result.

FARB
Federation of Associations of Regulatory Boards.

Fiscal Year
July 1 through June 30 at the National Council.

FY
See Fiscal Year.

ICONS
The Interagency Conference on Nursing Statistics.

Issues
A bimonthly newsletter published and nationally distributed by the National Council.

Item
A test question.

Item Writers
Individuals who write test questions for NCLEX RNIPN and NACEP examinations.

KSA"
Knowledge, Skill and Ability Statements.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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MAR
Model Administrative Rules.

Member Board
A jurisdiction has a contract with the National Council.

MNPA
Model Nurse Practice Act.

NACEP
Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program (also a comminee of the National Council's Delegate
Assembly).

NAPNES
The National Association for Practical Nurse Education and Service.

National Council Operational Plan
Goals, objectives and strategies of the National Council's long range plan as adopted by the
Delegate Assembly. The plan includes activities for current and future years as planned by the
Board of Directors and committees.

NBME
National Board of Medical Examiners. NBME programmed the National Council's Computerized
Adaptive Testing (CAT) software and is currently modifying its computerized clinical simulation
testing (CST) software for applica tion to nursing.

NC
Abbreviated form of National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.

NCLEX-RN/PN
National Council Licensure Examination-Registered Nurse/Practical Nurse. Test dates are
designated by month and year. NCLEX-RN is administered in Fcbruary and July (e.g. 289 and
789). NCLEX·PN is administered in April and October (e.g. 489 and 089).

NCNET
National Council's electronic mail network, available to each Member Board and used by
subscription.

NCNIP
National Commission on Nursing Implementation Project.

NCSBN
National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Newsletter
A biweekly publication produced by the National Council staff and distributed to each Member
Board. Items included on a regular basis: committee reports; Board of Directors agendas, major
actions and minutes; Disciplinary Data Bank reports; analyses of federal legislation; examination
statistics; notice of upcoming events; updates to the National Council Manual; and solicitations for
persons to serve in various capacities.

NFLPN
National Federation of Licensed Practical Nurses.

NIS
Nurse Information System (a committee of the National Council's Board of Directors),

NLN
National League for Nursing.

NP&E
Nursing Practice and Education (a committee of the National Council's Delegate Assembly).

ORRA 1987
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1987 (contains requirements for nurse aide training and
competency evaluation).

Panel of Content Experts
Individuals who review newly written items developed for NCLEX-RNIPN.

PCE
See Panel of Content Experts.

PL 100-203
A pUblic law which institutes the Nursing Home Rerorm Act and is part or the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (OBRA) of 1987.

PL 'J'J-660
A public law which institutes the Health Care Quality Assurance Act and establishes a national
practitioner databank.

Psych Corp
The Psychological Corporation. The Psychological Corporation is the test service contracted by the
National Council and guided by the Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program (NACEP)
Committee to begin evaluating nurse aide competency as mandated by federal legislation (OBRA).

Psychometrics
The scientific field concerned with all aspects or psychological measurement (or testing), specifically
aChievement, aptitude, and mastery as measured by testing instruments.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989
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Reliablllty
A test statistic that indicates the expected consistency of a person's test scores across different
administrations or test forms. Reliability indicates the extent to which a test score is repeatable
over time. That is, it reflects the degree to which a test score reflects the examinee's true standing
on the trait being measured. The National Council uses the Kuder-Richardson Formula 20 (KR20)
statistic to measure the reliability of NCLEX and NACEP.

RFP
Request for Proposals.

SNLQ
State Nursing Legislation Quanerly. A quarterly journal publication reviewing nursing legislation
throughout the country. The journal is published by the National Council and mailed by
subscription.

Standard Setting
The process used to set the passing standard (or the cut-score) for an examination. The passing
standard is the performance level (in terms of number of correct answers) at and above which
examinees are classified as passing the examination and below which they are classified as failing.
For the National Council, the standard setting sessions are used to determine the minimum level
of entry-level nursing knowledge, skills and abilities (as determined by NCLEX) that candidates
must demonstrate to pass. The National Council uses a criterion-referenced procedure for standard
setting and conducts a standard setting session every time the NCLEX test plan or NACEP
blueprint changes.

TAA
Test Administration Agency. The organization contracted by Member Boards to administer the
NCLEXJNACEP examinations.

Tape States
A method of submitting candidate applications for NCLEX. The states develop their own
applications, enter the information on to a computer tape, and forward that tape to the Data
Center, following the examination.

Test Plan
The organizing framework for NCLEX·RN/PN which includes the percentage of items allocated to
various categories.

Test Service
The organization which provides test services to the National Council, including test scoring and
reporting. crBlMcGraw-HiII is the test service for NCLEX, and The Psychological Corporation
is the test service for NACEP.

Validity
The extent to which inferences made using test scores are appropriate and justified by evidence; an
indication that the test is measuring what it purports to measure. The National Council assures
the validity of its examinations by basing each test strictly on the appropriate test plan (RN or PN)
or blueprint (NACEP). Each test plan or blueprint is developed from a current job analysis of
entry-level practitioners.

National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc./1989



PURPOSE

The purpose of the Orientation Manual is to provide information about the functions and operations
of the National Council. It is hoped that this manual will facilitate the active participation of all Dele­
gate Assembly particpants as well as Board and Committee members.

Following a brief discussion of the National Council's history, this manual will describe the organiza­
tional structure, functions, policies, and procedures. Committee-specific policies, procedures, and
forms may be found in the green and white National Council Manual. Each Member Board has its
own copy of the National Council Manual which is periodically updated.

HISTORY

The concept of an organization such as the National Council had its roots as far back as August 1912
when a special conference on state registration laws was held during the American Nurses' Associa­
tion (ANA) convention. At that time, participants voted to create a committee that would arrange an
annual conference for persons involved with state boards of nursing to meet during the ANA conven·
tion.

It soon became evident that the committee required a stronger structure to deal with the scope of its
concerns. However, for various reasons, the committee decided to remain within the ANA.

Boards of Nursing also worked with the National League for Nursing Education (NLNE) Which, in
1932, became the ANA's Department of Education. In 1933, by agreement with the ANA, the NLNE
accepted responsibility for advisory services to the State Boards of Nurse Examiners (SBNE) in all
education and examination-related matters. Through its Committee on Education, the League set up
a subcommittee that would address, over the following decade, state board examination issues and
problems.

In 1937, NLNE published A Curriculum Guide for Schools of Nursing. Two years later, the NLNE
initiated the first testing service through its Committee on Nursing Tests.

Soon after the beginning of World War II, nurse examiners began to face mounting pressures to
hasten licensing and to schedule examinations more frequently. In response, participants at a 1942
NLNE conference suggested a "pooling of tests" whereby each state would prepare machine
scorable examinations in one or more subjects that could provide a reservoir of test items. They
recommended that the Committee on Nursing Tests, in consultation with representative nurse exam­
iners, compile the tests in machine scorable form.

In 1943, the NLNE Board endorsed the action and authorized its Committee on Nursing Tests to
operate a pooling of licensing tests for interested states. This effort soon demonstrated the need for
a clearinghouse whereby state boards could obtain information needed to produce their test items.
Shortly thereafter, a Bureau of State Boards of Nursing began operating out of ANA headquarters.
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The Bureau was incorporated into the ANA bylaws and became an official body within that organiza­
tion in 1945. Two years later, the ANA Board appointed the Committee for the Bureau of State Boards
of Nurse Examiners which was comprised of full-time professional employees of state boards.

In 1961, after reviewing the structure and function of the ANA and its relation to state boards of
nursing, the Committee recommended that it be replaced by a council. Although council status was
achieved, many persons continued to be concerned about potential conflicts of interest and recog­
nized the often heard criticism that professional boards serve the interests of the profession they
purport to regulate.

In 1970, following a period of financial crisis for the ANA, a Council member recommended that a
free standing federation of state boards be established. After a year of study by the state boards, this
proposal was overwhelmingly defeated when the Council adopted a resolution to remain with the
ANA. However, an ad hoc committee was appointed later to examine the feasibility of the Council
becoming a self-governing incorporated body.

At the Council's 1977 meeting, a Task Force was elected and charged with the responsibility of
proposing a specific plan for the formation of a new independent organization. On June 5, 1978, the
Delegate Assembly of the ANA's Council of State Boards of Nursing voted 83 to 8 to withdraw from
the ANA to form the National Council of State Boards of Nursing.

Today, the National Council consists of 61 Member Boards including those from the Virgin Islands,
Guam, American Samoa, and the Northern Mariana Islands. An organizational chart depicting the
relationship between the National Council and the Member Boards is attached (Appendix A).

ORGANIZATIONAL MISSION, OBJECTIVES, AND GOALS

The National Council's mission is to provide an organization through which boards of nursing act
and counsel together on matters of common interest and concern affecting the public health, safety,
and welfare.

The National Council has several objectives, one of which is to develop and establish policy and
procedure regarding the use of licensing examinations in nursing. Another is to identify and promote
desirable uniformity in standards and expected outcomes in nursing education and practice as they
relate to the public interest. The National Council also seeks to assess trends and issues that affect
nursing, disseminate data relating to nurse licensure, and promote continued competence in nurs­
ing. To achieve these objectives, it plans and promotes educational programs, it provides conSUlta­
tive services for Member Boards and others, and conducts research that addresses education, prac­
tice, and policy-related issues.

The National Council's operational plan outlines its short- and long-term goals. Strategies for achiev­
ing these goals are developed in accordance with organizational objectives and reflect the National
Council's mission. Strategies and activities to implement goals are assessed, developed, and refined
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each fiscal year and provide the organization with a flexible plan yet disciplined focus. Annually, the
Board of Directors and Committee members participate in reviewing the operational plan to imple­
ment the goals and objectives with the directives of the Delegate Assembly guiding that input.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND FUNCTION

Membership:

Membership in the National Council is extended to those boards of nursing that agree to use, under
specified terms and conditions, one or more types of licensing examinations developed by the Na­
tional Council. At the present time, there are 61 Member Boards including those from the Virgin
Islands, Guam, American Samoa, and the Northern Mariana Islands. Boards of nursing may become
Member Boards upon approval of the Delegate Assembly, payment of the required fees, and execu­
tion of a contract for using a Council examination.

Member Boards maintain their good standing through remittance of fees and compliance with all
contract provisions and bylaws. In return, they receive the privilege of participating in the develop­
ment and use of the National Council's licensing examination. Member Boards also receive informa­
tion services, public policy analyses, and research services. Member Boards who fail to adhere to
the conditions of membership may have delinquent fees assessed or their membership terminated
by the Board of Directors. They may then choose to appeal the Board's decision to the Delegate
Assembly.

Areas:

The National Council's membership is presently divided into four geographic areas. The purpose of
this division is to facilitate communication, encourage regional dialogue on relevant issues, and
provide diversity of board and committee representation. Area Directors are elected by delegates
from their respective areas through a majority vote of the Delegate Assembly. In addition, there is a
Director-at-Large who is elected by all delegates voting at convention.

Delegate Assembly:

The Delegate Assembly is the major policy-making body of the National Council and is comprised of
delegates designated by the Member Boards. Each Member Board has two votes and may name two
delegates and alternates.

Delegates elect officers and members of the Committee on Nominations by majority and plurality
vote respectively. They also receive and respond to reports from officers and committees and ap­
prove the annual audit report. They may revise and amend the bylaws by a two-thirds vote providing
the proposed changes have been submitted at least 45 days before the session. In addition, the
Delegate Assembly approves most test-related decisions including changes in the examination fee.
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The Delegate Assembly meets at the National Council's annual convention. Special sessions can be
called under certain circumstances. Regularly scheduled sessions take place in Chicago during the
odd years. Even year sessions are held in other cities on a rotation basis among areas.

GENERAL DELEGATE ASSEMBLY INFORMATION

Officers:

Officers of the National Council include the president, vice president, secretary, treasurer, area direc­
tors, and director-at-Iarge. Only members or staff of Member Boards may hold office and then may
not hold office if other professional obligations result in an actual or perceived conflict of interest.

No person may hold more than one elected office at the same time. The president shall have served
at least one year on the Board of Directors prior to being elected to office. An officer shall serve no
more than six consecutive years on the Board of Directors in addition to filling an unexpired term.

The president, vice president, secretary, and treasurer shall be elected for a term of two years or until
their successors are elected. The president and vice president are elected in even-numbered years.
The secretary and treasurer are elected in odd-numbered years.

The directors are elected for a term of two years or until their successors are elected. Directors from
odd-numbered areas are elected in odd-numbered years. Directors from even-numbered areas and
the director-at-Iarge are elected in even-numbered years.

Officers are elected by ballot during the annual session of the Delegate Assembly. Area directors are
elected by delegates from their respective areas.

Election is by a majority vote. When a majority is not established by an initial ballot, re-balloting takes
place between the two nominees with the highest number of votes. In case of a tie on the re-balloting,
the choice is determined by lot.

Officers assume their duties at the close of the session at which they were elected. A vacancy in the
office of president is filled by the vice-president. Other officer vacancies are filled by Board ap­
pointees until the term expires.

Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors. the administrative body of the National Council, consists of the nine elected
officers. Its primary function is to conduct the business of the National Council between sessions of
the Delegate Assembly. The Board authorizes the signing of all contracts including those between
the National Council and its Member Boards. It also engages the services of legal counsel, approves
and adopts an annual budget, reviews membership status of noncompliant Member Boards, and
renders opinions, when needed, about actual or perceived conflicts of interest.
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Additional duties include the adoption of personnel policies for all staff, appointment of committees,
monitoring of committee progress, approval of studies and research pertinent to the National Coun­
cil's purpose, and provision for the establishment, supervision, and maintenance of the administra­
tive offices.

The work of the Board is currently organized into three committees: Communications, Convention
Planning, and Coordinating.The Communications Committee's chief functions are to prepare an
annual public relations plan, select awards candidates, and foster interorganizational relations. The
Convention Planning Committee plans, reviews and coordinates the annual Convention of the Dele­
gate Assembly and related educational sessions.

The purposes of the Coordinating Committee are to advise and counsel the President and Executive
Director on corporate matters, approve contracts, and serve as a review body for management
proposals. It also appoints committee members and reviews personnel policies.

FollOWing the 1989 Delegate Assembly, the Communications Committee will become a standing
committee of the Delegate Assembly. Convention planning activities will be assumed by the Com­
munications Committee.

Meetings of the Board of Directors:

Meeting dates for the year are scheduled by the Board of Directors during its post-convention Board
meeting. All Board meetings are held in Chicago with the exception of the pre- and post-convention
Board meetings held in the even years.

Board members are asked to submit reports and other materials for the meeting at least three weeks
prior to each meeting so that they can be copied and distributed with other meeting materials. The
call to meeting, agenda and related materials are mailed to Board members two weeks before the
meeting. The agenda is prepared by telephone conference with the President.

Activities and materials generated during the two week interval before the meeting are reported or
distributed at the next meeting. This limits the flood of last minute paper to be read and considered
during the Board meeting.

The agenda usually has two major sections; one for board discussion and action, the other for Board
members' information. Items that merit Board discussion and action are accompanied by a staff
memo which describes the item's background and indicates the Board action needed. The meeting
proceeds as Board members move to resolve individual items. Motion papers are available during
the meeting and are used so that an accurate record will result. Staff take minutes of the meeting and
later draft a complete set for the Secretary's approval. A summary of the Board's major decisions is
also prepared, reviewed by the Secretary, and mailed to Member Boards for their information prior
to the release of minutes.

Resource materials are available to each Board member and may be used during Board meetings.
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These materials, which are updated periodically throughout the year, are kept at the National Council
offices and include copies of the articles of incorporation and bylaws. Board of Directors' standing
rules, contracts, budget, test plan, committee rosters, minutes, and personnel manual.

Communications with the Board of Directors:

Communication between Board meetings takes place in several different ways. The Executive Direc­
tor communicates with the President giving reports of major activities and confers, as needed, with
the Treasurer about financial matters. The Executive Director and Treasurer also discuss the budget
on a quarterly basis after the Accountant has had the opportunity to compile the necessary financial
data.

In most instances, the Executive Director is the person responsible for communicating with National
Council consultants about legal, financial, and accounting concerns. This practice was adopted
primarily as a way to monitor and control the costs of consultant services.

Conference calls can be scheduled, if so desired by the President. Written materials are generally
forwarded to Board members in advance of the call. These materials include staff memos detailing
the issue's background as well as Board action required. Staff prepare minutes of the call to assist
the Secretary who submits them at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.

Monthly reports of major activities are mailed to Board members for those months in which materials
are not sent in advance of Board meetings. For example, if a Board meeting is scheduled for 21
September 1988, materials will be mailed on 7 September 1988. Activities that took place in August
are contained in that mailing and are not detailed in a separate August report.

Board members use the National Council letterhead when communicating as an officer of the Na­
tional Council.

Committee on Nominations:

National Council delegates elect officers as well as the Committee on Nominations. The Committee
consists of four persons, one from each area, who may be either Member Board staff or board
members. Committee members are elected to one year terms and may not serve more than two
consecutive terms. They are elected by ballot with a plurality vote. The chairperson is that person
who receives the highest number of votes.

The Committee on Nominations' function is to consider the qualifications of all candidates for office
as well as the Committee itself. The Committee then submits the names of at least two persons for
each position to be filled. This list is read at Delegate Assembly when additional nominations can be
received from the floor.
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COMMITTEES

Most of the National Council's objectives are accomplished through the committee process. Every
year, the committees report on their activities and make recommendations to the Delegate Assem­
bly. At the present time, the National Council has five standing committees: Examination, Administra­
tion of Examination, Finance, Bylaws, and Nursing Practice and Education. After August 1989, there
will be two new standing committees: The Communications Committee and the Long-Range Plan­
ning Committee.

Ad hoc committees or task forces, are appointed by either the Delegate Assembly or the Board of
Directors and are appointed to address special issues and concerns. Examples include the Nurse
Aide Competency Evaluation Committee, the Special Projects Committee, and the National Nursing
Licensee Data Base Committee.

Committees are governed by specific policies and procedures which may be found in the National
Council Manual. The manual is updated, whenever necessary, through mailings from the National
Council to Member Boards. Committee membership is extended to all current members and staff of
Member Boards although an effort is made to achieve balanced representation whenever possible.
The representation includes area, staff and board members, registered and practical nurses, and
consumers. Each spring, the National Council asks Member Boards to submit the names of persons
interested in serving on the various committees. The Area Directors review these nominations and
make appointments. The Board then ratifies these appointments at its fall meeting. Consultants
provide outside expertise to committees as needed, on a one-time or ongoing basis.

Committee members volunteer to serve and are appointed by the Board of Directors after the annual
convention. Committee chairs are appointed by the Board during its post-convention meeting. No
individual may serve more than six consecutive years on the same committee. Vacancies, including
those resulting from a failure to attend two consecutive meetings, may be filled by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation by the committee chairperson.

A National Council staff member is assigned to serve each committee. Staff work closely with the
committee chairpersons to facilitate committee work and provide support and expertise to commit­
tee members but have no formal decision-making role. Agendas for the committee meetings are
established by the chairperson. With staff assistance, the chairperson prepares the agenda, the call
to meeting, and any other documents that must be reviewed prior to committee meetings. Staff
supervise the mailing of these materials which are sent to committee members no less than two
weeks before the committee meeting.

At the request of committee members, staff will analyze issues and make recommendations in accor­
dance with committee objectives and assumptions.

Beginning in Fiscal Year 1990, the Communications Committee of the Board of Directors will become
a standing committee along with a newly established Long Range Planning Committee.
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Finance Committee:

The Finance Committee consists of at least three persons. One of the three is the Treasurer who
serves as the Committee Chair. The Committee's primary purpose is to supervise National Council
finances subject to the Board of Director's approval. It also reviews the entire financial status on a
quarterly basis and provides the Board with a proposed annual budget prior to each new fiscal year.

Recent accomplishments of the Finance Committee include the implementation of a program bud­
geting system and initiation of a policy requiring fiscal impact statements for all proposals and resolu­
tions brought before the Delegate Assembly.

Examination Committee:

The Examination Committee consists of at least six persons. One of these persons must represent
a separate board for practical/vocational nursing. The Committee Chair must have served on the
Committee prior to being appointed chairperson.

The purpose of the Examination Committee is to develop the licensure examinations and evaluate
procedures needed to produce the licensure examinations. Toward this end, it recommends test
plans to the Delegate Assembly and suggests research important to the development of licensure
examinations.

The Examination Committee is responsible for directing all aspects of examination development
Other duties include the selection of appropriate item writers, test service evaluation, and preparation
of written information about the examinations for Member Boards and other interested parties. The
Committee also evaluates the licensing examinations following their administration through means
of item analysis, person-fit analysis, and test and candidate statistics.

One of the National Council's major objectives is to provide psychometrically sound and legally
defensible nursing licensure examinations to Member Boards. Establishing examination validity is
key to this objective. Users of examinations have certain expectations about what an examination
measures and what its results mean; a valid examination is simply one that legitimately fulfills these
expectations.

Validating a licensure examination is an evidence-gathering process to determine two things: 1)
whether the examination actually measures competencies required for safe and effective job perfor­
mance, and 2) whether it can distinguish between candidates who do and do not possess those
competencies. An analysis of the job for which the license is given is essential to validation. There
are several methods for analyzing jobs, including compilation of job descriptions, opinions of ex­
perts, and surveys of job incumbents. Regardless of the method used, the outcome of the job analy­
sis is a description of those tasks that are most important for safe and effective practice.

The results of the job analysis can be used to devise a framework describing the job, which can then
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be used as a basis for a test plan and for a set of instructions for item writers. The test plan is the
blueprint for assembling forms of the test, and usually specifies major content or process dimensions
and percentages of questions that will be allotted to each category within the dimension. The instruc­
tions for item writers may take the form of a detailed set of knowledge, skill, and abilities (KSA)
statements or competency statements which the writers will use as the basis for developing individ­
ual test items. By way of the test plan and KSA statements, the examination is closely linked to the
important job functions revealed through the job analysis. This fulfills the first validation criterion: a
test that measures important job-related competencies.

The second criterion, related to the examination's ability to distinguish between candidates who do
and do not possess the important competencies, is most frequently addressed in licensure examina­
tions through a criterion-referenced standard setting process. Such a process involves the selection
of a cut score to determine which candidates pass and which fail. Expert judges with first-hand
knowledge of what constitutes safe and effective practice for entry-level nurses are selected for this
process. They are trained in conceptualizing the minimally competent candidate (performing at the
lowest acceptable level), and they go through a structured process of judging success rates on each
individual item of the test. Their pooled jUdgments result in identification of a cut score which distin­
gUishes between candidates who do and do not possess the essential competencies, thus fUlfilling
the second validation criterion.

Having validation evidence based on job analysis and criterion-referenced standard setting pro­
cesses is the best legal defense available for licensing examinations. For most of the possible chal­
lenges that candidates might bring against an examination, if the test demonstrably measures the
possession of important job-related skills, its use in the licensure process is likely to be upheld in a
court of law.

Administration of Examination Committee:

The Administration of Examination Committee consists of at least six persons. Its purpose is to
recommend criteria and procedures needed to maintain examination security and evaluate Member
Board and Test Service compliance with the established criteria and procedures. It is the Commit­
tee's duty to report security-related violations 01 contracts between the National Council and its
Member Boards to the Board of Directors. The Committee recommends dates for the administration
01 examinations to the Delegate Assembly. The Committee Chairperson is contacted in regard to
crisis management plan implementation and investigation of security breaks. The Committee also
reviews National Council staff authorizations for handicapped NCLEX candidates and examination
reviews.

Nursing Standards and Education Committee:

The Nursing Standards and Education Committee consists of at least six persons. The Committee's
purpose is to prepare guidelines for Member Boards. It periodically reviews the Model Nursing Prac­
tice Act, the Model Administrative Rules, standards, and licensure issues. It also prepares written
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information about the legal definitions and standards of nursing practice and education which it
disseminates to Member Boards and other interested parties.

Recently, the Committee completed revisions of the Model Nursing Practice Act and Model Adminis­
trative RUles. It has issued a statement on the nursing activities of unlicensed personnel and is in the
process of developing a comprehensive resource center on the issues and trends that influence the
regulatory nursing community.

Bylaws Committee:

The Bylaws Committee consists of at least three members. Its primary duties are to receive, edit, and
correlate proposed amendments to the articles of incorporation, bylaws, and standing rules. Such
amendments may be originated in the Bylaws Committee or submitted by Member Boards, the
Board of Directors, or Committees. Following the Bylaws Committee's review, the proposed amend­
ments are submitted by the Committee to the Delegate Assembly together with the Committee's
recommendation for action.

Long Range Planning Committee:

The Long Range Planning Committee consists of at least five members. Its purpose is to review the
structure of the National Council and its effectiveness in meeting the Council's purpose; review the
mission statement, goals, and objectives and propose revisions, if necessary; and prepare informa­
tion about Council goals, objectives, and strategies for dissemination.

Communications Committee:

The Communications Committee consists of at least five members. Its purpose is to provide recom­
mendations regarding Council publications; coordinate planning for computer-based information
systems; monitor the effectiveness of pUblications and information systems; plan the annual Conven­
tion and administer an awards program; and coordinate conferences as authorized by the Delegate
Assembly or the Board of Directors.

NATIONAL COUNCIL STAFF

National Council staff members are hired by the Executive Director to whom they report. Their pri­
mary role is to implement the Delegate Assembly's policy directives and provide assistance to the
Board of Directors and committees.

The National Council staff is organized into divisions for the purpose of meeting the organizational
objectives. The Testing Services Division exists to accomplish the National Council's primary objec­
tive which is to develop and establish examination-related policy and procedure. Several staff mem­
bers are assigned to this division. Other staff members are assigned to the Divisions of Research
Services, Communications. Policy Analysis, and Convention/Computer Services to assist the Na-
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tional Council to meet its other objectives. Attached is an organIzational chart depicting the relation­
ships between the various divisions (Appendix B). A list of staff and their respective responsibilities
is also attached (Appendix C).

GENERAL DELEGATE ASSEMBLY INFORMATION

Agendas for each session are prepared by the President in consultation with the Board of Directors
and Executive Director and approved by the Board of Directors. At least 45 days before the annual
convention, Member Boards are sent copies of the Book of Reports. This document contains annual
reports and recommendations from the standing and ad hoc committees, Board of Directors, offi­
cers, and Executive Director as well as new business submitted by any member or the Board. It also
contains a detailed agenda and operating budget, as well as proposed rules for the conduct of
Delegate Assembly business.

Prior to the annual session of the Delegate Assembly, the President appoints the Rules, Registration,
Election, and Resolutions Committees as well as the Committee to Approve Minutes. Prior to any
special session, the President appoints at least the Rules and Registration Committees. In either
case, the President must also appoint a timekeeper, a parliamentarian, and pages.

The purpose of the Rules Committee is to draft, in consultation with the parliamentarian, rules for the
conduct of the specific Delegate Assembly. The Registration Committee's function is to accept regis­
tration fees and provide delegates and alternates with identification bearing the number of votes to
which the individual is entitled. It also presents oral and written reports at the opening session of the
Delegate Assembly and immediately preceding the election of officers and Committee on Nomina­
tions.

The Elections Committee conducts all elections that are decided by ballot in accordance with the
bylaws and standing rules. The Resolutions Committee initiates resolutions if deemed necessary
and receives, edits, and evaluates all others in terms of their policy and fiscal impact. At a time
designated by the President, it reports its recommendations to the Delegate Assembly.

Minutes of the Delegate Assembly are kept by the Secretary, with the support of National Council
staff. These minutes are then reviewed by the Committee to Approve Minutes. Discrepancies are
resolved by reviewing the Delegate Assembly transcript and arriving at a consensus.

The duties of the Delegate Assembly are to:

• approve new Council memberships

• elect officers and members of the Committee on Nominations

• receive reports of officers and committees and take action as appropriate

• approve any examination fee to be charged by the Council

• approve the auditor's report
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• approve policy and position statements and strategies that give direction to the Council

• approve the substance of all contracts between the Council and Member Boards and the
Council and the test service

• establish the criteria for and select the test service to be utilized by the Council unless the
Council provides such services itself

• adopt test plans to be used for the development of licensing examinations in nursing

• transact any other business as may come before it

GENERAL COMMITTEE INFORMATION

Committee Appointments

The appointment of representatives of Member Boards to committees of the National Council is a
responsibility delegated to the Board of Directors by the bylaws. In order to facilitate this process and
to ensure a wide representation of Member Boards, board staff and board members. the following
procedure is used.

Each Spring, Member Boards are requested to submit the names and curriculum vitae of individuals
who wish to be considered for appointment to a National Council committee. This information. along
with information about the number of positions available on each committee. is forwarded to the
respective Area Director for recommendations for appointment or reappointment. Concurrently.
committee chairpersons are asked to provide input as to whether individuals currently serving on
committees should be reappointed.

Immediately following Delegate Assembly, the Board of Directors evaluates the qualifications of
existing and potential committee chairpersons and makes the appropriate appointments. In early
September, the Area Directors appoint/reappoint individuals to vacant committee positions. The
Area Directors' decisions are based on input received from committee chairpersons. as well as
information obtained from the individuals' curriculum vitae. At this time. appointments are also made
to any additional subcommittees, special committees, and task forces required to accomplish the
directives of the Delegate Assembly.

Committee Minutes:

Minutes are taken at every committee meeting including telephone conferences. Minute-taking is an
extremely important responsibility because minutes serve as records of what took place at the meet­
ing. Although they can be opposed by oral testimony. they are, in the vast majority of cases, legally
binding once they have been adopted and certified. Thus. it is critical that they accurately reflect the
committee's process and outcomes.

Committee minutes are taken by committee members whenever possible. If no one volunteers to
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take the minutes, the committee chair'may appoint someone to serve as secretary. Whoever takes
the minutes should remember to:

• record the date, place, and time of the meeting

• include a statement that the meeting was duly called

• indicate the presiding officer, chair, or committee member

• indicate who served as secretary

• record names of persons present and quorum statistics

• record the reading, correction, and adoption of minutes from the previous meeting

• record the adjournment time

• keep them clear and concise

• not include every routine document

• make amendments to the minutes only with the committee's approval

• initial any amendments

Minutes from National Council Board and Committee meetings follow a specific format. With rare
exception, they should reflect the topic discussed, the general nature of the discussion, and the
comments and/or actions that followed.

On the advice of legal counsel, the minutes of the discussion should not be laden with unnecessary
detail or use a "he said/she said" approach. In other words, it is not desirable for the secretary to
transcribe verbatim statements. Only in special circumstances is it necessary to identify individual
speakers since the minutes should reflect committee discussion as well as committee action.

Whenever possible, the secretary should leave a hand-written copy of the minutes with the staff
person assigned to the committee meeting. The staff person will then have the minutes typed and
forwarded to the committee members with the next meeting's agenda. This procedure not only
relieves the committee member of an additional burden; it also safeguards the minutes from loss. It
also provides the Committee Chairperson with information to prepare the next meeting's agenda. In
the event that the minutes cannot be left with the staff person, they should be forwarded to National
Council offices within two weeks.

Committee Reports:

Committee reports are sent to the National Council offices no later than 3 weeks prior to each Board
of Directors' meeting. The reports are written by the committee chairperson who is assisted by the
committee staff person. Staff process the reports and supervise their mailing.

The first page of the report contains an abstract of the report, followed by the committee's recom-
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mendation(s). Subsequent pages document the committee's activities in either narrative or outline
format. Background and rationale for the committee's recommendation(s) should be clearly stated.
The report concludes with a reiteration of the committee's recommendation(s).
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National Council of State Boards of Nursing, Inc.
Appendix B

Staff Organization
As of July 1,1989

1

Executive
Director

I
I I
3 8 10 12 16

or of Director of Director of Director of Deputy Director Director of
Policy Testing Services Research Communications for Administration
ysis Services Administrat ivc

Su pporl Services

9 11
Project Director Editor
(Computerized SNLQ

Simulated
Testing)

5 6 7
Director Director of Program Manager Administrative
ervices Special Projects Nurse Aide Assistant

(Computerized Competency Testing Services
Adaptive Testing) Evaluation

Program

I
13 14 15 I

Director of Financial Office Manager I
Convention/ Manager

Computer
Services

2
Direct

Public
Anal

4
Assistant
Testing S



Appendix C

STAFF POSITIONS and RESPONSIBILITIES

Number corresponds to position on the staff organizational chart

1. Executive Director, Jennifer Bosma (acting)

Chief executive officer responsible for directing the operations of the National Council. Major re­
sponsibilities include organizational management, management of programs and services, planning,
and public relations.

2. Director of Public Policy Analysis, Marsha Kelly

Monitors trends and issues in nursing practice and education; serves as a resource to Member
Boards regarding the practice of nursing; provides policy analysis of state and federal legislation;
monitors disciplinary data.

3. Director of Testing Services, Jennifer Bosma

Supervises and pertorms activities related to test production, test administration, and security; moni­
tors compliance with test services; serves as consultant on testing data and liaison to research staff.

4. Assistant Director of Testing Services, Nancy Miller

Pertorms staff services and provides nursing input related to test development and administration;
supervises review of examination items and dissemination of information regarding the examina­
tions.

5. Director of Special Projects (Computerized Adaptive Testing - CAT), Anthony Zsra

Responsible for all staff activities related to the computerized adaptive testing feasibility study; coor­
dinates activities with external resources and manages communications about the project.

6. Program Manager, Nurse Aide Competency Evaluation Program - NACEP), Barbara
Schroeder-Halsey

Responsible for administering the nurse aide competency evaluation program; coordinates commit­
tee and test service activities; and promotes program through communications and marketing activi­
ties.

7. Administrative Assistant (Testing), Debra Tomsky

Assists testing staff in the above activities.

8. Director of Research Services, Carolyn Yocom

Supervises and conducts research related to education, practice, test development, and administra­
tion, including the computerized clinical simulation testing (CST) project and the job analysis studies.



/',' .

9. ProjeetDireetor, Computerized Clinical Simulation Testing. (CST) Project, V. Barbara Hynes

Responsible for implementing the G%QPUIerized. clinical simulation testing project, a three year pro­
ject funded by the W.K. Kellogg Foundation.

;.10. Dir~orof Communications, Susan Woodward

R~[lsibl~fOf~1l publicatiQ!;\i,produced by the National Council; serves as liaison to the media and
provides public relations services as needed,

" ,1'~:~ClliC?'i' State Nursing Leaisiation QLuirterlV, Victor Crown

E~~;~arterlypublication on stat~A~gislation related to nursing education and practice.

• ,12. Deputy Director for Administrative Support Services, William Lauf
_. '.....~, c. •

R~ponsjbl~fqraU administrayve s~port~'?'f!Sl=lS, Major activities include data processing, man­
agement of support staff and physical plant, capital acquisitions, and payroll administration,

;:f":~ ::

',;;,;.p,t>ireetor Cl',.computer anetCo';',v.entiCln Sl=lrvices, Burleigh Angle

." i "CORfCl!rat~the annual conventiQl1,and otner meetings; manages electronic mail system and com­
puter operations,

."~ .

,in:' 14. Financial Manager, Kathleen Hayden

;;;1;,1 i, Re~onsibll=l!o&a~operating budget, Quarterly financial reports, and financial forecast; super­
vises all activities related to accounts receivable and payable.

1,~. 9J{iAA ~~na9~§, ,Ann W~tkins "

'e,:. Supel;Yise;i'l!~cretarialstaff and provides secretarial services to the Executive Director.

16.piJ;E!ctor,of(..A'!minlstratip/l,J<;atl1!1riJ1e,Kostbade Hughes

~dirnte~ministrati\lea~ect~RfNational Council programs; assists the Executive Director in
providing specific organization~1 services related to planning, reporting, and liaison activities.

';' ,~::~':;.'.;. :'·ni;
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	Book of Reports
	Committee on Nominations
	Officer Reports
	CTB Reports
	NACEP Test Service
	Nurse Information System Committee
	Special Projects (CAT) Committee
	Job Analysis Monitoring Committee
	CST Steering Committee
	Report of Executive Director
	Finance Committee
	Bylaws Committee
	Examination Committee
	Administration of Examination Committee
	Nursing Practice and Education Committee
	Subcommittee on Regulatory Models
	Subcommittee on Nurse Shortage
	PN/VN Competencies Subcommittee
	NACEP Committee
	Summary of 1988 D.A.Actions
	New Business
	Glossary
	Orientation Manual



